
UNION GAP CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY AUGUST 22, 2022 - 6:00 P.M. 

CIVIC CAMPUS, 102 W. AHTANUM ROAD, UNION GAP 

I. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

II. CONSENT AGENDA: There will be no separate discussion of these items 
unless a Council Member requests in which event the item will be removed from 
the Consent Agenda and considered immediately following the Consent Agenda. 
All items listed are considered to be routine by the Union Gap City Council and 
will be enacted by one motion 

A. Approval of Minutes: 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes, dated August 08, 2022, as attached to the 
Agenda and maintained in electronic format 

8. Approve Vouchers: 

Payroll Vouchers - EFT's, and Voucher No. 105094 through 105101 for 
August 22, 2022, in the amount of $470,377.06 

Claim Vouchers - EFT's, and Voucher No. 105103 through 105163 for August 
22, 2022, in the amount of $299,762.88 

III. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE: - First Opportunity -The City Council 
will allow comments under this section on items NOT already on the agenda. 
Where appropriate, the public will be allowed to comment on agenda items as 
they are addressed during the meeting. Please signal staff or the chair if you 
wish to take advantage of this opportunity. Each speaker will have three (3) 
minutes to address the City Council. Any handouts provided must also be 
provided to the City Clerk and are considered a matter of public record 

IV. GENERAL ITEMS 

Public Hearing 

1. UGMC Title 2 - Administration and Personnel 

2. UGMC Title 15 - UGMC Title 15 Mobile Homes 

3. UGME Title 17 Zoning 



Union Gap City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 
Monday, August 22, 2022 
Page 2 

Public Works & Community Development 

1. Ordinance No. - - Amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 2 
Administration and Personnel 

2. 

3. 

Ordinance No. - __ - Amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 15 
Mobile Homes 

Ordinance No. - __ - Amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 17 
Zoning 

4. Resolution No. - - Set Public Hearing - Wide Hollow 
Development, Developer's Agreement 

5. Motion - Set Special Council Meeting - Wide Hollow Development -
Developers Agreement 

Council 

Ordinance No. - - 2022 Budget Amendment - Lodging Tax 
Advisory Committee - Ag Museum and Yakima Valley Toursim 

Police Department 

Resolution No. - __ - Apple Developer Program License Agreement 

V. ITEMS FROM THE AUDIENCE: - Final Opportunity - The City Council 
will allow comments under this section on items NOT already on the agenda. 
Each speaker will have three (3) minutes to address the City Council. Any 
handouts provided must also be provided to the City Clerk and are considered a 
matter of public record 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS/QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

VII. DEVELOPMENT OF NEXT AGENDA 

VIII. RECESS TO 15 MINUTE EXECUTIVE SESSION 
To review the performance of a public employee, per RCW 42.30.110 (g) 

The Council will NOT be taking action after the Executive Session 

X. ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 

I 



Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: 

Topic/Issue: 

Dennis Henne, Director of Public Works & Community Development 

Public Hearing - UGMC Title 2 - Administration and Personnel 

SYNOPSIS: Public Hearing, which was set at the August 8, 2022 meeting, to receive public testimony 
on the draft amendment to UGMC Title 2 - Administration and Personnel. 

RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a Public Hearing. 

LEGAL REVIEW: Reviewed by the City Attorney. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: N/A 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: This public hearing was set at the August 8, 2022 Council Meeting. 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: Notice of Public Hearing 



I 
I 

....... ---......._._,.__,, .... _.._. ___ ...,, -=u:---............. ':t.Jli_::_~ ___ I 

Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: 

Topic/Issue: 

Dennis Henne, Director of Public Works & Community Development 

Public Hearing - UGMC Title 15 Mobile Homes 

SYNOPSIS: Public Hearing, which was set at the August 8, 2022 meeting, to receive public testimony 
on the draft amendment to UGMC Title 15 Mobile Homes. 

RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a Public Hearing. 

LEGAL REVIEW: Reviewed by the City Attorney. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: N/ A 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: This public hearing was set at the August 8, 2022 Council Meeting. 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: Notice of public hearing 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Monday, August 22, 2022, at 6:00 
p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible, the Union Gap City Council will conduct 
a public hearing. The purpose of the hearing is to receive comments on proposed 
amendments to Union Gap Municipal Code Title 2 Chapter 2.52 State 
Environmental Policy Act, Title 15 Mobile Homes, Title 17 Manufactured Home 
Park Standards. 

At the conclusion of the Public Hearing, the Council will make a final 
determination concerning proposed revisions. Comments may also be emailed 
to the City Clerk at Karen.Clifton@uniongapwa.gov or mailed to P .0. Box 3008, 
Union Gap, Washington, 98903 prior to 5 :00 p.m. on August 22, 2022. 

DA TED this gth day of August 2022. 



Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: 

Topic/Issue: 

Dennis Henne, Director of Public Works & Community Development 

Public Hearing - UGMC Title 17 Zoning 

SYNOPSIS: Public Hearing, which was set at the August 8, 2022 meeting, to receive public testimony 
on the dralt amendment to UGMC Title 17 Zoning. 

RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a Public Hearing. 

LEGAL REVIEW: Reviewed by the City Attorney. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: N/ A 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: This public hearing was set at the August 8, 2022 Council Meeting. 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: Notice of public hearing 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Monday, August 22, 2022, at 6:00 
p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible, the Union Gap City Council will conduct 
a public hearing. The purpose of the hearing is to receive comments on proposed 
amendments to Union Gap Municipal Code Title 2 Chapter 2.52 State 
Environmental Policy Act, Title 15 Mobile Homes, Title 17 Manufactured Home 
Park Standards. 

At the conclusion of the Public Hearing, the Council will make a final 
determination concerning proposed revisions. Comments may also be emailed 
to the City Clerk at Karen.Clifton@uniongapwa.gov or mailed to P .0. Box 3008, 
Union Gap, Washington, 98903 prior to 5:00 p.m. on August 22, 2022. 

DA TED this 8th day of August 2022. 

Wz4e;f\ a !<hlL 
filen Clifton, Ci~lerk 



Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: Dennis Henne; Director of Public Works & Community Development 

Topic/Issue: Ordinance - Amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 2 Administration and 
Personnel 

SYNOPSIS: The City of Union Gap requires periodic updates to remain in compliance. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt an Ordinance amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 2 -
Administration and Personnel - to remain in compliance. 

LEGAL REVIEW: City Attorney has reviewed this resolution. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: N/ A 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N/A 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Ordinance 
2. Ordinance with Redlines 



CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 2 Administration and 
Personnel. 

WHEREAS, periodic updates are necessary to maintain compliance with the current 
Washington Administrative Code; and, 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to remain in compliance with the Washington Administrative 
Code current edition. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNION GAP DOES 
ORDAIN as follows: 

Chapter 2.52-"STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT GUIDELINES" amended. 

Chapter 2.52 is amended as follows: 

• 2.52.010 - Authority. 

The city of Union Gap adopts this chapter under the State Environmental Policy Act 
(SEPA), RCW 43 .21C.120, and the SEPA Rules, WAC 197-11-904. This chapter 
contains this city's SEPA procedures and policies. The SEPA rules, WAC Chapter 197-
11, must be used in conjunction with this chapter. (Ord. 971§l(A),1984) 

• 2.52.020 - Short title. 

This chapter shall constitute the "environmental policy act" of the city and may be cited 
as such. (Ord.971§l(B),1984) 

• 2.52.030 - Applicability. 

Every action, as defined in the "SEPA guidelines" which are adopted in this chapter by 
reference within the territory of city for which the city is an agency with jurisdiction 
shall, proceed in compliance with this chapter. (Ord. 971 § 1 (C), 1984) 

• 2.52.040 - General requirements-Adoption by reference. 

This section contains the basic requirements that apply to the SEPA process. The city 
adopts the following sections of Chapter 197-11 of the Washington Administrative Code 
by reference: 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGlvfC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 1of23 



WAC 197-11-040 Definitions 

050 

055 

060 

070 

080 

090 

100 

158 

164 

168 

172 

210 

220 

228 

230 

232 

235 

238 

Lead agency 

Timing of the SEPA process 

Content of environmental review 

Limitations on actions during SEPA process 

[ncomplete or unavailable information 

Supporting documents 

Information required of applicants 

SEPA/GMA project review-Reliance on existing plans, laws and 
regulations 

Planned actions-Definition and criteria 

Ordinances or resolutions designating planned actions-Procedures 
for adoption 

Planned actions-Project review 

SEP A/GMA integration 

SEPA/GMA definitions 

Overall SEPA/GMA integration procedures 

Timing of an integrated SEP A/GMA process 

SEPA/GMA integration procedures for preliminary planning, 
environmental analysis, and expanded scoping 

SEPA/GMA integration documents 

SEP A/GMA integration monitoring 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2. 52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 2 of23 



250 SEPA/Model Toxics Control Act integration 

253 SEPA lead agency for MTCA actions 

256 Preliminary evaluation 

259 Determination of nonsignificance for MTCA remedial action 

262 Determination of significance for EIS and MTCA remedial actions 

265 Early scoping for MTCA remedial actions 

268 MTCA interim actions 

(Ord. 2526 § 1, 2007; Ord. 2106 § 1, 1998; Ord. 971 § 2(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.050 - Definitions-Adoption by reference. 

This section contains uniform usage and definitions of terms under SEPA. The city adopts 
the following sections by reference: 

WAC 197-11-700 Definitions 

702 

704 

706 

708 

710 

712 

714 

716 

718 

Act 

Action 

Addendum 

Adoption 

Affected tribe 

Affecting 

Agency 

Applicant 

Built environment 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2. 52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 3of23 



720 Categorical exemption 

721 Closed record appeal 

WAC 197-11-722 Consolidated appeal 

724 

726 

728 

730 

732 

734 

736 

738 

740 

742 

744 

746 

750 

752 

754 

756 

758 

760 

Consulted agency 

Cost-benefit analysis 

County/City 

Decision maker 

Department 

Determination of nonsignificance (DNS) 

Determination of significance (OS) 

EIS 

Environment 

Environmental checklist 

Environmental document 

Environmental review 

Expanded scoping 

Impacts 

Incorporation by reference 

Lands covered by water 

Lead agency 

License 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UG1VIC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 4of23 



762 

764 

766 

768 

770 

772 

774 

775 

776 

778 

780 

782 

784 

786 

788 

790 

792 

793 

794 

796 

797 

Local agency 

Major action 

Mitigated DNS 

Mitigation 

Natural environment 

NEPA 

Non-project 

Open record hearing 

Phased review 

Preparation 

Private project 

Probable 

Proposal 

Reasonable alternative 

Responsible official 

SEPA 

Scope 

Scoping 

Significant 

State agency 

Threshold determination 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGi'v!C Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 5 o/23 



1799 I Underlying governmental action 

(Ord. 2526 §§ 2, 3, 2007; Ord. 971 § 8, 1984) 

• 2.52.060 - Definitions-Additional. 

In addition to those definitions contained within WAC 197-11-700 through 197-11-799, 
when used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings, unless 
the context indicates otherwise: 

(1) "City" means the city of Union Gap. 

(2) "Early notice" means the city response to an applicant stating whether it considers 
issuance of a determination of significance likely for the applicant's proposal (mitigated 
determination of nonsignificance (DNS) procedures). 

(3) "Hearing examiner" means that person duly appointed by the city council m 
accordance with UGMC Chapter 2.17. 

( 4) "Ordinance" means the ordinance, resolution, or other procedure used by the city to 
adopt regulatory requirements. 

(5) "SEPA rules" means WAC Chapter 197-11 adopted by the Department of Ecology. 
(Ord. 2526 § 4, 2007; Ord. 971 § 2(B), 1984) 

• 2.52.070 - Designation of responsible official. 

(a) For those proposals for which the city is the lead agency, the responsible official shall 
be the city's development coordinator or their appointee. 

(b) For all proposals for which the city is the lead agency, the responsible official shall 
make the threshold determination, supervise scoping and preparation of any required 
environmental impact statement (EIS), and perform any other functions assigned to the 
"lead agency" or "responsible official." (Ord. 2492, 2006; Ord. 971 § 2(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.080 - Lead agency determination and responsibilities. 

(a) When the city is the lead agency for a proposal, the responsible official shall supervise 
compliance with the threshold determination requirements, and if an EIS is necessary, 
shall supervise the preparation of the EIS. 

(b) When the city is not the lead agency for a proposal, the responsible official shall use 
and consider, as appropriate, either the DNS or the final EIS of the lead agency in making 
decisions on the proposal. The city shall not prepare or require preparation of a DNS or 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 6 o/23 



EIS in addition to that prepared by the lead agency, unless required under WAC 197-11-
600. In some cases, the city may conduct supplemental environmental review under 
WAC 197-11-600. 

( c) If the city receives a lead agency determination made by another agency that appears 
inconsistent with the criteria of WAC 197-11-922 through 197-11-940, it may object to 
the determination. Any objection must be made to the agency originally making the 
determination and resolved within fifteen days of receipt of the determination, or the city 
must petition the Department of Ecology for a lead agency determination under WAC 
197-11-946 within the fifteen-day time period. Any such petition on behalf of the city 
may be initiated by the responsible official. 

(d) The responsible official is authorized to make agreements as to lead agency status or 
shared lead agency duties for a proposal under WAC 197-11-942 and 197-11-944; 
provided, that the responsible official and any department that will incur responsibilities 
as the result of such agreement approve the agreement. 

(e) The city in making a lead agency determination for a private project shall require 
sufficient information from the applicant to identify which other agencies have 
jurisdiction over the proposal. 

(f) For any proposal for a private project where the city would be the lead agency and for 
which one or more state agencies have jurisdiction, the city's responsible official may 
elect to transfer the lead agency duties to a state agency. The state agency with 
jurisdiction appearing first on the priority listing in WAC 197-11-936 shall be the lead 
agency and the city shall be an agency with jurisdiction. To transfer lead agency duties, 
the city's responsible official must transmit a notice of the transfer together with any 
relevant information available on the proposal to the appropriate state agency with 
jurisdiction. The responsible official of the city shall also give notice of the transfer to 
the private applicant and any other agencies with the jurisdiction over the proposal. (Ord. 
971§2(0),1984) 

• 2.52.100 - Timing considerations. 

(a) For nonexempt proposals, the DNS, MONS, EIS or SEIS for the proposal shall 
accompany the city staff recommendation to the hearing body. 

(b) If the city's only action on a proposal is a decision on a building permit or other license 
that requires detailed project plans and specifications, the applicant may request in 
writing that the city conduct environmental review prior to submission of the detailed 
plans and specifications. 

( c) If the lead agency determines that it is likely to issue a DNS it may use the optional 
DNS process as outlined in WAC 197-11-355 and forego a separate comment period on 
the DNS. (Ord. 2526 § 6, 2007: Ord. 971§2(F), 1984) 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 7of23 



• 2.52.110 - Categorical exemptions-Threshold determinations-Adoption by 
reference. 

This section contains the rules for deciding whether a proposal has a "probable 
significant, adverse environmental impact" requiring an environmental impact statement 
(EIS) to be prepared. This section also contains rules for evaluating the impacts of 
proposals not requiring an EIS. The city adopts the following sections by reference, as 
supplemented in Sections 2.52 . 120 and 2.52. 130: 

WAC 197-11-300 Purpose of this section 

305 Categorical exemptions 

310 Threshold determination required 

315 Environmental checklist 

330 Threshold determination process 

335 Additional information 

340 Determination of nonsignificance (DNS) 

350 Mitigated DNS 

355 Optional DNS process 

360 Determination of significance (DS)/initiation of scoping 

390 Effect of threshold determination 

(Ord. 2526 § 7, 2007; Ord. 971§3(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.120 - Flexible thresholds for categorical exemptions. 

(a) The city establishes the following exempt levels for minor new construction under 
WAC 197-11-800(1 )(b) based on local conditions: 

(1) For residential dwelling units in WAC 197-1 l-800(l)(b)(i): 

(A) The projects located within the R-1 Residential District: up to four dwelling units. 

(B) For projects located in any other zoning districts: up to six dwelling units. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2. 52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 8of23 



(2) For agricultural structures m WAC l97-l l-800(l)(b)(ii): up to twenty thousand 
square feet. 

(3) For office, school, commercial , recreational, service or storage buildings in WAC 
l97-l l-800(1)(b)(iii): up to ten thousand square feet and up to forty parking spaces. 

(4) For parking lots in WAC 197-l l-800(1)(b)(iv): up to forty parking spaces. 

(5) For landfills and excavations in WAC 197-l l-800(l)(b)(v) : up to five hundred cubic 
yards. 

(b) Whenever the city establishes new exempt levels under this section, it shall send them 
to the Department of Ecology, Headquarters Office, Olympia, Washington 98504 under 
WAC l97-l l-800(l)(c). (Ord. 971§3(B),1984) 

• 2.52.130 - Use of exemptions. 

(a) The city's determination that a proposal is exempt shall be final and not subject to 
administrative review. If a proposal is exempt, none of the procedural requirements of 
this chapter apply to the proposal. The city shall not require completion of an 
environmental checklist for an exempt proposal. 

(b) In determining whether or not a proposal is exempt, the city shall make certain the 
proposal is properly defined and shall identify the governmental licenses required (WAC 
197-11-060). If a proposal includes exempt and nonexempt actions, the city shall 
determine the lead agency, even if the license application that triggers the city's 
consideration is exempt. 

(c) If a proposal includes both exempt and nonexempt actions, the city may authorize 
exempt actions prior to compliance with the procedural requirements of this chapter 
except that: 

(1) The city shall not give authorization for: 

(A) Any nonexempt action; 

(B) Any action that would have an adverse environmental impact; 

(C) Any action that would limit the choice of alternatives. 

(2) The city may withhold approval of an exempt action that would lead to modification 
of the physical environment, when such modification would serve no purpose if 
nonexempt action(s) were not approved; and 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2. 52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 9of23 



(3) The city may withhold approval of exempt actions that would lead to substantial 
financial expenditures by a private applicant when the expenditures would serve no 
purpose if nonexempt action(s) were not approved. (Ord. 971 § 3(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.140 - Categorical exemptions-Adoption by reference. 

The city adopts by reference the following rules for catego~ical exemptions: 

WAC 197-11-800 Categorical exemptions 

880 Emergencies 

890 Petitioning DOE to change exemptions. 

(Ord. 971 § 9, 1984) 

• 2.52.150 - Environmental checklist. 

(a) A completed environmental checklist substantially in the form provided in WAC 197-
11-960, shall be filed at the same time as an application for a permit, license, certificate , 
or other approval not specifically exempted in this chapter; except, a checklist is not 
needed if the city and applicant agree an EIS is required or SEPA compliance has been 
initiated by another agency. The city shall use the application materials and 
environmental checklist to determine the lead agency. 

(b) For private proposals, the city will require the applicant to complete the 
environmental checklist, providing assistance as necessary. For city proposals the city 
shall complete the environmental checklist for that proposal. 

(c) The city may require that it, and not the private applicant, will complete all or part of 
the environmental checklist for a private proposal if the city has technical information on 
a question or questions that is unavailable to the private applicant, or the applicant has 
provided inaccurate or incomplete information on previous proposals or on proposals 
currently under consideration. 

(d) For all proposals for which the city is the lead agency, the responsible official of the 
city shall make the threshold determination pursuant to the criteria and procedures of 
WAC 197-11-310 through 197-11-390, subject to the appeal procedures of Section 
2.52.260. (Ord. 2526 §§ 8, 9, 2007; Ord. 971 § 3(D), 1984) 

• 2.52.160 - Mitigated DNS. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UG1'v!C Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 10of23 



(a) As provided in this section and in WAC 197-11-350, the responsible official may 
issue a DNS based on conditions attached to the proposal by the responsible official or 
on changes to, or clarifications of, the proposal made by the applicant. 

(b) An applicant may request in writing early notice of whether a OS is likely under WAC 
197-11-350. The request must: 

(1) Follow submission of a permit application and environmental checklist for a 
nonexempt proposal for which the city is lead agency; and 

(2) Proceed the city actual threshold determination for the proposal. 

( c) The responsible official should provide written response to the request for early notice 
as soon as feasible after the city receives a written request. The response shall: 

( l) State whether the city currently considers issuance of a OS likely and, if so, indicate 
the general or specific area(s) of concern that is/are leading the city to consider a DS; and 

(2) State that the applicant may change or clarify the proposal to mitigate the indicated 
impacts, revising the environmental checklist and/or permit application as necessary to 
reflect the changes or clarifications. 

( d) As much as possible, the city should assist the applicant with identification of impacts 
to the extent necessary to formulate mitigation measures. 

(e) When an applicant submits a changed or clarified proposal, along with a revised or 
amended environmental checklist, the city shall base its threshold determination on the 
changes or clarified proposal if the city indicated specific mitigating measures in its 
response to a request for early notice, and the applicant changed or clarified the proposal 
to include those specific mitigation measures the city shall issue a DNS or MONS. 

(f) A mitigated DNS issued under WAC 197-11-340(2) requires a fourteen (14) day 
comment period and public notice. 

(g) Mitigation measures incorporated in the mitigated DNS shall be deemed conditions 
of approval of the permit decision and may be enforced in the same manner as any term 
or condition of the permit, or enforced in any manner specifically prescribed by the city. 

(h) If the city's tentative decision on a permit or approval does not include mitigation 
measures that were incorporated in a mitigated DNS for the proposal, the city should 
evaluate the threshold determination to assure consistency with WAC 197-11-340(3)(a) 
(withdrawal of DNS). 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGlv!C Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page I I of 23 



(i) The city's written response under subsection (b) of this section shall not be construed 
as a determination of significance. In addition, preliminary discussion of clarifications or 
changes to a proposal, as opposed to a written request for early notice, shall not bind the 
city to consider the clarifications or changes in its threshold determination. (Ord. 2526 
§§ 10-12, 2007; Ord. 971§3(E),1984) 

• 2.52.170 - Environmental impact statement (EIS)-Adoption by reference. 

This part contains the rules for preparing environmental impact statements. The city 
adopts the following sections by reference, as supplemented by this section : 

WAC 197-11-400 Purpose of EIS 

402 General requirements 

405 EIS types 

406 EIS timing 

408 Scoping 

410 Expanded scoping (Optional) 

420 EIS preparation 

425 Style and size 

430 Format 

435 Cover letter or memo 

440 EIS contents 

WAC 197-11-442 Contents of EIS on nonproject proposals 

443 EIS contents when prior nonproject EIS 

444 Elements of the environment 

448 Relationship of EIS to other considerations 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UG1VIC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 12of23 



450 Cost-benefit analysis 

455 Issuance of DEIS 

460 Issuance of FEIS. 

(Ord. 971 § 4(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.180 - Environmental impact statement (EIS)-Preparation-Additional 
considerations. 

(a) Preparation of draft and final EIS's (DEIS and FEIS) and draft and final supplemental 
EIS's (SEIS) is the responsibility of the city under the direction of the responsible official. 
Before the city issues an EIS the responsible official shall be satisfied that it complies 
with this chapter and WAC Chapter 197-11 . 

(b) The DEIS and FEIS or draft and final SEIS shall be prepared by city staff, the 
applicant, or by a consultant selected by mutual consent of the city and the applicant. If 
the responsible official requires an EIS for a proposal and determines that someone other 
than the city will prepare the EIS, the responsible official shall notify the applicant 
immediately after completion of the threshold determination . The responsible official 
shall also notify the applicant of the city procedure for EIS preparation, including 
approval of the DEIS and FEIS prior to distribution. 

(c) The city may require an applicant to provide information the city does not possess , 
including specific investigations. However, the applicant is not required to supply 
information that is not required under this chapter or that is being requested from another 
agency. (This does not apply to information the city may request under another ordinance 
or statute.) 

( d) In the event that an EIS is to be prepared by a private applicant or a consultant retained 
by the private applicant, the responsible official shall assure that the EIS is prepared in a 
responsible manner and with appropriate methodology. The responsible official shall 
direct the areas of research and examination to be undertaken, as well as the organization 
of the resulting document. 

( e) In the event that the responsible official or his designee is preparing the EIS, the 
responsible official may require a private applicant to provide data and information which 
the city does not possess, relevant to any or all areas to be covered by the EIS. (Ord . 971 
§ 4(B), 1984) 

• 2.52.190 - Environmental impact statement (EIS)-Additional elements. 

City of Union Gap. Washington 
Ordinance; UG1'v!C Chapter 2. 52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 13 o/23 



Additional Elements. The lead agency may include, in an FEIS, DEIS or SEIS, an 
analysis of any impact determined to be relevant to the agency's decision, whether or not 
required by provisions of this chapter and the SEPA rules. The inclusion of such analysis 
may be based on comments received during the scoping process. Such additional analysis 
shall not add to the criteria for threshold determinations or perform any other function or 
purpose under this chapter. (Ord. 2526 § 13, 2007: Ord. 971 § 4(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.200 - Commenting-Adoption by reference. 

This part contains rules for consulting, commenting, and responding on all environmental 
documents under SEPA, including rules for public notice and hearings. This city adopts 
the following sections by reference, as supplemented in this section: 

EXPAND 

WAC 197-11-500 Purpose of this part 

502 Inviting comment 

504 Availability and cost of environmental documents 

508 SEPA register 

510 Public notice 

535 Public hearings and meetings 

545 Effect of no comment 

550 Specificity of comments 

560 FEIS response to comments 

570 Consulted agency costs to assist lead agency 

(Ord. 2526 § 14, 2007; Ord. 971 § 5(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.210 - Public notice. 

(a) Whenever the city issues a DNS under WAC 197-11-340(2) or a OS under WAC 197-
11-360(3) the city shall give public notice as follows: 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 14of23 



( l) If public notice is required for a nonexempt license, the notice shall state whether a 
OS or DNS has been issued and when comments are due. 

(2) If no public notice is required for the permit or approval, the city shall give notice of 
the DNS or OS by: 

(A) Publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the county, city or general 
area where the proposal is located; and 

(3) Whenever the city issues a OS under WAC 197-11-360(3), the city shall state the 
scoping procedure for the proposal in the OS as required in WAC 197-11-408 and in the 
public notice. 

(b) Whenever the city issues a DEIS under WAC 197-11-455(5) or a SEIS under WAC 
197-11-620, notice of the availability of those documents shall be given by: 

(!)Indicating the availability of the DEIS in any public notice required for a nonexempt 
license; 

(2) Publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the county, city, or general 
area where the proposal is located; and 

(c) Whenever possible, the city shall integrate the public notice required under this 
section with existing notice procedures for the city nonexempt permit(s) or approval(s) 
required for the proposal. 

(d) The city may require an applicant to complete the public notice requirements for the 
applicant's proposal at his or her expense. (Ord. 971 § 5(8), 1984) 

• 2.52.220 - Consulted agency responsibilities-Designation of official. 

(a) The responsible official shall be responsible for preparation of written comments for 
the city in response to a consultation request prior to a threshold determination, 
participation in scoping and reviewing a DEIS. 

(b) The responsible official shall be responsible for the city compliance with WAC 197-
11-550 whenever the city is a consulted agency and is authorized to develop operating 
procedures that will ensure that responses to consultation requests are prepared in a 
timely fashion and include data from all appropriate departments of the city. (Ord . 971 
§ 5(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.230 - Use of existing environmental documents-Adoption by reference. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance ; UGMC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 15 o/23 



This section contains rules for using, supplementing and retaining existing environmental 
documents prepared under SEPA or National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) for the 
city's own environmental compliance. The city adopts the following sections by 
reference: 

WAC 197-11-600 When to use existing environmental documents 

610 Use of NEPA documents 

620 Supplemental environmental impact statement-procedures 

625 Addenda-procedures 

630 Adoption-procedures 

635 Incorporation by reference-procedures 

640 Combining documents. 

(Ord. 971 § 6(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.240 - SEP A and agency decisions-Adoption by reference. 

This part contains rules (and policies) for SEPA's substantive authority, such as decisions 
to mitigate or reject proposals as a result of SEPA. This part also contains procedures for 
appealing SEPA determinations to agencies or the courts. The city adopts the following 
sections by reference: 

WAC 197-11-650 Purpose of this part 

655 Implementation 

660 Substantive authority and mitigation 

680 Appeals. 

(Ord. 971 § 7(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.250 - Policies-Goals-Permit approval. 

(a) The policies and goals set forth in this chapter are supplementary to those in the 
existing authority of the city. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2. 52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 16 o/23 



(b) The city may attach conditions to a permit or approval for a proposal so long as: 

( 1) Such conditions are necessary to mitigate specific probable adverse environmental 
impacts identified in environmental documents prepared pursuant to this chapter; and 

(2) Such conditions are in writing; and 

(3) The mitigation measures included in such conditions are reasonable and capable of 
being accomplished; and 

( 4) The city has considered whether other local, state or federal mitigation measures 
applied to the proposal are sufficient to mitigate the identified impacts; and 

(5) Such conditions are based on one or more policies in subsection ( d) of this section 
and cited in the license or other decision document. 

(c) The city may deny a permit or approval for a proposal on the basis of SEPA so long 
as: 

( 1) A finding is made that approving the proposal would result in probable significant 
adverse environmental impacts that are identified in a FEIS or final SEIS prepared 
pursuant to this chapter; and 

(2) A finding is made that there are no reasonable mitigation measures capable of being 
accomplished that are sufficient to mitigate the identified impact; and 

(3) The denial is based on one or more policies identified in subsection (d) of this section 
and identified in writing in the decision document. 

( d) The city designates and adopts by reference the following policies as the basis for the 
city's exercise of authority pursuant to this section. 

( 1) The city shall use all practicable means, consistent with other essential considerations 
of state policy, to improve and coordinate plans, functions, programs, and resources to 
the end that the state and its citizens may: 

(A) Fulfill the responsibilities of each generation as trustee of the environment for 
succeeding generations; 

(B) Assure for all people of Washington safe, healthful, productive, and aesthetically and 
culturally pleasing surroundings; 

(C) Attain the widest range of beneficial uses of the environment without degradation, 
risk to health or safety, or other undesirable and unintended consequences; 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UG1\!IC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 17 of23 



(D) Preserve important historic, cultural and natural aspects of our national heritage; 

(E) Maintain, wherever possible, an environment which supports diversity and variety of 
individual choice; 

(F) Achieve a balance between population and resource use which will permit high 
standards of living; and 

(G) Enhance the quality of renewable resources and approach the maximum attainable 
recycling of depletable resources. 

(2) The city recognizes that each person has a fundamental and inalienable right to a 
healthful environment and that each person has a responsibility to contribute to the 
preservation and enhancement of the environment. 

(3) The city adopts by reference the policies in the following city codes, ordinances, 
resolutions and plans including amendments thereto: 

(A) Union Gap Comprehensive Plan; 
(B) Union Gap Six-Year Street Plan; 
(C) Union Gap Parks Plan; 
(D) Yakima Airport Master Plan; 
(C) Title 4 UGMC, Business Licenses and Regulations; 
(D) Title 5 UGMC, Health and Sanitation; 
(E) Title 6 UGMC, Animals; 
(F) Title 8 UGMC, Public Peace, Safety and Morals; 
(G) Title 9 UGMC, Vehicles and Traffic; 
(H) Title I 0 UGMC, Parks; 
(I) Title I 1 UGMC, Streets and Sidewalks; 
(E) Title 12 UGMC, Water and Sewers; 
(F) Title 13 UGMC, Fire Code; 
(G) Title 14 UGMC, Buildings and Construction; 
(H) Title 16 UGMC, Subdivisions; 
(I) Title 17 UGMC, Zoning; 
(J) Title 18 UGMC, Development Regulation Administration; 
(K) Agreement for Wastewater Treatment and Disposal Service (dated February 23, 
1976), as amended; 
(M) Yakima River Regional Greenway Master Plan. 

• 2.52.255 - Legislative appeals. 

(a) When any proposal or action not requiring a decision of the city council is conditioned 
or denied on the basis of SEPA by a nonelected official, the decision shall be appealable 
to the city council. Such appeal may be perfected by the proponent or any aggrieved party 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGi'vfC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 18of23 



by submitting an application for appeal on forms provided by the city. Review by the 
council shall be on a de novo basis . (Ord. 2526 § 15, 2007; Ord. 971 § 7(B), 1984) 

• 2.52.260 - Administrative appeals. 

(a) The city establishes the following administrative appeal procedures under RCW 
43.21C.075 and WAC 197-11-680: 

(1) Any agency or person may appeal the city's procedural compliance with WAC 
Chapter 197-11 for issuance of the following: 

(A) Final DNS. Appeal of the DNS must be made to the hearing examiner within fourteen 
days of the date the DNS is final (see WAC 197-l l-390(2)(a)). 

(B) OS. The appeal must be made to the hearing examiner within fourteen days of the 
date the OS is issued. 

(2) The decision of the hearing examiner is the city's final decision on the matter. 

(3) For any appeal under this subsection, the city shall provide for a record that shall 
consist of the following: 

(A) Findings and conclusions; 

(B) Testimony under oath; 

(C) A taped or written transcript; 

(0) The city may require the appellant to provide an electronic transcript. 

(4) The procedural determination of the city's responsible official shall carry substantial 
weight in any appeal proceeding. 

(b) The city shall give notice under WAC 197-11-680(5) whenever it issues a permit 
approval for which a statute or ordinance establishes a time limit for appeal commenting 
judicial appeal. (Ord. 2526 § 16, 2007: Ord. 971 § 7(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.270 - Notice of action-Publications. 

(a) The city, applicant for, or proponent of an action may publish a notice of action 
pursuant to RCW 43.21C.080 for any action. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGJ\t!C Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 19of23 



(b) The form of the notice shall be substantially in the form provided in WAC 197-11-
990 . The notice shall be published by the city clerk, applicant or proponent pursuant to 
RCW43 . ll0 .080. (Ord.971§7(0),1984) 

• 2.52.280 - Agency compliance-Adoption by reference. 

This section contains rules for agency compliance with SEPA, including rules for 
charging fees under the SEPA process, designating environmentally sensitive areas, and 
applying these rules to current agency activities. The city adopts the following sections 
by reference, as supplemented by WAC 173-806-043 through 173-806-045 and this part: 

WAC 197-11-900 Purpose of this part 

902 

904 

906 

908 

910 

912 

914 

916 

917 

918 

920 

922 

924 

926 

Agency SEPA policies 

Agency SEPA procedures 

Content and consistency of agency procedures 

Critical areas 

Designation of responsible official 

Procedures of consulted agencies 

SEP A fees and costs 

Application to ongoing actions 

Relationship to chapter 197-10 WAC 

Lack of agency procedures 

Agencies with environmental expertise 

Lead agency rules 

Determining the lead agency 

Lead agency for governmental proposals 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGJ\t/C Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 20 o/23 



928 Lead agency for public and private proposals 

930 Lead agency for private projects with one agency with jurisdiction 

932 Lead agency for private projects requiring licenses for more than one 
agency, when one of the agencies is a county/city 

934 Lead agency for private projects requiring licenses from a local agency, 
not a county, and one or more state agencies 

936 Lead agency for private projects requiring licenses from more than one 
state agency 

938 Lead agencies for specific proposals 

940 Transfer of lead agency status to a state agency 

942 Agreements on lead agency status 

944 Agreements on division of lead agency duties 

946 DOE resolution of lead agency disputes 

948 Assumption of lead agency status. 

950 Severability 

955 Effective date 

(Ord. 971§lO(A),1984) 

• 2.52.290 - Fees. 

The city shall require the following fees for its activities m accordance with the 
provisions of this chapter: 

(l) Threshold Determination. For every environmental checklist the city will review 
when it is lead agency, the city shall collect a fee set by UGMC Chapter 18.80 from the 
proponent of the proposal prior to undertaking the threshold determination. The time 
periods provided by this chapter for making a threshold determination shall not begin to 
run until payment of the fee. When the city completes the environmental checklist at the 
applicant's request or under Section 2.52.150, the applicant shall pay all costs incurred 
by the city. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGlv!C Chapter 2. 52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 21 o/23 



(2) Environmental Impact Statement. 

(A) When the city is the lead agency for a proposal requiring an EIS and the responsible 
official determines that the EIS shall be prepared by employees of the city, the city may 
charge and collect a reasonable fee from any applicant to cover costs incurred by the city 
in preparing the EIS . The responsible official shall advise the applicant(s) of the projected 
costs for the EIS prior to actual preparation; the applicant shall post bond or otherwise 
ensure payment of such costs . 

(B) The responsible official may determine that the city will contract directly with a 
consultant for the preparation of an EIS, or a portion of the EIS, for activities initiated by 
some persons or entity other than the city and may bill such costs and expenses directly 
to the applicant. The city may require the applicant to post bond or otherwise ensure 
payment of such costs. Such consultants shall be selected by mutual agreement of the 
city and applicant after a call for proposals. 

(C) If a proposal is modified so that an EIS is no longer required, the responsible official 
shall refund any fees collected under subdivisions (A) and (B) of this subsection which 
remain after incurred costs are paid. 

(3) The city may collect a reasonable fee from an applicant to cover the cost of meeting 
the public notice requirements of this chapter relating to the applicant's proposal. 

( 4) The city shall not collect a fee for performing its duties as a consulted agency. 

(5) The city may charge any person for copies of any document prepared under this 
chapter, and for mailing the document, in a manner provided by RCW Chapter 42.17. 
(Ord. 971 § 1 O(B), 1984) 

• 2.52.300 - Forms-Adoption by reference. 

The city adopts the following forms and sections by reference: 

WAC 197-11-960 Environmental checklist 

965 

970 

980 

985 

Adoption notice 

Determination of nonsignificance (DNS) 

Determination of significance and scoping notice (DS) 

Notice of assumption of lead agency status 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 2.52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 22 o/23 



1990 I Notice of action. 

(Ord . 971§11 , 1984) 

• 2.52.310 - SEPA public information center. 

(a) lnformation and documents relating to SEPA activities for the city shall be retained 
at the following location: 

Union Gap City Hall 
l 02 W. Ahtanum Road 
Union Gap, WA 98903 

(b) The city shall retain all documents required by the SEPA rules (WAC Chapter 197 -
11) and make them available in accordance with RCW Chapter 42.56. (Ord. 970 § 6(B), 
1984) 

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of the City 
and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication. 

ORDAINED this 221h day of August, 2022. 

John Hodkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Karen Clifton, City Clerk Bronson Brown, City Attorney 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance ; UGMC Chapter 2. 52 State Environmental Policy Act 

Page 23of23 



• Chapter 2.52 - ST ATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT GUIDELINES 

• 2.52.010 - Authority. 

The city of Union Gap adopts this chapter under the State Environmental Policy Act 
(SEPA) , RCW 43.21C. l20, and the SEPA Rules, WAC 197-11-904. This chapter 
contains this city's SEPA procedures and policies . The SEPA rules, WAC Chapter 197-
11 , must be used in conjunction with this chapter. 

(Ord. 971§l(A),1984) 

• 2.52.020 - Short title. 

This chapter shall constitute the "environmental policy act" of the city and may be cited 
as such. 

(Ord. 971 § l (B), 1984) 

• 2.52.030 - Applicability. 

Every action, as defined in the "SEPA guidelines" which are adopted in this chapter by 
reference within the territory of city for which the city is an agency with jurisdiction 
shall, proceed in compliance with this chapter. 

(Ord. 971 § l (C), 1984) 

• 2.52.040 - General requirements-Adoption by reference. 

This section contains the basic requirements that apply to the SEP A process. The city 
adopts the following sections of Chapter 197-l l of the Washington Administrative 
Code by reference : 

WAC 197-11-040 Definitions 

050 Lead agency 

055 Timing of the SEPA process 

060 Content of environmental review 

070 Limitations on actions during SEPA process 



080 Incomplete or unavailable information 

090 Supporting documents 

100 Information required of applicants 

158 :sEPA
0

[BG 11/GMA project review-Rfeliance on existing plans, 
laws and regulations 

164 Planned actions-Daefinitions- and criteria 

168 Ordinances or resolutions designating planned actions-
13frocedures for adoption 

172 Planned actions-ff3roject review 

210 SEP A/GMA integration 

220 SEPA/GMA definitions 

228 Overall SEPA/GMA integration procedures 

230 Timing of an integrated SEP A/GMA process 

232 SEPA/GMA integration procedures for preliminary planning, 
environmental analysis, and expanded scoping 

235 MoAiteriHgSEPA/GMA integration documents 

238 ~-+E>*ic Control Act integration!SEPA/GMA 
integration rnonitoringirBG2] 

250 SEPA/Model Toxics Control Act integrat ion 

253 SEP A lead agency for MTCA actions 

256 Preliminary evaluation 

259 Determination of nonsignificance for MTCA remedial action 

262 Determination of significance for EIS and MTCA remedial actions 

265 Early scoping for MTCA remedial actions 



1268 I MTCA interim actions 

(Ord . 2526 § 1, 2007; Ord. 2106 § 1, 1998; Ord. 971 § 2(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.050 - Definitions-Adoption by reference. 

This section contains uniform usage and definitions of terms under SEPA. The city 
adopts the following sections by reference , as supplerne1tte€l by \Vi\C 173 806 MG-: 

WAC 197-11-700 Definitions 

702 Act 

704 Action 

706 Addendum 

708 Adoption 

710 Affected tribe 

712 Affecting 

714 Agency 

716 Applicant 

718 Built environment 

720 Categorical exemption 

721 Closed record appeal 

WAC 197-11-722 Consolidated appeal 

724 Consulted agency 

726 Cost-benefit analysis 

728 County/City 



730 Decision maker 

732 Department 

734 Determination of nonsignificance (DNS) 

736 Determination of significance (OS) 

738 EIS 

740 Environment 

742 Environmental checklist 

744 Environmental document 

746 Environmental review 

750 Expanded scoping 

752 Impacts 

754 Incorporation by reference 

756 Lands covered by water 

758 Lead agency 

760 License 

762 Local agency 

764 Major action 

766 Mitigated DNS 

768 Mitigation 

770 Natural environment 

772 NEPA 



774 Nonproject 

775 Open record f*lhli~[BG3] -hearing 

776 Phased review 

778 Preparation 

780 Private project 

782 Probable 

784 Proposal 

786 Reasonable alternative 

788 Responsible official 

790 SEPA 

792 Scope 

793 Scoping 

794 Significant 

796 State agency 

797 Threshold determination 

799 Underlying governmental action 

(Ord. 2526 §§ 2, 3, 2007; Ord. 971 § 8, 1984) 

• 2.52.060 - Definitions-Additional. 

In addition to those definitions contained within WAC 197-11-700 through 197-11-799, 
when used in this chapter, the following terms shall have the following meanings, 
unless the context indicates otherwise: 

(1) "City" means the city of Union Gap. 



(2) "Early notice" means the city response to an applicant stating whether it considers 
issuance of a determination of significance likely for the applicant's proposal (mitigated 
determination of nonsignificance (DNS) procedures). 

(3) "Hearing examiner" means that person duly appointed by the city council JD. 
accordance with UGMC Chapter 2.17.[BG4] 

( 4) "Ordinance" means the ordinance, resolution, or other procedure used by the city to 
adopt regulatory requirements . 

(5) "SEP A rules" means WAC Chapter 197-11 adopted by the Department of Ecology. 

(Ord. 2526 § 4, 2007; Ord. 971§2(B), 1984) 

• 2.52.070 - Designation of responsible official. 

(a) For those proposals for which the city is the lead agency, the responsible official 
shall be the city's development coordinator 6r their appointee .'[BG5] 

(b) For all proposals for which the city is the lead agency, the responsible official shall 
make the threshold determination, supervise scoping and preparation of any required 
environmental impact statement (EIS), and perform any other functions assigned to the 
"lead agency" or "responsible official ~" ~y those sections of the SEPA rules that were 
adopted by rcl'crence in WAC 173 806 Q?0 .

1

[BG6] 

(Ord. 2492, 2006; Ord. 971 § 2(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.080 - Lead agency determination and responsibilities. 

(a) When the city is the lead agency for a proposal, the responsible official shall 
supervise compliance with the threshold determination requirements, and if an EIS is 
necessary, shall supervise the preparation of the EIS. 

(b) When the city is not the lead agency for a proposal, the responsible official shall use 
and consider, as appropriate, either the DNS or the final EIS of the lead agency in 
making decisions on the proposal. The city shall not prepare or require preparation of a 
DNS or EIS in addition to that prepared by the lead agency, unless required under 
WAC 197-11-600. In some cases, the city may conduct supplemental environmental 
review under WAC 197-11-600. 

(c) If the city receives a lead agency determination made by another agency that 
appears inconsistent with the criteria of WAC 197-11-922 through 197-11-940, it may 
object to the determination. Any objection must be made to the agency originally 
making the determination and resolved within fifteen days of receipt of the 
determination, or the city must petition the Department of Ecology for a lead agency 



determination under WAC 197-11-946 within the fifteen-day time period. Any such 
petition on behalf of the city may be initiated by the responsible official. 

( d) The responsible official is authorized to make agreements as to lead agency status 
or shared lead agency duties for a proposal under WAC 197-11-942 and 197-11-944; 
provided, that the responsible official and any department that will incur 
responsibilities as the result of such agreement approve the agreement. 

( e) The city in making a lead agency determination for a private project shall require 
sufficient information from the applicant to identify which other agencies have 
jurisdiction over the proposal. 

(f) For any proposal for a private project where the city would be the lead agency and 
for which one or more state agencies have jurisdiction, the city's responsible official 
may elect to transfer the lead agency duties to a state agency. The state agency with 
jurisdiction appearing first on the priority listing in WAC 197-11-936 shall be the lead 
agency and the city shall be an agency with jurisdiction. To transfer lead agency duties, 
the city's responsible official must transmit a notice of the transfer together with any 
relevant information available on the proposal to the appropriate state agency with 
jurisdiction. The responsible official of the city shall also give notice of the transfer to 
the private applicant and any other agencies with the jurisdiction over the proposal. 

(Ord. 971 § 2(0), 1984) 

• 2.52.100 - Timing considerations. 

(a) For nonexempt proposals, the DNS, MONS, EIS or SEIS for the proposal shall 
accompany the city staff recommendation to the hearing body. 

(b) If the city's only action on a proposal is a decision on a building permit or other 
license that requires detailed project plans and specifications, the applicant may request 
in writing that the city conduct environmental review prior to submission of the detailed 
plans and specifications. 

( c) If the lead agency determines that it is likely to issue a DNS it may use the optional 
DNS process as outlined in WAC 197-l l-~355:IBG7l and forego a separate 
comment period on the DNS. 

(Ord. 2526 § 6, 2007 : Ord. 971 § 2(F), 1984) 

• 2.52.110 - Categorical exemptions-Threshold determinations-Adoption by 

reference. 

This section contains the rules for deciding whether a proposal has a "probable 
significant, adverse environmental impact" requiring an environmental impact 



statement (EIS) to be prepared. This section also contains rules for evaluating the 
impacts of proposals not requiring an EIS . The city adopts the following sections by 
reference, as supplemented in Sections 2.52. 120 and 2.5 2.1 30 : 

WAC 197-11-300 Purpose of this section 

305 Categorical exemptions 

310 Threshold determination required 

315 Environmental checklist 

330 Threshold determination process 

335 Additional information 

340 Determination of nonsignificance (DNS) 

350 Mitigated DNS 

355 Optional DNS process 

360 Determination of significance (DS)/initiation of scoping 

390 Effect of threshold determination 

(Ord. 2526 § 7, 2007; Ord. 971 § 3(A), 1984) 

• ~.52.120 - Flexible thresholds for categorical exemptions.'[BG8] 

(a) The city establishes the following exempt levels for minor new construction under 
WAC 197-l l-800(1)(b) based on local conditions : 

:(1) For residential dwelling units in WAC 197-l l-800(l)(b)(i):
1

[BG9] 

(A) The projects located within the R-1 Residential District: up to four dwelling units. 

(B) For projects located in any other zoning districts: up to six dwelling units. 

(2) f or agricultural structures in WAC 197-11-800(1 )(b )(ii): up to twenty thousand 
square feet.[BG 1 O] 



'(3) For office, school, commercial , recreational, service or storage buildings in WAC 
197-11-800(1)(b)(iii): up to ten thousand square feet and up to forty parking spaces . 

( 4) For parking lots in WAC 197-11-800( 1 )(b )(iv): up to forty parking spaces.[BG 11] 

:(5) For landfills and excavations in WAC 197-11-800(1)(b)(v): up to five hundred 
cubic yards.

1
[BG 12] 

(b) Whenever the city es ta bl ishes new exempt levels under this section, it shall send 
them to the Department of Ecology, Headquarters Office, Olympia, Washington 98504 
under WAC 197-11-800(1 )( c ). 

(Ord . 971 § 3(B), 1984) 

• 2.52.130 - Use of exemptions. 

(a) The city's determination that a proposal is exempt shall be final and not subject to 
administrative review. If a proposal is exempt, none of the procedural requirements of 
this chapter apply to the proposal. The city shall not require completion of an 
environmental checklist for an exempt proposal. 

(b) In determining whether or not a proposal is exempt, the city shall make certain the 
proposal is properly defined and shall identify the governmental licenses required 
(WAC 197-11-060). If a proposal includes exempt and nonexempt actions, the city 
shall determine the lead agency, even if the license application that triggers the city's 
consideration is exempt. 

(c) If a proposal includes both exempt and nonexempt actions, the city may authorize 
exempt actions prior to compliance with the procedural requirements of this chapter 
except that : 

(1) The city shall not give authorization for : 

(A) Any nonexempt action ; 

(B) Any action that would have an adverse environmental impact; 

(C) Any action that would limit the choice of alternatives. 

(2) The city may withhold approval of an exempt action that would lead to modification 
of the physical environment, when such modification would serve no purpose if 
nonexempt action(s) were not approved; and 

(3) The city may withhold approval of exempt actions that would lead to substantial 
financial expenditures by a private applicant when the expenditures would serve no 
purpose if nonexempt action(s) were not approved. 



(Ord.971§3(C) , 1984) 

• 2.52.140 - Categorical exemptions-Adoption by reference. 

The city adopts by reference the following rules for categorical exemptions-;-a-s
s-uw-ktnented in l-R-i-5-chapter. including 'A' AC I 73 go6 O-+-O-tf-1€-xib le thresho lds+.---WA-G 
~e-e-~ernp1ions'[BG13]t.--and WAC 173 806 ~nvironment-rrl+y 
sens iti ve areas) : 

WAC 197-11-800 Categorical exemptions 

880 Emergencies 

890 Petitioning DOE to change exemptions. 

(Ord. 971§9, 1984) 

• 2.52.150 - Environmental checklist. 

(a) A completed environmental checklist substantially in the form provided in WAC 
197-11-960, shall be filed at the same time as an application for a permit, license, 
certificate, or other approval not specifically exempted in this chapter; except, a 
checklist is not needed ifthe city and applicant agree an EIS is required ....QI,- SEPA 
compliance has been initiated by another agency. The city shall use the ;aQP lication 
materials and lrBGl41environmental checklist to determine the lead agency. 

(b) For private proposals, the city will require the applicant to complete the 
environmental checklist, providing assistance as necessary. For city proposals the city 
shall complete the environmental checklist for that proposal. 

(c) The city may require that it, and not the private applicant, will complete all or part 
of the environmental checklist for a private proposal if the city has technical 
information on a question or questions that is unavailable to the private 
~pp l ican u[BG 151. or the applicant has provided inaccurate or incomplete information on 
previous proposals or on proposals currently under consideration. 

( d) For all proposals for which the city is the lead agency, the responsible official of the 
city shall make the threshold determination pursuant to the criteria and procedures of 
WAC 197-11-310 through l97-l l-~390:IBC:il6"1, subject to the appeal procedures 
of Sec ti on 2.52.260. 

(Ord . 2526 §§ 8, 9, 2007; Ord. 971 § 3(0), 1984) 



• 2.52.160 - Mitigated DNS. 

(a) As provided in this section and in WAC 197-11-350, the responsible official may 
issue a ONS based on conditions attached to the proposal by the responsible official or 
on changes to, or clarifications of, the proposal made by the applicant. 

(b) An applicant may request in writing early notice of whether a OS is likely under 
WAC 197-11-350. The request must: 

( 1) Follow submission of a permit application and environmental checklist for a 
nonexempt proposal for which the city is lead agency; and 

(2) Proceed the city actual threshold determination for the proposal. 

(c) The responsible official should provide written response to the request for early 
notice as soon as feasible after the city receives a written request. The response shall : 

( 1) State whether the city currently considers issuance of a OS likely and, if so, indicate 
the general or specific area(s) of concern that is/are leading the city to consider a OS; 
and 

(2) State that the applicant may change or clarify the proposal to mitigate the indicated 
impacts, revising the environmental checklist and/or permit application as necessary to 
reflect the changes or clarifications. 

(d) As much as possible, the city should assist the applicant with identification of 
impacts to the extent necessary to formulate mitigation measures . 

(e) When an applicant submits a changed or clarified proposal, along with a revised or 
amended environmental checklist, the city shall base its threshold determination on the 
changes or clarified proposal if the city indicated specific mitigating measures in its 
response to a request for early notice, and the applicant changed or clarified the 
proposal to include those specific mitigation measures the city shall issue a ONS or 
MONS . 

(f) A mitigated ONS issued under WAC 197-11-340(2) requires a fourteen (14) day 
comment period and public notice. 

(g) Mitigation measures incorporated in the mitigated ONS shall be deemed conditions 
of approval of the permit decision and may be enforced in the same manner as any term 
or condition of the permit, or enforced in any manner specifically prescribed by the 
city. 

Kh) If the city's tentative decision on a permit or approval does not include mitigation 
measures that were incorporated in a mitigated ONS for the proposal, the city should 



evaluate the threshold determination to assure consistency with WAC 197- l 1-340(3)(a) 
(withdrawal of DNS).'[BG 17]'[BG 18] 

(i) The city's written response under subsection (b) of this section shall not be construed 
as a determination of significance . In addition, preliminary discussion of clarifications 
or changes to a proposal , as opposed to a written request for early notice, shall not bind 
the city to consider the clarifications or changes in its threshold determination. 

(Ord. 2526 §§ 10-12, 2007; Ord. 971 § 3(E), 1984) 

• 2.52.170 - Environmental impact statement (EIS)--Adoption by reference. 

This part contains the rules for preparing environmental impact statements. The city 
adopts the following sections by reference, as supplemented by this section: 

WAC 197-11-400 Purpose of EIS 

402 General requirements 

405 EIS types 

406 EIS timing 

408 Scoping 

410 Expanded scoping_(b QtionallrBG 191) 

420 EIS preparation 

425 Style and size 

430 Format 

435 Cover letter or memo 

440 EIS contents 

WAC 197-11-442 Contents of EIS on nonproject proposals 

443 EIS contents when prior nonproject EIS 

444 Elements of the environment 



448 Relationship of EIS to other considerations 

450 Cost-benefit analysis 

455 Issuance of DEIS 

460 Issuance of FEIS. 

(Ord. 971 § 4(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.180 - Environmental impact statement (EIS)-Preparation-Additional 

considerations. 

(a) Preparation of draft and final EIS's (DEIS and FEIS) and draft and final 
supplemental EIS's (SEIS) is the responsibility of the city under the direction of the 
responsible official. Before the city issues an EIS the responsible official shall be 
satisfied that it complies with this chapter and WAC Chapter 197 -11. 

(b) The DEIS and FEIS or draft and final SEIS shall be prepared by city staff, the 
applicant, or by a consultant selected by mutual consent of the city and the applicant. If 
the responsible official requires an EIS for a proposal and determines that someone 
other than the city will prepare the EIS, the responsible official shall notify the 
applicant immediately after completion of the threshold determination . The responsible 
official shall also notify the applicant of the city procedure for EIS preparation, 
including approval of the DEIS and FEIS prior to distribution. 

(c) The city may require an applicant to provide information the city does not possess, 
including specific investigations. However, the applicant is not required to supply 
information that is not required under this chapter or that is being requested from 
another agency. (This does not apply to information the city may request under another 
ordinance or statute.) 

( d) In the event that an EIS is to be prepared by a private applicant or a consultant 
retained by the private applicant, the responsible official shall assure that the EIS is 
prepared in a responsible manner and with appropriate methodology. The responsible 
official shall direct the areas of research and examination to be undertaken, as well as 
the organization of the resulting document. 

( e) In the event that the responsible official or his designee is preparing the EIS, the 
responsible official may require a private applicant to provide data and information 
which the city does not possess, relevant to any or all areas to be covered by the EIS . 

(Ord.971§4(8),1984) 



• 2.52.190 - Environmental impact statement (EIS)-Additional elements. 

Additional Elements. The lead agency may include, in an FEIS, DEIS or SEIS, an 
analysis of any impact determined to be relevant to the agency's decision, whether or 
not required by provisions of this chapter and the SEPA rules. The inclusion of such 
analysis may be based on comments received during the scoping process. Such 
additional analysis shall not add to the criteria for threshold determinations or perform 
any other function or purpose under this chapter. 

(Ord. 2526 § 13, 2007: Ord. 971 § 4(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.200 - Commenting-Adoption by reference. 

This part contains rules for consulting, commenting, and responding on all 
environmental documents under SEPA, including rules for public notice and hearings. 
This city adopts the following sections by reference, as supplemented in this section: 

EXPAND 

WAC 197-11-500 Purpose of this part 

502 Inviting comment 

504 Availability and cost of environmental documents 

508 SEPA register 

510 Public notice 

535 Public hearings and meetings 

545 Effect of no comment 

550 Specificity of comments 

560 FEIS response to comments 

570 Consulted agency costs to assist lead agency 

(Ord. 2526 § 14, 2007; Ord. 971 § 5(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.210 - Public notice. 



(a) Whenever the city issues a DNS under WAC 197-11-340(2) or a OS under WAC 
197-11-360(3) the city shall give public notice as follows: 

( l) If public notice is required for a nonexempt license, the notice shall state whether a 
OS or DNS has been issued and when comments are due. 

'.(2) If no public notice is required for the permit or approval, the city shall give notice of 
the DNS or OS by: 

(A) Publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the county, city or 
general area where the proposal is located; and 

!tlB-Netil'ying the news media .f13G'20!(BG21] 

(3) Whenever the city issues a OS under WAC 197-11-360(3), the city shall state the 
scoping procedure for the proposal in the OS as required in WAC 197-11-408 and in 
the public notice. 

(b) Whenever the city issues a DEIS under WAC 197-11-455(5) or a SEIS under WAC 
197-11-620, notice of the availability of those documents shall be given by: 

(1) Indicating the availability of the DEIS in any public notice required for a 
nonexempt license; 

(2) Publishing notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the county, city, or 
general area where the proposal is located; and 

:t-3) Notifying the AC\NS '.medial[BG22]~~±;t 

(c) Whenever possible, the city shall integrate the public notice required under this 
section with existing notice procedures for the city nonexempt permit(s) or approval(s) 
required for the proposal. 

(d) The city may require an applicant to complete the public notice requirements for the 
applicant's proposal at his or her expense. 

(Ord. 971 § 5(B), 1984) 

• 2.52.220 - Consulted agency responsibilities-Designation of official. 

(a) The responsible official shall be responsible for preparation of written comments for 
the city in response to a consultation request prior to a threshold determination, 
participation in scoping and reviewing a DEIS. 

(b) The responsible official shall be responsible for the city compliance with WAC 197-
11-550 whenever the city is a consulted agency and is authorized to develop operating 



procedures that will ensure that responses to consultation requests are prepared in a 
timely fashion and include data from all appropriate departments of the city. 

(Ord. 971 § 5(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.230 - Use of existing environmental documents-Adoption by reference. 

This section contains rules for using, supplementing and retaining existing 
environmental documents prepared under SEPA or National Environmental Policy Act 
(NEPA) for the city's own environmental compliance. The city adopts the following 
sections by reference: 

WAC 197-11-600 When to use existing environmental documents 

610 Use of NEPA documents 

620 Supplementa1 environmental impact statement-
procedures 

625 Addenda-procedures 

630 Adoption-procedures 

635 Incorporation by reference-procedures 

640 Combining documents. 

(Ord. 971 § 6(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.240 - SEP A and agency decisions-Adoption by reference. 

This part contains rules (and policies) for SEP A's substantive authority, such as 
decisions to mitigate or reject proposals as a result of SEPA. This part also contains 
procedures for appealing SEPA determinations to agencies or the courts . The city 
adopts the following sections by reference: 

WAC 197-11-650 Purpose of this part 

655 Implementation 

660 Substantive authority and mitigation 



1680 I Appeals. 

(Ord.971§7(A),1984) 

• 2.52.250 - Policies-Goals-Permit approval. 

(a) The policies and goals set forth in this chapter are supplementary to those in the 
existing authority of the city. 

(b) The city may attach conditions to a permit or approval for a proposal so long as: 

(1) Such conditions are necessary to mitigate specific probabl~[BG24] adverse 
environmental impacts identified in environmental documents prepared pursuant to this 
chapter; and 

(2) Such conditions are in writing; and 

(3) The mitigation measures included in such conditions are reasonable and capable of 
being accomplished; and 

(4) The city has considered whether other local , state or federal mitigation measures 
applied to the proposal are sufficient to mitigate the identified impacts; and 

(5) Such conditions are based on one or more policies in subsection ( d) of this section 
and cited in the license or other decision document. 

( c) The city may deny a permit or approval for a proposal on the basis of SEPA so long 
as: 

(I) A finding is made that approving the proposal would result in probable significant 
adverse environmental impacts that are identified in a FEIS or final SEIS prepared 
pursuant to this chapter; and 

(2) A finding is made that there are no reasonable mitigation measures capable of being 
accomplished that are sufficient to mitigate the identified impact; and 

(3) The denial is based on one or more policies identified in subsection (d) of this 
section and identified in writing in the decision document. 

(d) The city designates and adopts by reference the following policies as the basis for 
the city's exercise of authority pursuant to this section. 



(I) The city shall use all practicable means, consistent with other essential 
considerations of state policy, to improve and coordinate plans, functions , programs, 
and resources to the end that the state and its citizens may: 

(A) Fulfill the responsibilities of each generation as trustee of the environment for 
succeeding generations; 

(B) Assure for all people of Washington safe, healthful, productive, and aesthetically 
and culturally pleasing surroundings; 

(C) Attain the widest range of beneficial uses of the environment without degradation, 
risk to health or safety, or other undesirable and unintended consequences; 

(D) Preserve important historic, cultural and natural aspects of our national heritage; 

(E) Maintain, wherever possible, an environment which supports diversity and variety 
of individual choice; 

(F) Achieve a balance between population and resource use which will permit high 
standards of living; and 

(G) Enhance the quality of renewable resources and approach the maximum attainable 
recycling of depletable resources. 

(2) The city recognizes that each person has a fundamental and inalienable right to a 
healthful environment and that each person has a responsibility to contribute to the 
preservation and enhancement of the environment. 

(3) The city adopts by reference the policies in the following city codes, ordinances, 
resolutions and plans including amendments thereto: 

(A) Union Gap Comprehensive Plan; 

(8) Union Gap Six-Year Street Plan; 

(C) Union Gap Parks Plan; 

(0) Yakima Airport Master Plan; 

(C) T itl e 4 UGMC, Business License_i and II BG25 !Regulation?_; 

(D) T itl e 5 UGMC, Health and Sanitation; 

(E) T itle 6 UGMC, Animals ; 

(F) T itl e 8 UGMC, Public Peace! BG26 I. Safety and Morals; 



(G) Title 9 UGMC, Vehicles and Traffic; 

(H) Title l 0 UGMC, Parks; 

(I) Title I I UGMC, Streets and Sidewalks; 

(E) Title 12 UGMC, Water and Sewers; 

(F) Title 13 UGMC, Fire Code; 

(G) Title 14 UGMC, Buildings and Construction; 

(H) Title l 6 UGMC, Subdivisions; 

(I) Title 17 UGMC, Zoning; 

(J) Title 18 UGMC, Development Regulation Administration; 

'.CK) Agreement for Wastewater Treatment and Disposal Service (dated February 23, 
1976), as amended;[[BG27] 

~bj Yakima Urb-an Area Regional Planning Agreemeffi-{e-ateG-J.-attt:tary 25, 1977),--ns
ameooe~oojj~fifBG29 1 [[BG30] 

(M) Yakima River Regional Greenway Master Plan. 

• 2.52.255 - Legislative appeals.:fet 

(a) When any proposal or action not requiring a decision of the city council is 
conditioned or denied on the basis of SEPA by a nonelected official, the decision shall 
be appealable to the city council. Such appeal may be perfected by the proponent or any 
aggrieved party by giving no lice to the responsible official within ten days of the 
decision being appea!edsubmitt ing an appl ication for appeal on forms provided by the 
city. Review by the council shall be on a de novo basis. tBG3 l]:[BG32] 

(Ord. 2526 § 15, 2007; Ord. 971§7(B), 1984) 

• 2.52.260 - Administrative appeals. 

(a) The city establishes the following administrative appeal procedures under RCW 
43.21C.075 and WAC 197-11-680: 

(1) Any agency or person may appeal the city's procedural compliance with WAC 
Chapter 197-11 for issuance of the following: 



(A) Final DNS. Appeal of the DNS must be made to the hearing examiner within 
'seven'IBG33 i fourteen regul~1r city bttS-tne-ss-days of the date the DNS is final (see WAC 
il 97-11-390(2)(a)).'[BG34] 

(B) DS. The appeal must be made to the hearing examiner within sB¥et-r-fourteen 
regubr cfty business days of the date the DS is issued. 

(2) The decision of the hearing examiner is the city's final decision on the matter. 

(3) For any appeal under this subsection, the city shall provide for a record that shall 
consist of the following: 

(A) Findings and conclusions; 

(8) Testimony under oath; 

(C) A taped or written transcript; 

(D) The city may require the appellant to provide an electronic transcript. 

( 4) The procedural determination of the city's responsible official shall carry substantial 
weight in any appeal proceeding. 

(b) The city shall give notice under WAC 197-11-680(5) whenever it issues a permit 
approval for which a statute or ordinance establishes a time limit for appeal 
commenting judicial appeal. 

(Ord. 2526 § 16, 2007: Ord. 971 § 7(C), 1984) 

• 2.52.270 - Notice of action-Publications. 

(a) The city, applicant for, or proponent of an action may publish a notice of action 
pursuant to RCW 43 .21 C.080 for any action. 

(b) The form of the notice shall be substantially in the form provided in WAC 197-11-
990. The notice shall be published by the city clerk, applicant or proponent pursuant to 
RCW 43 .110.080. 

(Ord. 971 § 7(0), 1984) 

• 2.52.280 - Agency compliance--Adoption by reference. 

This section contains rules for agency compliance with SEPA, including rules for 
charging fees under the SEPA process, designating environmentally sensitive areas, and 
applying these rules to current agency activities. The city adopts the following sections 



by reference, as supplemented by WAC 173-806-043 through 173-806-045 and this 
part: 

WAC 197-11-900 Purpose of this part 

902 Agency SEPA policies 

904 Agencv SEPA grocedures 

906 Content and cons istency of agency 12rocedures 

908 Critical areas 

910 Designation of res12onsib le offic ial 

912 Procedures of consu lted agencies 

914 SEPA fees and costs 

916 Application to ongoing actions 

917 Relationshig to chagter 197-1 0 WAC 

9 18 iLack of agency grnccdures!I BG35 I 

920 Agencies with environmental expertise 

922 Lead agency rules 

924 Determining the lead agency 

926 Lead agency for governmental proposals 

928 Lead agency for public and private proposals 

930 Lead agency for private projects with one agency with jurisdiction 

932 Lead agency for private projects requiring licenses for more than one 
agency, when one of the agencies is a lGounty/~Gity[BG36] 

934 Lead agency for private projects requiring licenses from a local 
agency, not a county, and one or more state agencies 



936 Lead agency for private projects requiring licenses from more than 
one state agency 

938 Lead agencies for specific proposals 

940 Transfer of lead agency status to a state agency 

942 Agreements on lead agency status 

944 Agreements on division of lead agency duties 

946 DOE resolution of lead agency disputes 

948 Assumption of lead agency status. 

950 Severabilitv 

955 [Effective datdrBG371 

(Ord. 971 § lO(A), 1984) 

• 2.52.290 - Fees. 

The city shall require the following fees for its activities in accordance with the 
provisions of this chapter: 

(1) Threshold Determination. For every environmental checklist the city will review 
when it is lead agency, the city shall collect a fee of \forty dollars \I BG~set bv UGMC 
Cha12ter l 8.80 from the proponent of the proposal prior to undertaking the threshold 
determination. The time periods provided by this chapter for making a threshold 
determination shall not begin to run until payment of the fee. When the city completes 
the environmental checklist at the applicant's request or under Sec tion 2.52.150, the 
applicant shall pay all costs incurred by the city. 

(2) Environmental Impact Statement. 

(A) When the city is the lead agency for a proposal requiring an EIS and the 
responsible official determines that the EIS shall be prepared by employees of the city, 
the city may charge and collect a reasonable fee from any applicant to cover costs 
incurred by the city in preparing the EIS. The responsible official shall advise the 
applicant(s) of the projected costs for the EIS prior to actual preparation; the applicant 
shall post bond or otherwise ensure payment of such costs. 



(B) The responsible official may determine that the city will contract directly with a 
consultant for the preparation of an EIS, or a portion of the EIS , for activities initiated 
by some persons or entity other than the city and may bill such costs and expenses 
directly to the applicant. The city may require the applicant to post bond or otherwise 
ensure payment of such costs. Such consultants shall be selected by mutual agreement 
of the city and applicant after a call for proposals. 

(C) If a proposal is modified so that an EIS is no longer required, the responsible 
official shall refund any fees collected under subdivisions (A) and (B) of this subsection 
which remain after incurred costs are paid. 

(3) The city may collect a reasonable fee from an applicant to cover the cost of meeting 
the public notice requirements of this chapter relating to the applicant's proposal. 

( 4) The city shall not collect a fee for performing its duties as a consulted agency. 

(5) The city may charge any person for copies of any document prepared under this 
chapter, and for mailing the document, in a manner provided by RCW Chapter 42.17. 

(Ord.971§10(8), 1984) 

• 2.52.300 - Forms-Adoption by reference. 

The city adopts the following forms and sections by reference : 

WAC 197-11-960 Environmental checklist 

965 Adoption notice 

970 Determination of nonsignificance (ION S)il BG39 l 

980 Determination of significance and scoping notice (OS) 

985 Notice of assumption of lead agency status 

990 Notice of action . 

(Ord.971§11 , 1984) 

• 2.52.310 - SEPA public information center. 

(a) Information and documents relating to SEPA activities for the city shall be retained 
at the following location: 



Union Gap City Hall 

102 W. Ahtanum Road 

Union Gap, WA 98903 

(b) The city shall retain all documents required by the SEPA rules (WAC Chapter 197-
11) and make them available in accordance with RCW Chapter 42.-1-+561 I3G401 . 

(Ord. 970 § 6(B), 1984) 



. I 

I 
~~~~--~~~~~~~~~~~~~J 

Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: 

Topic/Issue: 

Dennis Henne; Director of Public Works & Community Development 

Ordinance - Amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 15 Mobile Homes 

SYNOPSIS: The City of Union Gap requires periodic updates to remain in compliance. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt an Ordinance amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 15 - Mobile 
Homes - to remain in compliance. 

LEGAL REVIEW: City Attorney has reviewed this resolution. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N/A 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Ordinance 
2. Ordinance with Redlines 



CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 15 Mobile Homes. 

WHEREAS, periodic updates are necessary to maintain compliance with the current 
Washington State Building Code 2018 Edition; and, 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to remain in compliance with the Washington State Building 
Code & Residential Code current edition. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNION GAP DOES 
ORDAIN as follows: 

Section 1. Union Gap Municipal Code (UGMC) Title 15 Mobile Homes, Amended. 

Title 15 of the Union Gap Municipal Code, is hereby amended as follows : 

MANUFACTURED HOMES 

Title 15 - MANUFACTURED HOMES 

Chapter 15.04 - DEFINITIONS 

15.04.010 - Definitions generally. 

15 .04.020 - Building official. 

15.04.030 - Dwelling. 

15 .04.040 - Dwelling unit. 

15.04.050 - Fire inspector. 

15 .04.060 - Habitable room. 

15 .04.070 -Manufactured home. 

15 .04.080 - Manufactured appearance standards. 

15.04.090 - Mobile home. 

15 .04.100 - Mobile home lot. 

15 .04.110 - Mobile home parks. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page I of 16 



15.04.120 - Mobile Home Space 

15 .04.130 - Modular home. 

15.04.140- Occupancy. 

15 .04.150-0ccupant. 

15.04.160 - Occupied. 

15.04.170 - Recreational vehicles. 

15.04.180 - Travel trailer. 

15.04.190-Travel trailer park. 

15 .04.200- Travel trailer space. 

15.04.210 - Units. 

Chapter 15.08 - PERMITS AND APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

15.08.010 - Permit application procedures and requirements for manufactured homes on private 
lots-Fee. 

15 .08.020 - Permits required. 

15.08.030 - Application-Required information. 

15.08.040 - Application-Form-Forwarding to planning commission. 

15.08.050 - Application-Fees. 

15.08.060 - Public hearing and determination. 

15.08.070 - Notification and publication-Details. 

15.08.080 - Guarantee of completion of public improvements. 

15.08.090 - Application-Additional information required. 

15.08. l 00 - Health officer certification required. 

15 .08.110 - Application-Compliance with chapter required. 

15.08.120 - Review by administrative official. 

15.08.130 - Action by planning commission. 

15.08.140 - Permit suspension-Hearing and notice. 

15 .08.150 - Permit issuance-Plans and specifications. 

Chapter 15.12 - EXISTING TRAVEL TRAILER AND MOBILE HOME PARKS 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 2of16 



15.12.010- Compliance with applicable designated regulations required. 

15 .12.030 - Time limitation for compliance. 

Chapter 15.16- GENERAL DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

l 5. l 6.0 l 0 - Utility hookups-Compliance with building code required. 

15 .16.020 - Additions and alterations-Permit required. 

15 .16.030 - Manufactured Home Standards and Certification 

15 .16.040 - Manufactured home standards and certification. 

Chapter 15.20 - SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS 

15.20.010 - Garbage and waste disposal requirements. 

15.20.020 - Sewage and wastewater requirements. 

15 .20.030 - Water supply requirements. 

15.20.040 - Fuel service and storage requirements. 

15 .20.050 - Fire protection requirements. 

15.20.060 - Insect and rodent control requirements. 

Chapter 15.24 - LOCATION REQUIREMENTS 

15.24.020 - Vehicle sales lots, shows and displays-Location restrictions-Permit requirements. 

Chapter 15.44- SIGN REGULATIONS 

15.44.010 - Real estate signs. 

15.44.020 - Home occupation signs . 

15.44.030 - Manufactured Home Park or subdivision identification. 

15.44.050 - New Manufactured home or subdivision advertising. 

15 .44.060 - Construction signs. 

Chapter 15 .48 - VARIANCES AND APPEALS 

15.48.010 - Procedures. 

Chapter 15.52 - INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT 

15.52.010 - Private lot placement-Inspection and fee . 

15 .52.020 - Enforcement. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 3of16 



Chapter 15.56 - VIOLATIONS AND PENAL TIES 

15.56.010 - Violation-Penalty-Abatement action . 

14.50. l l 0 - Appeals. 

Chapter 15.04 - DEFINITIONS 

Sections: 

15.04.010 - Definitions generally. 

For the purpose of this title, the following terms and words are defined as set forth in this chapter. 

15.04.020- Building Official. 

"Building Official" means the legally designated building official of the city or their authorized 
representative. 

15 .04.030 - Dwelling. 

"Dwelling" means any building, or any portion thereof, which is used for living or sleeping 
purposes. For the purpose of this title a manufactured home shall be construed to constitute a 
dwelling. 

15.04.040 - Dwelling unit. 

"Dwelling unit" means a group of two or more habitable rooms located within a dwelling and 
fonning a single habitable unit with facilities which are used for living, sleeping, cooking and 
eating. For the purpose of this chapter a mobile home shall be construed to constitute a dwelling 
unit. 

15 .04.050 - Fire inspector. 

"Fire inspector" means the legally designated chief of the fire department or his authorized 
representative . 

15 .04.060 - Habitable room. 

"Habitable room" means a room or enclosed floor space used or intended to be used for living, 
sleeping, cooking or eating purposes excluding bathrooms, water closet compartments, laundries, 
pantries, foyers, utility rooms, cellars, unfinished attics or communicating corridors and closets. 

15.04.070- Manufactured home. 

"Manufactured home" means a dwelling on one or more chassis for towing to the point of use 
which bears an insignia issued by a state or federal regulatory agency indicating that the structure 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 4of16 



complies with all applicable construction standards of the U.S . Department of Housing and Urban 
Development definition of a manufactured home. Manufactured homes are further classified as 
follows: 

1. "Class A" means a new manufactured home having a minimum width of not less than 
seventeen ( 17) feet as measured at all points perpendicular to its length and meeting the 
manufactured home appearance standards as defined in this title; 

2. "Class B" means a new manufactured home having a width less than seventeen (17) feet 
as measured at any point perpendicular to its length and meeting the manufactured home 
appearance standards as defined in this title and a used manufactured home having a 
minimum width of not less than seventeen ( 17) feet as measured at all points perpendicular 
to its length and meeting the manufactured home appearance standards as defined in this 
title; 

3. "Class C" means a new or used manufactured home of any width. The home must be in 
good condition and safe for human occupancy. 

15.04.080- Manufactured home appearance standards. 

"Manufactured home appearance standards" means a manufactured home which meets all of the 
following construction and placement standards: 

1. Roof Construction. The slope of the roof is not less than three feet of rise in a twelve ( 12) 
foot run. The roofing material is asphalt composition shingle or similar materials 
commonly used in standard residential construction; 

2. Exterior Finish. The exterior siding consists of wood, hardboard, aluminum, vinyl, steel or 
other siding material including plastic, or steel comparable in composition, appearance and 
durability to the exterior siding commonly used in standard residential construction; 

3. Foundation. The perimeter of the home must have a permanent masonry or concrete 
continuous foundation, except for required ventilation and access. The floor level of the 
home is not greater than ten ( l 0) inches above the average grade 

15.04.090 - Mobile home. 

"Mobile home" means a dwelling on one or more chassis for towing to the point of use which does 
not meet applicable HUD manufactured housing standards of June 15 , 1976. This definition does 
not include modular homes, manufactured homes, commercial coaches, recreational vehicles or 
motor homes. 

15 .04. l 00 - Mobile home lot. 

"Mobile home lot" means a parcel of land within a mobile home subdivision designed for 
individual ownership, and reserved for the exclusive use of its owners or occupants . 

15 .04.110 - Mobile home parks. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 5of16 



"Mobile home parks" means a parcel of land under single ownership which has been planned and 
improved for the placement of two or more mobile homes for dwelling or sleeping purposes for 
periods of over ninety days. 

15 .04.120 - Mobile home space. 

"Mobile home space" means a parcel of land within a mobile home park reserved for the exclusive 
use of the occupants of a mobile home and including one parking space for such mobile home. 

15.04.130 - Modular home. 

"Modular home" means any factory built, prefabricated or module housing unit designed for 
residential occupancy which does not contain a permanent frame and must be mounted on a 
permanent foundation and is not licensed by the state of Washington. 

15.04.140 - Occupancy. 

"Occupancy" means the purpose for which a room or building is used. Change of occupancy is not 
intended to include change of tenants. 

15.04.150-0ccupant. 

"Occupant" means any person living, sleeping, cooking or eating in or having actual possession 
of, a dwelling or dwelling units. 

15.04.160 - Occupied. 

"Occupied" means a dwelling or dwelling unit with one or more occupants. 

15.04. l 70 - Recreational vehicles. 

"Recreational vehicles" means any travel trailers, campers, motor homes or boats on trailers. 

15.04.180-Travel trailer. 

"Travel trailer" means a trailer or other vehicular portable structure designed as a temporary 
dwelling for travel, recreation or vacation uses to be used upon the public streets and highways 
and are so licensed by the state of Washington. 

l 5.04. l 90 - Travel trailer park. 

"Travel trailer park" means an area or tract of land used or designed to accommodate two or more 
travel trailers or other recreational vehicles. 

15.04.200 - Travel trailer space. 

"Travel trailer space" means a parcel of land within a travel trailer park reserved for the exclusive 
use of the occupants of a travel trailer or other recreational vehicles. 

15.04.210- Units. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 6of16 



"Units" means a given dwelling or dwelling unit comprising a component part of a travel trailer 
park or mobile home park. 

Chapter 15.08 - PERMITS AND APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

Sections: 

15.08.010 - Permit application procedures and requirements for manufactured homes on private 
lots-Fee. 

Manufactured homes shall be permitted in residential zones in accordance with Table 17.04.030 
of the Union Gap Municipal Code or in an approved manufactured home park through the building 
permit procedure of the city and subject to the following additional requirements: 

(a) Are provided with water and sanitary sewerage service at least equal to that required by 
conventional on-site constructed housing; 

(b) Have permanent fire-resistant skirting installed to enclose all areas between the lower edge of 
the outside walls and the ground; 

(c) Are sited in accordance with all applicable single-family dwelling regulations for the district 
in which located; 

(d )Are placed on permanent foundations or on footings and piers or on blocks in accordance with 
manufacturer's recommendations or specifications as developed by the city building department; 

(e) Are securely tied down at each corner or, as an alternative in accordance with manufacturer's 
recommendations; 

(f) Maintain a minimum twenty-four-inch crawl space under the entire unit; 

(g) Have permanent steps affixed to all exits; 

(h) Have the tongue removed or it may be camouflaged to the extent that it is unrecognizable; 

(i) The fee for such permit shall be fifty dollars; 

U) Mobile homes and Manufactured homes shall have a minimum width of twelve feet and shall 
contain a minimum of six hundred fifty square feet of living space. 

15.08.020 - Permits required. 

Any person who desires to place a manufactured home within the City of Union Gap must first 
obtain the required permits from the Union Gap Building Department. 

15.08.030 - Application-Required information. 

All applications filed must show on their face that the design requirements of Chapters 15 .20, as 
applicable herein have been complied with and must, in addition, contain: 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 7of16 



(a)A legal description, area and dimensions of the tract of land proposed for use;(b)A description 
of the existing use of land within one hundred feet of the tract proposed for use;( c )The name of 
the applicant and/or the applicant's representative and a designation of the address at which the 
applicant and/or his representative will receive the notices provided for in this title. 

15.08.040 - Application-Form-Forwarding to planning commission. 

An application for a permit shall be made upon a form approved by the planning commission. 
When the administrative official has determined that such application meets the requirements of 
this title, the official shall forward the completed application to the planning commission for its 
determination, and in any event the official should do so within thirty days. 

15.08.050 - Application-Fees. 

The application for a manufactured home park, shall be accompanied by a fee equal to the sum of 
one hundred dollars plus an additional five dollars per space or lot to be applied to the cost of 
administration plan checking, inspections and legal notification incurred by the city in processing 
this development. The filing fee shall be paid to the city clerk-treasurer. 

15.08.060 - Public hearing and determination. 

After the administrative official has duly forwarded the completed application to the planning 
commission, the planning commission shall study it and shall, within thirty days after the receipt 
of such application, hold a public hearing whereas it may receive evidence pertinent to the granting 
or denial of such application according to the standards hereinbefore set forth. If, at such hearing, 
the planning commission determines that it needs additional information, it may recess such 
hearing for a period of not more than thirty days, during which time it shall procure or receive such 
additional information; provided, however, that before it so recesses, it must then and there 
announce the time and place at which the hearing will be resumed. Within thirty days after the 
completion of such hearing, the planning commission shall, in a formal written resolution of the 
commission, either recommend granting or denying the application to the city council, and the 
planning commission shall make its findings of fact a part thereof in the manner provided above. 

15.08.070 - Notification and publication-Details. 

The planning commission shall give notice of the date, time, place and purpose of any hearing 
authorized or required by this section, in the manner expressed in the zoning ordinance and not 
less than ten days nor more than twenty days prior to the date of the hearing. In addition a notice 
of the hearing shall be mailed not less than ten days prior to the date of any such hearing, to owners 
of property located two hundred feet from any point on the outside perimeter of the property for 
which a permit has been requested. 

15.08.080- Guarantee of completion of public improvements. 

(a)Prior to final approval of any manufactured home park, the applicant must enter into a public 
improvement agreement with the city. Such agreement shall be written to cover one or a 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 8of16 



combination of both of the following alternatives available to the applicant: ( l )The applicant may 
elect to complete all required improvements prior to final approval of the project. If this is done, 
an agreement, delineating the construction and inspection requirements of the appropriate 
governmental agency, shall be entered into prior to commencement of construction; (2) The 
applicant may elect to complete required improvements after final approval of the project. In this 
event the agreement accompanying final mobile home park, approval shall delineate:(A)The 
construction and inspection requirements of the appropriate governmental agency,(B)The time 
schedule for completion of required improvement and facilities, and(C)A method insuring that 
such improvements shall be completed to the specifications required and in the time schedule 
agreed upon.(b)The city council may require and accept a bond in an amount and with surety and 
conditions satisfactory to the council, or other secure method providing for and securing for the 
city the actual construction and installation of such improvements within the time period specified 
by the council and expressed in the bond(s). In addition bonds or other security may be required 
by the city council securing to the city the successful operation of the improvements for up to two 
years after final approval of the project. 

15 .08.090 - Application-Additional information required. 

Applications for mobile home parks must contain the following additional information: 

(a)The number, location and size of all space or lots; (b)The location, width and surfacing of 
roadways, streets, off-street parking and walkways;(c)The location of service buildings and any 
other proposed structures. Plans and specifications of all buildings, improvements, other facilities 
and utilities such as electrical wiring, telephone service, lines, water service pipes, gas service 
pipes, sewer service pipes and plumbing constructed or to be constructed within such mobile home 
park; ( d) The methods and plans of water supply, surface drainage, sewage disposal and garbage 
disposal. Before any application as required by this chapter may be approved, a concurring 
recommendation of approval must be received from the utilities department in regards to the 
minimum standards governing utilities and facilities to be provided in the supplying of water and 
sewer;(e)The size and location of play yards, if any;(f)General landscape and development plans 
in such detail as will enable the commission and council to determine whether or not the proposed 
park meets the requirements of Chapters 15.20, and 15.32 and as applicable. 

15 .08. l 00 - Health officer certification required. 

Applications for mobile home parks shall be accompanied by a statement signed by the local health 
officer that the plans meet the rules, regulations and standards of the Washington State Board of 
Health as promulgated by WAC 248-76 as it now exists or may hereafter be amended. 

15.08.110 - Application-Compliance with chapter required. 

Applications which do not meet the requirements of this chapter shall not be accepted by the 
administrative official. 

15 .08.120 - Review by administrative official. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 9of16 



The administrative official shall study the application with regards to the extent to which the 
application meets the development requirements specified in Chapters 15 .20 and shall report on 
this subject to the commission and council. 

15.08.130 - Action by planning commission. 

(a)The commission shall study the application and within sixty days after filing of the application 
shall recommend that the council grant or reject the permit. The commission's decision shall be 
based upon the compliance of the request with the requirements listed in Chapters 15 .20 and 15 .32 
as applicable to the proposal, and with all pertinent requirements of this title and chapter 17 of the 
Union Gap Municipal Code. (b) In addition to recommending the granting of a permit the 
commission must find the proposed development will not inhibit the good development of the 
surrounding area. The decision of the commission and the reasons therefor shall be entered into 
the records of the commission. 

15 .08.140 - Permit suspension-Hearing and notice. 

Any permit issued under this title may be suspended by the mayor ifthe development requirements 
are not met as specified on the application and permit. The permittee shall have the right to a 
hearing before the council on any such action of the mayor provided a written request thereof is 
filed with the city clerk within twenty days after the suspension shall be given to the permittee. 
Such notice shall inform the permittee of his right of appeal. The council shall confirm such 
suspension or shall revoke or reinstate any such permit. The permittee shall be given notice of any 
hearing held by the council on the action of the mayor in the same manner as provided herein for 
notice of a hearing on an application. 

15.08.150 - Permit issuance-Plans and specifications. 

If such plans and specifications for the mobile home park are in compliance with all provisions of 
this title and all other applicable codes, ordinances and regulations, and council has approved 
construction of such mobile home park, the permit shall be issued according to the approved plans 
and specifications as certified by the building. No changes shall be made in the approved plans 
and specifications during, before and after construction without approval of the building inspector. 
Copies of the approved plans and specifications shall be kept in the office of the building inspector 
and any approved changes shall be noted thereon. 

Chapter 15.12 - EXISTING TRAVEL TRAILER AND MOBILE HOME PARKS 

Sections: 

15.12.010 - Compliance with applicable designated regulations required. 

Mobile home parks and travel trailer parks in existence within the city at the time of the adoption 
of the ordinance codified in this title shall be required to meet the requirements of this title upon 
changing, altering or expanding the park as follows: 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page JO of 16 



(a) In any proposed expansion of the mobile home park or travel trailer park, the following 
requirements of this title shall be met within the boundaries of the new area: 

(1) Minimum road widths; 

(2) Off-street parking requirements; 

(3) Minimum space sizes; 

(4) Minimum yard dimensions ; 

(5) Landscaping or fencing; 

(6) The provision of storage areas; 

(7) Applicable health and construction standards; 

(8) Zoning; 

(9) Permit application procedures; 

(b) When a mobile home is removed from a nonconforming mobile home space, it can only be 
replaced by a manufactured home that conforms to the requirements of this title and either meets 
the set back requirements when placed on the nonconforming space or does not exceed by more 
than ten percent the size of the mobile home located on the space at the time of passage of the 
ordinance codified in this title and does not substantially increase the nonconformity;( c )No other 
major changes or alterations in existing mobile home or travel trailer parks shall be made without 
compliance to all other provisions of this title . This title shall not be interpreted to mean that 
existing mobile home parks or travel trailer parks are not subject to all pertinent existing county 
and state regulations. 

15.12.030 -Time limitation for compliance. 

Any travel trailer park or mobile home park which is not operated for a period of one year shall 
not reopen until all regulations and requirements of this title shall have been met. 

Chapter 15.16- GENERAL DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

Sections: 

15.16.010 - Utility hookups-Compliance with building code required. 

All manufactured homes must comply with the minimal requirements of the Union Gap building 
code in regards to foundations and sewer, water and electrical hookups. The building official may 
impose such additional requirements as are necessary for the health and safety of the occupants 
and neighbors of the manufactured home. 

15.16.020 - Additions and alterations-Permit required. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page II of 16 



No alterations or permanent additions shall be built onto any trailer, mobile home or manufactured 
home unless a permit is secured and the alteration or addition approved and by the Washington 
State Department of Labor and Industries and no such alterations or additions conflict with Chapter 
17 of the Union Gap Municipal Code. 

15 .16.030 -Manufactured home standards and certification. 

Only manufactured homes that were manufactured after June 15, 1976 or otherwise substantially 
comply with Washington State manufactured housing standards effective June 15 , 1976 as 
evidenced by appropriate seal(s) affixed to their outer skin, shall be located within the city. 

Chapter 15.20 - SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR MANUFACTURED HOME 
PARKS 

Sections: 

15.20.010 - Garbage and waste disposal requirements. 

(a) Each manufactured home park shall be provided with safe and adequate means for the 
collection and removal of waste and garbage, as approved by the building inspector. 

(b) Racks or holders shall be provided for all refuse and such racks shall be so designed as to 
prevent containers from being tipped and to minimize spoilage and container deterioration and 
facilitate the cleaning around the container units. 

15 .20.020 - Sewage and wastewater requirements. 

(a) It is unlawful to permit wastewater or material from sinks, showers or other fixtures to be 
deposited on any street, manufactured home park, or any lot within the city. Proper drainage shall 
be provided for all outside water connections, faucets and hydrants. Sinks, showers, toilets, 
lavatories and other similar fixtures in units and service buildings of manufactured home parks 
shall be connected to a proper and acceptable sewer system. Such a connection shall be to the city 
sewer system where available, or to a private sewage disposal system where a sewer system of the 
city is not available, all of which shall comply fully with the city's plumbing and sanitary codes, 
and other ordinances, codes and regulations of the city relating thereto, and be approved by the 
building inspector. 

(b) Each manufactured home parking space shall be equipped with a sewer connection so located 
on a riser and so fitted to provide a watertight junction between the manufactured home sewer 
extension and the sewer connection in full compliance with regulations and requirements of the 
plumbing code. Such an individual manufactured home sewer connection shall be further 
constructed so as to be closed when not linked to a manufactured home and shall be trapped in 
such a manner as to maintain it in an odor-free condition as required by the plumbing code. 

15.20.030 - Water supply requirements. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 12of16 



(a)Each site used as a mobile home park shall be provided with an accessible, adequate, safe and 
potable supply of water capable of furnishing a minimum of one hundred twenty-five gallons per 
day per unit, as approved by the building inspector. Where the city has water service available, 
connection shall be made thereto and its supply shall be used exclusively. The development of an 
independent water supply to serve a mobile home park shall be made only after expressed approval 
has been granted by the building official. All water lines shall be underground and shall comply 
fully with all plumbing code and water division regulations.(b )At least one water outlet connection 
on a riser terminating above the ground surface shall be properly connected with the potable water 
supply system at each mobile home or mobile home parking space as provided hereinhefore in 
compliance with the regulations and requirements of the plumbing code. 

15.20.040 - Fuel service and storage requirements. 

(a)Liquefied petroleum gas or piped gas for cooking or heating purposes, or fuel oils, shall not be 
used at individual dwellings or dwelling units unless such containers, lines and appliances comply 
with provisions set forth in chapter 13 of the Union Gap Municipal Code. Liquefied petroleum gas 
cylinders shall be securely fastened in place and shall be adequately protected. (b )No cylinder 
containing liquefied petroleum gas shall be located within a dwelling or dwelling unit or within 
five feet of any door thereof. Piped gas to individual dwellings or dwelling units shall be fully in 
compliance with the plumbing code and fully protected from danger of breakage due to vehicular 
or trailer passage over such lines. 

15 .20.050 - Fire protection requirements. 

Manufactured home parks shall be subject to the rules and regulations of the fire department and 
all playground, setback and screening areas shall at all times be kept free of litter, rubbish and 
other flammable materials. First-aid fire extinguishing equipment of a type or types approved by 
the National Board of Fire Underwriters shall be kept in the service building and all other locations 
named by the fire department and the same shall be maintained in good operating condition. 

15.20.060 - Insect and rodent control requirements. 

Insect and rodent control measures to safeguard public health in compliance with existing codes 
and ordinances shall be applied where necessary in manufactured home parks. 

Chapter 15.24- LOCATION REQUIREMENTS 

Sections: 

15.24.020 - Vehicle sales lots, shows and displays-Location restrictions-Permit requirements. 

Manufactured home and travel trailer or other recreational vehicles, sales lots, shows and displays 
shall be located within commercial and industrial districts, subject to the respective development 
requirements of these districts. Other provisions of this title notwithstanding, organized groups or 
businessmen desiring to hold travel trailer or other recreational vehicle or mobile home shows, 
displays or gatherings in the city for specific limited periods of time may apply to the city building 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page/3of/6 



inspector for a permit to do so. The building inspector may issue permits subject to reasonable 
restrictions regarding duration of such shows, displays or gatherings and occupancy, sanitation, 
location and transportation of the trailers or mobile homes as he feels necessary. 

Chapter 15.44 - SIGN REGULATIONS 

Sections: 

15.44.010 - Real estate signs . 

Real estate signs are permitted as follows: one sign not exceed five square feet advertising only 
the sale, rental or lease of the building or on premises on which it is maintained. 

15.44.020 - Home occupation signs. 

Signs identifying home occupations are permitted as follows: one sign per use not exceeding two 
square feet in area. Such sign shall be no closer than ten feet to any property line or shall be flat 
against the building. No lighting is permitted. 

15.44.030 - Manufactured home park identification. 

Manufactured home park identification signs are permitted as follows: specific identification signs 
denoting the name of a mobile home park are permitted providing they are non-illuminated or 
indirectly illuminated and do not exceed fifty square feet in area. Not more than one such sign 
shall be located in each major approach to the development the front, rear and side yard 
requirements applying to principal structures shall apply to the location of such signs. 

15 .44.050 - New manufactured home park advertising. 

Signs identifying a new manufactured home park are permitted as follows: signs advertising spaces 
or lots within a new manufactured home park are permitted providing they are non-illuminated or 
indirectly illuminated and do not exceed fifty square feet in area. Not more than one such sign 
shall be located in each major approach to the park and the front, side and rear yard requirements 
applying to principal structures shall apply to the location of such signs . The display of such signs, 
shall be limited to a period of two years. Prior to the expiration thereof, the applicant may request 
an extension from the city council. The signs shall be removed prior to the expiration of the two
year period or extension thereof. If the sign has not been removed, the city may enter upon the 
premises upon which the sign is located and remove such sign at no liability to the city and at the 
expense of the owner. 

15 .44.060 - Construction signs. 

Construction signs are permitted as follows: during construction, repair or alteration of a 
development, temporary signs which denote the architect, engineer, contractor or builder or which 
denote the name of the development may be placed within the required yard setbacks as ground 
signs. Each sign shall be twenty-four square feet or less in size and no more than one such sign 
shall be permitted for each architect, engineer, contractor, builder or denoting the name of the 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 14of16 



development. Temporary private ground or wall signs exclusively relating to the safety of the 
public (e.g., "No Parking Today," "Use Covered Walkway," "Do Not Enter," "Danger," "Loading 
Zone") may be located as needed for public safety without limitation as to number, size or location 
so far as the requirements of this title are concerned. 

Chapter 15.48 - VARIANCES AND APPEALS 

Sections: 

l 5.48.0 I 0 - Procedures. 

The procedure and regulations governing variances and appeals shall be as specified in Chapter 
17.23 of the Union Gap Municipal Code. 

Chapter 15.52 - INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT 

Sections: 

15.52.010 - Placement-Inspection and fee. 

Before any manufactured home is placed, a permit must be secured from the building official who 
must inspect the home and lot where it is to be located. A fee will be charged as provided in Section 
15.08.010. 

15.52.020 - Enforcement. 

The Building Official or their designee shall have the duty to enforce all provisions of this title as 
prescribed herein or such provisions as may hereafter be enacted, and for the purpose of securing 
such enforcement the building official or their duly authorized representative or agent shall have 
the right and is empowered to enter upon the premises on which any mobile home park is located, 
or is about to be located, and inspect the same and accommodations connected therewith at all 
reasonable times . 

Chapter 15.56- VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

Sections: 

15.56.010 - Violation-Penalty-Abatement action. 

For any and every violation of the provisions of the ordinance codified in this title, the owner, 
agent or contractor of a building or premises where such violations have been committed or shall 
exist, or any other person who maintains any building or premises in which any violation shall 
exist, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined not more than 
five hundred dollars or imprisoned in jail not to exceed ninety days, or both such fine and 
imprisonment. Each and every day that such violation continues shall be deemed a separate and 
distinct violation. Any building or structure set up, erected, built, moved or maintained or any use 
of property contrary to the provisions of this title shall be declared to be unlawful and a public 
nuisance, and the city manager shall immediately commence action for the removal thereof, in the 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 15of16 



manner provided by law, and shall apply to such court or courts as may have jurisdiction to remove 
such building, structure or use. All remedies provided for herein shall be cumulative and not 
exclusive. 

Section 2. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other section, clause or 
phrase of this Ordinance. 

Section 3. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force five (5) days after final passage by the City 
Council and publication. 

ORDAINED this 22nd day of August, 2022. 

ATTEST: 

Karen Clifton, City Clerk 

John Hodkinson, Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Bronson Brown, City Attorney 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance No. 
Page 16of16 



Title 15 - MANUFACTURED HOMES 

Chapter 15.04 - DEFINITIONS 

15.04.010 - Definitions generally. 

15.04.020 - Building official iRspector. 

15.04.030 - Dwelling. 

15.04.040 - Dwelling unit. 

15.04.050 - Fire inspector. 

15.04.060 - Habitable room. 

15.04.070 - Mabffe Manufactured home. 

15.04.080 - Ma&He Manufactured appearance standards ROFAe lot. 

15.04.090 - Mobile home~· 

15.04.100 - Mobile home lot~· 

15.04.110 - Mobile home parks subdivisioR. 

15.04.120 - Mobile Home Space 

15.04.130- Modular home. 

15.04.140- Occupancy. 

15.04.150 - Occupant. 

15.04.160 - Occupied. 

15.04.170 - Recreational vehicles . 

15.04.180 - Travel tra iler. 

15.04.190 - Travel trailer park. 

15.04.200- Travel trailer space. 

15.04.210 - Units. 

Chapter 15 .08 - PERMITS AND APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

15.08.010 - Permit application procedures and requirements for ffiGbHe manufactured homes on private 

lots-Fee. 

15.08.020 - Permits required. 

15.08.030 - Application-Required information. 

15.08.040 - Application-Form-Forwarding to planning commission. 



15.08.050 - Application-Fees. 

15.08.060 - Public hearing and determination. 

15.08.070 - Notification and publication-Details . 

15.08.080 - Guarantee of completion of public improvements. 

15.08.090 - Application-Additional information requ ired. 

15.08.100 - Health officer certification required . 

15.08.110 -Application-Compliance with chapter required . 

15.08.120 - Review by administrative official. 

15.08.130 -Action by planning commission . 

15.08.140 - Permit suspension-Hearing and notice. 

15.08.150 - Permit issuance-Plans and specifications. 

Chapter 15.12 - EXISTING TRAVEL TRAILER AND MOBILE HOME PARKS 

15.12.010 - Compliance with applicable designated regulations required. 

lS.12.020 S1:1ernissioA of s13ecified data req1:1ired . 

15.12.030 - Time limitation for compliance. 

Chapter 15.16 - GENERAL DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

15.16.010 - Utility hookups-Compliance with building code required . 

15.16.020 -Additions and alterations B1:1ildiAg Permit required . 

15.16.030- Manufactured Home Standards and Certification Private lots Corn13liaAce with yard, height 

aAd lot EO't'erage req1:1irerneAts . 

15.16.040 - Me9+le Manufactured home standards and certification. 

Chapter 15.20 - SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT ST/\W)/\RE:>S FOR TR/\VEL TR/\ILER A~m MOBILE 

MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS 

15.20.010 - Garbage and waste disposal requirements . 

15.20 .020 - Sewage and wastewater requirements. 

15.20.030 - Water supply requirements. 

15.20.040 - Fuel service and storage requirements. 

15.20.050 - Fire protection requirements . 

15.20.060 - Insect and rodent control requirements . 



Chapter 15.24 - LOCATION REQUIREMENTS 

15.24 .010 Location and parl(ing restrictions and tiFAe liFAitations. 

15.24.020 - Vehicle sales lots, shows and displays-Location restrictions-Permit requirements . 

15.24.030 Mobile hoFAe overlay zone established. 

Chapter 15.28 MOBILE MOME SUBDIVISION SITE PLANNING 

15 .28.010 MiniFAl:lFA site area and location . 

15.28.020 Miniml:lm lot dimensions. 

15.28.030 Yard reEtblirements. 

15.28.040 Mobile homes per lot restricted . 

15 .28.050 Lot access reEtblirements . 

15 .28.0GO Qead end street Tblmaroblnd reEJblirements . 

15 .28.070 Off street parking reEtblireFAents. 

15.28.080 Mobile home or trailer FAinimblm size reEtblirements . 

15 .28.090 Undergroblnd bltility reqblirements. 

15.28.100 New sblbdivision Location restrictions. 

15.28.110 Accessory bblilding height, area and setback reEtblirements . 

15.28 .120 Fence req1:1irements . 

15.28.130 Restrictions on b1:1siness and occ~1pations . 

Cha13ter 15.32 MOBILE MOMe PARK SITE PLA~l~JING 

15 .32.010 Site location and minim1:1m area Constr1:1ction standards. 

15.32.020 Mobile home or trailer minirn1:1rn size requirements. 

15.32.030 Mobile home s13ace Minirnblrn area and placement reEtblirements. 

lS .32.040 Mobile horne s13ace Qernarcation and identification Clearance and strblch1ral 13lacement 

req1:1irernents . 

15.32.0SO Access and roadway reqblirernents . 

15.32.0GO Off street parking s13ace and location reqblirernents. 

lS.32.070 Roadwa'( Sblrfacing, maintenance and lighting reEJblirernents . 

15.32.080 Other vehicles restricted. 

15 .32.090 Recreational facilities 13errnitted when . 



1532.100 Underground utility requireFAents . 

1532.110 Electrical service requireFAents and installation standards. 

15 .32.120 Vehicle storage area required. 

15.32.130 Mobile hoFAe space demarcation requirements . 

15.32.140 Mobile home setback requireFAents. 

15 .32.150 Mobile hoFAe pro><iFAity to property line restricted . 

15.32.HiO Landscape screen and buffer strips requireFAents . 

Chapter 15.39 TR/\VELTR/\ILER P/\RK SITE PLANNl~JG 

15.39.010 Site location and min imuFA area Construction standards . 

15 .39.020 Tra iler space DiFAension and deFAarcation requirements. 

15.39.030 Trailer space Clearance and stn:1ctl:lral placeFAent reql:lirements . 

lS.39 .040 /\ccess and roadway requireFAents. 

lS.39.050 Off street parking space and location requireFAents. 

15.39.090 Roadwa1' surfacing, FAaintenance anel lighting requireFAents . 

lS.39 .070 Service buileling anel facility requirements and stanelarels. 

lS.39 .080 Recreation facilities permitted when. 

15.39.090 Electrical service requireFAents and installation standards. 

lS.39.100 Mobile homes permitted with time limitation. 

Chapter lS .40 NmlCONrnRMING PARKING 

lS .40.010 Parking Ol:ltside of designated area perFAitted Conelitions. 

Chapter 15.44 - SIGN REGULATIONS 

15.44.010 - Real estate signs. 

15.44.020 - Home occupation signs . 

15.44.030 -~Manufactured Home Park or subdivision identification. 

15.44.040 Travel trailer park identification. 

15.44 .050 -New~ Manufactured home or subdivision advertising. 

15.44.060 - Construction signs. 

Chapter 15.48 - VARIANCES AND APPEALS 

15.48.010 - Procedures . 



Chapter 15.52 - INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT 

15.52.010 - Private lot placement-Inspection and fee . 

15.52.020 - Enforcement. 

Chapter 15.56 - VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

15.56.010 - Violation-Penalty-Abatement action. 

14.50.110 - Appeals. 

Chapter 15.04 - DEFINITIONS 

Sections: 

15.04.010 - Definitions generally. 

For the purpose of this title, the following terms and words are defined as set forth in this chapter. 

15.04.020 - Building Official iRspector. 

"Building Official iRspector" means the legally designated building official iRspector of the city or hl& 
their authorized representative. 

15.04.030 - Dwelling. 

"Dwelling" means any building, or any portion thereof, which is used for living or sleeping purposes. For 

the purpose of this title a manufactured home tra .. •el trailer or recreatioRal vehicle shall be construed to 

constitute a dwelling. 

15.04.040 - Dwelling unit. 

"Dwelling unit" means a group of two or more habitable rooms located within a dwelling and forming a 

single habitable unit with facilities which are used for living, sleeping, cooking and eating. For the 

purpose of this chapter a mobile home shall be construed to constitute a dwelling unit. 

15.04.050 - Fire inspector. 

"Fire inspector" means the legally designated chief of the fire department or his authorized 

representative. 

15.04.060 - Habitable room. 

"Habitable room" means a room or enclosed floor space used or intended to be used for living, sleeping, 

cooking or eating purposes excluding bathrooms, water closet compartments, laundries, pantries, 

foyers, utility rooms, cellars, unfinished attics or communicating corridors and closets . 

15.04.070 - Manufactured home. 

"Manufactured home" means a dwelling on one or more chassis for towing to the point of use which 

bears an insignia issued by a state or federal regulatory agency indicating that the structure complies 



with all applicable construction standards of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

definition of a manufactured home. Manufactured homes are further classified as follows: 

1. "Class A" means a new manufactured home having a minimum width of not less than seventeen 

(17) feet as measured at all points perpendicular to its length and meeting the manufactured 

home appearance standards as defined in this title; 

2. "Class B" means a new manufactured home having a width less than seventeen (17) feet as 

measured at any point perpendicular to its length and meeting the manufactured home 

appearance standards as defined in this title and a used manufactured home having a minimum 

width of not less than seventeen (17) feet as measured at all points perpendicular to its length 

and meeting the manufactured home appearance standards as defined in this title; 

3. "Class C" means a new or used manufactured home of any width. The home must be in good 

condition and safe for human occupancy. 

15.04.080 - Manufactured home appearance standards . 

"Manufactured home appearance standards" means a manufactured home which meets all of the 

following construction and placement standards : 

l. Roof Construction. The slope of the roof is not less than three feet of rise in a twelve (12) foot 

run. The roofing material is asphalt composition shingle or similar materials commonly used in 

standard residential construction; 

2. Exterior Finish. The exterior siding consists of wood, hardboard, aluminum, vinyl, steel or other 

siding material including plastic, or steel comparable in composition, appearance and durability 

to the exterior siding commonly used in standard residential construction; 

3. Foundation. The perimeter of the home must have a permanent masonry or concrete 

continuous foundation, except for required ventilation and access. The floor level of the home is 

not greater than ten (10) inches above the average grade 

15.04.090 - Mobile home. 

"Mobile home" means a dwelling on one or more chassis for towing to the point of use which does not 

meet applicable HUD manufactured housing standards of June 15, 1976. This definition does not include 

modular homes, manufactured homes, commercial coaches, recreational vehicles or motor homes. 

means a single family elwelling, tl=lirty fr,ie feet or more in lengtl=l anel eigl=lt feet or more in wieltl=l, 

elesigneel for transportation, after fabrication, on streets anel l=ligl=l't\fays on its own wl=leels or on flatbeels 

or otl=ler trailers, anel arriving at tl=le site wl=lere it is to be ocrnpieel as a elwelling complete anel ready for 

occ1:1pancy except for minor anel incielental 1:1npacl~ing anel assembly operations, location on jacks or 

permanent fo1:1nelations, connection to 1:1tilities anel tl=le like. Tl=lis elefinition eloes not incl1:1de moel1:1lar 

l=lomes. 

15.04.100 - Mobile home lot. 

"Mobile home lot" means a parcel of land within a mobile home subdivision designed for individual 

ownership, and reserved for the exclusive use of its owners or occupants. 

15.04.110 - Mobile home parks. 



"Mobile home parks" means a parcel of land under single ownership which has been planned and 

improved for the placement of two or more mobile homes for dwelling or sleeping purposes for periods 

of over ninety days. 

15.04.120 - Mobile home space. 

"Mobile home space" means a parcel of land within a mobile home park reserved for the exclusive use 

of the occupants of a mobile home and including one parking space for such mobile home. 

lS.04.110 Mobile Rome s1:1bdivision. 

"Mobile Rome s1:1bdivision" means a contig1:101:1s 13arcel of land wRicR Ras been platted for sale as 

individ1:1al lots, and wRicR Ras been planned and improved for tl'le e*cl1:1sive 13lacement of mobile Romes . 

15.04.130 - Modular home. 

"Modular home" means any factory built, prefabricated or module housing unit designed for residential 

occupancy which does not contain a permanent frame and must be mounted on a permanent 

foundation and is not licensed by the state of Washington . 

15.04.140 - Occupancy. 

"Occupancy" means the purpose for which a room or building is used. Change of occupancy is not 

intended to include change of tenants. 

15.04.150 - Occupant. 

"Occupant" means any person living, sleeping, cooking or eating in or having actual possession of, a 

dwelling or dwelling units. 

15.04.160 - Occupied. 

"Occupied" means a dwelling or dwelling unit with one or more occupants. 

15.04.170 - Recreational vehicles. 

"Recreational vehicles" means any travel trailers, campers, motor homes or boats on trailers. 

15.04.180 - Travel trailer. 

"Travel trailer" means a trailer or other vehicular portable structure designed as a temporary dwelling 

for travel, recreation or vacation uses to be used upon the public streets and highways and are so 

licensed by the state of Washington. 

15.04.190 - Travel trailer park. 

"Travel trailer park" means an area or tract of land used or designed to accommodate two or more 

travel trailers or other recreational vehicles. 

15.04.200 - Travel trailer space. 



"Travel trailer space" means a parcel of land within a travel trailer park reserved for the exclusive use of 

the occupants of a travel trailer or other recreational vehicles. 

15.04.210- Units. 

"Units" means a given dwelling or dwelling unit comprising a component part of a travel trailer park or 
mobile home park. 

Chapter 15.08 - PERMITS AND APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

Sections: 

15.08.010 - Permit application procedures and requirements for~ manufactured homes on private 

lots-Fee. 

Meb+le Manufactured homes shall be permitted in residential zones in accordance with Table 17.04.030 

of the Union Gap Municipal Code witl=iin tl=ie FAobile l=ioFAe overlay or in an approved~ 

manufactured home park s1:1bdivision through the building permit procedure of the city and subject to 

the following additional requirements: 

(a) Are provided with water and sanitary sewerage service at least equal to that required by 

conventional on-site constructed housing; 

(b) Have permanent fire-resistant skirting installed to enclose all areas between the lower edge of the 
outside walls and the ground; 

(c) Are sited in accordance with all applicable single-family dwelling regulations for the district in which 

located; 

(d )Are placed on permanent foundations or on footings and piers or on blocks in accordance with 

manufacturer's recommendations or specifications as developed by the city building department; 

(e) Are securely tied down at each corner or, as an alternative in accordance with manufacturer's 

recommendations; 

(f) Maintain a minimum twenty-four-inch crawl space under the entire unit; 

(g) Have permanent steps affixed to all exits; 

(h) Have the tongue removed or it may be camouflaged to the extent that it is unrecognizable; 

(i) The fee for such permit shall be fifty dollars; 

(j) Mobile homes and Manufactured homes shall have a minimum width of twelve feet and shall contain 

a minimum of six hundred fifty square feet of living space. 

15.08.020 - Permits required. 

Any person who desires to place a manufactured home within the City of Union Gap must first obtain 

the required permits from the Union Gap Building Department. 



to obtaiR a perFRit fro FR tl:1e coFRmissioR a Ra co1o1Rcil for tAe coRstrnctioR, maRagemeAt or operatioR of 

a travel trailer park, mobile maR1o1fact1o1rea Rome park or mobile Rome s1o1baivisioR sAall file aR 

applicatioA for a perFRit witA tAe aamiRistrative official. 

15.08.030 - Application-Required information. 

All applications filed must show on their face that the design requirements of Chapters 15.20, ~, 

lS .32 a Ra~ as applicable herein have been complied with and must, in addition, contain: 

(a)A legal description, area and dimensions of the tract of land proposed for use;(b)A description of the 

existing use of land within one hundred feet of the tract proposed for use;(c)The name of the applicant 

and/or the applicant's representative and a designation of the address at which the applicant and/or his 

representative will receive the notices provided for in this title. 

15.08.040 - Application-Form-Forwarding to planning commission. 

An application for a permit shall be made upon a form approved by the planning commission. When the 

administrative official has determined that such application meets the requirements of this title, the 

official shall forward the completed application to the planning commission for its determination, and in 

any event the official should do so within thirty days. 

15.08.050 - Application-Fees. 

The application for a fAebHe manufactured home park, travel trailer park or FRobile Rome subaivisioA 

shall be accompanied by a fee equal to the sum of one hundred dollars plus an additional five dollars per 

space or lot to be applied to the cost of administration plan checking, inspections and legal notification 

incurred by the city in processing this development. The filing fee shall be paid to the city clerk

treasurer. 

15.08.060 - Public hearing and determination. 

After the administrative official has duly forwarded the completed application to the planning 

commission, the planning commission shall study it and shall, within thirty days after the receipt of such 

application, hold a public hearing whereas it may receive evidence pertinent to the granting or denial of 

such application according to the standards hereinbefore set forth. If, at such hearing, the planning 

commission determines that it needs additional information, it may recess such hearing for a period of 

not more than thirty days, during which time it shall procure or receive such additional information; 

provided, however, that before it so recesses, it must then and there announce the time and place at 

which the hearing will be resumed. Within thirty days after the completion of such hearing, the planning 

commission shall, in a formal written resolution of the commission, either recommend granting or 

denying the application to the city council, and the planning commission shall make its findings of fact a 

part thereof in the manner provided above. 

15.08.070 - Notification and publication-Details . 

The planning commission shall give notice of the date, time, place and purpose of any hearing 

authorized or required by this section, in the manner expressed in the zoning ordinance and not less 

than ten days nor more than twenty days prior to the date of the hearing. In addition a notice of the 

hearing shall be mailed not less than ten days prior to the date of any such hearing, to owners of 



property located two hundred feet from any point on the outside perimeter of the property for which a 

permit has been requested . 

15.08.080 - Guarantee of completion of public improvements. 

(a)Prior to final approval of any~ manufactured home park, tra'1el trailer park, or nrnbile home 

s1:1bdi'1ision, the applicant must enter into a public improvement agreement with the city. Such 

agreement shall be written to cover one or a combination of both of the following alternatives available 

to the applicant:(l)The applicant may elect to complete all required improvements prior to final 

approval of the project. If this is done, an agreement, delineating the construction and inspection 

requirements of the appropriate governmental agency, shall be entered into prior to commencement of 

construction;(2)The applicant may elect to complete required improvements after final approval of the 

project. In this event the agreement accompanying final mobile home park, tra'lel trailer park or mobile 

home s1:1bdi't'ision approval shall delineate:(A)The construction and inspection requirements of the 

appropriate governmental agency,(B)The time schedule for completion of required improvement and 

facilities, and(C)A method insuring that such improvements shall be completed to the specifications 

required and in the time schedule agreed upon.(b)The city council may require and accept a bond in an 

amount and with surety and conditions satisfactory to the council, or other secure method providing for 

and securing for the city the actual construction and installation of such improvements within the time 

period specified by the council and expressed in the bond(s). In addition bonds or other security may be 

required by the city council securing to the city the successful operation of the improvements for up to 

two years after final approval of the project. 

15.08.090 - Application-Additional information required. 

Applications for tra11el trailer parks, mobile home parks, or mobile home s1:1bdi'lisions must contain the 

following additional information: 

(a)The number, location and size of all space or lots;(b)The location, width and surfacing of roadways, 

streets, off-street parking and walkways;(c)The location of service buildings and any other proposed 

structures. Plans and specifications of all buildings, improvements, other facilities and utilities such as 

electrical wiring, telephone service, lines, water service pipes, gas service pipes, sewer service pipes and 

plumbing constructed or to be constructed within such tra·w<el trailer park, mobile home park or mobile 

home s1:1bdi·1ision;(d)The methods and plans of water supply, surface drainage, sewage disposal and 

garbage disposal. Before any application as required by this chapter may be approved, a concurring 

recommendation of approval must be received from the utilities department in regards to the minimum 

standards governing utilities and facilities to be provided in the supplying of water and sewer;(e)The size 

and location of play yards, if any;(f)General landscape and development plans in such detail as will 

enable the commission and council to determine whether or not the proposed park meets the 

requirements of Chapters 15.20, ~' 15.32 and~ as applicable. 

15.08.100 - Health officer certification required. 

Applications for travel trailer parks and mobile home parks shall be accompanied by a statement signed 

by the local health officer that the plans meet the rules, regulations and standards of the Washington 

State Board of Health as promulgated by WAC 248-76 as it now exists or may hereafter be amended . 

15.08.110 - Application-Compliance with chapter required. 



Applications which do not meet the requirements of this chapter shall not be accepted by the 

administrative official. 

15.08.120 - Review by administrative official. 

The administrative official shall study the application with regards to the extent to which the application 

meets the development requirements specified in Chapters 15.20, lS .28, lS .32 aRel 1S.3€i and shall 

report on this subject to the commission and council. 

15.08.130 - Action by planning commission. 

(a)The commission shall study the application and within sixty days after filing of the application shall 

recommend that the council grant or reject the permit. The commission's decision shall be based upon 

the compliance of the request with the requirements listed in Chapters 15.20, ~, 15.32 and~ as 

applicable to the proposal, and with all pertinent requirements of this title and chapter 17 of the Union 

Gap Municipal Code tl'le city ZoRiRg OreliRaRce ~lo. 244 as aFReRelea.(b)ln addition to recommending the 

granting of a permit the commission must find the proposed development will not inhibit the good 

development of the surrounding area. The decision of the commission and the reasons therefor shall be 

entered into the records of the commission. 

15.08.140 - Permit suspension-Hearing and notice. 

Any permit issued under this title may be suspended by the mayor if the development requirements are 

not met as specified on the application and permit. The permittee shall have the right to a hearing 

before the council on any such action of the mayor provided a written request thereof is filed with the 

city clerk within twenty days after the suspension shall be given to the permittee. Such notice shall 

inform the permittee of his right of appeal. The council shall confirm such suspension or shall revoke or 

reinstate any such permit. The permittee shall be given notice of any hearing held by the council on the 

action of the mayor in the same manner as provided herein for notice of a hearing on an application. 

15.08.150 - Permit issuance-Plans and specifications. 

If such plans and specifications for the travel trailer !'lark, mobile home park or FRO Bile hoFRe sbleeli•t'isioR 

are in compliance with all provisions of this title and all other applicable codes, ordinances and 

regulations, and council has approved construction of such tra't'el trailer park, mobile home park &r 

FROBile hoFRe SblBelivisioR, the permit shall be issued according to the approved plans and specifications 

as certified by the building official iRspector. No changes shall be made in the approved plans and 

specifications during, before and after construction without approval of the building inspector. Copies of 

the approved plans and specifications shall be kept in the office of the building inspector and any 

approved changes shall be noted thereon . 

Chapter 15.12 - EXISTING TRAVEL TRAILER AND MOBILE HOME PARKS 

Sections: 

15.12.010 - Compliance with applicable designated regulations required. 



Mobile home parks and travel trailer parks in existence within the city at the time of the adoption of the 

ordinance codified in this title shall be required to meet the requirements of this title upon changing, 

altering or expanding the park as follows: 

(a) In any proposed expansion of the mobile home park or travel trailer park, the following requirements 

of this title shall be met within the boundaries of the new area: 

(1) Minimum road widths; 

(2) Off-street parking requirements; 

(3) Minimum space sizes; 

(4) Minimum yard dimensions; 

(5) Landscaping or fencing; 

(6) The provision of storage areas; 

(7) Applicable health and construction standards; 

(8) Zoning; 

(9) Permit application procedures; 

(b) When a mobile home is removed from a nonconforming mobile home space, it can only be replaced 

by a ffia-bHe manufactured home that conforms to the requirements ofthis title or is at least five 'fears 

newer than the mobile home that it re13laees and either meets the set back requirements when placed 

on the nonconforming space or does not exceed by more than ten percent the size of the mobile home 

located on the space at the time of passage of the ordinance codified in this title and does not 

substantially increase the nonconformity;(c)No other major changes or alterations in existing mobile 

home or travel trailer parks shall be made without compliance to all other provisions of this title. This 

title shall not be interpreted to mean that existing mobile home parks or travel trailer parks are not 

subject to all pertinent existing county and state regulations. 

lS.12.020 Submission of s13eEifieEl Elata reeiuireEl. 

All mobile home 13arl(S in eMistenee at the elate of the a8013tion of the orElinanee eoelifieEl in this title shall 

submit to the offiee of the aElministrator, as built 13lans inEliEating the Elata as reeiuireEl in Sections 12(B) 

1, 2, 3 ans (H) 1, 2, 3, 4, S, (;within siM months after the a8013tion of the orElinance coElified in this title. 

15.12.030 - Time limitation for compliance. 

Any travel trailer park or mobile home park which is not operated for a period of one year shall not 

reopen until all regulations and requirements of this title shall have been met. 

Chapter 15.16 - GENERAL DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

Sections: 

15.16.010 - Utility hookups-Compliance with building code required. 



All mebHe manufactured homes must comply with the minimal requirements of the Union Gap building 

code in regards to foundations and sewer, water and electrical hookups. The building official inspector 

may impose such additional requirements as are necessary for the health and safety of the occupants 

and neighbors of the mebHe manufactured home. 

15.16.020 - Additions and alterations B1:1ilding Permit required . 

No alterations or permanent additions shall be built onto any trailer, mobile home or manufactured 

home unless a permit is secured and the alteration or addition approved and by the Washington State 

Department of Labor and Industries and no such alterations or additions conflict with Chapter 17 of the 

Union Gap Municipal Code. 

1§.Hi.030 Private lots Compliance. 

Yard, height, lot coverage req1:1irernents on pri·w<ate lots are s1:1bject to Section 4, Ordinance No. 224 or 

Section 7 of this ordinance, whichever is applicable. 

15.16.030-Meeite Manufactured home standards and certification. 

Only mebHe manufactured homes that were manufactured after June 15, 1976 or otherwise 

substantially comply with Washington State manufactured housing standards effective June 15, 1976 as 

evidenced by appropriate seal(s) affixed to their outer skin, shall be located within the city. 

Chapter 15.20 - SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR TR/W~L TRAIL~R ANO MANUFACTURED 

HOME PARKS 

Sections: 

15.20.010 - Garbage and waste disposal requirements. 

(a) Each travel trailer park or mebHe manufactured home park shall be provided with safe and adequate 

means for the collection and removal of waste and garbage, as approved by the building inspector. 

(b) Racks or holders shall be provided for all refuse and such racks shall be so designed as to prevent 

containers from being tipped and to minimize spoilage and container deterioration and facilitate the 

cleaning around the container units. 

15.20.020 - Sewage and wastewater requirements . 

(a) It is unlawful to permit wastewater or material from sinks, showers or other fixtures to be deposited 

on any street, travel trailer park or mebHe manufactured home park or any lot within the city. Proper 

drainage shall be provided for all outside water connections, faucets and hydrants. Sinks, showers, 

toilets, lavatories and other similar fixtures in units and service buildings of travel trailer parks ancl 

~manufactured home parks shall be connected to a proper and acceptable sewer system. Such a 

connection shall be to the city sewer system where available, or to a private sewage disposal system 



where a sewer system of the city is not available, all of which shall comply fully with the city's plumbing 

and sanitary codes, and other ordinances, codes and regulations of the city relating thereto, and be 

approved by the building inspector. 

(b) Each travel trailer a Rd/or~ manufactured home parking space shall be equipped with a sewer 

connection so located on a riser and so fitted to provide a watertight junction between the travel trailer 

Gf~ manufactured home sewer extension and the sewer connection in full compliance with 

regulations and requirements of the plumbing code . Such an individual travel trailer or mobile 

manufactured home sewer connection shall be further constructed so as to be closed when not linked 

to a travel trailer or~ manufactured home and shall be trapped in such a manner as to maintain it 

in an odor-free condition as required by the plumbing code. 

15.20.030 - Water supply requirements . 

(a)Each site used as a travel trailer park OF mobile home park shall be provided with an accessible, 

adequate, safe and potable supply of water capable of furnishing a minimum of one hundred twenty

five gallons per day per unit, as approved by the building inspector. Where the city has water service 

available, connection shall be made thereto and its supply shall be used exclusively. The development of 

an independent water supply to serve a trai,•el trailer park or mobile home park shall be made only after 

expressed approval has been granted by the building official iRspector. All water lines shall be 

underground and shall comply fully with all plumbing code and water division regulations .(b)At least one 

water outlet connection on a riser terminating above the ground surface shall be properly connected 

with the potable water supply system at each mobile home OF tra'1el trailer a Rd/or mobile home parking 

space as provide~ hereinbefore in compliance with the regulations and requirements of the plumbing 
code. 

15.20.040 - Fuel service and storage requirements. 

(a)Liquefied petroleum gas or piped gas for cooking or heating purposes, or fuel oils, shall not be used at 

individual dwellings or dwelling units unless such containers, lines and appliances comply with 

provisions set forth in chapter 13 of the Union Gap Municipal Code. Liquefied petroleum gas cylinders 

shall be securely fastened in place and shall be adequately protected. (b)No cylinder containing liquefied 

petroleum gas shall be located within a dwelling or dwelling unit or within five feet of any door thereof. 

Piped gas to individual dwellings or dwelling units shall be fully in compliance with the plumbing code 

and fully protected from danger of breakage due to vehicular or trailer passage over such lines. 

15.20.050 - Fire protection requirements . 

Travel trailer parks a Rd~ Manufactured home parks shall be subject to the rules and regulations of 

the fire department and all playground, setback and screening areas shall at all times be kept free of 

litter, rubbish and other flammable materials . First-aid fire extinguishing equipment of a type or types 

approved by the National Board of Fire Underwriters shall be kept in the service building and all other 

locations named by the fire department and the same shall be maintained in good operating condition. 

15.20.060 - Insect and rodent control requirements . 



Insect and rodent control measures to safeguard public health in compliance w ith existing codes and 

ordinances shall be applied where necessary in tra¥el trailer parks and~ manufactured home 

parks. 

Chapter 15.24 - LOCATION REQUIREMENTS 

Sections : 

lS .21 .010 location and parking restrictions and tiA'le liA'litations. 

Mobile ROA'les A'lay be located on pri¥ate lots in Residential zones in accordance witl=l Table 17.04 .030 

witl=lin tl=le A'lobile ROA'le overlay area iftheir placeA'lent and location conforA'ls to all reeiuireA'lents of 

Chapters lS.08 and lS.28 oftl=lis title. proi.cided furtl=ler, that A'lobile hoA'les A'la'r be located on private 

lots in COA'IA'lercial and industrial zones witl=lin the A'lobile ROA'le overlay by conditional use permits 

issued pursuant to tl=le provisions of Chapter 17.56. 

15.24.020 - Vehicle sales lots, shows and displays-Location restrictions-Permit requirements . 

MGbHe Manufactured home and travel trailer or other recreational vehicles, sales lots, shows and 

displays shall be located within commercial and industrial districts, subject to the respective 

development requirements of these districts. Other provisions of this title notwithstanding, organized 

groups or businessmen desiring to hold travel trailer or other recreational vehicle or mobile home 

shows, displays or gatherings in the city for specific limited periods of time may apply to the city building 

inspector for a permit to do so. The building inspector may issue permits subject to reasonable 

restrictions regarding duration of such shows, displays or gatherings and occupancy, sanitation, location 

and transportation of the trailers or mobile homes as he feels necessary. 

lS .21.030 Mobile ROA'le overlay zone establishes . 

Mobile hoA'les, A'lobile ROA'le parks, A'lobile ROA'le s1:1bdivisions and tra•1el trailer parks sl=lall be permitted 

only in tl=le sl=laded areas of tl=le A'lap whicl=l is designated as Exl=libit "A" on file in tl=le office of the clerk 

treas1:1rer, and as is indicated on tl=le official zoning A'lap of the city. 

Cl=lapter lS.28 MOBILE MOME SU8DIVISlml SITE PlMlNl~lG 

Sections: 

lS.28.010 MiniA'IUA'I site area and location. 

Tl=le A'l iniA'IUA'I site for a A'lobile hoA'le subdivision sl=lall be five acres and sl=lall be locates on a well 

drained site. 

lS .28.020 MiniA'11:1A'1 lot diA'lensions. 



The miniA"HJFR lot size within a rnoaile horne s1:18division shall ae si>< tho1:1sand (€i,000) sq1:1are feet in area 

with a rninirn1:1rn width of sil<ty (€i0) feet . This is estaalished as the rninirn1:1rn lot size, 81:1t larger lot sizes 

with widths to adeq1:1atel·r accornmodate the increasing sizes of do1:18le wide rnoaile horn es rnay ae 

req1:1ired ay the planning cornrnission and city co1:1ncil as a condition of approval of a moaile home 

s1:18division . 

15.28.030 Setaacks . 

The setaack req1:1irements for the location of mobile homes within a rnobile home s1:1bdivision shall be in 

accordance with ta ale 17.05.020 of the Union Gap M1:1nicipal Code. 

(a)Front: Twent•r (20) feet;(b)Sides: five (5) feet (c)Rear: Ten (10) feet. 

15.28.040 Mobile homes per lot restricted. 

Only one moaile home per lot shall be allowed within a mobile horne s1:1bdivision. 

15.28.050 Lot access req1:1irements. 

All lots within a mobile home s1:18division shall be afforded access from a dedicated p1:1blic street and the 

street shall be constr1:1cted and paved to the standards of the city. 

15.28.0€i0 Dead end street T1:1rnaro1:1nd req1:1irements. 

/\II dead end streets shall be vehirnlar t1:1rnaro1:1nds, s1:1ch as, rnl de sac or "T's" with a minim1:1m forty 

foot radi1:1s. 

15.28.070 Off street parking req1:1irements. 

Two off street parking spaces shall be provided per lot. 

15.28.080 Moaile home or trailer minim1:1m size req1:1irements. 

No travel trailers or mobile homes less than twelve (12) feet in width and containing less than six 

h1:1ndred fifty (€i50) sq1:1are feet of living space will ae allowed in a rnobile home s~1bdivision. 

15.28.090 Undergro1:1nd 1:1tility req1:1irements. 

Undergro1:1nd 1:1tilit't' connections shall be provided to each mobile home lot. 

15.28 .100 Ne'N s1:1bdivision Location restrictions . 

New mobile home s1:1bdivisions req1:1ire a Conditional Use Permit in accordance with chapter 17.32.1€i0. 

of the moaile horne overlay of the city. 

15.28.110 Accessory b1:1ilding height, area and setback req1:1irements. 

(a)Accessory b1:1ildings shall have a rnaxim1:1rn height of twenty (20) feet and cover no more than ten (10) 

percent of the area of the lot size.(b)Setback req1:1irernents for accessoP( b1:1ildings are:(l)Front: Twenty 

(20) feet;(2)Rear: Ten (10) feet;(3)Sides: Five feet. 

15.28.120 Fence Permits and Reg1:1lations. 



FeRce withiR Mosile MoFRe Susdi'lisioRs require a feRce perFRit aRd shall se iR accordaRce with 0:1apter 

17 of the URiOR Gap MuRicipal Code . 

lS.28.BO RestrictioRS OR susiRess aRd occupatiORS. 

~lo susiRess other thaR the sales of lots or appro•1ed hoFRe occupatioRs shall se allowed iR a mosile 

hOFRe SUSdivisiOR. 

Chapter lS.32 MOBILE HOME PARK SITE PLAN~ll~IG 

SectioRs: 

lS.32.010 Site locatioR aRd FRiRiFRUFR area CoRstructioR staRdards. 

A mosile home park shall se located iR accordaRce with Tasle 17.0£1.030 aRd shall sea miRimum of five 

usasle acres aRd shall se located oR a well draiAed site. The materials aRd coRstructioR of suildiRgs, 

accessory suildiRgs a Rd structures related thereto shall coRform with the suildiRg code of the city aRd 

all other regulatioRs, codes aAd ordiRaRces applicasle to eRsure the health, safety a Rd geReral welfare 

of occupaAts . 

lS .32.020 Mosile home or trailer miRiFRUFR size requiremeRts. 

No travel trailers or FRosile hoFRes less thaR teR feet iR width aRd coRtaiRiAg less thaR five huRdred 

square feet of li'liRg space will se allowed iR a FRosile home park. 

lS.32.030 Mosile home space MiRimuFR area aRd placemeRt requireFReRts. 

Mosile hoFRe spaces shall ee a FRiRiFRUFR of fi'le thousaRd square feet . No moeile hoFRe OF euildiRg of 

aRy type FRay se placed closer thaR fi'le feet side ya rel fro FR the SOURelaries of a FRoeile hoFRe space. 

lS.32.0£10 Mosile hoFRe space DemarcatioR aRd ieleRtificatioR ClearaRce aAd structural placeffieRt 
requireFReRts. 

Each FRosile hoFRe space shall se well FRarkeel a Rel ideRtified with aR assigRed Rumeer for eFRergeRcy 

ser'lices. ARy dwelliRg UR it, suildiRg or structure located OR aR iRdividual moeile hoFRe space shall se SO 

placed to pro'lide at least fifteeR feet of clearaRCe eetweeR it aRd all other euildiRgS, structures or 

dwelliRg UR its other thaR those located OR the oRe aRd the saFRe FRO Bile hoFRe lot. Where placed eRd 

to eRd, dwelliRg UR its OR aeuttiRg lots shall have a FRiRiFRUFR clearaRCe of tWeRty feet. No dwelliRg URit, 

suildiRg or structure located OR aR iRdividual FRoeile hoFRe space shall se closer thaR teR feet froffl a 

pus lie parkiRg area or a roadway withiR the park; a Rd further, Ro such dwelliRg uRit shall se closer thaR 

tweRty feet from a Ry city street right of way or state or federal highway rigl=lt of way. DwelliRg URits, 

suildiRg aRd structures located witRiR a FROSile ROFRe park sut Rot OR aR iRdividual FROSile Rome space 

sl=lall coFRply witl=l sucl=l area requiremeRts. Storage sl=leds sl=lall eitl=ler se coRRected to or located Ro 

closer tl=laR fi'le feet froFR a Ry dwelliRg UR it. 

lS.32.0SO Access aRd roadway requireFReRts. 



All mobile Rome spaces witRin a mobile Rome park sRall be afforded adeq1:1ate access and s1:1cR access 

sRall be b•r a private road·,.,·ay witRin tRe mobile Rome park. S1:1cR roadways sRall be no less tRan tRirty 

feet in widtR and sRall Ra'le 1:1nobstrncted access to a p1:1blic street or RigRwa.,.. TRe sole veRirnlar access 

to a mobile Rome park sRall not be b•; an alley. All dead end roadwa.,.s sRall incl1:1de adeq1:1ate veRicular 

t1:1rning space or c1:1I de sac witR a minim1:1m raeli1:1s of forty feet. Direct access from a p1:1blic rigRt of way 

to an inelivid1:1al mobile Rome space sRall onl'f' be allo•Neel 1:1pon a determination by tRe CRief of police 

tRat s1:1cR access will not ca1:1se a traffic Razard . 

15.32.0eO Off street parking space and location requirements. 

Two off street parking spaces for a1:1tomobiles sRall be provided on eacR individ1:1al mobile Rome space 

or in common parking bays . ~jo space sRall be located more tRan one h1:1ndred feet from its designated 

parking bay. A combination of tRe above two mefRods also may be 1:1sed. 

15.32.070 Roadwa•; s1:1rfacing, maintenance and ligRting req1:1irements . 

All roadways witRin tRe mobile Rome park sRall be s1:1rfaced to at least minim1:1m city standards, 

maintained and ligRted at nigRt. 

15.32.080 OtRer veRicles restricted . 

Only mobile Romes sRall be allowed to park and be located in mobile home parks . 

15.32 .090 Recreational facilities permitted wRen . 

Recreational facilities may be provided so long as tRey are properly protected from streets, RigRways, 

roadways and parking areas . 

15.32.100 Undergro1:1nd 1:1tility req1:1irements . 

!:lectrical distrib1:1tion systems and telepRone sep,·ice s~·stems to eacR mobile Rome space sRall be 

1:1ndergro1:1nd e1<Cept for 01:1tlets and risers at eacR individ1:1al space. 

15.32.110 electrical service req1:1irements and installation standards. 

electrical service to eacR individ1:1al mobile Rome space sRall be provided tRro1:1gR a weatRerproof 

polarized gro1:1nding type 3 wire 115/230 volt electrical pl1:1g m1tlet, of at least fifty ampere capacity 

installed in accordance witR reg1:1lations and req1:1irements of tRe city electrical code . 

15.32.120 VeRicle storage area req1:1ired. 

!:acR mobile Rome park sRall Rave an area set aside and designated as storage for recreational vehicles, 

boats, trncks, snowmobiles and motorcycles. 

15.32.130 Mobile Rome space demarcation req1:1irements . 

Bo1:1ndaries of mobile Rome spaces sRall be well defined and permanent!•; marked . 

15 .32.140 Mobile Rome setback req1:1irements . 

No mobile Rome sRall be parked closer tRan fifteen feet from tRe front of a mobile Rome space. 



15 .32.150 Moeile Rome proximity to property liAe restrieted. 

No moeile Rome SRall Be loeated eloser tRaA fifteeA feet from tRe mo Bile Rome park property Ii Re. 

15.32.leO LaAdseape sereeA a Ad B1:Jffer strips req1:JiremeAts. 

(a)TRe moBile Rome parks adjaeeAt to eommereial OF iAdl:Jstrial laAd l:JS@rs SRall Be provided witR 

sereeAiAg eoAsistiAg of a '1ie1N OBSEl:JriAg Redge or feAee aloAg tRe property liAes separatiAg tRe moBile 

Rome park from tRe nonresidential developmeAts.(B)MoBile Rome parks adjaeeAt to residential, 

agriElllt1:JFal or an existing landseaped area sRall Be laAdseaped along tRe property lines in a eonsistent 

and eompatiBle maAner witR tRe existing areas. 

(Rapter 15.3e TR/\VEL TRAILER PARK SITE PLMINl~JG 

Seetions: 

1S.3e.010 Site loeatioA and miAim1:Jm area Constr1:Jetion standards. 

A tra•;el trailer park sRall BC loeated in a eommereial zoAe of tRe rnoBile Rome overlay on a well drained 

site. TRe materials and eonstF1:Jetion of Bl:Jildings, aeeessory Bl:Jildings and str1:JEt1:Jres related tRereto SRall 

eonform to tRe Bl:Jilding eode of tRe eity and all otRer reg1:Jlations, eodes and ordiAanees applieaBle to 

ins1:Jre tRe RealtR, safet'; and geAeral welfare of oeeupants. Tra·1el trailer parks sRall Be a rninim1:1m of 

five l:JSaBle aeres . 

15.3e.020 Trailer spaee Dimension and dernareatioA req1:Jirernents. 

Travel trailer spaees in a trailer park sRall BC AO less tRan one tR01:Jsand fi•;e R1:1ndred sq1:Jare feet iA area 

witR a rninirn1:1rn a';erage \VidtR of twent·r five feet. S1:1eR lots sRall BC elearly defiAed and rnarked. 

15.3e.030 Trailer spaee Clea ranee and str1:1et1:Jral plaeernent req1:Jirernents. 

Travel trailer parking spaees sRall BC well rnarl~ed . Any dwelling, Bl:lilding or str1:1et1:1re loeated oA aA 

iAdivid1:1al travel trailer spaee sRall be so plaeed to proi.·ide at least five feet of elearaAee betweeA it and 

tRe border of tRe travel trailer spaee, and ten feet of elearanee Between it a Ad all b1:1ildings, str1:1eh1res 

or dwelliAgs loeated on ab1:1ttiAg travel trailer spaees; provided, tRat a rninim1:1rn of tweAt'; five feet of 

elearaAEC BC provided betweeA a dwelling, bi:JildiAg OF strl:JEtUFC On an iAdivid1:1al tra';el trailer space a Ad 

a dwelling, B1:1ilding or stF1:Jet1:1re not loeated on aA individ1:1al travel trailer spaee. No dwelling, b1:1ilding or 

StFl:JEtl:Jre loeated On an individ1:1al travel trailer spaee SRall Be eloser tRaA ten feet from a p1:1elie parkiAg 

area, or a roadway witRin tRe park; and fl:JrtRer, no Sl:JER dwelling sRall BC eloser tRan twenty feet frorn 

any eit•r street rigRt of way or state or federal RigRway rigRt of way. Dwellings, dwelling l:lAits, b1:1ilding 

aAd stF1:Jet1:1res loeated 'NitRin a travel trailer park, b1:1t not on an individ1:1al travel trailer spaee, sRall 

eomply witR Sl:JER area req1:1irements as are provided in tRis title and a Ry otRer ordinaAees of tRe eity. 

AAy storage SRed OR a travel trailer lot SRall Be loeated no eloser tRan five feet from a Ry dwelliAg. 

15.3e.040 Aeeess a Ad roadwa'y' req1:1irements. 



All spaces withiA a travel trailer park shall be afforded access a Ad such access shall be bv a prii,iate 

roadway withiA the tra•1el trailer park. Such roadwavs shall be AO less thaA thirty feet iA width aAd shall 

have uAobstructed access to a public street or highvw'a'y' . The sole vehicular access to a travel trailer park 

shall Rot be by aA alley. All dead eAd roadways shall iAclude adequate turniAg space or culs de sac at a 

miAimum forty foot radius. Direct access from a public right of way to iAdividual travel trailer space 

shall ORiy be alloweei upoA a determiAatioA bv the police chief that s1:1ch access will Rot cause a traffic 

hazard . 

15.36.050 Off street parkiAg space aAd locatioA requiremeAts . 

0Ae off street parkiAg space for a A automobile shall be provided oA each iAdivid1:1al travel trailer space 

or iA commoA parkiAg bavs at the rate of at least oAe parkiAg space per travel trailer space. No space 

shall be located more thaA oAe h1:1Adred feet from its desigAated parkiAg bay. A combiAatioA of the 

above two methods also may be 1:1sed. 

15.36.060 Roadway s1:1rfaciAg, maiAteAaAce aAd lightiAg requiremeAts . 

All road ..... avs withiA the travel trailer park shall be s1:1rfaced to at least miAim1:1m city staAdards, 

maiAtaiAed aAd lighted at Right with electric lamps of Rot less thaA OAe huAdred watts each spaced at 

iAtervals of Rot more thaA oAe huAdred feet or eei1:1ivaleAt ill1:1miAatioA as mav be supplied b11 other 

tvpes of lamps appro'1ed by the b1:1ildiAg iAspector. 

15.36.070 Service b1:1ildiAg aAd facilitv requiremeAts aAd staAdards. 

(a)A travel trailer park shall be provided with oAe or more service buildiAgs adequatelv eq1:1ipped with 

fl1:1sh type toilets, lavatories, shower baths a Ad la1:rndry facilities . Service b1:1ildiAgs shall be located withiA 

the travel trailer parl( so that AO oAe travel trailer space is more thaA two h1:1Adred feet from a service 

b1:1ildiAg.(b)Service b1:1ildiAgs shall be provided with bathroom facilities as follows:(l)At least oAe water 

flushed toilet for each seJ< per each twelve travel trailer lots a Ad/or fractioAs thereof. Toilets shall be 

eAclosed iA separate compartmeAts with aA area oftwel"'e sq1:1are feet miAim1:1m of three foot 

width;(2)Each toilet room provided for meA shall have iA additioA oAe water fl1:1shed 1:1riAal per each 

tweAty travel trailer spaces or fractioA thereof;(3)Each toilet room shall be provided with oAe lavatorr 

for each two toilets;('1)0Ae shower bath shall be provided for each seJ< per each twelve travel trailer 

spaces or fractioAs thereof withiA a miAim1:1m three foot by three foot compartmeAt with a stool or 

beAch iA a miAim1:1m three foot by three foot area as a c0Atiguo1:1s part of the shower stall 

improvemeAt.(c)La1:1Adry facilities shall be provided iA service b1:1ildiAgs aAd shall be separated by a 

permaAeAt wall from the area withiA which toilet, lavatory a Ad bathiAg facilities are located. 0Ae double 

la1:1Adry tray per each tweAty travel trailer spaces or fractioAs tl:~ereof, shall be provided iA s1:1ch lauAdr,1 

rooms. IA lie1:1 of the above requiremeAts, OAe f1:1lly automatic washiAg machiAe ma•r be pro1a1ided 13er 

each t·1t'eAt'y' tra';el trailer spaces wheA pro13erlv coAAected to a sewer draiA pipe as per plum bi Ag code 

req1:1iremeAts. 

15.36.080 RecreatioA facilities 13ermitted wheA. 

RecreatioAal facilities may be wovided so loAg as they are protected from adjaceAt streets, highways, 

roadways aAd parkiAg areas . 

15.36.090 Electrical service requiremeAts aAd iAstallatioA staAdards. 



Electrical service to eacR iRelivielual travel trailer SR all be provieleel tRrougR a weatRerproof polarized 

grouREliRg type 3 wire 115/230 volt electrical plug outlet, of at least tweRty aA'lpere capacity aREl 

iRstalleEl iR accorElaRce witR tRe regulatioRs aREl reeiuireA'leRts of tRe URioR Gap electrical coEle . 

15 .30.100 Mobile hoA'les perA'litteEl witR tiA'le liA'litatioR. 

Mobile ROA'les A'lay be locateEl iR a travel trailer park for a perioEl Rot to ei<ceeel six A'IORtRs. 

(Rapter 15.10 NmJCmlFORMING PARKl~lG 

SectioRS: 

15.10.010 ParkiRg outsiEle of ElesigRateel area perA'litteEl CoRElitioRs. 

All occupieel travel trailers a REI A'lobile ROA'les existiRg as of tRe effective Elate oftRe orEliRaRce coelified 

iR this title located outsiEle liceRseEl tra'>'el trailer parl(s, A'lobile ROA'le parl(S, A'lobile hoA'le subElivisioRs 

aREl tRe A'lobile ROFfle overlay sRall be perFflitteEl to reFflaiR iR place so loRg as saA'\e are occupied aREl 

pro't'iEleEl tRey Ffla'r' Rot be replaceEl or substaRtially iFflproved. No Re·.v water or sewer coRRectioRs sRall 

be FflaEle to sucR travel trailers or Fflobile ROA'\ es after sucR Elate. 

Chapter 15.44 - SIGN REGULATIONS 

Sections: 

15.44.010 - Real estate signs. 

Real estate signs are permitted as follows: one sign not exceed five square feet advertising only the sale, 

rental or lease of the building or on premises on which it is maintained. 

15.44.020 - Home occupation signs. 

Signs identifying home occupations are permitted as follows: one sign per use not exceeding two square 

feet in area. Such sign shall be no closer than ten feet to any property line or shall be flat against the 

building. No lighting is permitted. 

15.44.030 - ~Manufactured home park or subEli'>'isioR identification. 

~Manufactured home park or Fflobile ROFfle subEli•1isioR identification signs are permitted as 

follows: specific identification signs denoting the name of a mobile home park or A'lobile ROFfle 

subElivisioR are permitted providing they are non illuminated or indirectly illuminated and do not exceed 

fifty square feet in area. Not more than one such sign shall be located in each major approach to the 

development the front, rear and side yard requirements applying to principal structures shall apply to 

the location of such signs . 

15.11 .010 Travel trailer 13ark iEleRtificatioR. 



SigAs ideAtifyiAg travel trailer parks shall coAfoFA'l to the requireA'leAts of the C COA'IA'lercial wne of the 

Zoning OrdiAaAce ~Jo. 224 as aA'leAded. 

15.44.050 -New~ manufactured home park or s1:J8division advertising. 

Signs identifying a new~ manufactured home park or s1:J8divisioA are permitted as follows : signs 

advertising spaces or lots within a new~ manufactured home park or s1:J8di'1ision are permitted 

providing they are nonilluminated or indirectly illuminated and do not exceed fifty square feet in area. 

Not more than one such sign shall be located in each major approach to the park or s1:J8division and the 

front, side and rear yard requirements applying to principal structures shall apply to the location of such 

signs. The display of such signs, shall be limited to a period of two years. Prior to the expiration thereof, 

the applicant may request an extension from the city council. The signs shall be removed prior to the 

expiration of the two-year period or extension thereof. If the sign has not been removed, the city may 

enter upon the premises upon which the sign is located and remove such sign at no liability to the city 

and at the expense of the owner. 

15.44.060 - Construction signs. 

Construction signs are permitted as follows: during construction, repair or alteration of a development, 

temporary signs which denote the architect, engineer, contractor or builder or which denote the name 

of the development may be placed within the required yard setbacks as ground signs . Each sign shall be 

twenty-four square feet or less in size and no more than one such sign shall be permitted for each 

architect, engineer, contractor, builder or denoting the name of the development. Temporary private 

ground or wall signs exclusively relating to the safety of the public (e.g., "No Parking Today," "Use 

Covered Walkway," "Do Not Enter," "Danger," "Loading Zone") may be located as needed for public 

safety without limitation as to number, size or location so far as the requirements of this title are 

concerned. 

Chapter 15.48 - VARIANCES AND APPEALS 

Sections: 

15.48.010 - Procedures. 

The procedure and regulations governing variances and appeals shall be as specified in Chapter 17.23 of 

the Union Gap Municipal Code SectioA 15 and le of the ZoAing Grdina Ace No. 224 as aA'lended. 

Chapter 15.52 - INSPECTIONS AND ENFORCEMENT 

Sections: 

15.52.010 - Placement-Inspection and fee. 

Before any mebHe manufactured home is placed, a permit must be secured from the building official 

inspector who must inspect the home and lot where it is to be located. A fee will be charged as provided 

in Section 15.08.010. 

15.52.020 - Enforcement. 



The Building Official or their designee shall have the duty to enforce all provisions of this title as 

prescribed herein or such provisions as may hereafter be enacted, and for the purpose of securing such 

enforcement the building official inspector or their...ft+s duly authorized representative or agent shall 

have the right and is empowered to enter upon the premises on which any tra~·el trailer park or mobile 

home park is located, or is about to be located, and inspect the same and accommodations connected 

therewith at all reasonable times . 

Chapter 15.56 - VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

Sections: 

15.56.010 - Violation-Penalty-Abatement action . 

For any and every violation of the provisions of the ordinance codified in this title, the owner, agent or 

contractor of a building or premises where such violations have been committed or shall exist, or any 

other person who maintains any building or premises in which any violation shall exist, shall be guilty of 

a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof shall be fined not more than five hundred dollars or 

imprisoned in jail not to exceed ninety days, or both such fine and imprisonment. Each and every day 

that such violation continues shall be deemed a separate and distinct violation . Any building or structure 

set up, erected, built, moved or maintained or any use of property contrary to the provisions of this title 

shall be declared to be unlawful and a public nuisance, and the city manager shall immediately 

commence action for the removal thereof, in the manner provided by law, and shall apply to such court 

or courts as may have jurisdiction to remove such building, structure or use. All remedies provided for 

herein shall be cumulative and not exclusive. 



Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: 

Topic/Issue: 

Dennis Henne; Director of Public Works & Community Development 

Ordinance - Amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 17 Zoning 

SYNOPSIS: The City of Union Gap requires periodic updates to remain in compliance. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt an Ordinance amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 17 - Zoning ·
to remain in compliance. 

LEGAL REVIEW: City Attorney has reviewed this resolution. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N/A 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Ordinance 
2. Ordinance with Redlines 



CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 17 - Zoning. 

WHEREAS, periodic updates are necessary to maintain compliance with the current 
Washington State Building Code 2018 Edition; and, 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to remain in compliance with the Washington State Building 
Code & Residential Code current edition. 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNION GAP DOES 
ORDAIN as follows: 

Chapter 17.22-"MANUFACTURED HOME PARK STANDARDS" amended. 

Chapter 17.22 is amended as follows: 

17.22.010 Purpose. 
The purpose of this chapter is to establish standards and criteria for development and 

expansion of manufactured home parks within the city of Union Gap. These standards are provided 
to ensure uniform, coordinated development of manufactured home parks, and to ensure the 
general health, welfare, and safety of the occupants of manufactured homes that may be located 
within a park developed under these standards. 

17.22.020 Site plan requirements. 

All proposals for manufactured home parks shall include a site plan based upon a land survey 
drawn by a licensed architect, engineer, or surveyor and shall include the following information in 
addition to the standard information required for site plans: 

A. All spaces shall be clearly delineated on the site plan and include dimensions and square 
footage for each space; 

B. A building envelope shall be shown within each space; 

C. Unit setbacks shall be shown for each space; 

D. The location of required parking for each unit shall be shown on the site plan; 

E. 

F. 

Streets shall be shown on the site plan, including a typical cross section of street design; 

Signage for the park and directional signage shall be shown on the site plan; 

G. All facilities, utilities, improvements, and amenities shall be shown on the site plan, 
including pathways, sidewalks, and recreational facilities. 

City of Union Gap, Washington 
Ordinance; UGMC Chapter 17 Zoning 

Page I of 4 



17.22.030 Development standards. 

All manufactured home parks shall be developed in compliance with the underlying zoning 
district, and shall be in compliance with this section. The density of a park or park expansion shall 
not exceed the density of the underlying zoning district. All required site improvements shall be 
installed prior to placement of units in the park. The reviewing body may require additional site 
improvements. 

A. Minimum Space Size and Width. The minimum space size and width for a manufactured 
home park, exclusive of streets, shall meet the lot size, lot width and all other standards 
for detached single family dwellings as shown on Table 17.05.020 of this title. Space 
size may be reduced, with the provisions of improvements, in accordance with the 
following: 

l. Provision of Recreational Areas. Space size requirements of the underlying district 
may be reduced by a maximum often (10) percent with the provision of a developed 
recreational area for use by the residents. The area shall be suitable for active 
recreation, and shall consist of a minimum of ten (10) percent of the park area. 

2. Provision of Sidewalks. Space size requirements of the underlying district may be 
reduced by a maximum of five percent with the provision of sidewalks, a minimum 
four feet in width, serving at least one side of each street and all recreational areas . 
Such sidewalks must meet the construction standards of the Union Gap Conditions 
and Standards Manual. 

3. Provision of Curbs, Gutters and Sidewalks. Space size requirements of the 
underlying district may be reduced by a maximum of ten ( l 0) percent with the 
provision of curbs, gutters and sidewalks on both sides of the street. Such curbs, 
gutters and sidewalks must meet the construction standards of the Union Gap 
Conditions and Standards Manual. 

4. Cumulative Space Size Reduction. Space size may be reduced up to twenty (20) 
percent with the provision of any combination of items (A)(l) through (3) of this 
section. 

B. Internal Street Paving. A minimum of thirty (30) feet of paved internal street shall be 
required for access to each unit, paved in accordance with Section 17.06.110 of this title. 

C. Off-Street Parking. Two paved off-street parking spaces shall be provided for each unit 
in accordance with Chapter 17 .06 of this title. 

D. Street Lighting. Streetlights shall be provided in front of each manufactured home space 
within the park. 

E. Right-of-Way Dedication and Frontage Improvements. Appropriate provisions for right
of-way dedication and right-of-way improvements adjacent to the park shall be made, 
including street paving, sidewalks, curb, gutter, and street lighting. Improvements shall 
be installed prior to the placement of units in the park, unless appropriate bond or 
instrument, acceptable to the city, is provided to guarantee installation of improvements. 

F. Street Signs and Internal Directional Signs. Street names shall conform to the Union Gap 
street name system, as assigned by the administrator. Signs consistent with Union Gap 
street standards shall mark all streets. Internal directional signs indicating unit/space 
numbers shall be placed at all street intersections within the park. 



G. Utilities. All utilities, including irrigation and domestic water and sewer, shall be 
installed prior to placement of units in the park. All utilities, including electrical 
distribution, telephone, and cable TV, shall be installed underground. The internal water 
system shall include fire hydrants, located at the direction of the Union Gap fire marshal. 
A water meter shall be provided to each space. 

H. Perimeter Site Screening and Landscaping. The perimeter of the park shall be site 
screened with a six foot high view obscuring fence, and include, at a minimum, a ten 
( l 0) foot wide landscape strip, adjacent to the fence and within the park, consisting of a 
combination of shrubs, trees, and groundcover. Trees shall be planted no more than thirty 
(30) feet apart. 

I. Stormwater Drainage. All stormwater drainage shall be retained on site, in accordance 
with a storm water plan approved by the state of Washington Department of Ecology and 
the city. 

J. Dumpsters/Solid Waste Containers. Dumpsters and solid waste containers shall be 
provided for common use and shall be screened with a six foot high view obscuring 
fence or wall and access gate. As an alternative each space shall be provided with an 
area for a garbage container allowing individual collection. 

K. Play Area Requirement. Except in adult only parks, or portions thereof designated as 
adult only, a play area for children shall be provided on each space having a minimum 
size of six hundred (600) square feet and a minimum width of fifteen (15) feet. 

L. Survey Monuments. The corner of each space shall be marked by permanent survey 
monuments. 

M. Building Setbacks. All structures including manufactured homes, garages, carports and 
covered patios shall meet the following setbacks from space lines: 

l. Front, ten ( l 0) feet; 

2. Side and rear, five feet; 

3. Exterior property line of the park, ten (l 0) feet; 

4. Public street, ten ( l 0) feet. 

N. Vehicle Storage Area Required. Each manufactured home park shall have an area set 
aside and designated as storage for recreational vehicles, boats, trucks, snowmobiles and 
motorcycles. 

17.22.035 Manufactured home standards. 

Class-A, Class-B and Class-C manufactured homes are permitted within manufactured home 
parks. 

17.22.045 Existing nonconforming manufactured home parks. 

Manufactured home parks existing within the city at the effective date of the ordinance 
codified in this title shall be required to meet the requirements of this title upon changing, altering 
or expanding the park as follows: 

A. Expansion. Any proposed expansion of the manufactured home park shall meet the 
requirements of this title within the boundaries of the new area. 



B. Alterations. Any alteration to an existing road, space or landscaping shall meet the 
following: 

1. The alteration shall not create a new nonconforming road, space, or other 
nonconfonning situation. 

2. The alteration shall not increase the degree of nonconformity of an existing 
nonconfonning road, space, or required amenity. 

3. Any additional space or road created within an existing park shall comply with the 
provisions of this chapter. 

C. Normal Maintenance and Repair. The maintenance and repair of existing facilities such 
as the resurfacing of streets, repair of fences, replacement of vegetation and repair of 
utilities can be made without meeting the standards of this chapter for new facilities as 
long as such work does not increase the degree of nonconformity. 

D. When a mobile or manufactured home is removed from a nonconfonning mobile or 
manufactured home space, it can only be replaced by a mobile or manufactured home 
that meets the following: 

1. The home conforms to the construction requirements of this title; or 

2. A safety inspection is conducted by the state of Washington Department of Labor 
and Industries, or its successor, and any safety deficiencies are corrected prior to 
occupancy; or 

3. The home meets the setback requirements of this title, when placed on the 
nonconforming space; or 

4. The home does not exceed, by more than ten ( 10) percent the size of the home 
located on the space at the time of the effective date of Ordinance No. 723, adopted 
December 26, 1978, and does not substantially increase the nonconformity. 

Section 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper of the City 
and shall take effect and be in full force five (5) days after the date of publication. 

ORDAINED this 22th day of August, 2022. 

John Hodkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Karen Clifton, City Clerk Bronson Brown, City Attorney 



Chapter 17.22 MANUFACTURED HOME PARK STANDARDS 

Chapter 17.22 MANUFACTURED HOME PARK STANDARDS 

17.22.010 Purpose. 

The purpose of this chapter is to establish standards and criteria for development and expansion of 
manufactured home parks within the city of Union Gap. These standards are provided to ensure uniform, 
coordinated development of manufactured home parks, and to ensure the general health, welfare, and safety of 
the occupants of manufactured homes that may be located within a park developed under these standards. 

(Ord. 2274 § 1 (part), 2000) 

17.22.020 Site plan requirements. 

All proposals for manufactured home parks shall include a site plan based upon a land survey drawn by a 
licensed architect, engineer, or surveyor and shall include the following information in addition to the standard 
information required for site plans: 

A. All spaces shall be clearly delineated on the site plan and include dimensions and square footage for 
each space; 

B. A building envelope shall be shown within each space; 

C. Unit setbacks shall be shown for each space; 

D. The location of required parking for each unit shall be shown on the site plan; 

E. Streets shall be shown on the site plan, including a typical cross section of street design; 

F. Signage for the park and directional signage shall be shown on the site plan; 

G. All facilities, utilities, improvements, and amenities shall be shown on the site plan, including pathways, 
sidewalks, and recreational facilities. 

(Ord. 2274 § 1 (part), 2000) 

17.22.030 Development standards. 

All manufactured home parks shall be developed in compliance with the underlying zoning district, and shall 
be in compliance with this section. The density of a park or park expansion shall not exceed the density of the 
underlying zoning district. All required site improvements shall be installed prior to placement of units in the park. 
The reviewing body may require additional site improvements. 

A. Minimum Space Size and Width. The minimum space size and width for a manufactured home park, 
exclusive of streets, shall meet the lot size, lot width and all other standards for detached single family 
dwellings as shown on Table 17.05.020 of this title. Space size may be reduced, with the provisions of 
improvements, in accordance with the following : 

1. Provision of Recreational Areas. Space size requirements of the underlying district may be 
reduced by a maximum of ten (10) percent with the provision of a developed recreational area 
for use by the residents. The area shall be suitable for active recreation, and shall consist of a 
minimum of ten (10) percent of the park area. 

Union Gap, Washington, Code of Ordinances 

(Supp. No. 35, 12-21) 

Page 1of4 

Created: 2022 -01-ll 14:46:03 (EST] 



2. Provision of Sidewalks. Space size requirements of the underlying district may be reduced by a 
maximum of five percent with the provision of sidewalks, a minimum four feet in width, serving 
at least one side of each street and all recreat ional areas. Such sidewalks must meet the 
construction standards of the Union Gap Conditions and Standards Manual. 

3. Provision of Curbs, Gutters and Sidewalks. Space size requirements of the underlying district may 
be reduced by a maximum of ten (10) percent with the provision of curbs, gutters and sidewalks 
on both sides of the street. Such curbs, gutters and sidewalks must meet the construction 
standards of the Union Gap Conditions and Standards Manual. 

4. Cumulative Space Size Reduction . Space size may be reduced up to twenty (20) percent with the 
provision of any combination of items (A)(l) through (3) of this section . 

B. Internal Street Paving. A minimum of th irty (30) feet of paved internal street shall be required for 
access to each unit, paved in accordance with Section 17.06.110 of this title. 

C. Off-Street Parking. Two paved off-street parking spaces shall be provided for each unit in accordance 
with Chapter 17.06 of this title . 

D. Street Lighting. Streetlights shall be provided in front of each manufactured home space within the 
park. 

E. Right-of-Way Dedication and Frontage Improvements. Appropriate provisions for right-of-way 
dedication and right-of-way improvements adjacent to the park shall be made, including street paving, 
sidewalks, curb, gutter, and street lighting. Improvements shall be installed prior to the placement of 
units in the park, unless appropriate bond or instrument, acceptable to the city, is provided to 
guarantee installation of improvements. 

F. Street Signs and Internal Directional Signs. Street names shall conform to the Union Gap street name 
system, as assigned by the administrator. Signs consistent with Union Gap street standards shall mark 
all streets. Internal directional signs indicating unit/space numbers shall be placed at all street 
intersections within the park. 

G. Utilities. All utilities, including irrigation and domestic water and sewer, shall be installed prior to 
placement of units in the park. All uti li ties, including electrical distribution, telephone, and cable TV, 
shall be installed underground. The internal water system shall include fire hydrants, located at the 
direction of the Union Gap fire marshal. A water meter shall be provided to each space. 

H. Perimeter Site Screening and Landscaping. The perimeter of the park shall be site screened with a six 
foot high view obscuring fence, and include, at a minimum, a ten (10) foot wide landscape strip, 
adjacent to the fence and within the park, consisting of a combination of shrubs, trees, and 
groundcover. Trees shall be planted no more than thirty (30) feet apart. 

I. Stormwater Drainage. All stormwater drainage shall be retained on site, in accordance with a 
stormwater plan approved by the state of Washington Department of Ecology and the city. 

J. Dumpsters/Solid Waste Containers. Dumpsters and solid waste containers shall be provided for 
common use and shall be screened with a six foot high view obscuring fence or wall and access gate. As 
an alternative each space shall be provided with an area for a garbage container allowing individual 
collection. 

K. Play Area Requirement. Except in adult only parks, or portions thereof designated as adult only, a play 
area for children shall be provided on each space having a minimum size of six hundred (600) square 
feet and a minimum width of fifteen (15) feet. 

L. Survey Monuments. The corner of each space shall be marked by permanent survey monuments. 

Created : 2022 - 01-21 14 :46:03 (EST] 

(Supp. No. 35, 12-21) 

Page 2 of 4 



M . Building Setbacks. All structures including manufactured homes, garages, carports and covered patios 
shall meet the following setbacks from space lines: 

1. Front, ten (10) feet; 

2. Side and rear, five feet; 

3. Exterior property line of the park, ten (10) feet; 

4. Public street, ten (10) feet. 

N. Vehicle Storage Area Required . Each manufactured home park shall have an area set aside and 
designated as storage for recreational vehicles, boats, trucks, snowmobiles and motorcycles. 

(Ord . 2274 § 1 (part), 2000) 

17.22.035 Manufactured home standards. 

Class-A, Class-Band Class-C manufactured homes are permitted within manufactured home parks. 

(Ord . 2407 (part), 2004) 

17.22.045 Existing nonconforming manufactured home parks. 

Manufactured home parks existing within the city at the effective date of the ordinance codified in this title 
shall be required to meet the requirements of this title upon changing, altering or expanding the park as follows : 

A. Expansion. Any proposed expansion of the manufactured home park shall meet the requirements of 
this title within the boundaries of the new area. 

B. Alterations. Any alteration to an existing road, space or landscaping shall meet the following : 

1. The alteration shall not create a new nonconforming road, space, or other nonconforming 
situation . 

2. The alteration shall not increase the degree of nonconformity of an existing nonconforming road, 
space, or required amenity. 

3. Any additional space or road created within an existing park shall comply with the provisions of 
this chapter. 

C. Normal Maintenance and Repair. The maintenance and repair of existing facilities such as the 
resurfacing of streets, repair of fences, replacement of vegetation and repair of utilities can be made 
without meeting the standards of this chapter for new facilities as long as such work does not increase 
the degree of nonconformity. 

D. When a mobile or manufactured home is removed from a nonconforming mobile or manufactured 
home space, it can only be replaced by a mobile or manufactured home that meets the following: 

1. The home conforms to the construction requirements of this title; or 

2. A safety inspection is conducted by the state of Washington Department of Labor and Industries, 
or its successor, and any safety deficiencies are corrected prior to occupancy; or 

3. The home meets the setback requirements of this title, when placed on the nonconforming 

space; or 

Created : 2022- 01-21 14 :46:03 (EST] 

(Supp . No. 35, 12-21) 

Page 3 of 4 



4. The home does not exceed, by more than ten (10) percent the size of the home located on the 
space at the time of the effective date of Ordinance No. 723, adopted December 26, 1978, and 
does not substantially increase the nonconformity. 

(Ord. 2274 § 1 (part), 2000) 

Created: 2022-01-21 14 :46 :03 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 35, 12-21) 

Page 4 of 4 



Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: Dennis Henne, Director; Public Works & Community Development 

Topic/Issue: Resolution - Set Public Hearing - Wide Hollow Development, Developer's Agreement 

SYNOPSIS: Set Public Hearing for September 7, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. to receive public testimony 
regarding Wide Hollow Development, Developer's Agreement. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve a resolution setting a public hearing, for September 7, 2022 at 6:00 
p.m., in regards to Wide Hollow Development, Developer's Agreement. 

LEGAL REVIEW: City Attorney reviewed this resolution. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: N/ A 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N/A 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 
2. Draft Notice of Public Hearing 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Wednesday, September 7, 2022, at 
6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible, the Union Gap City Council will 
conduct a public hearing. The purpose of the hearing is to receive comments on 
proposed Developer's Agreement submitted by Wide Hollow Development. 

At the conclusion of the Public Hearing, the Council will make a final 
determination concerning proposed revisions. Comments may also be emailed 
to the City Clerk at Karen.Clifton@uniongapwa.gov or mailed to P.O. Box 3008, 
Union Gap, Washington, 98903 prior to 5:00 p.m. on September 7, 2022. 

DATED this 22"d day of August 2022. 

Karen Clifton, City Clerk 



Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: Dennis Henne, Director; Public Works & Community Development 

Topic/Issue: Motion - Set Special Council Meeting - Wide Hollow Development -
Developers Agreement 

SYNOPSIS: Set special Council meeting for September 7, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. for a public hearing 
regarding Wide Hollow Development, Developer's Agreement, and to approve a resolution authorizing 
the Public Works Director to sign an agreement with Wide Hollow Development. 

RECOMMENDATION: Motion to set a special Council meeting on September 7, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: N/ A 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N/A 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: Draft notice of public hearing 



NOTICE OF SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 
CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Wednesday, September 7, 2022, at 
6:00 p.m., the Union Gap City Council will have a special Council meeting. The 
purpose of the meeting is to hold a public hearing regarding the proposed 
Developer's Agreement submitted by Wide Hollow Development. 

The Council will also vote on a resolution authorizing the Wide Hollow 
Development, developer's agreement. 

DATED this 22nd day of August 2022. 

Karen Clifton, City Clerk 



Meeting Date: 

From: 

August 22, 2022 

John Hodkinson, LTAC Chair 

City Council 
Communication 

Topic/Issue: Ordinance - 2022 Budget Amendment - Lodging Tax Advisory Committee - Ag 
Museum and Yakima Valley Tourism 

SYNOPSIS: The Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) wishes to amend the 2022 LTAC and 
Tourism Promotion Assessment (TPA) funds to pay for advertising by Yakima Valley Tourism at the 
Valley Mall and an Education Program Coordinator for the Ag Museum. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt an ordinance approving a 2022 budget amendment as follows: 

Fund 
Tourism Promotion Fund (108) 

Lodging Tax Fund (107) 

Amount 
$25,000 

$15,000 

For 
Advertising at the Yakima Valley Info & 
Gifts kiosk in the Valley Mall 

For an Education Program Coordinator 
position at the Central WA Ag Museum 

LEGAL REVIEW: The City Attorney has reviewed this ordinance. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: There is $277,004 remaining in the Tourism Promotion Fund and $656,070 
in the Lodging Tax Fund. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N/A 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Ordinance 
2. Yakima Valley Info Center & Gift Shop Information 
3. Proposed Budget for the Ag Museum Education Program Coordinator 



CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 
ORDINANCE NO. ---

AN ORDINANCE amending the 2022 budget authorizing an expenditure of up 
to $40,000.00 from the Lodging Tax Fund, and Tourism Promotion Fund, for costs 
associated with advertising at the Yakima Valley Info & Gifts Kiosk in the Valley Mall, 
and a new Educational Program Coordinator position at the Central WA Ag Museum. 

WHEREAS, the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee (LTAC) wishes to spend up to 
$25,000 out of the Lodging Tax fund (107), to pay for advertising at the Yakima Valley 
Info & Gifts Kiosk in the Valley Mall; 

WHEREAS, LTAC also wishes to spend up to $15,000 from the Tourism 
Promotion fund (108), for costs associated with a new Educational Program Coordinator 
position at the Central WA Ag Museum; and 

WHEREAS, 2022 budget amendments are required to cover these expenditures. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNION 
GAP DO ORDAIN as follows: 

Section 1. The 2022 Budget is hereby amended to increase the Tourism Promotion Fund 
(108) by $25,000, for costs associated with advertising at the Yakima Valley Info & Gifts 
Kiosk in the Valley Mall, and to increase the Lodging Tax Fund (107) by $15,000, for costs 
associated with a new Educational Program Coordinator position at the Central WA Ag 
Museum. 

Section 2. Expenditures of up to $25,000 are approved, from the Tourism Promotion 
Fund (108), for costs associated with advertising at the Yakima Valley Info & Gifts Kiosk 
in the Valley Mall, and up to $15,000 from the Lodging Tax Fund (107), for costs 
associated with a new Educational Program Coordinator position at the Central WA Ag 
Museum. 

ORDAINED this 22nd day of August 2022. 

John Hodkinson, City Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Karen Clifton, City Clerk Bronson Brown, City Attorney 



Yakima Valley Info Center & Gift Shop 

Yakima Valley Tourism is working to increase visitor services on several fronts . We were approached 
by Valley Mall to convert their concierge kiosk and with them we developed the Yakima Valley Info 
Center & Gift Shop. We agreed that the focus would be Yakima Valley branded retail plus a clean, 
streamlined info center featuring travel guides, flat maps and very select pieces on the counters. 

For the first year, we have back up funding in the Yakima Valley Visitors and Convention Foundation 
account. To keep the display clean in appearance we have budgeted for one major community 
sponsor. Our lease would be one-year one commencing in August, with a six month out clause. 

Valley Mall sees some 5.2 million customer visits per year. Of the total customer count, the non
local customers residing more than 30 miles away makes up the majority of unique visitors . 

The minimum staffing level would be three days at five hours a day. Additional hours could be added 
during special events and holidays. During non-staffed times retail items would be put away but 
tourism & community information will always be available. 

Union Gap LTAC Sponsorship: $20,000 

Again , to avoid a cluttered look we are seeking one community sponsor at $20,000. As the mall is in 
Union Gap and there are many attractions nearby it's a great investment. Sponsorship includes: 

• A stunning 21" x 8-foot-tall Union Gap panel with images, QR code and website. 
• Exclusive counter display of stand up rack(s) with rotating flyers of significant events. 
• Union Gap brochures would be the only community brochures displayed . The other 

brochures would be the Yakima Valley Travel Guide, maps and other Yakima Valley Tourism 
branded pieces. Other visitor pieces would be behind the counter as needed. 







Valley Mall Shopper Traffic - Local and Non-Local 

Totaf Visits from Customers (Millions) Custo.mer Count (x1 ,000} 
• 2 0 19 • 1'.:11. t "I :(: M nnl h •, • .:w·E• • L;i,,. ·1 1 2 M otHh i. 

Shopper Lives > 30 or 75 Miles Away Shopper Livers > 30 or 75 Miles Away 

Percent of Cu s tomers That a r e Non-Loca l Vi s i t Contribution by Non-Local Customers 
• l':,t • ·. t1.• tni'f l11l" 1• i. ·,_H.i'n t l\v..-. 11 • {,. l kS.l •'• l~t-tr l · "-' '• ·- ·~.-! frl o'\VV."l'f • 1:. ... 1~lt:fl'C! l 1 1-1• ~ - .lihn1 t;.-.. ~·1 8 r_ u ,,. r 1..ttrt •·· , L • lo't.:'' -:r~r-. · /, ,. _ _ 4 1 

~·J r:1• -, 

_(1 (J' • 

..;on·-. 

~t) 0 ' 

(,,l (J •. 

20 1'9 L.ast 12 tnon,hs 

zt.\vALLEY MALL 



Proposed Budget 

Education Program Coordinator 

Computer and supplies 

Projection equipment for offsite demonstrations 

Total 

$10,000 

2,000 

3,000 

$15,000* 

*The actual amount to be spent will not exceed this total and will 
likely be less. Very brief research into the projection equipment 
shows costs from $500 to $25,000. If the best equipment costs 
more than $3,000, that will be included in the budget request for 

2023. 



Meeting Date: 

From: 

August 22, 2022 

Gregory Cobb, Chief of Police 

City Council 
Communication 

Topic I Issue: Resolution - Apple Developer Program License Agreement 

SYNOPSIS: At the June 13, 2022 Council meeting, the Council authorized the Police Department to 
purchase the Cordico Wellness application, which provides wellness resources to officers on demand. 
In order to use the Cordico application on the officer's Apple !phones, the City would need to sign an 
Apple Developer Program License Agreement. 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve a resolution, authorizing the Chief of Police to sign an Apple 
Developer Program License Agreement, in order to use the Cordico Wellness application on Apple 
!phones. 

LEGAL REVIEW: The resolution and agreement have been reviewed by the City Attorney. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: There is no additional cost. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Presented at the 8/15/22 Public Safety study session. 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution 
2. Apple Developer Program License Agreement 



CITY OF UNION GAP, WASHINGTON 
RESOLUTION NO. ---

A RESOLUTION authorizing the Chief of Police to sign an Apple Developer Program 
License Agreement, to allow employees to utilize the Cordico Wellness Application on their Apple 
I phones. 

WHEREAS, The Council authorized the purchase of Lexipol ' s Cordico Wellness 
Application at the June 13, 2022 Council meeting; and 

WHEREAS, In order to use the Cordico Wellness Application on their Apple !phones, the 
City needs to enter into an Apple Developer Program License Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE UNION GAP CITY COUNCIL 
as follows: 

The Council authorizes the Chief of Police to sign an Apple Developer Program License 
Agreement, to allow employees to utilize the Cordico Wellness Application on their Apple 
I phones. 

PASSED this 22nd day of August, 2022. 

John Hodkinson, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Karen Clifton, City Clerk Bronson Brown, City Attorney 



PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING APPLE DEVELOPER PROGRAM LICENSE AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS CAREFULLY BEFORE DOWNLOADING OR USING THE APPLE 
SOFTWARE OR APPLE SERVICES. THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONSTITUTE A 
LEGAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN YOU AND APPLE. 

Apple Developer Program License Agreement 

Purpose 
You would like to use the Apple Software (as defined below) to develop one or more Applications 
(as defined below) for Apple-branded products. Apple is willing to grant You a limited license to 
use the Apple Software and Services provided to You under this Program to develop and test 
Your Applications on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. 

Applications developed under this Agreement for iOS Products, Apple Watch, or Apple TV can be 
distributed in four ways: (1) through the App Store, if selected by Apple, (2) through the Custom 
App Distribution, if selected by Apple, (3) on a limited basis for use on Registered Devices (as 
defined below), and (4) for beta testing through TestFlight. Applications developed for macOS 
can be distributed: (a) through the App Store, if selected by Apple, (b) for beta testing through 
TestFlight, or (c) separately distributed under this Agreement. 

Applications that meet Apple's Documentation and Program Requirements may be submitted for 
consideration by Apple for distribution via the App Store, Custom App Distribution, or for beta 
testing through TestFlight. If submitted by You and selected by Apple, Your Applications will be 
digitally signed by Apple and distributed, as applicable. Distribution of free (no charge) 
Applications (including those that use the In-App Purchase API for the delivery of free content) via 
the App Store or Custom App Distribution will be subject to the distribution terms contained in 
Schedule 1 to this Agreement. If You would like to distribute Applications for which You will 
charge a fee or would like to use the In-App Purchase API for the delivery of fee-based content, 
You must enter into a separate agreement with Apple ("Schedule 2"). If You would like to 
distribute paid Applications via Custom App Distribution, You must enter into a separate 
agreement with Apple ("Schedule 3"). You may also create Passes (as defined below) for use on 
Apple-branded products running iOS or watchOS under this Agreement and distribute such 
Passes for use by Wallet. 

1. Accepting this Agreement; Definitions 
1.1 Acceptance 
In order to use the Apple Software and Services, You must first accept this Agreement. If You do 
not or cannot accept this Agreement, You are not permitted to use the Apple Software or 
Services. Do not download or use the Apple Software or Services in that case. You accept and 
agree to the terms of this Agreement on Your own behalf and/or on behalf of Your company, 
organization, educational institution, or agency, instrumentality, or department of the federal 
government as its authorized legal representative, by doing either of the following: 
(a) checking the box displayed at the end of this Agreement if You are reading this on an Apple 
website; or 
(b) clicking an "Agree" or similar button, where this option is provided by Apple. 

1.2 Definitions 
Whenever capitalized in this Agreement: 

"Ad Network APls" means the Documented APls that provide a way to validate the successful 
conversion of advertising campaigns on supported Apple-branded products using a combination 
of cryptographic signatures and a registration process with Apple. 

Program Agreement 
Page 1 



"Ad Support APls" means the Documented APls that provide the Advertising Identifier and 
Tracking Preference. 

"Advertising Identifier" means a unique, non-personal, non-permanent identifier provided 
through the Ad Support APls that are associated with a particular Apple-branded device and are 
to be used solely for advertising purposes, unless otherwise expressly approved by Apple in 
writing. 

"Agreement" means this Apple Developer Program License Agreement, including any 
attachments, Schedule 1 and any exhibits thereto which are hereby incorporated by this 
reference. For clarity, this Agreement supersedes the iOS Developer Program License 
Agreement (including any attachments, Schedule 1 and any exhibits thereto), the Safari 
Extensions Digital Signing Agreement, the Safari Extensions Gallery Submission Agreement, and 
the Mac Developer Program License Agreement. 

"App Store" means an electronic store and its storefronts branded, owned, and/or controlled by 
Apple, or an Apple Subsidiary or other affiliate of Apple, through which Licensed Applications may 
be acquired. 

"App Store Connect" means Apple's proprietary online content management tool for 
Applications. 

"Apple" means Apple Inc., a California corporation with its principal place of business at One 
Apple Park Way, Cupertino, California 95014, U.S.A. 

"Apple Certificates" means the Apple-issued digital certificates provided to You by Apple under 
the Program. 

"Apple Maps Server API" means the Documented APls that enable You to add server-to-server 
mapping features or functionality to Your Applications, websites, or web applications. 

"Apple Maps Service" means the mapping platform and Map Data provided by Apple via the 
MapKit API and/or Apple Maps Server API for use by You only in connection with Your 
Applications, or the mapping platform and Map Data provided by Apple via MapKit JS and related 
tools for capturing map content (e.g., MapSnapshotter) for use by You only in connection with 
Your Applications, websites, or web applications. 

"Apple Pay APls" means the Documented APls that enable end-users to send payment 
information they have stored on a supported Apple-branded product to an Application to be used 
in payment transactions made by or through the Application, and includes other payment-related 
functional ity as described in the Documentation. 

"Apple Pay Payload" means a customer data package passed through the Apple Software and 
Apple Pay APls as part of a payment transaction (e.g., name, email , billing address, shipping 
address, and device account number). 

"Apple Push Notification Service" or "APN" means the Apple Push Notification service that 
Apple may provide to You to enable You to transmit Push Notifications to Your Application or for 
use as otherwise permitted herein. 

"APN API" means the Documented API that enables You to use the APN to deliver a Push 
Notification to Your Application or for use as otherwise permitted herein. 

"Apple Services" or "Services" means the developer services that Apple may provide or make 
available through the Apple Software or as part of the Program for use with Your Covered 

Program Agreement 
Page 2 



Products or development, including any Updates thereto (if any) that may be provided to You by 
Apple under the Program. 

"Apple Software" means Apple SDKs, iOS, watchOS, tvOS, iPadOS, and/or macOS, the 
Provisioning Profiles, FPS SOK, FPS Deployment Package, and any other software that Apple 
provides to You under the Program, including any Updates thereto (if any) that may be provided 
to You by Apple under the Program. 

"Apple SDKs" means the Apple-proprietary Software Development Kits (SDKs) provided 
hereunder, including but not limited to header files, APls, libraries, simulators, and software 
(source code and object code) labeled as part of iOS, watchOS, tvOS, iPadOS, or Mac SOK and 
included in the Xcode Developer Tools package and Swift Playgrounds for purposes of targeting 
Apple-branded products running iOS, watchOS, tvOS, iPadOS, and/or macOS, respectively. 

"Apple Subsidiary" means a corporation at least fifty percent (50%) of whose outstanding shares 
or securities (representing the right to vote for the election of directors or other managing 
authority) are owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by Apple, and that is involved in the 
operation of or otherwise affiliated with the App Store, Custom App Distribution, TestFlight, and 
as otherwise referenced herein (e.g., Attachment 4). 

"Apple TV" means an Apple-branded product that runs the tvOS. 

"Apple Watch" means an Apple-branded product that runs the watchOS. 

"Apple Weather Data" means any content, data or information provided through the WeatherKit 
APls, including, but not limited to, Weather Alerts, general forecasts and other weather data. 

"Application" means one or more software programs (including extensions, media, and Libraries 
that are enclosed in a single software bundle) developed by You in compliance with the 
Documentation and the Program Requirements, for distribution under Your own trademark or 
brand, and for specific use with an Apple-branded product running iOS, iPadOS, watchOS, tvOS, 
or macOS, as applicable, including bug fixes, updates, upgrades, modifications, enhancements, 
supplements to, revisions, new releases and new versions of such software programs. 

"Authorized Developers" means Your employees and contractors, members of Your 
organization or, if You are an educational institution, Your faculty and staff who (a) each have an 
active and valid Apple Developer account with Apple, (b) have a demonstrable need to know or 
use the Apple Software in order to develop and test Covered Products, and (c) to the extent such 
individuals will have access to Apple Confidential Information, each have written and binding 
agreements with You to protect the unauthorized use and disclosure of such Apple Confidential 
Information. 

"Authorized Test Units" means Apple-branded hardware units owned or controlled by You that 
have been designated by You for Your own testing and development purposes under this 
Program, and if You permit, Apple-branded hardware units owned or controlled by Your 
Authorized Developers so long as such units are used for testing and development purposes on 
Your behalf and only as permitted hereunder. 

"BackgroundAssets Framework" means the Documented APls that provide Applications with 
the ability to perform download operations in the background before first launch of the Application 
by the user and at other times after the first launch. 

"Beta Testers" means end-users whom You have invited to sign up for TestFlight in order to test 
pre-release versions of Your Application and who have accepted the terms and conditions of the 
TestFlight Application. 

Program Agreement 
Page 3 



"ClassKit APls" means the Documented APls that enable You to send student progress data for 
use in a school-managed environment. 

"CloudKit APls" means the Documented APls that enable Your Applications, Web Software, 
and/or Your end-users (if You permit them) to read, write , query and/or retrieve structured data 
from public and/or private containers in iCloud. 

"Configuration Profile{s)" means an XML file that allows You to distribute configuration 
information (e.g ., VPN or Wi-Fi settings) and restrictions on device features (e.g ., disabling the 
camera) to compatible Apple-branded products through Apple Configurator or other similar Apple
branded software tools, email, a webpage, or over-the-air deployment, or via Mobile Device 
Management (MOM). For the sake of clarity, unless otherwise expressly permitted by Apple in 
writing, MOM is available only for enterprise use and is separately licensed for under the Apple 
Developer Enterprise Program License Agreement. 

"Corresponding Products" means web-based or other versions of Your software applications 
that have the same title and substantially equivalent features and functionality as Your Licensed 
Application (e.g., feature parity). 

"Covered Products" means Your Applications, Libraries, Passes, Safari Extensions, Safari Push 
Notifications, and/or FPS implementations developed under this Agreement. 

"Custom App Distribution" means the store or storefront functionality that enables users to 
obtain Licensed Applications through the use of Apple Business Manager, Apple School 
Manager, or as otherwise permitted by Apple. 

"DeviceCheck APls" means the set of APls, including server-side APls, that enable You to set 
and query two bits of data associated with a device and the date on which such bits were last 
updated. 

"DeviceCheck Data" means the data stored and returned through the DeviceCheck APls. 

"Documentation" means any technical or other specifications or documentation that Apple may 
provide to You for use in connection with the Apple Software, Apple Services, Apple Certificates, 
or otherwise as part of the Program. 

"Documented APl(s)" means the Application Programming lnterface(s) documented by Apple in 
published Apple Documentation and which are contained in the Apple Software. 

"Face Data" means information related to human faces (e.g. , face mesh data, facial map data, 
face modeling data, facial coordinates or facial landmark data, including data from an uploaded 
photo) that is obtained from a user's device and/or through the use of the Apple Software (e.g., 
through ARKit, the Camera APls, or the Photo APls) , or that is provided by a user in or through 
an Application (e.g., uploads for a facial analysis service). 

"FPS" or "FairPlay Streaming" means Apple's FairPlay Streaming Server key delivery 
mechanism as described in the FPS SOK. 

"FPS Deployment Package" means the D Function specification for commercial deployment of 
FPS, the D Function reference implementation, FPS sample code, and set of unique production 
keys specifically for use by You with an FPS implementation, if provided by Apple to You . 

"FPS SOK" means the FPS specification , FPS server reference implementation, FPS sample 
code , and FPS development keys, as provided by Apple to You. 

Program Agreement 
Page 4 



"FOSS" (Free and Open Source Software) means any software that is subject to terms that, as a 
condition of use, copying, modification or redistribution, require such software and/or derivative 
works thereof to be disclosed or distributed in source code form, to be licensed for the purpose of 
making derivative works, or to be redistributed free of charge, including without limitation software 
distributed under the GNU General Public License or GNU Lesser/Library GPL. 

"Game Center" means the gaming community service and related APls provided by Apple for 
use by You in connection with Your Applications that are associated with Your developer account. 

"HealthKit APls" means the Documented APls that enable reading, writing, queries and/or 
retrieval of an end-user's health and/or fitness information in Apple's Health application. 

"HomeKit Accessory Protocol" means the proprietary protocol licensed by Apple under the MFi 
Program that enables home accessories designed to work with the HomeKit APls (e.g., lights, 
locks) to communicate with compatible iOS Products, Apple Watch and other supported Apple
branded products. 

"HomeKit APls" means the Documented APls that enable reading, writing, queries and/or 
retrieval of an end-user's home configuration or home automation information from that end
user's designated area of Apple's HomeKit Database. 

"HomeKit Database" means Apple's repository for storing and managing information about an 
end-user's Licensed HomeKit Accessories and associated information. 

"iCloud" or "iCloud service" means the iCloud online service provided by Apple that includes 
remote online storage. 

"iCloud Storage APls" means the Documented APls that allow storage and/or retrieval of user
generated documents and other files, and allow storage and/or retrieval of key value data (e.g., a 
list of stocks in a finance App, settings for an App) for Applications and Web Software through the 
use of iCloud. 

"In-App Purchase API" means the Documented API that enables additional content, functionality 
or services to be delivered or made available for use within an Application with or without an 
additional fee. 

"Intermediary Party" means a party that: (a) passes an Apple Pay end-user's Apple Pay Payload 
to a Merchant for processing such end-user's payment transaction outside of an Application, or 
(b) develops and makes available an Application to enable Merchants to conduct Tap to Pay 
transactions. 

"iOS" means the iOS operating system software provided by Apple for use by You only in 
connection with Your Application development and testing, including any successor versions 
thereof. 

"iOS Product" means an Apple-branded product that runs iOS or iPadOS. 

"iPadOS" means the iPadOS operating system software provided by Apple for use by You only in 
connection with Your Application development and testing, including any successor versions 
thereof. 

"iPod Accessory Protocol" or "iAP" means Apple's proprietary protocol for communicating with 
supported Apple-branded products and which is licensed under the MFi Program. 

Program Agreement 
Page 5 



"Library" means a code module that cannot be installed or executed separately from an 
Application and that is developed by You in compliance with the Documentation and Program 
Requirements only for use with iOS Products, Apple Watch, or Apple TV. 

"Licensed Application" means an Application that (a) meets and complies with all of the 
Documentation and Program Requirements, and (b) has been selected and digitally signed by 
Apple for distribution, and includes any additional permitted functionality, content or services 
provided by You from within an Application using the In-App Purchase APL 

"Licensed Application Information" means screenshots, images, artwork, previews, icons 
and/or any other text, descriptions, representations or information relating to a Licensed 
Application that You provide to Apple for use in accordance with Schedule 1, or, if applicable, 
Schedule 2 or Schedule 3. 

"Licensed HomeKit Accessories" means hardware accessories licensed under the MFi 
Program that support the HomeKit Accessory Protocol. 

"Local Notification" means a message, including any content or data therein , that Your 
Application delivers to end-users at a pre-determined time or when Your Application is running in 
the background and another application is running in the foreground . 

"macOS" means the macOS operating system software provided by Apple for use by You, 
including any successor versions thereof. 

"Managed Apple ID" means the Apple ID created by an organization for an employee or student 
to use and managed by the organization's IT administrator. 

"Map Data" means any content, data or information provided through the Apple Maps Service 
including, but not limited to, imagery, terrain data, latitude and longitude coordinates, transit data, 
points of interest and traffic data. 

"MapKit API" means the Documented client-side API that enables You to add mapping features 
or functionality to Applications. 

"MapKit JS" means the JavaScript library that enables You to add mapping features or 
functionality to Your Applications, websites, or web applications. 

"Merchant" means a party who: (a) processes Apple Pay payment transactions , or (b) uses the 
TTP APls to accept payments, conduct transactions and access related services via Your 
Application, under their own name, trademark, or brand (e.g., their name shows up on the end
user's credit card statement). 

"MFi Accessory" means a non-Apple branded hardware device that interfaces, communicates, 
or otherwise interoperates with or controls an Apple-branded product using technology licensed 
under the MFi Program (e.g., the ability to control a supported Apple-branded product through the 
iPod Accessory Protocol). 

"MFi Licensee" means a party who has been granted a license by Apple under the MFi Program. 

"MFi Program" means a separate Apple program that offers developers, among other things, a 
license to incorporate or use certain Apple technology in or with hardware accessories or devices 
for purposes of interfacing, communicating or otherwise interoperating with or controlling select 
Apple-branded products. 

"Motion & Fitness APls" means the Documented APls that are controlled by the Motion & 
Fitness privacy setting in a compatible Apple-branded product and that enable access to motion 

Program Agreement 
Page 6 



and fitness sensor data (e.g., body motion, step count, stairs climbed), unless the end-user has 
disabled access to such data. 

"Multitasking" means the ability of Applications to run in the background while other Applications 
are also running. 

"MusicKit APls" means the set of APls that enable Apple Music users to access their 
subscription through Your Application or as otherwise permitted by Apple in the Documentation. 

"MusicKit Content" means music, video, and/or graphical content rendered through the MusicKit 
AP ls. 

"MusicKit JS" means the JavaScript library that enables Apple Music users to access their 
subscription through Your Applications, websites, or web applications. 

"Network Extension Framework" means the Documented APls that provide Applications with 
the ability to customize certain networking features of compatible Apple-branded products (e.g., 
customizing the authentication process for WiFi Hotspots, VPN features, and content filtering 
mechanisms). 

"Pass(es)" means one or more digital passes (e.g., movie tickets, coupons, loyalty reward 
vouchers, boarding passes, membership cards, etc.) developed by You under this Agreement, 
under Your own trademark or brand, and which are signed with Your Pass Type ID. 

"Pass Information" means the text, descriptions, representations or information relating to a 
Pass that You provide to or receive from Your end-users on or in connection with a Pass. 

"Pass Type ID" means the combination of an Apple Certificate and Push Application ID that is 
used by You to sign Your Passes and/or communicate with the APN. 

"Program" means the overall Apple development, testing, digital signing, and distribution 
program contemplated in this Agreement. 

"Payment Service Provider" means a provider that: (a) provides payment processing services 
involving the processing of TTP Data for Merchants, whether directly or indirectly, and (b) is set 
forth in the Documentation. 

"Program Requirements" mean the technical, human interface, design, product category, 
security, performance, and other criteria and requirements specified by Apple, including but not 
limited to the current set of requirements set forth in Section 3.3, as they may be modified from 
time to time by Apple in accordance with this Agreement. 

"Provisioning Profiles" means the files (including applicable entitlements or other identifiers) 
that are provided by Apple for use by You in connection with Your Application development and 
testing, and limited distribution of Your Applications for use on Registered Devices and/or on 
Authorized Test Units. 

"Push Application ID" means the unique identification number or other identifier that Apple 
assigns to an Application, Pass or Site in order to permit it to access and use the APN . 

"Push Notification" or "Safari Push Notification" means a notification, including any content or 
data therein, that You transmit to end-users for delivery in Your Application, Your Pass, and/or in 
the case of macOS, to the macOS desktop of users of Your Site who have opted in to receive 
such messages through Safari on macOS. 

Program Agreement 
Page 7 



"Registered Devices" means Apple-branded hardware units owned or controlled by You, or 
owned by individuals who are affiliated with You, where such Products have been specifically 
registered with Apple under this Program. 

"Roster API" means the Documented API that enables the sharing of student, teacher, and staff 
Roster Data from a school, if the school's IT administrator enables Your Application or 
Corresponding Products to receive that data. 

"Roster Data" means any user data or tokens obtained, collected through, relating to, or from the 
use of the Roster API, including any data that relates to an identified or identifiable individual or 
that is linked or linkable to them. 

"Safari Extensions" means one or more software extensions developed by You under this 
Agreement only for use with Safari in compliance with this Agreement. 

"Security Solution" means the proprietary Apple content protection system marketed as 
Fairplay, to be applied to Licensed Applications distributed on the App Store to administer Apple's 
standard usage rules for Licensed Applications, as such system and rules may be modified by 
Apple from time to time. 

"ShazamKit APls" means the Documented APls that enable You to add audio-based recognition 
features or functionality to Your Application and Corresponding Products. 

"ShazamKit Content" means metadata, music, and/or graphical content provided by Apple and 
rendered through the ShazamKit APls, including but not limited to MusicKit Content. 

"Sign In with Apple" means the Documented APls and JavaScript libraries that allow You to log 
users into Your Application (and Corresponding Products) with their Apple ID or anonymized 
credentials. 

"Sign in with Apple at Work & School" means the Documented APls and JavaScript libraries 
that allow You to log users into Your Application (and Corresponding Products) with their 
Managed Apple ID subject to the management of access by the user organization's IT 
administrator. 

"SiriKit" means the set of APls that allow Your Application to access or provide SiriKit domains, 
intents, shortcuts, donations, and other related functionality, as set forth in the Documentation. 

"Site" means a website provided by You under Your own name, trademark or brand. 

"Single Sign-on Specification" means the Documentation provided by Apple hereunder for the 
Single Sign-On API, as updated from time to time. 

"Tap to Pay Data" or "TTP Data" means a Merchant's customer's data package passed through 
the Apple Software and Tap to Pay APls as part of a transaction (e.g., primary account number, 
transaction amount, etc.). 

"Tap to Pay APls" or "TTP APls" means the Documented APls that enable Merchants to conduct 
transactions through the use of Your Application. 

"Term" means the period described in Section 11. 

"TestFlight" means Apple's beta testing service for pre-release Applications made available 
through Apple's TestFlight Application. 

Program Agreement 
Page 8 



"TestFlight Application" means Apple's application that enables the distribution of pre-release 
versions of Your Applications to a limited number of Your Authorized Developers and to a limited 
number of Beta Testers (as specified on the TestFlight developer website) through TestFlight. 

"Tracking Preference" means the Apple setting that enables an end-user to set an ad tracking 
preference. 

'TV App API" means the API documented in the TV App Specification that enables You to 
provide Apple with TV App Data. 

"TV App Data" means the data described in the TV App Specification to be provided to Apple 
through the TV App API. 

"TV App Features" means functionality accessible via the TV App and/or tvOS, iOS, iPadOS, 
and/or macOS devices, which functionality provides the user the ability to view customized 
information and recommendations regarding content and to access such content through the 
user's apps, and/or provides the user the ability to continue play of previously viewed content. 

"TV App Specification" means the Documentation provided by Apple hereunder for the TV App 
API, as updated from time to time. 

"tvOS" means the tvOS operating system software, including any successor versions thereof. 

"Updates" means bug fixes, updates, upgrades, modifications, enhancements, supplements, and 
new releases or versions of the Apple Software or Services, or to any part of the Apple Software 
or Services. 

"Wallet" means Apple's application that has the ability to store and display Passes for use on iOS 
Products, Apple Watch, or Safari on macOS. 

"WatchKit Extension" means an extension bundled as part of Your Application that accesses the 
WatchKit framework on iOS to run and display a WatchKit app on the watchOS. 

"watchOS" means the watchOS operating system software, including any successor versions 
thereof. 

"Weather Alerts" means any weather warnings, or other alerts provided via the WeatherKit APls 
from time to time by meteorological agencies describing specific weather conditions in a 
geographic location. 

"WeatherKit APls" means the Documented APls that enable You to add weather features or 
functionality to Your Applications or Corresponding Products. 

"Web Software" means web-based versions of Your software applications that have the same 
title and substantially equivalent features and functionality as Your Licensed Application (e.g., 
feature parity). 

"Website Push ID" means the combination of an Apple Certificate and Push Application ID that is 
used by You to sign Your Site's registration bundle and/or communicate with the APN. 

"Xcode Cloud" or "Xcode Cloud Service" means Apple's cloud hosted continuous integration 
and delivery service and related technologies. 

"Xcode Cloud Content" means the software, tests, scripts, data, information, text, graphics, 
videos, or other content that You post or make available when accessing or using the Xcode 

Program Agreement 
Page 9 



Cloud Service (including any software residing in source code repositories to which You provide 
log-in credentials), excluding any Apple materials licensed to You. 

"You" and "Your" means and refers to the person(s) or legal entity (whether the company, 
organization, educational institution, or governmental agency, instrumentality, or department) that 
has accepted this Agreement under its own developer account and that is using the Apple 
Software or otherwise exercising rights under this Agreement. 

Note: For the sake of clarity, You may authorize contractors to develop Applications on Your 
behalf, but any such Applications must be owned by You, submitted under Your own developer 
account, and distributed as Applications only as expressly permitted herein. You are responsible 
to Apple for Your contractors' activities under Your account (e.g., adding them to Your team to 
perform development work for You) and their compliance with this Agreement. Any actions 
undertaken by Your contractors arising out of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been 
taken by You, and You (in addition to Your contractors) shall be responsible to Apple for all such 
actions. 

2. Internal Use License and Restrictions 
2.1 Permitted Uses and Restrictions; Program services 
Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Apple hereby grants You during the Term, 
a limited, non-exclusive, personal, revocable, non-sublicensable and non-transferable license to: 

(a) Install a reasonable number of copies of the Apple Software provided to You under the 
Program on Apple-branded products owned or controlled by You, to be used internally by You or 
Your Authorized Developers for the sole purpose of developing or testing Covered Products 
designed to operate on the applicable Apple-branded products, except as otherwise expressly 
permitted in this Agreement; 
(b) Make and distribute a reasonable number of copies of the Documentation to Authorized 
Developers for their internal use only and for the sole purpose of developing or testing Covered 
Products, except as otherwise expressly permitted in this Agreement; 
(c) Install a Provisioning Profile on each of Your Authorized Test Units, up to the number of 
Authorized Test Units that You have registered and acquired licenses for, to be used internally by 
You or Your Authorized Developers for the sole purpose of developing and testing Your 
Applications, except as otherwise expressly permitted in this Agreement; 
(d) Install a Provisioning Profile on each of Your Registered Devices, up to the limited number of 
Registered Devices that You have registered and acquired licenses for, for the sole purpose of 
enabling the distribution and use of Your Applications on such Registered Devices; and 
(e) Incorporate the Apple Certificates issued to You pursuant to this Agreement for purposes of 
digitally signing Your Applications, Passes, Safari Extensions, Safari Push Notifications, and as 
otherwise expressly permitted by this Agreement. 

Apple reserves the right to set the limited number of Apple-branded products that each Licensee 
may register with Apple and obtain licenses for under this Program (a "Block of Registered 
Device Licenses"). For the purposes of limited distribution on Registered Devices under 
Section 7.3 (Ad Hoc distribution), each company, organization, educational institution or 
affiliated group may only acquire one (1) Block of Registered Device Licenses per company, 
organization, educational institution or group, unless otherwise agreed in writing by Apple. You 
agree not to knowingly acquire, or to cause others to acquire, more than one Block of Registered 
Device Licenses for the same company, organization, educational institution or group. 

Apple may provide access to services by or through the Program for You to use with Your 
developer account (e.g., device or app provisioning, managing teams or other account 
resources). You agree to access such services only through the Program web portal (which is 
accessed through Apple's developer website) or through Apple-branded products that are 
designed to work in conjunction with the Program (e.g., Xcode, App Store Connect, Swift 

Program Agreement 
Page 10 



Playgrounds) and only as authorized by Apple. If You (or Your Authorized Developers) access 
Your developer account through these other Apple-branded products, You acknowledge and 
agree that this Agreement shall continue to apply to any use of Your developer account and to 
any features or functionality of the Program that are made available to You (or Your Authorized 
Developers) in this manner (e.g., Apple Certificates and Provisioning Profiles can be used only in 
the limited manner permitted herein, etc.). You agree not to create or attempt to create a 
substitute or similar service through use of or access to the services provided by or through the 
Program. If Apple provides power and performance metrics for Your Application, You agree that 
such metrics may be used solely for Your own internal use and may not be provided to any third 
party (except as set forth in Section 2.9). Further, You may only access such services using the 
Apple ID associated with Your developer account or authentication credentials (e.g., keys, 
tokens, password) associated with Your developer account, and You are fully responsible for 
safeguarding Your Apple ID and authentication credentials from compromise and for using them 
only as authorized by Apple and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, including but not 
limited to Section 2.8 and 5. Except as otherwise expressly permitted herein, You agree not to 
share, sell, resell, rent, lease, lend, or otherwise provide access to Your developer account or any 
services provided therewith, in whole or in part, to anyone who is not an Authorized Developer on 
Your team, and You agree not to solicit or request Apple Developer Program members to provide 
You with their Apple IDs, authentication credentials, and/or related account information and 
materials (e.g., Apple Certificates used for distribution or submission to the App Store or 
TestFlight). You understand that each team member must have their own Apple ID or 
authentication credentials to access Your account, and You shall be fully responsible for all 
activity performed through or in connection with Your account. To the extent that You own or 
control an Apple-branded computer running Apple's macOS Server or Xcode Server ("Server") 
and would like to use it for Your own development purposes in connection with the Program, You 
agree to use Your own Apple ID or other authentication credentials for such Server, and You shall 
be responsible for all actions performed by such Server. 

2.2 Authorized Test Units and Pre-Release Apple Software 
As long as an Authorized Test Unit contains any pre-release versions of the Apple Software or 
uses pre-release versions of Services, You agree to restrict access to such Authorized Test Unit 
to Your Authorized Developers and to not disclose, show, rent, lease, lend, sell or otherwise 
transfer such Authorized Test Unit to any third party. You further agree to take reasonable 
precautions to safeguard , and to instruct Your Authorized Developers to safeguard, all Authorized 
Test Units from loss or theft. Further, subject to the terms of this Agreement, You may deploy 
Your Applications to Your Authorized Developers for use on a limited number of Authorized Test 
Units for Your own internal testing and development purposes. 

You acknowledge that by installing any pre-release Apple Software or using any pre
release Services on Your Authorized Test Units, these Units may be "locked" into testing 
mode and may not be capable of being restored to their original condition. Any use of any 
pre-release Apple Software or pre-release Services are for evaluation and development purposes 
only, and You should not use any pre-release Apple Software or pre-release Services in a 
commercial operating environment or with important data. You should back up any data prior to 
using the pre-release Apple Software or pre-release Services. Apple shall not be responsible for 
any costs, expenses or other liabilities You may incur as a result of provisioning Your Authorized 
Test Units and Registered Devices, Your Covered Product development or the installation or use 
of this Apple Software or any pre-release Apple Services, including but not limited to any damage 
to any equipment, or any damage, loss, or corruption of any software, information or data. 

2.3 Confidential Nature of Pre-Release Apple Software and Services 
From time to time during the Term, Apple may provide You with pre-release versions of the Apple 
Software or Services that constitute Apple Confidential Information and are subject to the 
confidentiality obligations of this Agreement, except as otherwise set forth herein. Such pre
release Apple Software and Services should not be relied upon to perform in the same manner as 
a final-release, commercial-grade product, nor used with data that is not sufficiently and regularly 

Program Agreement 
Page 11 



backed up, and may include features, functionality or APls for software or services that are not 
yet available. You acknowledge that Apple may not have publicly announced the availability of 
such pre-release Apple Software or Services, that Apple has not promised or guaranteed to You 
that such pre-release software or services will be announced or made available to anyone in the 
future, and that Apple has no express or implied obligation to You to announce or commercially 
introduce such software or services or any similar or compatible technology. You expressly 
acknowledge and agree that any research or development that You perform with respect to pre
release versions of the Apple Software or Services is done entirely at Your own risk. 

2.4 Copies 
You agree to retain and reproduce in full the Apple copyright, disclaimers and other proprietary 
notices (as they appear in the Apple Software and Documentation provided) in all copies of the 
Apple Software and Documentation that You are permitted to make under this Agreement. 

2.5 Ownership 
Apple retains all rights , title, and interest in and to the Apple Software, Services, and any Updates 
it may make available to You under this Agreement. You agree to cooperate with Apple to 
maintain Apple's ownership of the Apple Software and Services, and, to the extent that You 
become aware of any claims relating to the Apple Software or Services, You agree to use 
reasonable efforts to promptly provide notice of any such claims to Apple. The parties 
acknowledge that this Agreement does not give Apple any ownership interest in Your Covered 
Products. 

2.6 No Other Permitted Uses 
Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, You agree not to rent, lease, lend, upload to or 
host on any website or server, sell , redistribute, or sublicense the Apple Software, Apple 
Certificates, or any Services, in whole or in part, or to enable others to do so. You may not use 
the Apple Software, Apple Certificates, or any Services provided hereunder for any purpose not 
expressly permitted by this Agreement, including any applicable Attachments and Schedules. 
You agree not to install, use or run the Apple SDKs on any non-Apple-branded computer, and not 
to install , use or run iOS, watchOS, tvOS, iPadOS, macOS and Provisioning Profiles on or in 
connection with devices other than Apple-branded products, or to enable others to do so. You 
may not and You agree not to, or to enable others to, copy (except as expressly permitted under 
this Agreement), decompile, reverse engineer, disassemble, attempt to derive the source code of, 
modify, decrypt, or create derivative works of the Apple Software, Apple Certificates or any 
Services provided by the Apple Software or otherwise provided hereunder, or any part thereof 
(except as and only to the extent any foregoing restriction is prohibited by applicable law or to the 
extent as may be permitted by licensing terms governing use of open-sourced components or 
sample code included with the Apple Software). You agree not to exploit any Apple Software, 
Apple Certificates, or Services provided hereunder in any unauthorized way whatsoever, 
including but not limited to, by trespass or burdening network capacity, or by harvesting or 
misusing data provided by such Apple Software, Apple Certificates, or Services. Any attempt to 
do so is a violation of the rights of Apple and its licensors of the Apple Software or Services. If 
You breach any of the foregoing restrictions, You may be subject to prosecution and damages. 
All licenses not expressly granted in this Agreement are reserved and no other licenses, immunity 
or rights, express or implied are granted by Apple, by implication, estoppel, or otherwise. This 
Agreement does not grant You any rights to use any trademarks, logos or service marks 
belonging to Apple, including but not limited to the iPhone or iPod word marks. If You make 
reference to any Apple products or technology or use Apple's trademarks, You agree to comply 
with the published guidelines at https://www.apple.com/legal/intellectual
property/guidelinesfor3rdparties.html, as they may be modified by Apple from time to time. 

2. 7 FPS SOK and FPS Deployment Package 
You may use the FPS SOK to develop and test a server-side implementation of FPS, solely for 
use with video streamed by You (or on Your behalf) through Your Applications, or video 
downloaded for viewing through Your Applications, on iOS Products and/or Apple TV, through 

Program Agreement 
Page 12 



Safari on macOS, or as otherwise approved by Apple in writing (collectively, "Authorized FPS 
Applications"). You understand that You will need to request the FPS Deployment Package on 
the Program web portal prior to any production or commercial use of FPS. As part of such 
request, You will need to submit information about Your requested use of FPS. Apple will review 
Your request and reserves the right to not provide You with the FPS Deployment Package at its 
sole discretion, in which case You will not be able to deploy FPS. Any development and testing 
You perform with the FPS SOK is at Your own risk and expense, and Apple will not be liable to 
You for such use or for declining Your request to use FPS in a production or commercial 
environment. 

If Apple provides You with the FPS Deployment Package, You agree to use it solely as approved 
by Apple and only in connection with video content streamed by You (or on Your behalf) to 
Authorized FPS Applications or downloaded for viewing through Your Authorized FPS 
Applications. Except as permitted in Section 2.9 (Third-Party Service Providers) , You will not 
provide the FPS Deployment Package to any third party or sublicense, sell, resell, lease, 
disclose, or re-distribute the FPS Deployment Package or FPS SOK to any third party (or any 
implementation thereof) without Apple's prior written consent. 

You acknowledge and agree that the FPS Deployment Package (including the set of FPS 
production keys) is Apple Confidential Information as set forth in Section 9 (Confidentiality). 
Further, such FPS keys are unique to Your company or organization, and You are solely 
responsible for storing and protecting them. You may use such FPS keys solely for the purpose 
of delivering and protecting Your content key that is used to decrypt video content streamed by 
You to Authorized FPS Applications or downloaded for viewing through Your Authorized FPS 
Applications. Apple will have no liability or responsibility for unauthorized access to or use of any 
FPS key or any content streamed or otherwise delivered under this Agreement in connection with 
FPS. In the event that Your FPS key is disclosed, discovered, misappropriated or lost, You may 
request that Apple revoke it by emailing product-security@apple.com, and You understand that 
Apple will have no obligation to provide a replacement key. Apple reserves the right to revoke 
Your FPS key at any time if requested by You, in the event of a breach of this Agreement by You, 
if otherwise deemed prudent or reasonable by Apple, or upon expiration or termination of this 
Agreement for any reason. 

You acknowledge and agree that Apple reserves the right to revoke or otherwise remove Your 
access to and use of FPS (or any part thereof) at any time in its sole discretion. Further, Apple 
will have no obligation to provide any modified, updated or successor version of the FPS 
Deployment Package or the FPS SOK to You and will have no obligation to maintain compatibility 
with any prior version . If Apple makes new versions of the FPS Deployment Package or FPS 
SOK available to You, then You agree to update to them within a reasonable time period if 
requested to do so by Apple. 

2.8 Use of Apple Services 
Apple may provide access to Apple Services that Your Covered Products may call through APls 
in the Apple Software and/or that Apple makes available to You through other mechanisms, e.g., 
through the use of keys that Apple may make accessible to You under the Program. You agree 
to access such Apple Services only through the mechanisms provided by Apple for such access 
and only for use on Apple-branded products. Except as permitted in Section 2.9 (Third-Party 
Service Providers) or as otherwise set forth herein, You agree not to share access to 
mechanisms provided to You by Apple for the use of the Services with any third party. Further, 
You agree not to create or attempt to create a substitute or similar service through use of or 
access to the Apple Services. 

You agree to access and use such Services only as necessary for providing services and 
functionality for Your Covered Products that are eligible to use such Services and only as 
permitted by Apple in writing, including in the Documentation. You may not use the Apple 
Services in any manner that is inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement or that infringes any 

Program Agreement 
Page 13 



intellectual property rights of a third party or Apple, or that violates any applicable laws or 
regulations . You agree that the Apple Services contain proprietary content, information and 
material owned by Apple and its licensors, and protected by applicable intellectual property and 
other laws. You may not use such proprietary content, information or materials in any way 
whatsoever, except for the permitted uses of the Apple Services under this Agreement, or as 
otherwise agreed by Apple in writing. 

You understand there may be storage capacity, transmission , and/or transactional limits for the 
Apple Services both for You as a developer and for Your end-users. If You reach or Your end
user reaches such limits, then You or Your end-user may be unable to use the Apple Services or 
may be unable to access or retrieve data from such Services through Your Covered Products or 
through the applicable end-user accounts. You agree not to charge any fees to end-users solely 
for access to or use of the Apple Services through Your Covered Products or for any content, 
data or information provided therein, and You agree not to sell access to the Apple Services in 
any way. You agree not to fraudulently create any end-user accounts or induce any end-user to 
violate the terms of their applicable end-user terms or service agreement with Apple or to violate 
any Apple usage policies for such end-user services. Except as expressly set forth herein , You 
agree not to interfere with an end-user's ability to access or use any such services. 

Apple reserves the right to change, suspend, deprecate, deny, limit, or disable access to the 
Apple Services, or any part thereof, at any time without notice (including but not limited to 
revoking entitlements or changing any APls in the Apple Software that enable access to the 
Services or not providing You with an entitlement). In no event will Apple be liable for the 
removal of or disabling of access to any of the foregoing. Apple may also impose limits and 
restrictions on the use of or access to the Apple Services, may remove the Apple Services for 
indefinite time periods, may revoke Your access to the Apple Services, or may cancel the Apple 
Services (or any part thereof) at any time without notice or liability to You and in its sole 
discretion. 

Apple does not guarantee the availability, accuracy, completeness, reliability, or timeliness of any 
data or information displayed by any Apple Services. To the extent You choose to use the Apple 
Services with Your Covered Products, You are responsible for Your reliance on any such data or 
information. You are responsible for Your use of the Apple Software and Apple Services, and if 
You use such Services, then it is Your responsibility to maintain appropriate alternate backup of 
all Your content, information and data, including but not limited to any content that You may 
provide to Apple for hosting as part of Your use of the Services. You understand and agree that 
You may not be able to access certain Apple Services upon expiration or termination of this 
Agreement and that Apple reserves the right to suspend access to or delete content, data or 
information that You or Your Covered Product have stored through Your use of such Services 
provided hereunder. You should review the Documentation and policy notices posted by Apple 
prior to using any Apple Services. 

Apple Services may not be available in all languages or in all countries or regions, and Apple 
makes no representation that any such Services would be appropriate, accurate or available for 
use in any particular location or product. To the extent You choose to use the Apple Services 
with Your Applications, You do so at Your own initiative and are responsible for compliance with 
any applicable laws. Apple reserves the right to charge fees for Your use of the Apple Services. 
Apple will inform You of any Apple Service fees or fee changes by email and information about 
such fees will be posted in the Program web portal, App Store Connect, or the CloudKit console. 
Apple Service availability and pricing are subject to change. Further, Apple Services may not be 
made available for all Covered Products and may not be made available to all developers. Apple 
reserves the right to not provide (or to cease providing) the Apple Services to any or all 
developers at any time in its sole discretion. 

2.9 Third-Party Service Providers 

Program Agreement 
Page 14 



Unless otherwise prohibited by Apple in the Documentation or this Agreement, You are permitted 
to employ or retain a third party ("Service Provider") to assist You in using the Apple Software 
and Services provided pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, engaging any 
such Service Provider to maintain and administer Your Applications' servers on Your behalf, 
provided that any such Service Provider's use of the Apple Software and Services or any 
materials associated therewith is done solely on Your behalf and only in accordance with these 
terms. Notwithstanding the foregoing, You may not use a Service Provider to submit an 
Application to the App Store or use TestFlight on Your behalf. You agree to have a binding 
written agreement with Your Service Provider with terms at least as restrictive and protective of 
Apple as those set forth herein. Any actions undertaken by any such Service Provider in relation 
to Your Applications or use of the Apple Software or Apple Services and/or arising out of this 
Agreement shall be deemed to have been taken by You, and You (in addition to the Service 
Provider) shall be responsible to Apple for all such actions (or any inactions). In the event of any 
actions or inactions by the Service Provider that would constitute a violation of this Agreement or 
otherwise cause any harm, Apple reserves the right to require You to cease using such Service 
Provider. 

2.1 O Updates; No Support or Maintenance 
Apple may extend, enhance, or otherwise modify the Apple Software or Services (or any part 
thereof) provided hereunder at any time without notice, but Apple shall not be obligated to provide 
You with any Updates to the Apple Software or Services. If Updates are made available by 
Apple, the terms of this Agreement will govern such Updates, unless the Update is accompanied 
by a separate license in which case the terms of that license will govern. You understand that 
such modifications may require You to change or update Your Covered Products. Further, You 
acknowledge and agree that such modifications may affect Your ability to use, access, or interact 
with the Apple Software and Services. Apple is not obligated to provide any maintenance, 
technical or other support for the Apple Software or Services. You acknowledge that Apple has 
no express or implied obligation to announce or make available any Updates to the Apple 
Software or to any Services to anyone in the future. Should an Update be made available, it may 
have APls, features, services or functionality that are different from those found in the Apple 
Software licensed hereunder or the Services provided hereunder. 

3. Your Obligations 
3.1 General 
You certify to Apple and agree that: 
(a) You are of the legal age of majority in the jurisdiction in which You reside (at least 18 years of 
age in many countries or regions) and have the right and authority to enter into this Agreement on 
Your own behalf, or if You are entering into this Agreement on behalf of Your company, 
organization, educational institution, or agency, instrumentality, or department of the federal 
government, that You have the right and authority to legally bind such entity or organization to the 
terms and obligations of this Agreement; 
(b) All information provided by You to Apple or Your end-users in connection with this Agreement 
or Your Covered Products, including without limitation Licensed Application Information or Pass 
Information, will be current, true, accurate, supportable and complete and, with regard to 
information You provide to Apple, You will promptly notify Apple of any changes to such 
information. Further, You agree that Apple may share such information (including email address 
and mailing address) with third parties who have a need to know for purposes related thereto 
(e.g., intellectual property questions, customer service inquiries, etc.); 
(c) You will comply with the terms of and fulfill Your obligations under this Agreement, including 
obtaining any required consents for Your Authorized Developers' use of the Apple Software and 
Services, and You agree to monitor and be fully responsible for all such use by Your Authorized 
Developers and their compliance with the terms of this Agreement; 
(d) You will be solely responsible for all costs, expenses, losses and liabilities incurred, and 
activities undertaken by You and Your Authorized Developers in connection with the Apple 
Software and Apple Services, the Authorized Test Units, Registered Devices, Your Covered 

Program Agreement 
Page 15 



Products and Your related development and distribution efforts, including, but not limited to, any 
related development efforts, network and server equipment, Internet service(s), or any other 
hardware, software or services used by You in connection with Your use of any services; 
(e) For the purposes of Schedule 1 (if applicable), You represent and warrant that You own or 
control the necessary rights in order to appoint Apple and Apple Subsidiaries as Your worldwide 
agent for the delivery of Your Licensed Applications, and that the fulfillment of such appointment 
by Apple and Apple Subsidiaries shall not violate or infringe the rights of any third party; and 
(f) You will not act in any manner which conflicts or interferes with any existing commitment or 
obligation You may have and no agreement previously entered into by You will interfere with Your 
performance of Your obligations under this Agreement. 

3.2 Use of the Apple Software and Apple Services 
As a condition to using the Apple Software and any Apple Services, You agree that: 
(a) You will use the Apple Software and any services only for the purposes and in the manner 
expressly permitted by this Agreement and in accordance with all applicable laws and 
regulations; 
(b) You will not use the Apple Software or any Apple Services: (1) for any unlawful or illegal 
activity, nor to develop any Covered Product, which would commit or facilitate the commission of 
a crime, or other tortious, unlawful or illegal act; (2) to threaten, incite, or promote violence, 
terrorism, or other serious harm; or (3) to create or distribute any content or activity that promotes 
child sexual exploitation or abuse; 
(c) Your Application, Library and/or Pass will be developed in compliance with the Documentation 
and the Program Requirements, the current set of which is set forth in Section 3.3 below; 
(d) To the best of Your knowledge and belief, Your Covered Products, Licensed Application 
Information, Xcode Cloud Content, and Pass Information do not and will not violate, 
misappropriate, or infringe any Apple or third party copyrights, trademarks, rights of privacy and 
publicity, trade secrets, patents, or other proprietary or legal rights (e.g., musical composition or 
performance rights, video rights, photography or image rights, logo rights, third party data rights, 
etc. for content and materials that may be included in Your Application); 
(e) You will not, through use of the Apple Software, Apple Certificates, Apple Services or 
otherwise, create any Covered Product or other code or program that would: (1) disable, hack or 
otherwise interfere with the Security Solution , or any security, digital signing, digital rights 
management, verification or authentication mechanisms implemented in or by iOS, watchOS, 
iPadOS, tvOS, the Apple Software, or any Services, or other Apple software or technology, or 
enable others to do so (except to the extent expressly permitted by Apple in writing); or (2) violate 
the security, integrity, or availability of any user, network, computer or communications system; 
(f) You will not, directly or indirectly, commit any act intended to interfere with any of the Apple 
Software or Services, the intent of this Agreement, or Apple's business practices including, but 
not limited to, taking actions that may hinder the performance or intended use of the App Store, 
Custom App Distribution, TestFlight, Xcode Cloud, Ad Hoc distribution, or the Program (e.g., 
submitting fraudulent reviews of Your own Application or any third party application, choosing a 
name for Your Application that is substantially similar to the name of a third party application in 
order to create consumer confusion, or squatting on application names to prevent legitimate third 
party use). Further, You will not engage, or encourage others to engage, in any unlawful, unfair, 
misleading, fraudulent, improper, or dishonest acts or business practices relating to Your Covered 
Products (e.g., engaging in bait-and-switch pricing, consumer misrepresentation, deceptive 
business practices, or unfair competition against other developers); and 
(g) Applications for iOS Products, Apple Watch, or Apple TV developed using the Apple Software 
may be distributed only if selected by Apple (in its sole discretion) for distribution via the App 
Store, Custom App Distribution, for beta distribution through TestFlight, or through Ad Hoc 
distribution as contemplated in this Agreement. Passes developed using the Apple Software may 
be distributed to Your end-users via email, a website or an Application in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement, including Attachment 5. Safari Extensions signed with an Apple 
Certificate may be distributed to Your end-users in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
including Attachment 7. Applications for macOS may be distributed outside of the App Store 
using Apple Certificates and/or tickets as set forth in Section 5.3 and 5.4. 

Program Agreement 
Page 16 



3.3 Program Requirements 
Any Application that will be submitted to the App Store, Custom App Distribution, or TestFlight, or 
that will be distributed through Ad Hoc distribution, must be developed in compliance with the 
Documentation and the Program Requirements , the current set of which is set forth below in this 
Section 3.3. Corresponding Products, Libraries, and Passes are subject to the same criteria: 

APls and Functionality: 

3.3.1 Applications may only use Documented APls in the manner prescribed by Apple and 
must not use or call any private APls. Further, macOS Applications submitted to Apple for 
distribution on the App Store may use only Documented APls included in the default installation 
of macOS, as bundled with Xcode and the Mac SOK, or as bundled with Swift Playgrounds; 
deprecated technologies (such as Java) may not be used. 

3.3.2 Except as set forth in the next paragraph, an Application may not download or install 
executable code. Interpreted code may be downloaded to an Application but only so long as 
such code: (a) does not change the primary purpose of the Application by providing features or 
functionality that are inconsistent with the intended and advertised purpose of the Application as 
submitted to the App Store, (b) does not create a store or storefront for other code or 
applications, and (c) does not bypass signing, sandbox, or other security features of the OS. 

An Application that is a programming environment intended for use in learning how to program 
may download and run executable code so long as the following requirements are met: (i) no 
more than 80 percent of the Application's viewing area or screen may be taken over with 
executable code, except as otherwise permitted in the Documentation, (ii) the Application must 
present a reasonably conspicuous indicator to the user within the Application to indicate that the 
user is in a programming environment, (iii) the Application must not create a store or storefront for 
other code or applications, and (iv) the source code provided by the Application must be 
completely viewable and editable by the user (e.g., no pre-compiled libraries or frameworks may 
be included with the code downloaded). 

3.3.3 Without Apple's prior written approval or as permitted under Section 3.3.25 (In-App 
Purchase API), an Application may not provide, unlock or enable additional features or 
functionality through distribution mechanisms other than the App Store, Custom App Distribution 
or TestFlight. 

3.3.4 An Application for iOS, watchOS, iPadOS, or tvOS may only read data from or write data 
to an Application's designated container area on the device, except as otherwise specified by 
Apple. For macOS Applications submitted to Apple for distribution on the App Store: (a) all files 
necessary for the Application to execute on macOS must be in the Application bundle submitted 
to Apple and must be installed by the App Store; (b) all localizations must be in the same 
Application bundle and may not include a suite or collection of independent applications within a 
single Application bundle; (c) native user interface elements or behaviors of macOS (e.g., the 
system menu, window sizes, colors, etc.) may not be altered, modified or otherwise changed; (d) 
You may not use any digital rights management or other copy or access control mechanisms in 
such Applications without Apple's written permission or as specified in the Documentation; and 
(e) except as otherwise permitted by Section 3.3.25 (In-App Purchase API), such Applications 
may not function as a distribution mechanism for software and may not include features or 
functionality that create or enable a software store, distribution channel or other mechanism for 
software delivery within such Applications (e.g ., an audio application may not include an audio 
filter plug-in store within the Application). 

3.3.5 An Application for an iOS Product must have at least the same features and functionality 
when run by a user in compatibility mode on an iPad (e.g., an iPhone app running in an 
equivalent iPhone-size window on an iPad must perform in substantially the same manner as 

Program Agreement 
Page 17 



when run on the iPhone; provided that this obligation will not apply to any feature or functionality 
that is not supported by a particular hardware device, such as a video recording feature on a 
device that does not have a camera). Further, You agree not to interfere or attempt to interfere 
with the operation of Your Application in compatibility mode. 

J.J.6 You may use the Multitasking services only for their intended purposes as described in 
the Documentation. 

User Interface, Data Collection, Local Laws and Privacy: 

J.J. 7 Applications must comply with the Human Interface Guidelines (HIG) and other 
Documentation provided by Apple. You agree to follow the HIG to develop an appropriate user 
interface and functionality for Your Application that is compatible with the design of Apple
branded products (e.g., a watch App should have a user interface designed for quick interactions 
in accordance with the HIG's watchOS design themes). 

J.J.8 If Your Application captures or makes any video, microphone, screen recordings, or 
camera recordings, whether saved on the device or sent to a server (e.g., an image, photo, voice 
or speech capture, or other recording) (collectively "Recordings"), a reasonably conspicuous 
audio, visual or other indicator must be displayed to the user as part of the Application to indicate 
that a Recording is taking place. 

- In addition, any form of data, content or information collection, processing, maintenance, 
uploading, syncing, storage, transmission, sharing, disclosure or use performed by, through or in 
connection with Your Application must comply with all applicable privacy laws and regulations as 
well as any related Program Requirements, including but not limited to any notice or consent 
requirements. 

J.J.9 You and Your Applications (and any third party with whom You have contracted to serve 
advertising) may not collect user or device data without prior user consent, whether such data is 
obtained directly from the user or through the use of the Apple Software, Apple Services, or Apple 
SDKs, and then only to provide a service or function that is directly relevant to the use of the 
Application, or to serve advertising in accordance with Sections J.J.12. You may not broaden or 
otherwise change the scope of usage for previously collected user or device data without 
obtaining prior user consent for such expanded or otherwise changed data collection. Further, 
neither You nor Your Application will use any permanent, device-based identifier, or any data 
derived therefrom, for purposes of uniquely identifying a device. 

J.J.10 You must provide clear and complete information to users regarding Your collection, use 
and disclosure of user or device data, e.g., a description of Your use of user and device data in 
the App Description on the App Store. Furthermore, You must take appropriate steps to protect 
such data from unauthorized use, disclosure or access by third parties. If a user ceases to 
consent or affirmatively revokes consent for Your collection, use or disclosure of such user's 
device or user data, You (and any third party with whom You have contracted to serve 
advertising) must promptly cease all such use. You must provide a privacy policy in Your 
Application, on the App Store, and/or on Your website explaining Your collection, use, disclosure, 
sharing, retention, and deletion of user or device data. You agree to notify Your users, in 
accordance with applicable law, in the event of a data breach in which user data collected from 
Your Application is compromised (e.g., You will send an email notifying Your users if there has 
been an unintentional disclosure or misuse of their user data). 

J.J.11 Applications must comply with all applicable criminal, civil and statutory laws and 
regulations, including those in any jurisdictions in which Your Applications may be offered or 
made available. In addition: 

Program Agreement 
Page 18 



- You and the Application must comply with all applicable privacy and data collection laws and 
regulations with respect to any collection, use or disclosure of user or device data (e.g., a user's 
IP address, the name of the user's device, and any installed apps associated with a user); 

- Applications may not be designed or marketed for the purpose of harassing, abusing, 
spamming, stalking, threatening or otherwise violating the legal rights (such as the rights of 
privacy and publicity) of others; 

- Neither You nor Your Application may perform any functions or link to any content, services, 
information or data or use any robot, spider, site search or other retrieval application or device to 
scrape, mine, retrieve, cache, analyze or index software, data or services provided by Apple or its 
licensors, or obtain (or try to obtain) any such data, except the data that Apple expressly provides 
or makes available to You in connection with such services. You agree that You will not collect, 
disseminate or use any such data for any unauthorized purpose; and 

- If Your Application is intended for human subject research or uses the HealthKit APls for clinical 
health-related uses which may involve personal data (e.g., storage of health records), then You 
agree to inform participants of the intended uses and disclosures of their personally identifiable 
data as part of such research or clinical health uses and to obtain consent from such participants 
(or their guardians) who will be using Your Application for such research or clinical health 
purposes. Further, You shall prohibit third parties to whom You provide any de-identified or 
coded data from re-identifying (or attempting to re-identify) any participants using such data 
without participant consent, and You agree to require that such third parties pass the foregoing 
restriction on to any other parties who receive such de-identified or coded data. 

Advertising Identifier and Tracking Preference; Ad Network APls: 

3.3.12 You and Your Applications (and any third party with whom You have contracted to serve 
advertising) may use the Advertising Identifier, and any information obtained through the use of 
the Advertising Identifier, only for the purpose of serving advertising. If a user resets the 
Advertising Identifier, then You agree not to combine, correlate, link or otherwise associate, either 
directly or indirectly, the prior Advertising Identifier and any derived information with the reset 
Advertising Identifier. For Applications compiled for any Apple-branded product providing access 
to the Ad Support APls, You agree to check a user's Tracking Preference prior to serving any 
advertising using the Advertising Identifier, and You agree to abide by a user's setting in the 
Tracking Preference in Your use of the Advertising Identifier and in Your use of any other user or 
device data for tracking. 

In addition, You may request to use the Ad Network APls to track application advertising 
conversion events. If You are granted permission to use the Ad Network APls, You agree not to 
use such APls, or any information obtained through the use of the Ad Network APls, for any 
purpose other than verifying ad validation information as part of an advertising conversion event. 
You agree not to combine, correlate, link, or otherwise associate, either directly or indirectly, 
information that is provided as part of the ad validation through the use of the Ad Network APls 
with other information You may have about a user. Apple reserves the right to reject any 
requests to use the Ad Network APls, in its sole discretion. 

Location and Maps; User Consents: 

3.3.13 Applications that use location-based AP ls (e.g., Core Location, Map Kit API, Apple Maps 
Server API} or otherwise provide location-based services may not be designed or marketed for 
automatic or autonomous control of vehicle behavior, or for emergency or life-saving purposes. 

3.3.14 Applications that offer location-based services or functionality, or that otherwise obtain a 
user's location through the use of the Apple Software or Apple Services, must notify and obtain 
consent from a user before a user's location data is collected, transmitted or otherwise used by 

Program Agreement 
Page 19 



the Application and then such data must be used only as consented to by the user and as 
permitted herein. For example, if You use the "Always" location option in Your Application for the 
purpose of continuous collection and use of a user's location data, You should provide a clearly 
defined justification and user benefit that is presented to the user at the time of the permission. 

3.3.15 If You choose to provide Your own location-based service, data and/or information in 
conjunction with the Apple maps provided through the Apple Maps Service (e.g. , overlaying a 
map or route You have created on top of an Apple map), You are solely responsible for ensuring 
that Your service, data and/or information correctly aligns with any Apple maps used. For 
Applications that use location-based APls for real-time navigation (including, but not limited to, 
turn-by-turn route guidance and other routing that is enabled through the use of a sensor), You 
must have an end-user license agreement that includes the following notice: YOUR USE OF 
THIS REAL TIME ROUTE GUIDANCE APPLICATION IS AT YOUR SOLE RISK. LOCATION 
DATA MAY NOT BE ACCURATE. 

3.3.16 Applications must not disable, override or otherwise interfere with any Apple
implemented system alerts, warnings, display panels, consent panels and the like, including, but 
not limited to, those that are intended to notify the user that the user's location data, address book 
data, calendar, photos, audio data, and/or reminders are being collected, transmitted, maintained, 
processed or used, or intended to obtain consent for such use. Further, if You have the ability to 
add a description in such alerts, warnings, and display panels (e.g., information in the purpose 
strings for the Camera APls), any such description must be accurate and not misrepresent the 
scope of use. If consent is denied or withdrawn, Applications may not collect, transmit, maintain, 
process or utilize such data or perform any other actions for which the user's consent has been 
denied or withdrawn. 

3.3.17 If Your Application (or Your website or web application, as applicable) uses or accesses 
the MapKit API, Apple Maps Server API or MapKit JS from a device running iOS version 6 or 
later, Your Application (or Your website or web application, as applicable) will access and use the 
Apple Maps Service. All use of the MapKit API, Apple Maps Server API, MapKit JS, and Apple 
Maps Service must be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (including the Program 
Requirements) and Attachment 6 (Additional Terms for the use of the Apple Maps Service). 

Content and Materials: 

3.3.18 Any master recordings and musical compositions embodied in Your Application must be 
wholly-owned by You or licensed to You on a fully paid-up basis and in a manner that will not 
require the payment of any fees, royalties and/or sums by Apple to You or any third party. In 
addition, if Your Application will be distributed outside of the United States, any master recordings 
and musical compositions embodied in Your Application (a) must not fall within the repertoire of 
any mechanical or performing/communication rights collecting or licensing organization now or in 
the future and (b) if licensed, must be exclusively licensed to You for Your Application by each 
applicable copyright owner. 

3.3.19 If Your Application includes or will include any other content, You must either own all 
such content or have permission from the content owner to use it in Your Application. 

3.3.20 Applications may be rejected if they contain content or materials of any kind (text, 
graphics, images, photographs, sounds, etc.) that in Apple's reasonable judgment may be found 
objectionable or inappropriate, for example, materials that may be considered obscene, 
pornographic, or defamatory. 

3.3.21 Applications must not contain any malware, malicious or harmful code, program, or other 
internal component (e.g., computer viruses, trojan horses, "backdoors") which could damage, 
destroy, or adversely affect the Apple Software, services, Apple-branded products, or other 
software, firmware, hardware, data, systems, services, or networks. 

Program Agreement 
Page 20 



3.3.22 If Your Application includes any FOSS, You agree to comply with all applicable FOSS 
licensing terms. You also agree not to use any FOSS in the development of Your Application in 
such a way that would cause the non-FOSS portions of the Apple Software to be subject to any 
FOSS licensing terms or obligations. 

3.3.23 Your Application may include promotional sweepstake or contest functionality provided 
that You are the sole sponsor of the promotion and that You and Your Application comply with 
any applicable laws and fulfill any applicable registration requirements in the country, territory, or 
region where You make Your Application available and the promotion is open. You agree that 
You are solely responsible for any promotion and any prize, and also agree to clearly state in 
binding official rules for each promotion that Apple is not a sponsor of, or responsible for 
conducting, the promotion. 

3.3.24 Your Application may include a direct link to a page on Your web site where You include 
the ability for an end-user to make a charitable contribution, provided that You comply with any 
applicable laws (which may include providing a receipt), and fulfill any applicable regulation or 
registration requirements, in the country, territory, or region where You enable the charitable 
contribution to be made. You also agree to clearly state that Apple is not the fundraiser. 

In-App Purchase API: 

3.3.25 All use of the In-App Purchase API and related services must be in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement (including the Program Requirements) and Attachment 2 (Additional 
Terms for Use of the In-App Purchase API). 

Network Extension Framework: 

3.3.26 Your Application must not access the Network Extension Framework unless Your 
Application is primarily designed for providing networking capabilities, and You have received an 
entitlement from Apple for such access. You agree to the following if You receive such 
entitlement: 

- You agree to clearly disclose to end-users how You and Your Application will be using their 
network information and, if applicable, filtering their network data, and You agree to use such 
data and information only as expressly consented to by the end-user and as expressly permitted 
herein; 

- You agree to store and transmit network information or data from an end-user in a secure and 
appropriate manner; 

- You agree not to divert an end-user's network data or information through any undisclosed, 
improper, or misleading processes, e.g., to filter it through a website to obtain advertising revenue 
or spoof a website; 

- You agree not to use any network data or information from end-users to bypass or override any 
end-user settings, e.g .. You may not track an end-user's WiFi network usage to determine their 
location if they have disabled location services for Your Application; and 

- Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 3.3.9, You and Your Application may not 
use the Network Extension Framework, or any data or information obtained through the Network 
Extension Framework, for any purpose other than providing networking capabilities in connection 
with Your Application (e.g., not for using an end-user's Internet traffic to serve advertising or to 
otherwise build user profiles for advertising). 

Apple reserves the right to not provide You with an entitlement to use the Network Extension 

Program Agreement 
Page 21 



Framework in its sole discretion and to revoke such entitlement at any time. In addition, if You 
would like to use the Access WiFi Information APls (which provide the WiFi network to which a 
device is connected), then You must request an entitlement from Apple for such use, 
and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 3.3.9, You may use such APls only for 
providing a service or function that is directly relevant to the Application (e.g., not for serving 
advertising). 

MFi Accessories: 

3.3.27 Your Application may interface, communicate, or otherwise interoperate with or control an 
MFi Accessory (as defined above) through wireless transports or through Apple's lightning or 30-
pin connectors only if (i) such MFi Accessory is licensed under the MFi Program at the time that 
You initially submit Your Application, (ii) the MFi Licensee has added Your Application to a list of 
those approved for interoperability with their MFi Accessory, and (iii) the MFi Licensee has 
received approval from the MFi Program for such addition. 

Regulatory Compliance: 

3.3.28 You will fulfill any applicable regulatory requirements, including full compliance with all 
applicable laws, regulations, and policies related to the manufacturing, marketing, sale and 
distribution of Your Application in the United States, and in particular the requirements of the U.S. 
Food and Drug Administration (FDA) as well as other U.S. regulatory bodies such as the FAA, 
HHS, FTC, and FCC, and the laws, regulations and policies of any other applicable regulatory 
bodies in any countries, territories, or regions where You use or make Your Application available, 
e.g., MHRA, CFDA. However, You agree that You will not seek any regulatory marketing 
permissions or make any determinations that may result in any Apple products being deemed 
regulated or that may impose any obligations or limitations on Apple. By submitting Your 
Application to Apple for selection for distribution, You represent and warrant that You are in full 
compliance with any applicable laws, regulations, and policies, including but not limited to all FDA 
laws, regulations and policies, related to the manufacturing, marketing, sale and distribution of 
Your Application in the United States, as well as in other countries, territories, or regions where 
You plan to make Your Application available. You also represent and warrant that You will 
market Your Application only for its cleared or approved intended use/indication for use, and only 
in strict compliance with applicable regulatory requirements. Upon Apple's request, You agree to 
promptly provide any such clearance documentation to support the marketing of Your Application. 
If requested by the FDA or by another government body that has a need to review or test Your 
Application as part of its regulatory review process, You may provide Your Application to such 
entity for review purposes. You agree to promptly notify Apple in accordance with the procedures 
set forth in Section 14.5 of any complaints or threats of complaints regarding Your Application in 
relation to any such regulatory requirements, in which case Apple may remove Your Application 
from distribution. 

Cellular Network: 

3.3.29 If an Application requires or will have access to the cellular network, then additionally 
such Application: 

- Must comply with Apple's best practices and other guidelines on how Applications should 
access and use the cellular network; and 

- Must not in Apple's reasonable judgment excessively use or unduly burden network capacity or 
bandwidth. 

3.3.30 Because some mobile network operators may prohibit or restrict the use of Voice over 
Internet Protocol (VoIP) functionality over their network, such as the use of VoIP telephony over a 
cellular network, and may also impose additional fees, or other charges in connection with VoIP. 

Program Agreement 
Page 22 



You agree to inform end-users, prior to purchase, to check the terms of agreement with their 
operator, for example, by providing such notice in the marketing text that You provide 
accompanying Your Application on the App Store. In addition, if Your Application allows end
users to send SMS messages or make cellular voice calls, then You must inform the end-user, 
prior to use of such functionality, that standard text messaging rates or other carrier charges may 
apply to such use. 

Apple Push Notification Service and Local Notifications: 

3.3.31 All use of Push Notifications via the Apple Push Notification Service or Local Notifications 
must be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (including the Program Requirements) 
and Attachment 1 (Additional Terms for Apple Push Notification Service and Local Notifications). 

Game Center: 

3.3.32 All use of the Game Center must be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
(including the Program Requirements) and Attachment 3 (Additional Terms for the Game Center). 

iCloud: 

3.3.33 All use of the iCloud Storage APls and CloudKit APls, as well as Your use of the iCloud 
service under this Agreement, must be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (including 
the Program Requirements) and Attachment 4 (Additional Terms for the use of iCloud). 

Wallet: 

3.3.34 Your development of Passes, and use of the Pass Type ID and Wallet under this 
Agreement, must be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (including the Program 
Requirements) and Attachment 5 (Additional Terms for Passes). 

Additional Services or End-User Pre-Release Software: 

3.3.35 From time to time, Apple may provide access to additional Services or pre-release Apple 
Software for You to use in connection with Your Applications, or as an end-user for evaluation 
purposes. Some of these may be subject to separate terms and conditions in addition to this 
Agreement, in which case Your usage will also be subject to those terms and conditions. Such 
services or software may not be available in all languages or in all countries or regions, and Apple 
makes no representation that they will be appropriate or available for use in any particular 
location. To the extent You choose to access such services or software, You do so at Your own 
initiative and are responsible for compliance with any applicable laws, including but not limited to 
applicable local laws. To the extent any such software includes Apple's FaceTime or Messages 
feature, You acknowledge and agree that when You use such features, the telephone numbers 
and device identifiers associated with Your Authorized Test Units, as well as email addresses 
and/or Apple ID information You provide, may be used and maintained by Apple to provide and 
improve such software and features. Certain services made accessible to You through the Apple 
Software may be provided by third parties. You acknowledge that Apple will not have any liability 
or responsibility to You or any other person (including to any end-user) for any third-party 
services or for any Apple services. Apple and its licensors reserve the right to change, suspend, 
remove, or disable access to any services at any time. In no event will Apple be liable for the 
removal or disabling of access to any such services. Further, upon any commercial release of 
such software or services, or earlier if requested by Apple, You agree to cease all use of the pre
release Apple Software or Services provided to You as an end-user for evaluation purposes 
under this Agreement. 

3.3.36 If Your Application accesses the Google Safe Browsing service through the Apple 
Software such access is subject to Google's terms of service set forth at: 

Program Agreement 
Page 23 



https://developers.google.com/safe-browsing/terms. If You do not accept such terms of service, 
then You may not use the Google Safe Browsing Service in Your Application, and You 
acknowledge and agree that such use will constitute Your acceptance of such terms of service. 

3.3.37 If Your Application accesses data from an end-user's Address Book through the Address 
Book API, You must notify and obtain consent from the user before a user's Address Book data is 
accessed or used by Your Application. Further, Your Application may not provide an automated 
mechanism that transfers only the Facebook Data portions of the end-user's Address Book 
altogether to a location off of the end-user's device. For the sake of clarity, this does not prohibit 
an automated transfer of the user's entire Address Book as a whole, so long as user notification 
and consent requirements have been fulfilled ; and does not prohibit enabling users to transfer 
any portion of their Address Book data manually (e.g., by cutting and pasting) or enabling them to 
individually select particular data items to be transferred. 

Extensions: 

3.3.38 Applications that include extensions in the Application bundle must provide some 
functionality beyond just the extensions (e.g., help screens, additional settings), unless an 
Application includes a WatchKit Extension. In addition: 

- Extensions (excluding WatchKit Extensions) may not include advertising, product promotion, 
direct marketing, or In-App Purchase offers in their extension view; 

- Extensions may not block the full screen of an iOS Product or Apple TV, or redirect, obstruct or 
interfere in an undisclosed or unexpected way with a user's use of another developer's 
application or any Apple-provided functionality or service; 

- Extensions may operate only in Apple-designated areas of iOS, watchOS, iPadOS, or tvOS as 
set forth in the Documentation; 

- Extensions that provide keyboard functionality must be capable of operating independent of any 
network access and must include Unicode characters (vs. pictorial images only}; 

- Any keystroke logging done by any such extension must be clearly disclosed to the end-user 
prior to any such data being sent from an iOS Product, and notwithstanding anything else in 
Section 3.3.9, such data may be used only for purposes of providing or improving the keyboard 
functionality of Your Application (e.g., not for serving advertising); 

- Any message filtering done by an extension must be clearly disclosed to the end-user, and 
notwithstanding anything else in Section 3.3.9, any SMS or MMS data (whether accessed 
through a message filtering extension or sent by iOS to a messaging extension's corresponding 
server) may be used only for purposes of providing or improving the message experience of the 
user by reducing spam or messages from unknown sources, and must not be used for serving 
advertising or for any other purpose. Further, SMS or MMS data from a user that is accessed 
within the extension may not be exported from the extension 's designated container area in any 
way; and 

- Your Application must not automate installation of extensions or otherwise cause extensions to 
be installed without the user's knowledge, and You must accurately specify to the user the 
purpose and functionality of the extension. 

HealthKit APls and Motion & Fitness APls: 

3.3.39 Your Application must not access the HealthKit APls or Motion & Fitness APls unless the 
use of such APls is for health, motion, and/or fitness purposes, and this usage is clearly evident 
in Your marketing text and user interface. In addition: 

Program Agreement 
Page 24 



- Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 3.3.9, You and Your Application may not 
use the Health Kit APls or the Motion & Fitness AP ls, or any information obtained through the 
HealthKit APls or the Motion & Fitness APls, for any purpose other than providing health, motion, 
and/or fitness services in connection with Your Application (e.g., not for serving advertising); 

- You must not use the HealthKit APls or the Motion & Fitness APls , or any information obtained 
through the HealthKit APls or the Motion & Fitness APls, to disclose or provide an end-user's 
health, motion, and/or fitness information to a third party without prior express end-user consent, 
and then only for purposes of enabling the third party to provide health, motion, and/or fitness 
services as permitted herein. For example, You must not share or sell an end-user's health 
information collected through the HealthKit APls or Motion & Fitness APls to advertising 
platforms, data brokers, or information resellers. For clarity, You may allow end-users to consent 
to share their data with third parties for medical research purposes; and 

- You agree to clearly disclose to end-users how You and Your Application will be using their 
health, motion, and/or fitness information and to use it only as expressly consented to by the end
user and as expressly permitted herein. 

Configuration Profiles: 

3.3.40 Configuration Profiles cannot be delivered to consumers other than for the purposes of 
configuration of WiFi, APN, or VPN settings, or as otherwise expressly permitted by Apple in the 
then-current Configuration Profile Reference Documentation. You must make a clear declaration 
of what user data will be collected and how it will be used on an app screen or other notification 
mechanism prior to any user action to use a Configuration Profile. You may not share or sell user 
data obtained through a Configuration Profile to advertising platforms, data brokers, or 
information resellers. In addition, You may not override the consent panel for a Configuration 
Profile or any other mechanisms of a Configuration Profile. 

HomeKit APls: 

3.3.41 Your Application must not access the HomeKit APls unless it is primarily designed to 
provide home configuration or home automation services (e.g. , turning on a light, lifting a garage 
door) for Licensed HomeKit Accessories and this usage is clearly evident in Your marketing text 
and user interface. You agree not to use the HomeKit APls for any purpose other than 
interfacing, communicating, interoperating with or otherwise controlling a Licensed HomeKit 
Accessory or for using the HomeKit Database, and then only for home configuration or home 
automation purposes in connection with Your Application. In addition: 

- Your Application may use information obtained from the HomeKit APls and/or the HomeKit 
Database only on a compatible Apple-branded product and may not export, remotely access or 
transfer such information off of the applicable product (e.g., a lock password cannot be sent off an 
end-user's device to be stored in an external non-Apple database), unless otherwise expressly 
permitted by Apple in the Documentation; and 

- Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 3.3.9, You and Your Application may not 
use the HomeKit APls, or any information obtained through the HomeKit APls or through the 
HomeKit Database, for any purpose other than providing or improving home configuration or 
home automation services in connection with Your Application (e.g., not for serving advertising). 

Apple Pay APls: 

3.3.42 Your Application may use the Apple Pay APls solely for the purpose of facilitating 
payment transactions that are made by or through Your Application, and only for the purchase of 
goods and services that are to be used outside of any iOS Product or Apple Watch, unless 

Program Agreement 
Page 25 



otherwise permitted by Apple in writing. For clarity, nothing in this Section 3.3.42 supplants any 
of the rules or requirements for the use of the In-App Purchase APL including but not limited to 
Section 3.3.3 and the guidelines. In addition: 

- You acknowledge and agree that Apple is not a party to any payment transactions facilitated 
through the use of the Apple Pay APls and is not responsible for any such transactions, including 
but not limited to the unavailability of any end-user payment cards or payment fraud. Such 
payment transactions are between You and Your bank, acquirer, card networks, or other parties 
You utilize for transaction processing, and You are responsible for complying with any 
agreements You have with such third parties. In some cases, such agreements may contain 
terms specifying specific rights, obligations or limitations that You accept and assume in 
connection with Your decision to utilize the functionality of the Apple Pay APls; 

- You agree to store any private keys provided to You as part of Your use of the Apple Pay APls 
in a secure manner (e.g., encrypted on a server) and in accordance with the Documentation. You 
agree not to store any end-user payment information in an unencrypted manner on an iOS 
Product. For clarity, You may not decrypt any such end-user payment information on an iOS 
Product; 

- You agree not to call the Apple Pay APls or otherwise attempt to gain information through the 
Apple Pay APls for purposes unrelated to facilitating end-user payment transactions; and 

- If You use Apple Pay APls in Your Application, then You agree to use commercially reasonable 
efforts to include Apple Cash as a payment option with Your use of the Apple Pay APls in 
accordance with the Documentation and provided that Apple Cash is available in the jurisdiction 
in which the Application is distributed. 

3.3.43 As part of facilitating an end-user payment transaction through the Apple Pay APls, Apple 
may provide You (whether You are acting as the Merchant, an Intermediary Party, or displaying 
the Merchant web page that facilitates an Apple Pay end-user payment transaction) with an Apple 
Pay Payload. If You receive an Apple Pay Payload, then You agree to the following: 

- If You are acting as the Merchant, then You may use the Apple Pay Payload to process the 
end-user payment transaction and for other uses that You disclose to the end-user, and only in 
accordance with applicable law; 

- If You are acting as an Intermediary Party, then: 

(a) You may use the Apple Pay Payload only for purposes of facilitating the payment transaction 
between the Merchant and the end-user and for Your own order management purposes (e.g., 
customer service) as part of such transaction; 
(b) You agree that You will not hold the Apple Pay Payload data for any longer than necessary to 
fulfill the payment transaction and order management purposes for which it was collected; 
(c) You agree not to combine data obtained through the Apple Pay APls, including but not limited 
to, the Apple Pay Payload with any other data that You may have about such end-user (except to 
the limited extent necessary for order management purposes). For clarity, an Intermediary Party 
may not use data obtained through the Apple Pay AP ls for advertising or marketing purposes, for 
developing or enhancing a user profile, or to otherwise target end-users; 
(d) You agree to disclose to end-users that You are an Intermediary Party to the transaction and 
to provide the identity of the Merchant for a particular transaction on the Apple Pay Payment 
Sheet (in addition to including Your name as an Intermediary Party); and 
(e) If You use a Merchant, then You will be responsible for ensuring that the Merchant You select 
uses the Apple Pay Payload provided by You only for purposes of processing the end-user 
payment transaction and for other uses they have disclosed to the end-user, and only in 
accordance with applicable law. You agree to have a binding written agreement with such 

Program Agreement 
Page 26 



Merchant with terms at least as restrictive and protective of Apple as those set forth herein. Any 
actions undertaken by any such Merchant in relation to such Apple Pay Payload or the payment 
transaction shall be deemed to have been taken by You, and You (in addition to such Merchant) 
shall be responsible to Apple for all such actions (or any inactions). In the event of any actions or 
inactions by such Merchant that would constitute a violation of this Agreement or otherwise cause 
any harm, Apple reserves the right to require You to cease using such Merchant, and 

- If You are displaying the Merchant web page that facilitates an Apple Pay end-user payment 
transaction but are acting neither as an Intermediary Party nor a Merchant (i.e., You host a 
Merchant checkout through WKWebView), then : 

(a) You agree not to access the Apple Pay Payload for any reason whatsoever; and 
(b) You agree not to use information that is derived from or relates to the Apple Pay payment 
transaction for purposes other than displaying the Merchant web page. 

SiriKit: 

3.3.44 Your Application may register as a destination to use the Apple-defined SiriKit domains, 
but only if Your Application is designed to provide relevant responses to a user, or otherwise 
carry out the user's request or intent, in connection with the applicable SiriKit domain (e.g. , ride 
sharing) that is supported by Your Application and this usage is clearly evident in Your marketing 
text and user interface. In addition, Your Application may contribute actions to SiriKit, but only if 
such actions are tied to user behavior or activity within Your Application and for which You can 
provide a relevant response to the user. You agree not to submit false information through SiriKit 
about any such user activity or behavior or otherwise interfere with the predictions provided by 
SiriKit (e.g., SiriKit donations should be based on actual user behavior). 

3.3.45 Your Application may use information obtained through SiriKit only on supported Apple 
products and may not export, remotely access or transfer such information off a device except to 
the extent necessary to provide or improve relevant responses to a user or carry out a user's 
request or in connection with Your Application. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
Section 3.3.9, You and Your Application may not use SiriKit, or any information obtained through 
SiriKit, for any purpose other than providing relevant responses to a user or otherwise carrying 
out a user's request or intent in connection with an SiriKit domain, intent, or action supported by 
Your Application and/or for improving Your Application's responsiveness to user requests (e.g., 
not for serving advertising). 

3.3.46 If Your Application uses SiriKit to enable audio data to be processed by Apple, You agree 
to clearly disclose to end-users that You and Your Application will be sending their recorded 
audio data to Apple for speech recognition, processing and/or transcription purposes, and that 
such audio data may be used to improve and provide Apple products and services. You further 
agree to use such audio data, and recognized text that may be returned from SiriKit, only as 
expressly consented to by the end-user and as expressly permitted herein. 

Single Sign-On API: 

3.3.47 You must not access or use the Single Sign-On API unless You are a Multi-channel 
Video Programming Distributor (MVPD) or unless Your Application is primarily designed to 
provide authenticated video programming via a subscription-based MVPD service, and You have 
received an entitlement from Apple to use the Single Sign-On API. If You have received such an 
entitlement, You are permitted to use the Single Sign-On API solely for the purpose of 
authenticating a user's entitlement to access Your MVPD content for viewing on an Apple 
Product, in accordance with the Single Sign-on Specification. Any such use must be in 
compliance with the Documentation for the Single Sign-On Specification. You acknowledge that 
Apple reserves the right to not provide You such an entitlement, and to revoke such entitlement, 
at any time, in its sole discretion. 

Program Agreement 
Page 27 



If You use the Single Sign-On API, You will be responsible for providing the sign-in page 
accessed by users via the Single Sign-On API where users sign in to authenticate their right to 
access Your MVPD content. You agree that such sign-in page will not display advertising, and 
that the content and appearance of such page will be subject to Apple's prior review and 
approval. If You use the Single Sign-On API and Apple provides an updated version of such API 
and/or the Single Sign-on Specification, You agree to update Your implementation to conform 
with the newer version and specification within 3 months after receiving the update from Apple. 

You authorize Apple to use, reproduce, and display the trademarks provided by You for use in 
connection with the Single-Sign-On feature, including use in the user interface screens in Apple 
products where the user selects the provider and authenticates through Single Sign-on, and/or to 
provide the user with a list of apps that are accessible to such user through Single Sign-On. You 
also grant Apple the right to use screenshots and images of such user interface, including but not 
limited to use in instructional materials, training materials, marketing materials, and advertising in 
any medium. Data provided via the Single Sign-On API will be considered Licensed Application 
Information hereunder, but will be subject to the use limitations set forth in this Section. 

You must not collect, store or use data provided via the Single Sign-On API for any purpose other 
than to authenticate a user's entitlement to access Your MVPD content on an Apple product, to 
provide the user access to Your MVPD content, and/or to address performance and technical 
problems with Your MVPD service. You will not provide or disclose data, content or information 
obtained from use of the Single Sign-On API to any other party except for authentication 
information provided to a video programming provider whose programming is offered as part of 
an MVPD subscription offered by You, and solely for the purpose of authenticating the user's 
entitlement to access such video programming on an Apple product under the user's MVPD 
subscription. 

TV AppAPI: 

3.3.48 You may not use the TV App API unless (a) Your Application is primarily designed to 
provide video programming, (b) You have received an entitlement from Apple, and (c) Your use is 
in accordance with the TV App Specification. To the extent that You provide TV App Data to 
Apple, Apple may store, use, reproduce and display such data solely for the purposes of: (a) 
providing information and recommendations to users of TV App Features, (b) enabling users to 
link from such recommendations and/or information to content for viewing via Your Licensed 
Application, and/or (c) servicing, maintenance, and optimization of TV App Features. With 
respect to any TV App Data that has been submitted by You prior to termination of this 
Agreement, Apple may continue to use such data in accordance with this Section 3.3.48 after 
termination of this Agreement. TV App Data will be considered Licensed Application Information 
under this Agreement, but will be subject to the use limitations set forth in this Section. You 
acknowledge that Apple reserves the right to not include Your Licensed Application in the TV App 
Features, in its sole discretion. 

Apple will obtain user consent based on the user's Apple ID before including Your Licensed 
Application in the TV App Features displayed under that Apple ID. Apple will also provide users 
with the ability to withdraw such consent at any time thereafter and to delete their TV App Data 
from Apple's systems. In addition, You may solicit user consent based upon Your own subscriber 
ID system. You are responsible for Your compliance with all applicable laws, including any 
applicable local laws for obtaining user consent with respect to Your provision of TV App Data to 
Apple. 

Spotlight-Image-Search Service: 

3.3.49 To the extent that You provide Apple's spotlight-image-search service with access to any 
of Your domains that are associated with Your Licensed Applications (the "Associated 

Program Agreement 
Page 28 



Domain(s)"), You hereby grant Apple permission to crawl, scrape, copy, transmit and/or cache 
the content found in the Associated Domain(s) (the "Licensed Content") for the purposes set forth 
in this section. The Licensed Content shall be considered Licensed Application Information under 
this Agreement. You hereby further grant Apple a license to use, make, have made, reproduce, 
crop and/or modify the file format, resolution and appearance of the Licensed Content (for the 
purposes of reducing file size, converting to a supported file type and/or displaying thumbnails), 
and to publicly display, publicly perform, integrate, incorporate and distribute the Licensed 
Content to enhance search, discovery, and end-user distribution of the Licensed Content in 
Apple's Messages feature. Upon the termination of this Agreement for any reason, end users of 
Apple-branded products will be permitted to continue using and distributing all Licensed Content 
that they obtained through the use of Apple-branded products prior to such termination. 

MusicKit: 

3.3.50 You agree not to call the MusicKit APls or use MusicKit JS (or otherwise attempt to gain 
information through the MusicKit APls or MusicKit JS) for purposes unrelated to facilitating 
access to Your end users' Apple Music subscriptions. If You access the MusicKit APls or 
MusicKit JS, then You must follow the Apple Music Identity Guidelines. You agree not to require 
payment for or indirectly monetize access to the Apple Music service (e.g. in-app purchase, 
advertising, requesting user info) through Your use of the MusicKit APls, MusicKit JS, or 
otherwise in any way. In addition: 

- If You choose to offer music playback through the MusicKit APls or MusicKit JS, full songs must 
be enabled for playback, and users must initiate playback and be able to navigate playback using 
standard media controls such as "play," "pause," and "skip", and You agree to not misrepresent 
the functionality of these controls; 

- You may not, and You may not permit Your end users to, download, upload, or modify any 
MusicKit Content and MusicKit Content cannot be synchronized with any other content, unless 
otherwise permitted by Apple in the Documentation; 

- You may play MusicKit Content only as rendered by the MusicKit APls or MusicKit JS and only 
as permitted in the Documentation (e.g., album art and music-related text from the MusicKit API 
may not be used separately from music playback or managing playlists); 

- Metadata from users (such as playlists and favorites) may be used only to provide a service or 
function that is clearly disclosed to end users and that is directly relevant to the use of Your 
Application, website, or web application, as determined in Apple's sole discretion; and 

- You may use MusicKit JS only as a stand-alone library in Your Application, website, or web 
application and only as permitted in the Documentation (e.g., You agree not to recombine 
MusicKit JS with any other JavaScript code or separately download and re-host it). 

DeviceCheck APls: 

3.3.51 If You use DeviceCheck APls to store DeviceCheck Data, then You must provide a 
mechanism for customers to contact You to reset those values, if applicable (e.g. resetting a trial 
subscription or re-authorizing certain usage when a new user acquires the device). You may not 
rely on the DeviceCheck Data as a single identifier of fraudulent conduct and must use the 
DeviceCheck Data only in connection with other data or information, e.g., the DeviceCheck Data 
cannot be the sole data point since a device may have been transferred or resold. Apple 
reserves the right to delete any DeviceCheck Data at any time in its sole discretion, and You 
agree not to rely on any such Data. Further, You agree not to share the DeviceCheck tokens You 
receive from Apple with any third party, except a Service Provider acting on Your behalf. 

Face Data: 

Program Agreement 
Page 29 



3.3.52 If Your Application accesses Face Data, then You must do so only to provide a service or 
function that is directly relevant to the use of the Application, and You agree to inform users of 
Your intended uses and disclosures of Face Data by Your Application and to obtain clear and 
conspicuous consent from such users before any collection or use of Face Data. Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in Section 3.3.9, neither You nor Your Application (nor any third party 
with whom You have contracted to serve advertising) may use Face Data for serving advertising 
or for any other unrelated purposes. In addition: 

- You may not use Face Data in a manner that will violate the legal rights of Your users (or any 
third parties) or to provide an unlawful, unfair, misleading, fraudulent, improper, exploitative, or 
objectionable user experience and then only in accordance with the Documentation; 

- You may not use Face Data for authentication, advertising, or marketing purposes, or to 
otherwise target an end-user in a similar manner; 

- You may not use Face Data to build a user profile, or otherwise attempt, facilitate, or encourage 
third parties to identify anonymous users or reconstruct user profiles based on Face Data; 

- You agree not to transfer, share, sell, or otherwise provide Face Data to advertising platforms, 
analytics providers, data brokers, information resellers or other such parties; and 

- Face Data may not be shared or transferred off the user's device unless You have obtained 
clear and conspicuous consent for the transfer and the Face Data is used only in fulfilling a 
specific service or function for Your Application (e.g. , a face mesh is used to display an image of 
the user within the Application) and only in accordance with these terms and the Documentation. 
You agree to require that Your service providers use Face Data only to the limited extent 
consented to by the user and only in accordance with these terms. 

Class Kit APls, Roster API: 

3.3.53 Your Application must not include the ClassKit APls unless it is primarily designed to 
provide educational services, and this usage is clearly evident in Your marketing text and user 
interface. You agree not to submit false or inaccurate data through the ClassKit AP ls or to 
attempt to redefine the assigned data categories for data submitted through the ClassKit APls 
(e.g., student location data is not a supported data type and should not be submitted). 

You may not share, sell, transfer or disclose Roster Data to any third parties (e.g., affiliates, 
advertising platforms, data brokers, information resellers). You must process Roster Data for 
educational purposes solely in accordance with the instructions of the school's IT administrator. 
You must comply with the school IT administrator's choice to not renew or to revoke the school's 
consent to use the Roster Data. If the school IT administrator does not renew or revokes Your 
access to a school's Roster Data, You must destroy all of the school's Roster Data in Your 
possession within thirty (30) days. You are responsible for complying with all applicable legal 
requirements associated with Your use of the Roster APL 

Sign In with Apple, Sign In with Apple at Work & School: 

3.3.54 You may use Sign In with Apple or Sign In with Apple at Work & School in Your 
Corresponding Products only so long as Your use is comparable to including Sign In with Apple 
or Sign in with Apple at Work & School, respectively, in Your Application. You may not share or 
sell user data obtained through Sign In with Apple or Sign In with Apple at Work & School to 
advertising platforms, data brokers, or information resellers. 

If a Sign in with Apple user has chosen to anonymize their user data as part of Sign In with Apple, 
You agree not to attempt to link such anonymized data with information that directly identifies the 

Program Agreement 
Page 30 



individual and that is obtained outside of Sign In with Apple without first obtaining user consent. 

You must process the data You receive from Sign In with Apple at Work & School solely in 
accordance with the instructions of the organization 's IT administrator. 

ShazamKit: 

3.3.55 All use of the ShazamKit APls must be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
(including the Apple Music Identity Guidelines and Program Requirements) and the 
Documentation. If You choose to display ShazamKit Content corresponding to songs available on 
Apple Music, then You must provide a link to the respective content within Apple Music in 
accordance with the Apple Music Identity Guidelines. Except to the extent expressly permitted 
herein, You agree not to copy, modify, translate, create a derivative work of, publish or publicly 
display ShazamKit Content in any way. Further, You may not use or compare the data provided 
by the ShazamKit AP ls for the purpose of improving or creating another audio recognition 
service. Applications that use the ShazamKit APls may not be designed or marketed for 
compliance purposes (e.g. , music licensing and royalty auditing). 

Xcode Cloud: 

3.3.56 To the extent that You use the Xcode Cloud Service to manage Your Xcode Cloud 
Content and build Your Applications, You hereby grant to Apple, its affiliates and agents, a non
exclusive, worldwide, fully paid-up, royalty-free license to reproduce, host, process , display, 
transmit, modify, create derivative works of, and otherwise use Your Xcode Cloud Content solely 
in order for Apple to provide the Xcode Cloud Service . Apple will use Your Xcode Cloud Content 
that is source code solely in order to provide the Xcode Cloud Service to You. You acknowledge 
and agree that: (a) You are solely responsible fo r such Xcode Cloud Content, in which Apple has 
no ownership rights, (b) if You choose to use a third party service (e.g., source code hosting, 
artifact storage, messaging, or testing services) with the Xcode Cloud Service, You are 
responsible for Your compliance with the terms and conditions governing such third party service, 
(c) the provision of user generated content (e.g., builds) by the Xcode Cloud Service shall not be 
considered a distribution for contractual or licensing obligations, (d) any execution of Your Xcode 
Cloud Content within Xcode Cloud shall be limited to testing of Your Xcode Cloud Content, (e) 
You shall not mine cryptocurrencies using Xcode Cloud , and (f) Your Xcode Cloud Content 
complies with the requirements set forth for Applications in 3.3.21 and 3.3.22. 

3.3.57 While in no way limiting Apple's other rights under this Agreement, Apple reserves the 
right to take action if in its sole discretion, Apple determines or has reason to believe You have 
violated a term of this Agreement. These actions may include limiting, suspending, or revoking 
your access to the Xcode Cloud Service, or terminating your build. 

Tap to Pay APls: 

3.3.58 Your Application may use the Tap to Pay APls solely for the purpose of enabling 
Merchants to conduct transactions through Your Application, and Your Application must not 
access the Tap to Pay AP ls unless You have received an entitlement from Apple for such access. 
In addition : 

- You acknowledge and agree that Apple is not a party to any transactions facilitated through the 
use of the Tap to Pay AP ls and is not responsible for any such transactions, including but not 
limited to the unavailability of any payment cards or payment fraud. Such transactions are 
between You , the Merchant, and Your Payment Service Provider, acquirer, card networks, or 
other parties You utilize for transaction processing, and You are responsible for complying with 
any agreements You have with such third parties. In some cases, such agreements may contain 
terms specifying specific rights , obligations or limitations that You accept and assume in 
connection with Your decision to utilize the functionality of the Tap to Pay APls; 

Program Agreement 
Page 31 



- You agree to store any private keys and TIP Data provided to You as part of Your use of the 
Tap to Pay APls in a secure manner (e.g., encrypted on a server) and in accordance with the 
Documentation. For clarity, You may not decrypt any encrypted TIP Data unless You are 
processing the TIP Data as a Payment Service Provider; 

- You agree to not call the TIP APls or otherwise attempt to gain information through the TIP 
APls for purposes unrelated to enabling Merchants to conduct transactions through the use of 
Your Application; 

- You agree that Apple has no responsibility to check that the transactions facilitated by the Tap 
to Pay APls have been duly authorized. Apple shall not be liable in any event for any 
unauthorized or fraudulent transactions; 

- You agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to include Apple Pay as a payment option 
with Your use of the Tap to Pay AP ls in accordance with the Documentation and provided that 
Apple Pay is available in the jurisdiction in which Your Application is distributed. 

3.3.59 Apple may provide You (whether You are acting as the Merchant or as an Intermediary 
Party) with TIP Data. If you receive TIP Data, You agree to the following: 

- If You are acting as the Merchant, then You may use the TIP Data solely to process the 
transaction and for order management purposes, in each case, in accordance with applicable 
law; 

- If You are acting as an Intermediary Party, then : (a) You may use the TIP Data solely for the 
purpose of facilitating the transaction between the Merchant and the Merchant customer and for 
order management purposes; (b) You must restrict the transfer or disclosure of the TIP Data to 
only those parties required to facilitate the transaction; (c) You may not hold the TIP Data for any 
longer than necessary to fulfill the transaction or for order management purposes; and (d) You 
may not combine data obtained through the Tap to Pay APls, including but not limited to, the TIP 
Data with any other data that You may have about the Merchant or Merchant customer involved 
in the transaction (except to the limited extent necessary to facilitate the transaction and for order 
management purposes). For clarity, an Intermediary Party may not use data obtained through 
the Tap to Pay APls for advertising or marketing purposes, for developing or enhancing a 
Merchant customer profile, or to otherwise target Merchant customers; 

- If You are not acting as a Payment Service Provider, then You must: (i) have an agreement 
with a Payment Service Provider and (ii) ensure that such Payment Service Provider uses the 
TIP Data obtained by You only for purposes of processing the transaction, which may include the 
application of fraud detection services, and for order management purposes, in each case, in 
accordance with applicable law. For clarity, such Payment Service Provider is Your Third-Party 
Service Provider. Whether You are a Merchant or an Intermediary Party, any actions undertaken 
by Your Payment Service Provider in relation to the TIP Data transferred by You to Your 
Payment Service Provider shall be deemed to have been taken by You, and You (in addition to 
Your Payment Service Provider) shall be responsible to Apple and to the Merchant's customer for 
all such actions (or any inactions); 

- If You are an Intermediary Party, then Your Application must confirm that each Merchant using 
Your Application has accepted and agreed to the Tap to Pay Platform Terms and Conditions prior 
to enabling such Merchant to conduct any transactions using Your Application in accordance with 
the Documentation. If You are a Merchant, You must accept and agree to the Tap to Pay 
Platform Terms and Conditions prior to conducting any transactions in Your Application. 

Apple reserves the right to not provide You with an entitlement to use the Tap to Pay APls in its 
sole discretion and to revoke such entitlement at any time. 

Program Agreement 
Page 32 



BackgroundAssets Framework: 

3.3.60 You may use the BackgroundAssets Framework only to download additional assets for 
Your Application distributed through the App Store or for beta testing through TestFlight; no other 
use is permitted. You may not use the BackgroundAssets Framework to collect or transmit data in 
order to identify a user or device, or to perform advertising or advertising measurement. Your use 
of the BackgroundAssets Framework and the assets downloaded must comply with the terms of 
this Agreement, including without limitation the App Store Review Guidelines. 

WeatherKit APls: 

3.3.61 All use of the WeatherKit APls must be in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
(including the Program Requirements) and Attachment 8 (Additional Terms for use of the 
WeatherKit APls). 

4. Changes to Program Requirements or Terms 
Apple may change the Program Requirements or the terms of this Agreement at any time. New 
or modified Program Requirements will not retroactively apply to Applications already in 
distribution via the App Store or Custom App Distribution; provided however that You agree that 
Apple reserves the right to remove Applications from the App Store or Custom App Distribution 
that are not in compliance with the new or modified Program Requirements at any time. In order 
to continue using the Apple Software, Apple Certificates or any Services, You must accept and 
agree to the new Program Requirements and/or new terms of this Agreement. If You do not 
agree to new Program Requirements or new terms, Your use of the Apple Software, Apple 
Certificates and any Services will be suspended or terminated by Apple. You agree that Your 
acceptance of such new Agreement terms or Program Requirements may be signified 
electronically, including without limitation, by Your checking a box or clicking on an "agree" or 
similar button. Nothing in this Section shall affect Apple's rights under Section 5 (Apple 
Certificates; Revocation). 

5. Apple Certificates; Revocation 
5.1 Certificate Requirements 
All Applications must be signed with an Apple Certificate in order to be installed on Authorized 
Test Units, Registered Devices, or submitted to Apple for distribution via the App Store, Custom 
App Distribution, or TestFlight. Similarly, all Passes must be signed with an Apple Certificate to 
be recognized and accepted by Wallet. Safari Extensions must be signed with an Apple 
Certificate to run in Safari on macOS. You must use a Website ID to send Safari Push 
Notifications to the macOS desktop of users who have opted in to receive such Notifications for 
Your Site through Safari on macOS. You may also obtain other Apple Certificates and keys for 
other purposes as set forth herein and in the Documentation. 

In relation to this, You represent and warrant to Apple that: 
(a) You will not take any action to interfere with the normal operation of any Apple Certificates, 
keys, or Provisioning Profiles; 
(b) You are solely responsible for preventing any unauthorized person or organization from 
having access to Your Apple Certificates and keys, and You will use Your best efforts to 
safeguard Your Apple Certificates and keys from compromise (e.g., You will not upload Your 
Apple Certificate for App Store distribution to a cloud repository for use by a third-party); 
(c) You agree to immediately notify Apple in writing if You have any reason to believe there has 
been a compromise of any of Your Apple Certificates or keys; 
(d) You will not provide or transfer Apple Certificates or keys provided under this Program to any 
third party (except for a Service Provider who is using them on Your behalf in compliance with 
this Agreement and only to the limited extent expressly permitted by Apple in the Documentation 
or this Agreement (e.g. , You are prohibited from providing or transferring Your Apple Certificates 

Program Agreement 
Page 33 



that are used for distribution or submission to the App Store to a Service Provider), and You will 
not use Your Apple Certificates to sign any third party's application, pass, extension, notification, 
implementation, or site; 
(e) You will use any Apple Certificates or keys provided under this Agreement solely as permitted 
by Apple and in accordance with the Documentation; and 
(f) You will use Apple Certificates provided under this Program exclusively for the purpose of 
signing Your Passes, signing Your Safari Extensions, signing Your Site's registration bundle, 
accessing the APN service, and/or signing Your Applications for testing, submission to Apple 
and/or for limited distribution for use on Registered Devices or Authorized Test Units as 
contemplated under this Program, or as otherwise permitted by Apple, and only in accordance 
with this Agreement. As a limited exception to the foregoing, You may provide versions of Your 
Applications to Your Service Providers to sign with their Apple-issued development certificates, 
but solely for purposes of having them perform testing on Your behalf of Your Applications on 
Apple-branded products running iOS, watchOS, iPadOS, and/or tvOS and provided that all such 
testing is conducted internally by Your Service Providers (e.g., no outside distribution of Your 
Applications) and that Your Applications are deleted within a reasonable period of time after such 
testing is performed. Further, You agree that Your Service Provider may use the data obtained 
from performing such testing services only for purposes of providing You with information about 
the performance of Your Applications (e.g., Your Service Provider is prohibited from aggregating 
Your Applications' test results with other developers' test results). 

You further represent and warrant to Apple that the licensing terms governing Your Application, 
Your Safari Extension, Your Site's registration bundle, and/or Your Pass, or governing any third 
party code or FOSS included in Your Covered Products, will be consistent with and not conflict 
with the digital signing or content protection aspects of the Program or any of the terms, 
conditions or requirements of the Program or this Agreement. In particular, such licensing terms 
will not purport to require Apple (or its agents) to disclose or make available any of the keys, 
authorization codes, methods, procedures, data or other information related to the Security 
Solution, digital signing or digital rights management mechanisms or security utilized as part of 
any Apple software, including the App Store. If You discover any such inconsistency or conflict, 
You agree to immediately notify Apple of it and will cooperate with Apple to resolve such matter. 
You acknowledge and agree that Apple may immediately cease distribution of any affected 
Licensed Applications or Passes, and may refuse to accept any subsequent Application or Pass 
submissions from You until such matter is resolved to Apple's reasonable satisfaction. 

5.2 Relying Party Certificates 
The Apple Software and Services may also contain functionality that permits digital certificates, 
either Apple Certificates or other third-party certificates, to be accepted by the Apple Software or 
Services (e.g., Apple Pay) and/or to be used to provide information to You (e.g., transaction 
receipts, App Attest receipts). It is Your responsibility to verify the validity of any certifications or 
receipts You may receive from Apple prior to relying on them (e.g., You should verify that the 
receipt came from Apple prior to any delivery of content to an end-user through the use of the In
App Purchase API). You are solely responsible for Your decision to rely on any such certificates 
and receipts, and Apple will not be liable for Your failure to verify that any such certificates or 
receipts came from Apple (or third parties) or for Your reliance on Apple Certificates or other 
digital certificates. 

5.3 Notarized Applications for macOS 
To have Your macOS Application notarized, You may request a digital file for authentication of 
Your Application from Apple's digital notary service (a "Ticket"). You can use this Ticket with 
Your Apple Certificate to receive an improved developer signing and user experience for Your 
Application on macOS. To request this Ticket from Apple's digital notary service, You must 
upload Your Application to Apple through Apple's developer tools (or other requested 
mechanisms) for purposes of continuous security checking. This continuous security checking 
will involve automated scanning, testing, and analysis of Your Application by Apple for malware or 
other harmful or suspicious code or components or security flaws, and, in limited cases, a 

Program Agreement 
Page 34 



manual, technical investigation of Your Application by Apple for such purposes. By uploading 
Your Application to Apple for this digital notary service, You agree that Apple may perform such 
security checks on Your Application for purposes of detecting malware or other harmful or 
suspicious code or components, and You agree that Apple may retain and use Your Application 
for subsequent security checks for the same purposes. 

If Apple authenticates Your developer signature and Your Application passes the initial security 
checks, Apple may provide You with a Ticket to use with Your Apple Certificate. Apple reserves 
the right to issue Tickets in its sole discretion, and Apple may revoke Tickets at any time in its 
sole discretion in the event that Apple has reason to believe, or has reasonable suspicions, that 
Your Application contains malware or malicious, suspicious or harmful code or components or 
that Your developer identity signature has been compromised. You may request that Apple 
revoke Your Ticket at any time by emailing : product-security@apple.com. If Apple revokes Your 
Ticket or Your Apple Certificate, then Your Application may no longer run on macOS. 

You agree to cooperate with Apple regarding Your Ticket requests and to not hide, attempt to 
bypass, or misrepresent any part of Your Application from Apple's security checks or otherwise 
hinder Apple from being able to perform such security checks. You agree not to represent that 
Apple has performed a security check or malware detection for Your Application or that Apple has 
reviewed or approved Your Application for purposes of issuing a Ticket to You from Apple's digital 
notary service. You acknowledge and agree that Apple is performing security checks solely in 
connection with Apple's digital notary service and that such security checks should not be relied 
upon for malware detection or security verification of any kind. You are fully responsible for Your 
own Application and for ensuring that Your Application is safe, secure, and operational for Your 
end-users (e.g. , informing Your end-users that Your Application may cease to run if there is an 
issue with malware). You agree to comply with export requirements in Your jurisdiction when 
uploading Your Application to Apple, and You agree not to upload any Appl ication that is: (a) 
subject to the United States Export Administration Regulations, 15 C.F.R. Parts 730-77 4 or to the 
International Traffic in Arms Regulations, 22 C.F.R. Parts 120-130; or (b) that cannot be exported 
without prior written government authorization, including, but not limited to, certain types of 
encryption software and source code, without first obtaining that authorization. Apple will not be 
liable to You or any third-party for any inability or failure to detect any malware or other 
suspicious, harmful code or components in Your Application or other security issues, or for any 
ticket issuance or revocation . Apple shall not be responsible for any costs, expenses, damages, 
losses or other liabilities You may incur as a result of Your Application development, use of the 
Apple Software, Apple Services (including this digital notary service), or Apple Certificates, 
tickets, or participation in the Program, including.without limitation the fact that Apple performs 
security checks on Your Application. 

5.4 Certificate Revocation 
Except as otherwise set forth herein , You may revoke Apple Certificates issued to You at any 
time. If You want to revoke the Apple Certificates used to sign Your Passes and/or issued to You 
for use with Your macOS Applications distributed outside of the App Store, You may request that 
Apple revoke these Apple Certificates at any time by emailing: product-security@apple.com. 
Apple also reserves the right to revoke any Apple Certificates at any time, in its sole discretion. 
By way of example only, Apple may choose to do this if: (a) any of Your Apple Certificates or 
corresponding private keys have been compromised or Apple has reason to believe that either 
have been compromised; (b) Apple has reason to bel ieve or has reasonable suspicions that Your 
Covered Products contain malware or malicious, suspicious or harmful code or components (e.g., 
a software virus) ; (c) Apple has reason to believe that Your Covered Products adversely affect 
the security of Apple-branded products, or any other software, firmware, hardware, data, 
systems, or networks accessed or used by such products; (d) Apple's certificate issuance 
process is compromised or Apple has reason to believe that such process has been 
compromised; (e) You breach any term or condition of this Agreement; (f) Apple ceases to issue 
the Apple Certificates for the Covered Product under the Program; (g) Your Covered Product 
misuses or overburdens any Services provided hereunder; or (h) Apple has reason to believe that 

Program Agreement 
Page 35 



such action is prudent or necessary. Further, You understand and agree that Apple may notify 
end-users of Covered Products that are signed with Apple Certificates when Apple believes such 
action is necessary to protect the privacy, safety or security of end-users, or is otherwise prudent 
or necessary as determined in Apple's reasonable judgment. Apple's Certificate Policy and 
Certificate Practice Statements may be found at: http://www.apple.com/certificateauthority. 

6. Application Submission and Selection 
6.1 Submission to Apple for App Store or Custom App Distribution 
You may submit Your Application for consideration by Apple for distribution via the App Store or 
Custom App Distribution once You decide that Your Application has been adequately tested and 
is complete. By submitting Your Application , You represent and warrant that Your Application 
complies with the Documentation and Program Requirements then in effect as well as with any 
additional guidelines that Apple may post on the Program web portal or in App Store Connect. 
You further agree that You will not attempt to hide, misrepresent or obscure any features, 
content, services or functionality in Your submitted Applications from Apple's review or otherwise 
hinder Apple from being able to fully review such Applications. In addition, You agree to inform 
Apple in writing through App Store Connect if Your Application connects to a physical device, 
including but not limited to an MFi Accessory, and, if so, to disclose the means of such 
connection (whether iAP, Bluetooth Low Energy (BLE), the headphone jack, or any other 
communication protocol or standard) and identify at least one physical device with which Your 
Application is designed to communicate. If requested by Apple, You agree to provide access to 
or samples of any such devices at Your expense (samples will not be returned). You agree to 
cooperate with Apple in this submission process and to answer questions and provide information 
and materials reasonably requested by Apple regarding Your submitted Application, including 
insurance information You may have relating to Your Application, the operation of Your business, 
or Your obligations under this Agreement. Apple may require You to carry certain levels of 
insurance for certain types of Applications and name Apple as an additional insured. If You make 
any changes to an Application (including to any functionality made available through use of the 
In-App Purchase API) after submission to Apple, You must resubmit the Application to Apple. 
Similarly all bug fixes , updates, upgrades, modifications, enhancements, supplements to, 
revisions, new releases and new versions of Your Application must be submitted to Apple for 
review in order for them to be considered for distribution via the App Store or Custom App 
Distribution, except as otherwise permitted by Apple. 

6.2 App Thinning and Bundled Resources 
As part of Your Application submission to the App Store or Custom App Distribution, Apple may 
optimize Your Application to target specific devices by repackaging certain functionality and 
delivered resources (as described in the Documentation) in Your Application so that it will run 
more efficiently and use less space on target devices ("App Thinning"). For example, Apple may 
deliver only the 32-bit or 64-bit version of Your Application to a target device, and Apple may not 
deliver icons or launch screens that would not render on the display of a target device. You 
agree that Apple may use App Thinning to repackage Your Application in order to deliver a more 
optimized version of Your Application to target devices. 

As part of App Thinning, You can also request that Apple deliver specific resources for Your 
Application (e.g., GPU resources) to target devices by identifying such bundled resources as part 
of Your code submission ("Bundled Resources"). You can define such Bundled Resources to 
vary the timing or delivery of assets to a target device (e.g., when a user reaches a certain level 
of a game, then the content is delivered on-demand to the target device). App Thinning and 
Bundled Resources are not available for all Apple operating systems, and Apple may continue to 
deliver full Application binaries to some target devices. 

6.3 iOS and iPadOS apps on Mac 
If You compile Your Application for iOS or iPadOS (collectively "iOS" for purposes of this Section 
6.3) and submit such Application for distribution on the App Store, You agree that Apple will make 

Program Agreement 
Page 36 



Your Application available on both iOS and macOS via the App Store, unless You choose to opt 
out of making Your Application available on macOS by following the opt out process in App Store 
Connect. You agree that the foregoing applies to an Application for iOS submitted by You and 
currently available on the App Store and to any future Application compiled for iOS and submitted 
by You to the App Store. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such availability on the App Store will 
apply only if such Application has been selected by Apple for distribution on the App Store 
pursuant to Section 7 and only if such Application can function appropriately on, and be 
compatible with, macOS, as determined in Apple's sole discretion. You are responsible for 
obtaining and determining if You have appropriate rights for Your Application to operate on 
macOS. If You do not have such rights, You agree to opt out of making such Application 
available on macOS. You are responsible for testing such Application on macOS. 

6.4 Bitcode Submissions 
For Application submissions to the App Store or Custom App Distribution for some Apple 
operating systems (e.g., for watchOS), Apple may require You to submit an intermediate 
representation of Your Application in binary file format for the LLVM compiler ("Bitcode"). You 
may also submit Bitcode for other supported Apple operating systems. Such Bitcode submission 
will allow Apple to compile Your Bitcode to target specific Apple-branded devices and to 
recompile Your Bitcode for subsequent releases of Your Application for new Apple hardware, 
software, and/or compiler changes. When submitting Bitcode, You may choose whether or not to 
include symbols for Your Application in the Bitcode; however, if You do not include symbols, then 
Apple will not be able to provide You with symbolicated crash logs or other diagnostic information 
as set forth in Section 6.6 (Improving Your Application) below. Further, You may be required 
to submit a compiled binary of Your Application with Your Bitcode. 

By submitting Bitcode to Apple, You authorize Apple to compile Your Bitcode into a resulting 
binary that will be targeted for specific Apple-branded devices and to recompile Your Bitcode for 
subsequent rebuilding and recompiling of Your Application for updated hardware, software, 
and/or compiler changes (e.g., if Apple releases a new device, then Apple may use Your Bitcode 
to update Your Application without requiring resubmission). You agree that Apple may compile 
such Bitcode for its own internal use in testing and improving Apple's developer tools, and for 
purposes of analyzing and improving how applications can be optimized to run on Apple's 
operating systems (e.g., which frameworks are used most frequently, how a certain framework 
consumes memory, etc.). You may use Apple's developer tools to view and test how Apple may 
process Your Bitcode into machine code binary form. Bitcode is not available for all Apple 
operating systems. 

6.5 TestFlight Submission 
If You would like to distribute Your Application to Beta Testers outside of Your company or 
organization through TestFlight, You must first submit Your Application to Apple for review. By 
submitting such Application, You represent and warrant that Your Application complies with the 
Documentation and Program Requirements then in effect as well as with any additional 
guidelines that Apple may post on the Program web portal or in App Store Connect. Thereafter, 
Apple may permit You to distribute updates to such Application directly to Your Beta Testers 
without Apple's review, unless such an update includes significant changes, in which case You 
agree to inform Apple in App Store Connect and have such Application re-reviewed. Apple 
reserves the right to require You to cease distribution of Your Application through TestFlight, 
and/or to any particular Beta Tester, at any time in its sole discretion. 

6.6 Improving Your Application 
Further, if Your Application is submitted for distribution via the App Store, Custom App 
Distribution or TestFlight, You agree that Apple may use Your Application for the limited purpose 
of compatibility testing of Your Application with Apple products and services, for finding and fixing 
bugs and issues in Apple products and services and/or Your Applications, for internal use in 
evaluating iOS, watchOS, tvOS, iPadOS, and/or macOS performance issues in or with Your 
Application, for security testing, and for purposes of providing other information to You (e.g., 

Program Agreement 
Page 37 



crash logs). Except as otherwise set forth herein , You may opt in to send app symbol information 
for Your Application to Apple, and if You do so, then You agree that Apple may use such symbols 
to symbolicate Your Application for purposes of providing You with symbolicated crash logs and 
other diagnostic information, compatibility testing of Your Application with Apple products and 
services, and for finding and fixing bugs and issues in Apple products and services and/or Your 
Application . In the event that Apple provides You with crash logs or other diagnostic information 
for Your Application , You agree to use such crash logs and information only for purposes of fixing 
bugs and improving the performance of Your Application and related products. You may also 
collect numeric strings and variables from Your Application when it crashes, so long as You 
collect such information only in an anonymous, non-personal manner and do not recombine, 
correlate, or use such information to attempt to identify or derive information about any particular 
end-user or device. 

6. 7 App Analytics 
To the extent that Apple provides an Analytics service through App Store Connect for 
Applications distributed through the App Store, You agree to use any data provided through such 
App Analytics service solely for purposes of improving Your Applications and related products. 
Further, You agree not to provide such information to any third parties, except for a Service 
Provider who is assisting You in processing and analyzing such data on Your behalf and who is 
not permitted to use it for any other purpose or disclose it to any other party. For clarity , You 
must not aggregate (or permit any third-party to aggregate) analytics information provided to You 
by Apple for Your Applications as part of this App Analytics service with other developers' 
analytics information , or contribute such information to a repository for cross-developer analytics. 
You must not use the App Analytics service or any analytics data to attempt to identify or derive 
information about any particular end-user or device. 

6.8 Compatibility Requirement with Current Shipping OS Version 
Applications that are selected for distribution via the App Store must be compatible with the 
currently shipping version of Apple's applicable operating system (OS) software at the time of 
submission to Apple, and such Applications must stay current and maintain compatibility with 
each new release of the applicable OS version so long as such Applications are distributed 
through the App Store. You understand and agree that Apple may remove Applications from the 
App Store when they are not compatible with the then-current shipping release of the OS at any 
time in its sole discretion. 

6.9 Selection by Apple for Distribution 
You understand and agree that if You submit Your Application to Apple for distribution via the App 
Store, Custom App Distribution, or TestFlight, Apple may, in its sole discretion: 

(a) determine that Your Application does not meet all or any part of the Documentation or 
Program Requirements then in effect; 
(b) reject Your Application for distribution for any reason, even if Your Application meets the 
Documentation and Program Requirements; or 
(c) select and digitally sign Your Application for distribution via the App Store, Custom App 
Distribution, or TestFlight. 

Apple shall not be responsible for any costs, expenses, damages, losses (including without 
limitation lost business opportunities or lost profits) or other liabilities You may incur as a result of 
Your Application development, use of the Apple Software, Apple Services, or Apple Certificates 
or participation in the Program, including without limitation the fact that Your Application may not 
be selected for distribution via the App Store or Custom App Distribution. You will be solely 
responsible for developing Applications that are safe, free of defects in design and operation , and 
comply with applicable laws and regulations. You will also be solely responsible for any 
documentation and end-user customer support and warranty for such Applications. The fact that 
Apple may have reviewed, tested, approved or selected an Application will not relieve You of any 
of these responsibilities. 

Program Agreement 
Page 38 



7. Distribution of Applications and Libraries 

Applications: 

Applications developed under this Agreement for iOS, watchOS, iPadOS, or tvOS may be 
distributed in four ways: (1) through the App Store, if selected by Apple, (2) through the Custom 
App Distribution , if selected by Apple, (3) through Ad Hoc distribution in accordance with Section 
7.3, and (4) for beta testing through TestFlight in accordance with Section 7.4. Applications for 
macOS may be distributed: (a) through the App Store, if selected by Apple, (b) separately 
distributed under this Agreement, and (c) for beta testing through TestFlight in accordance with 
Section 7.4. 

7.1 Delivery of Free Licensed Applications via the App Store or Custom App 
Distribution 
If Your Application qualifies as a Licensed Application, it is eligible for delivery to end-users via 
the App Store or Custom App Distribution by Apple and/or an Apple Subsidiary. If You would like 
Apple and/or an Apple Subsidiary to deliver Your Licensed Application or authorize additional 
content, functionality or services You make available in Your Licensed Application through the 
use of the In-App Purchase API to end-users for free (no charge) via the App Store or Custom 
App Distribution, then You appoint Apple and Apple Subsidiaries as Your legal agent and/or 
commissionaire pursuant to the terms of Schedule 1 for Licensed Applications designated by You 
as free-of-charge applications. 

7.2 Schedule 2 and Schedule 3 for Fee-Based Licensed Applications; Receipts 
If Your Application qualifies as a Licensed Application and You intend to charge end-users a fee 
of any kind for Your Licensed Application or within Your Licensed Application through the use of 
the In-App Purchase API, You must enter into a separate agreement (Schedule 2) with Apple 
and/or an Apple Subsidiary before any such commercial distribution of Your Licensed Application 
may take place via the App Store or before any such commercial delivery of additional content, 
functionality or services for which You charge end-users a fee may be authorized through the use 
of the In-App Purchase API in Your Licensed Application. If You would like Apple to sign and 
distribute Your Application for a fee through Custom App Distribution, then You must enter into a 
separate agreement (Schedule 3) with Apple and/or an Apple Subsidiary before any such 
distribution may take place. To the extent that You enter (or have previously entered) into 
Schedule 2 or Schedule 3 with Apple and/or an Apple Subsidiary, the terms of Schedule 2 or 3 
will be deemed incorporated into this Agreement by this reference. 

When an end-user installs Your Licensed Application, Apple will provide You with a transaction 
receipt signed with an Apple Certificate. It is Your responsibility to verify that such certificate and 
receipt were issued by Apple, as set forth in the Documentation. You are solely responsible for 
Your decision to rely on any such certificates and receipts. YOUR USE OF OR RELIANCE ON 
SUCH CERTIFICATES AND RECEIPTS IN CONNECTION WITH A PURCHASE OF A 
LICENSED APPLICATION IS AT YOUR SOLE RISK. APPLE MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR 
REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 
ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ACCURACY, RELIABILITY, SECURITY, OR NON
INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS WITH RESPECT TO SUCH APPLE 
CERTIFICATES AND RECEIPTS. You agree that You will only use such receipts and certificates 
in accordance with the Documentation, and that You will not interfere or tamper with the normal 
operation of such digital certificates or receipts, including but not limited to any falsification or 
other misuse. 

7.3 Distribution on Registered Devices (Ad Hoc Distribution) 
Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, You may also distribute Your Applications 
for iOS, watchOS, iPadOS, and tvOS to individuals within Your company, organization, 
educational institution, group, or who are otherwise affiliated with You for use on a limited number 

Program Agreement 
Page 39 



of Registered Devices (as specified in the Program web portal), if Your Application has been 
digitally signed using Your Apple Certificate as described in this Agreement. By distributing Your 
Application in this manner on Registered Devices, You represent and warrant to Apple that Your 
Application complies with the Documentation and Program Requirements then in effect and You 
agree to cooperate with Apple and to answer questions and provide information about Your 
Application, as reasonably requested by Apple. You also agree to be solely responsible for 
determining which individuals within Your company, organization, educational institution or 
affiliated group should have access to and use of Your Applications and Registered Devices, and 
for managing such Registered Devices. Apple shall not be responsible for any costs, expenses, 
damages, losses (including without limitation lost business opportunities or lost profits) or other 
liabilities You may incur as a result of distributing Your Applications in this manner, or for Your 
failure to adequately manage, limit or otherwise control the access to and use of Your 
Applications and Registered Devices. You will be responsible for attaching or otherwise 
including, at Your discretion, any relevant usage terms with Your Applications. Apple will not be 
responsible for any violations of Your usage terms. You will be solely responsible for all user 
assistance, warranty and support of Your Applications. 

7.4 Testflight Distribution 
A. Internal Distribution to Authorized Developers and App Store Connect users 
You may use TestFlight for internal distribution of pre-release versions of Your Applications to a 
limited number (as specified on the TestFlight developer website) of Your Authorized Developers 
or Your App Store Connect users who are members of Your company or organization, but solely 
for their internal use in testing, evaluating and/or developing Your Applications. Apple reserves 
the right to require You to cease distribution of such Applications to Your Authorized Developers 
or Your App Store Connect users through TestFlight, or to any particular Authorized Developer or 
App Store Connect user, at any time in its sole discretion. 

B. External Distribution to Beta Testers 
You may also use TestFlight for external distribution of pre-release versions of Your Applications 
to a limited number of Beta Testers (as specified on the TestFlight developer website), but solely 
for their testing and evaluation of such pre-release versions of Your Applications and only if Your 
Application has been approved for such distribution by Apple as set forth in Section 6.5 
(Testflight Submission). You may not charge Your Beta Testers fees of any kind to participate 
in Apple's TestFlight or for the use of any such pre-release versions. You may not use TestFlight 
for purposes that are not related to improving the quality, performance, or usability of pre-release 
versions of Your Application (e.g., continuous distribution of demo versions of Your Application in 
an attempt to circumvent the App Store or providing trial versions of Your Applications for 
purposes of soliciting favorable App Store ratings are prohibited uses). Further, if Your 
Application is primarily intended for children, You must verify that Your Beta Testers are of the 
age of majority in their jurisdiction. If You choose to add Beta Testers to TestFlight, then You are 
assuming responsibility for any invitations sent to such end-users and for obtaining their consent 
to contact them. Apple will use the email addresses that You provide through TestFlight only for 
purposes of sending invitations to such end-users via TestFlight. By uploading email addresses 
for the purposes of sending invites to Beta Testers, You warrant that You have an appropriate 
legal basis for using such emails addresses for the purposes of sending invites. If a Beta Tester 
requests that You stop contacting them (either through TestFlight or otherwise), then You agree 
to promptly do so. 

C. Use of Testflight Information 
To the extent that TestFlight provides You with beta analytics information about Your end-user's 
use of pre-release versions of Your Application (e.g., installation time, frequency of an individual's 
use of an App, etc.) and/or other related information (e.g. tester suggestions, feedback, 
screenshots), You agree to use such data solely for purposes of improving Your Applications and 
related products. You agree not to provide such information to any third parties, except for a 
Service Provider who is assisting You in processing and analyzing such data on Your behalf and 
who is not permitted to use it for any other purpose or disclose it to any other party (and then only 

Program Agreement 
Page 40 



to the limited extent not prohibited by Apple) . For clarity, You must not aggregate (or permit any 
third-party to aggregate) beta analytics information provided to You by Apple for Your 
Applications as part of TestFlight with other developers' beta analytics information, or contribute 
such information to a repository for cross-developer beta analytics information. Further, You 
must not use any beta analytics information provided through TestFlight for purposes of de
anonymizing information obtained from or regarding a particular device or end-user outside of 
TestFlight (e.g., You may not attempt to connect data gathered through TestFlight for a particular 
end-user with information that is provided in an anonymized form through Apple's analytics 
service). 

Libraries: 

7.5 Distribution of Libraries 
You can develop Libraries using the Apple Software. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 
the Xcode and Apple SDKs Agreement or the Swift Playgrounds Agreement, under this 
Agreement You may develop Libraries for iOS, watchOS, iPadOS, and/or tvOS using the 
applicable Apple SDKs that are provided as part of the Xcode and Apple SDKs license or Swift 
Playgrounds license, provided that any such Libraries are developed and distributed solely for 
use with an iOS Product, Apple Watch, or Apple TV and that You limit use of such Libraries only 
to use with such products. If Apple determines that Your Library is not designed for use with an 
iOS Product, Apple Watch, or Apple TV, then Apple may require You to cease distribution of Your 
Library at any time, and You agree to promptly cease all distribution of such Library upon notice 
from Apple and cooperate with Apple to remove any remaining copies of such Library. For clarity, 
the foregoing limitation is not intended to prohibit the development of libraries for macOS. 

7.6 No Other Distribution Authorized Under this Agreement 
Except for the distribution of freely available Licensed Applications through the App Store or 
Custom App Distribution in accordance with Sections 7.1 and 7.2, the distribution of Applications 
for use on Registered Devices as set forth in Section 7.2 (Ad Hoc Distribution), the distribution of 
Applications for beta testing through TestFlight as set forth in Section 7.4, the distribution of 
Libraries in accordance with Section 7 .5, the distribution of Passes in accordance with 
Attachment 5, the delivery of Safari Push Notifications on macOS, the distribution of Safari 
Extensions on macOS, the distribution of Applications and libraries developed for macOS, and/or 
as otherwise permitted herein , no other distribution of programs or applications developed using 
the Apple Software is authorized or permitted hereunder. In the absence of a separate 
agreement with Apple, You agree not to distribute Your Application for iOS Products, Apple 
Watch, or Apple TV to third parties via other distribution methods or to enable or permit others to 
do so. You agree to distribute Your Covered Products only in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

8. Program Fees 
As consideration for the rights and licenses granted to You under this Agreement and Your 
participation in the Program, You agree to pay Apple the annual Program fee set forth on the 
Program website, unless You have received a valid fee waiver from Apple. Such fee is non
refundable, and any taxes that may be levied on the Apple Software, Apple Services or Your use 
of the Program shall be Your responsibility. Your Program fees must be paid up and not in 
arrears at the time You submit (or resubmit) Applications to Apple under this Agreement, and 
Your continued use of the Program web portal and Services is subject to Your payment of such 
fees, where applicable. If You opt-in to have Your annual Program fees paid on an auto
renewing basis, then You agree that Apple may charge the credit card that You have on file with 
Apple for such fees, subject to the terms You agree to on the Program web portal when You 
choose to enroll in an auto-renewing membership. 

If You pay for Your Program fees through the Apple Developer app, the terms of Attachment 9 
(Additional Terms for Subscriptions Purchased Through the Apple Developer App) also apply. 

Program Agreement 
Page 41 



9. Confidentiality 
9.1 Information Deemed Apple Confidential 
You agree that all pre-release versions of the Apple Software and Apple Services (including pre
release Documentation), pre-release versions of Apple hardware, the FPS Deployment Package, 
and any terms and conditions contained herein that disclose pre-release features will be deemed 
"Apple Confidential Information"; provided however that upon the commercial release of the Apple 
Software the terms and conditions that disclose pre-release features of the Apple Software or 
services will no longer be confidential. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Apple Confidential 
Information will not include: (i) information that is generally and legitimately available to the public 
through no fault or breach of Yours, (ii) information that is generally made available to the public 
by Apple, (iii) information that is independently developed by You without the use of any Apple 
Confidential Information , (iv) information that was rightfully obtained from a third party who had 
the right to transfer or disclose it to You without limitation, or (v) any FOSS included in the Apple 
Software and accompanied by licensing terms that do not impose confidentiality obligations on 
the use or disclosure of such FOSS. Further, Apple agrees that You will not be bound by the 
foregoing confidentiality terms with regard to technical information about pre-release Apple 
Software and services disclosed by Apple at WWDC (Apple's Worldwide Developers 
Conference), except that You may not post screenshots of, write public reviews of, or redistribute 
any pre-release Apple Software, Apple Services or hardware. 

9.2 Obligations Regarding Apple Confidential Information 
You agree to protect Apple Confidential Information using at least the same degree of care that 
You use to protect Your own confidential information of similar importance, but no less than a 
reasonable degree of care. You agree to use Apple Confidential Information solely for the 
purpose of exercising Your rights and performing Your obligations under this Agreement and 
agree not to use Apple Confidential Information for any other purpose, for Your own or any third 
party's benefit, without Apple's prior written consent. You further agree not to disclose or 
disseminate Apple Confidential Information to anyone other than: (i) those of Your employees and 
contractors, or those of Your faculty and staff if You are an educational institution, who have a 
need to know and who are bound by a written agreement that prohibits unauthorized use or 
disclosure of the Apple Confidential Information; or (ii) except as otherwise agreed or permitted in 
writing by Apple. You may disclose Apple Confidential Information to the extent required by law, 
provided that You take reasonable steps to notify Apple of such requirement before disclosing the 
Apple Confidential Information and to obtain protective treatment of the Apple Confidential 
Information. You acknowledge that damages for improper disclosure of Apple Confidential 
Information may be irreparable; therefore, Apple is entitled to seek equitable relief, including 
injunction and preliminary injunction, in addition to all other remedies. 

9.3 Information Submitted to Apple Not Deemed Confidential 
Apple works with many application and software developers and some of their products may be 
similar to or compete with Your Applications. Apple may also be developing its own similar or 
competing applications and products or may decide to do so in the future. To avoid potential 
misunderstandings and except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, Apple cannot agree, and 
expressly disclaims, any confidentiality obligations or use restrictions, express or implied, with 
respect to any information that You may provide in connection with this Agreement or the 
Program, including but not limited to information about Your Application, Licensed Application 
Information, and metadata (such disclosures will be referred to as "Licensee Disclosures"). You 
agree that any such Licensee Disclosures will be non-confidential. Except as otherwise 
expressly set forth herein, Apple will be free to use and disclose any Licensee Disclosures on an 
unrestricted basis without notifying or compensating You. You release Apple from all liability and 
obligations that may arise from the receipt, review, use, or disclosure of any portion of any 
Licensee Disclosures. Any physical materials You submit to Apple will become Apple property 
and Apple will have no obligation to return those materials to You or to certify their destruction. 

Program Agreement 
Page 42 



9.4 Press Releases and Other Publicity 
You may not issue any press releases or make any other public statements regarding this 
Agreement, its terms and conditions, or the relationship of the parties without Apple's express 
prior written approval, which may be withheld at Apple's discretion. 

10. Indemnification 
To the extent permitted by applicable law, You agree to indemnify and hold harmless, and upon 
Apple's request, defend, Apple, its directors, officers, employees, independent contractors and 
agents (each an "Apple Indemnified Party") from any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, 
taxes, expenses and costs, including without limitation, attorneys' fees and court costs 
(collectively, "Losses"), incurred by an Apple Indemnified Party and arising from or related to any 
of the following (but excluding for purposes of this Section, any Application for macOS that is 
distributed outside of the App Store and does not use any Apple Services or Certificates): (i) Your 
breach of any certification, covenant, obligation, representation or warranty in this Agreement, 
including Schedule 2 and Schedule 3 (if applicable); (ii) any claims that Your Covered Product or 
the distribution, sale, offer for sale, use or importation of Your Covered Product (whether alone or 
as an essential part of a combination}, Licensed Application Information, metadata, or Pass 
Information violate or infringe any third party intellectual property or proprietary rights; (iii) Your 
breach of any of Your obligations under the EULA (as defined in Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 or 
Schedule 3 (if applicable)) for Your Licensed Application; (iv) Apple's permitted use, promotion or 
delivery of Your Licensed Application, Licensed Application Information, Safari Push Notification, 
Safari Extension (if applicable), Pass, Pass Information, metadata, related trademarks and logos, 
or images and other materials that You provide to Apple under this Agreement, including 
Schedule 2 or Schedule 3 (if applicable); (v) any claims, including but not limited to any end-user 
claims, regarding Your Covered Products, Licensed Application Information, Pass Information, or 
related logos, trademarks, content or images; or (vi) Your use (including Your Authorized 
Developers' use) of the Apple Software or services, Your Licensed Application Information, Pass 
Information, metadata, Your Authorized Test Units, Your Registered Devices, Your Covered 
Products, or Your development and distribution of any of the foregoing. 

You acknowledge that neither the Apple Software nor any Services are intended for use in the 
development of Covered Products in which errors or inaccuracies in the content, functionality, 
services, data or information provided by any of the foregoing or the failure of any of the 
foregoing, could lead to death, personal injury, or severe physical or environmental damage, and, 
to the extent permitted by law, You hereby agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless each 
Apple Indemnified Party from any Losses incurred by such Apple Indemnified Party by reason of 
any such use. 

In no event may You enter into any settlement or like agreement with a third party that affects 
Apple's rights or binds Apple in any way, without the prior written consent of Apple. 

11. Term and Termination 
11.1 Term 
The Term of this Agreement shall extend until the one (1) year anniversary of the original 
activation date of Your Program account. Thereafter, subject to Your payment of annual renewal 
fees and compliance with the terms of this Agreement, the Term will automatically renew for 
successive one (1) year terms, unless sooner terminated in accordance with this Agreement. 

11.2 Termination 
This Agreement and all rights and licenses granted by Apple hereunder and any services 
provided hereunder will terminate, effective immediately upon notice from Apple: 
(a) if You or any of Your Authorized Developers fail to comply with any term of this Agreement 
other than those set forth below in this Section 11.2 and fail to cure such breach within 30 days 
after becoming aware of or receiving notice of such breach; 

Program Agreement 
Page 43 



(b) if You or any of Your Authorized Developers fail to comply with the terms of Section 9 
(Confidentiality); 
(c) in the event of the circumstances described in the subsection entitled "Severability" below; 
{d) if You , at any time during the Term, commence an action for patent infringement against 
Apple; 
(e) if You become insolvent, fail to pay Your debts when due, dissolve or cease to do business, 
file for bankruptcy, or have filed against You a petition in bankruptcy; 
(f) if You or any entity or person that directly or indirectly controls You , or is under common 
control with You (where "control" has the meaning defined in Section 14.8), are or become 
subject to sanctions or other restrictions in the countries or regions available in App Store 
Connect; or 
(g) if You engage, or encourage others to engage, in any misleading, fraudulent, improper, 
unlawful or dishonest act relating to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, misrepresenting 
the nature of Your Application (e.g., hiding or trying to hide functionality from Apple's review, 
falsifying consumer reviews for Your Application, engaging in payment fraud, etc.). 

Apple may also terminate this Agreement, or suspend Your rights to use the Apple Software or 
services, if You fail to accept any new Program Requirements or Agreement terms as described 
in Section 4. Either party may terminate this Agreement for its convenience, for any reason or no 
reason, effective 30 days after providing the other party with written notice of its intent to 
terminate. 

11.3 Effect of Termination 
Upon the termination of this Agreement for any reason, You agree to immediately cease all use of 
the Apple Software and services and erase and destroy all copies, full or partial , of the Apple 
Software and any information pertaining to the services (including Your Push Application ID) and 
all copies of Apple Confidential Information in Your and Your Authorized Developers' possession 
or control. At Apple's request, You agree to provide written certification of such destruction to 
Apple. Upon the expiration of the Delivery Period defined and set forth in Schedule 1, all 
Licensed Applications and Licensed Application Information in Apple's possession or control shall 
be deleted or destroyed within a reasonable time thereafter, excluding any archival copies 
maintained in accordance with Apple's standard business practices or required to be maintained 
by applicable law, rule or regulation. The following provisions shall survive any termination of this 
Agreement: Sections 1, 2.3, 2.5, 2.6, 3. 1(d), 3.1(e), 3.1(f), 3.2, and 3.3, the second paragraph of 
Section 5.1 (excluding the last two sentences other than the restrictions, which shall survive), the 
third paragraph of Section 5.1, the last sentence of the first paragraph of Section 5.3 and the 
limitations and restrictions of Section 5.3, Section 5.4 , the first sentence of and the restrictions of 
Section 6.6, the restrictions of Section 6.7, the second paragraph of Section 6.9, Section 7.1 
(Schedule 1 for the Delivery Period), the restrictions of Section 7.3, 7.4, and 7.5, Section 7.6, 
Section 9 through 14 inclusive; within Attachment 1, the last sentence of Section 1.1 , Section 2, 
Section 3.2 {but only for existing promotions), the second and third sentences of Section 4, 
Section 5, and Section 6; within Attachment 2, Sections 1.3, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; within 
Attachment 3, Sections 1, 2 (except the second sentence of Section 2.1 ), 3 and 4; within 
Attachment 4, Sections 1.2, 1.5, 1.6, 2, 3, and 4; within Attachment 5, Sections 2.2, 2.3, 2.4 (but 
only for existing promotions), 3.3, and 5; within Attachment 6, Sections 1.2, 1.3, 2, 3, and 4; within 
Attachment 7, Section 1.1 and Section 1.2; and Attachment 8. Apple will not be liable for 
compensation , indemnity, or damages of any sort as a result of terminating this Agreement in 
accordance with its terms, and termination of this Agreement will be without prejudice to any 
other right or remedy Apple may have, now or in the future. 

12. NO WARRANTY 
The Apple Software or Services may contain inaccuracies or errors that could cause failures or 
loss of data and it may be incomplete. Apple and its licensors reserve the right to change, 
suspend, remove, or disable access to any Services (or any part thereof) at any time without 
notice. In no event will Apple or its licensors be liable for the removal of or disabling of access to 

Program Agreement 
Page 44 



any such Services. Apple or its licensors may also impose limits on the use of or access to 
certain Services, or may remove the Services for indefinite time periods , or cancel the Services at 
any time , and in any case and without notice or liability. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT 
PERMITIED BY APPLICABLE LAW, YOU EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT 
USE OF THE APPLE SOFTWARE, SECURITY SOLUTION, AND ANY SERVICES IS AT YOUR 
SOLE RISK AND THAT THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO SATISFACTORY QUALITY, 
PERFORMANCE, ACCURACY AND EFFORT IS WITH YOU. THE APPLE SOFTWARE, 
SECURITY SOLUTION, AND ANY SERVICES ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" AND "AS AVAILABLE", 
WITH ALL FAULTS AND WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, AND APPLE, APPLE'S 
AGENTS AND APPLE'S LICENSORS (COLLECTIVELY REFERRED TO AS "APPLE" FOR 
THE PURPOSES OF SECTIONS 12AND13) HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES AND 
CONDITIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE APPLE SOFTWARE, SECURITY SOLUTION, AND 
SERVICES, EITHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING WITHOUT 
LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, 
SATISFACTORY QUALITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ACCURACY, 
TIMELINESS, AND NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS. APPLE DOES NOT 
WARRANT AGAINST INTERFERENCE WITH YOUR ENJOYMENT OF THE APPLE 
SOFTWARE, SECURITY SOLUTION, OR SERVICES, THAT THE APPLE SOFTWARE, 
SECURITY SOLUTION, OR SERVICES WILL MEET YOUR REQUIREMENTS, THAT THE 
OPERATION OF THE APPLE SOFTWARE, SECURITY SOLUTION, OR THE PROVISION OF 
SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED, TIMELY, SECURE OR ERROR-FREE, THAT 
DEFECTS OR ERRORS IN THE APPLE SOFTWARE, SECURITY SOLUTION, OR SERVICES 
WILL BE CORRECTED, OR THAT THE APPLE SOFTWARE, SECURITY SOLUTION, OR 
SERVICES WILL BE COMPATIBLE WITH FUTURE APPLE PRODUCTS, SERVICES OR 
SOFTWARE OR ANY THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE, APPLICATIONS, OR SERVICES, OR THAT 
ANY INFORMATION STORED OR TRANSMITIED THROUGH ANY APPLE SOFTWARE OR 
SERVICES WILL NOT BE LOST, CORRUPTED OR DAMAGED. YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT 
THE APPLE SOFTWARE AND SERVICES ARE NOT INTENDED OR SUITABLE FOR USE IN 
SITUATIONS OR ENVIRONMENTS WHERE ERRORS, DELAYS, FAILURES OR 
INACCURACIES IN THE TRANSMISSION OR STORAGE OF DATA OR INFORMATION BY OR 
THROUGH THE APPLE SOFTWARE OR SERVICES COULD LEAD TO DEATH, PERSONAL 
INJURY, OR FINANCIAL, PHYSICAL, PROPERTY OR ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE, 
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION THE OPERATION OF NUCLEAR FACILITIES, AIRCRAFT 
NAVIGATION OR COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL, LIFE SUPPORT 
OR WEAPONS SYSTEMS. NO ORAL OR WRITIEN INFORMATION OR ADVICE GIVEN BY 
APPLE OR AN APPLE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE WILL CREATE A WARRANTY NOT 
EXPRESSLY STATED IN THIS AGREEMENT. SHOULD THE APPLE SOFTWARE, SECURITY 
SOLUTION, OR SERVICES PROVE DEFECTIVE, YOU ASSUME THE ENTIRE COST OF ALL 
NECESSARY SERVICING, REPAIR OR CORRECTION. Location data as well as any maps 
data provided by any Services or software is for basic navigational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon in situations where precise location information is needed or where 
erroneous, inaccurate or incomplete location data may lead to death, personal injury, property or 
environmental damage. Neither Apple nor any of its licensors guarantees the availability, 
accuracy, completeness, reliability, or timeliness of location data or any other data or information 
displayed by any Services or software. 

13. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
TO THE EXTENT NOT PROHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, IN NO EVENT WILL APPLE BE 
LIABLE FOR PERSONAL INJURY, OR ANY INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT, 
CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF DATA, BUSINESS 
INTERRUPTION OR ANY OTHER COMMERCIAL DAMAGES OR LOSSES, ARISING OUT OF 
OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, YOUR USE OR INABILITY TO USE THE APPLE 
SOFTWARE, SECURITY SOLUTION, SERVICES, APPLE CERTIFICATES, OR YOUR 
DEVELOPMENT EFFORTS OR PARTICIPATION IN THE PROGRAM, HOWEVER CAUSED, 

Program Agreement 
Page 45 



WHETHER UNDER A THEORY OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT (INCLUDING 
NEGLIGENCE), PRODUCTS LIABILITY, OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF APPLE HAS BEEN 
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE 
FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL PURPOSE OF ANY REMEDY. In no event shall Apple's total liability 
to You under this Agreement for all damages (other than as may be required by applicable law in 
cases involving personal injury) exceed the amount of fifty dollars ($50.00). 

14. General Legal Terms 
14.1 Third Party Notices 
Portions of the Apple Software or Services may utilize or include third party software and other 
copyrighted material. Acknowledgements, licensing terms and disclaimers for such material are 
contained in the electronic documentation for the Apple Software and Services, and Your use of 
such material is governed by their respective terms. 

14.2 Consent to Collection and Use of Data 
A. Pre-Release Versions of iOS, watchOS, tvOS, iPadOS, and macOS 
In order to provide, test and help Apple, its partners, and third party developers improve their 
products and services, and unless You or Your Authorized Developers opt out in the pre-release 
versions of iOS, watchOS, tvOS, iPadOS, or macOS, as applicable, You acknowledge that Apple 
and its subsidiaries and agents will be collecting, using, storing, transmitting, processing and 
analyzing (collectively, "Collecting"} diagnostic, technical, and usage logs and information from 
Your Authorized Test Units (that are running pre-release versions of the Apple Software and 
services} as part of the developer seeding process. This information will be Collected in a form 
that does not personally identify You or Your Authorized Developers and may be Collected from 
Your Authorized Test Units at any time. The information that would be Collected includes, but is 
not limited to, general diagnostic and usage data, various unique device identifiers, various 
unique system or hardware identifiers, details about hardware and operating system 
specifications, performance statistics, and data about how You use Your Authorized Test Unit, 
system and application software, and peripherals, and, if Location Services is enabled, certain 
location information. You agree that Apple may share such diagnostic, technical, and usage logs 
and information with partners and third-party developers for purposes of allowing them to improve 
their products and services that operate on or in connection with Apple-branded products. By 
installing or using pre-release versions of iOS, watchOS, tvOS, iPadOS, or macOS on Your 
Authorized Test Units, You acknowledge and agree that Apple and its subsidiaries and 
agents have Your permission to Collect all such information and use it as set forth above 
in this Section. 

B. Other Pre-Release Apple Software and Services 
In order to test, provide and improve Apple's products and services, and only if You choose to 
install or use other pre-release Apple Software or Services provided as part of the developer 
seeding process or Program, You acknowledge that Apple and its subsidiaries and agents may 
be Collecting diagnostic, technical, usage and related information from other pre-release Apple 
Software and Services. Apple will notify You about the Collection of such information on the 
Program web portal, and You should carefully review the release notes and other information 
disclosed by Apple in such location prior to choosing whether or not to install or use any such pre
release Apple Software or Services. By installing or using such pre-release Apple Software 
and Services, You acknowledge and agree that Apple and its subsidiaries and agents have 
Your permission to Collect any and all such information and use it as set forth above. 

C. Device Deployment Services 
In order to set up and use the device provisioning, account authentication, and deployment 
features of the Apple Software and Services, certain unique identifiers for Your computer, iOS 
Products, watchOS devices, tvOS devices, and account information may be needed. These 
unique identifiers may include Your email address, Your Apple ID, a hardware identifier for Your 
computer, and device identifiers entered by You into the Apple Software or Services for such 

Program Agreement 
Page 46 



Apple-branded products. Such identifiers may be logged in association with Your interaction with 
the Service and Your use of these features and the Apple Software and Services. By using 
these features, You agree that Apple and its subsidiaries and agents may Collect this 
information for the purpose of providing the Apple Software and Services, including using 
such identifiers for account verification and anti-fraud measures. If You do not want to 
provide this information, do not use the provisioning, deployment or authentication features of the 
Apple Software or Services. 

D. Apple Services 
In order to test, provide and improve Apple's products and services, and only if You choose to 
use the Services provided hereunder (and except as otherwise provided herein), You 
acknowledge that Apple and its subsidiaries and agents may be Collecting diagnostic, technical, 
usage and related information from the Apple Services. Some of this information will be 
Collected in a form that does not personally identify You. However, in some cases, Apple may 
need to Collect information that would personally identify You, but only if Apple has a good faith 
belief that such Collection is reasonably necessary to: (a) provide the Apple Services; (b) comply 
with legal process or request; (c) verify compliance with the terms of this Agreement; (d) prevent 
fraud, including investigating any potential technical issues or violations; or (e) protect the rights, 
property, security or safety of Apple, its developers, customers or the public as required or 
permitted by law. By installing or using such Apple Services, You acknowledge and agree 
that Apple and its subsidiaries and agents have Your permission to Collect any and all 
such information and use it as set forth in this Section. Further, You agree that Apple may 
share the diagnostic, technical, and usage logs and information (excluding personally identifiable 
information) with partners and third-party developers for purposes of allowing them to improve 
their products and services that operate on or in connection with Apple-branded products. 

E. Privacy Policy 
Data collected pursuant to this Section 14.2 will be treated in accordance with Apple's Privacy 
Policy which can be viewed at http://www.apple.com/legal/privacy. 

14.3 Assignment; Relationship of the Parties 
This Agreement may not be assigned, nor may any of Your obligations under this Agreement be 
delegated, in whole or in part, by You by operation of law, merger, or any other means without 
Apple's express prior written consent and any attempted assignment without such consent will be 
null and void. To submit a request for Apple's consent to assignment, please log into your 
account at developer.apple.com and follow the steps under Membership. Except for the agency 
appointment as specifically set forth in Schedule 1 (if applicable), this Agreement will not be 
construed as creating any other agency relationship, or a partnership, joint venture, fiduciary duty, 
or any other form of legal association between You and Apple, and You will not represent to the 
contrary, whether expressly, by implication, appearance or otherwise. This Agreement is not for 
the benefit of any third parties. 

14.4 Independent Development 
Nothing in this Agreement will impair Apple's right to develop, acquire, license, market, promote, 
or distribute products or technologies that perform the same or similar functions as, or otherwise 
compete with, Licensed Applications , Covered Products, or any other products or technologies 
that You may develop, produce, market, or distribute. 

14.5 Notices 
Any notices relating to this Agreement shall be in writing, except as otherwise set forth in Section 
14.3. Notices will be deemed given by Apple when sent to You at the email address or mailing 
address You provided during the sign-up process. Except as set forth in Section 14.3, all notices 
to Apple relating to this Agreement will be deemed given (a) when delivered personally, (b) three 
business days after having been sent by commercial overnight carrier with written proof of 
delivery, and (c) five business days after having been sent by first class or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, to this Apple address: Developer Relations Legal, Apple Inc., One Apple Park Way, 37-

Program Agreement 
Page 47 



21SM, Cupertino , California, 95014 U.S.A. You consent to receive notices by email and agree that 
any such notices that Apple sends You electronically will satisfy any legal communication 
requirements. A party may change its email or mailing address by giving the other written notice 
as described above. 

14.6 Severability 
If a court of competent jurisdiction finds any clause of this Agreement to be unenforceable for any 
reason, that clause of this Agreement shall be enforced to the maximum extent permissible so as 
to effect the intent of the parties, and the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full force 
and effect. However, if applicable law prohibits or restricts You from fully and specifically 
complying with, or appointing Apple and Apple Subsidiaries as Your agent under Schedule 1 or 
the Sections of this Agreement entitled "Internal Use License and Restrictions", "Your 
Obligations" or "Apple Certificates; Revocation", or prevents the enforceability of any of those 
Sections or Schedule 1, this Agreement will immediately terminate and You must immediately 
discontinue any use of the Apple Software as described in the Section entitled "Term and 
Termination." 

14. 7 Waiver and Construction 
Failure by Apple to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of 
future enforcement of that or any other provision . Any laws or regulations that provide that the 
language of a contract will be construed against the drafter will not apply to this Agreement. 
Section headings are for convenience only and are not to be considered in construing or 
interpreting this Agreement. 

14.8 Export Control 
A. You may not use, export, re-export, import, sell, release, or transfer the Apple Software, 
Services, or Documentation except as authorized by United States law, the laws of the jurisdiction 
in which You obtained the Apple Software, and any other applicable laws and regulations. In 
particular, but without limitation, the Apple Software, Services, source code, technology, and 
Documentation (collectively referred to as "Apple Technology" for purposes of this Section 14.8) 
may not be exported, or re-exported, transferred, or released (a) into any U.S. embargoed 
countries or regions or (b) to anyone on the U.S. Treasury Department's list of Specially 
Designated Nationals or the U.S. Department of Commerce's Denied Persons List or on any 
other restricted party lists. By using the Apple Technology, You represent and warrant that You 
are not located in any such country or region or on any such list. You also agree that You will not 
use the Apple Technology, including any pre-release versions thereof, for any purposes 
prohibited by United States law, including, without limitation, the development, design, 
manufacture or production of nuclear, missile, chemical or biological weapons or any other 
military end uses as defined in 15 C.F.R. § 744. You certify that pre-release versions of the 
Apple Tectinology will only be used for development and testing purposes , and will not be rented, 
sold, leased, sublicensed, assigned, or otherwise transferred. Further, You certify that You will 
not sell, transfer or export any product, process or service that is a direct product of such pre
release Apple Technology. 

B. You represent and warrant that You and any entity or person that directly or indirectly controls 
You, or is under common control with You, are not: (a) on any sanctions lists in the countries or 
regions available in App Store Connect, (b) doing business in any of the US embargoed countries 
or regions, and (c) a military end user as defined and scoped in 15 C.F.R § 744. As used in this 
Section 14.8, "control" means that an entity or person possesses, directly or indirectly, the power 
to direct or cause the direction of the management policies of the other entity, whether through 
ownership of voting securities, an interest in registered capital, by contract, or otherwise. 

14.9 Government End-users 
The Apple Software and Documentation are "Commercial Items", as that term is defined at 48 
C.F.R. §2.101, consisting of "Commercial Computer Software" and "Commercial Computer 
Software Documentation", as such terms are used in 48 C.F.R. §12.212 or 48 C.F.R. §227.7202, 

Program Agreement 
Page 48 



as applicable. Consistent with 48 C.F.R. §12.212 or 48 C.F.R. §227.7202-1 through 227.7202-4, 
as applicable, the Commercial Computer Software and Commercial Computer Software 
Documentation are being licensed to U.S. Government end-users (a) only as Commercial Items 
and (b) with only those rights as are granted to all other end-users pursuant to the terms and 
conditions herein. Unpublished-rights reserved under the copyright laws of the United States. 

14.10 Dispute Resolution; Governing Law 
Any litigation or other dispute resolution between You and Apple arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement, the Apple Software, or Your relationship with Apple will take place in the Northern 
District of California, and You and Apple hereby consent to the personal jurisdiction of and 
exclusive venue in the state and federal courts within that District with respect any such litigation 
or dispute resolution. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the United States and the State of California, except that body of California law 
concerning conflicts of law. Notwithstanding the foregoing: 

(a) If You are an agency, instrumentality or department of the federal government of the United 
States, then this Agreement shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the United States of 
America, and in the absence of applicable federal law, the laws of the State of California will 
apply. Further, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement (including but not 
limited to Section 10 (Indemnification)), all claims, demands, complaints and disputes will be 
subject to the Contract Disputes Act (41 U.S.C. §§601-613), the Tucker Act (28 U.S.C. § 1346(a) 
and § 1491 ), or the Federal Tort Claims Act (28 U.S.C. §§ 1346(b), 2401-2402, 2671-2672, 2674-
2680), as applicable, or other applicable governing authority. For the avoidance of doubt, if You 
are an agency, instrumentality, or department of the federal, state or local government of the U.S. 
or a U.S. public and accredited educational institution, then Your indemnification obligations are 
only applicable to the extent they would not cause You to violate any applicable law (e.g., the 
Anti-Deficiency Act), and You have any legally required authorization or authorizing statute; 
(b) If You (as an entity entering into this Agreement) are a U.S. public and accredited educational 
institution or an agency, instrumentality, or department of a state or local government within the 
United States, then (a) this Agreement will be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the state (within the U.S.) in which Your entity is domiciled, except that body of state law 
concerning conflicts of law; and (b) any litigation or other dispute resolution between You and 
Apple arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the Apple Software, or Your relationship with 
Apple will take place in federal court within the Northern District of California, and You and Apple 
hereby consent to the personal jurisdiction of and exclusive venue of such District unless such 
consent is expressly prohibited by the laws of the state in which Your entity is domiciled; and 
(c) If You are an international, intergovernmental organization that has been conferred immunity 
from the jurisdiction of national courts through Your intergovernmental charter or agreement, then 
any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall 
be determined by arbitration under the Rules of Arbitration of the International Chamber of 
Commerce (the "ICC Rules") in effect at the time of applying for arbitration by three arbitrators 
appointed in accordance with such rules, and will be conducted according to the International Bar 
Association (IBA) Rules on the Taking of Evidence in International Arbitration. The place of 
arbitration shall be London, England. The arbitration shall be conducted in English. Upon Apple's 
request, You agree to provide evidence of Your status as an intergovernmental organization with 
such privileges and immunities. 

This Agreement shall not be governed by the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the 
International Sale of Goods, the application of which is expressly excluded. 

14.11 Entire Agreement; Governing Language 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the use of 
the Apple Software, Apple Services and Apple Certificates licensed hereunder and, except as 
otherwise set forth herein, supersedes all prior understandings and agreements regarding its 
subject matter. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that You are provided with pre
release materials under the Program and such pre-release materials are subject to a separate 

Program Agreement 
Page 49 



license agreement, You agree that the license agreement accompanying such materials in 
addition to Section 9 (Confidentiality) of this Agreement shall also govern Your use of such 
materials. If You have entered or later enter into the Xcode and Apple SDKs Agreement, this 
Apple Developer Program License Agreement will govern in the event of any inconsistencies 
between the two with respect to the same subject matter; provided, however, that this Apple 
Developer Program License Agreement is not intended to prevent You from exercising any rights 
granted to You in the Xcode and Apple SDKs Agreement in accordance with the terms and 
conditions set forth therein. If You have entered or later enter into the Swift Playgrounds 
Agreement, this Apple Developer Program License Agreement will govern in the event of any 
inconsistencies between the two with respect to the same subject matter; provided, however, that 
this Apple Developer Program License Agreement is not intended to prevent You from exercising 
any rights granted to You in the Swift Playgrounds Agreement in accordance with the terms and 
conditions set forth therein. This Agreement may be modified only: (a) by a written amendment 
signed by both parties, or (b) to the extent expressly permitted by this Agreement (for example, 
by Apple by written or email notice to You). Any translation is provided as a courtesy to You, and 
in the event of a dispute between the English and any non-English version, the English version of 
this Agreement shall govern, to the extent not prohibited by local law in Your jurisdiction. If You 
are located in the province of Quebec, Canada or are a government organization within France, 
then the following clause applies to You: The parties hereby confirm that they have requested 
that this Agreement and all related documents be drafted in English. Les parties ont exige que le 
present contrat et taus /es documents connexes soient rediges en anglais. 

Program Agreement 
Page 50 



Attachment 1 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for Apple Push Notification Service and Local Notifications 

The following terms are in addition to the terms of the Agreement and apply to any use of the 
APN (Apple Push Notification Service): 

1. Use of the APN and Local Notifications 

1.1 You may use the APN only in Your Applications, Your Passes, and/or in sending Safari 
Push Notifications to the macOS desktop of users of Your Site who have opted in to receive 
Notifications through Safari on macOS. You, Your Application and/or Your Pass may access the 
APN only via the APN API and only if You have been assigned a Push Application ID by Apple. 
Except for a Service Provider who is assisting You with using the APN, You agree not to share 
Your Push Application ID with any third party. You understand that You will not be permitted to 
access or use the APN after expiration or termination of Your Agreement. 

1.2 You are permitted to use the APN and the APN APls only for the purpose of sending 
Push Notifications to Your Application, Your Pass, and/or to the macOS desktop of users of Your 
Site who have opted in to receive Notifications through Safari on macOS as expressly permitted 
by the Agreement, the APN Documentation and all applicable laws and regulations (including all 
intellectual property laws). You further agree that You must disclose to Apple any use of the APN 
as part of the submission process for Your Application. 

1.3 You understand that before You send an end-user any Push Notifications through the 
APN, the end-user must consent to receive such Notifications. You agree not to disable, override 
or otherwise interfere with any Apple-implemented consent panels or any Apple system 
preferences for enabling or disabling Notification functionality. If the end-user's consent to 
receive Push Notifications is denied or later withdrawn, You may not send the end-user Push 
Notifications. 

2. Additional Requirements 

2.1 You may not use the APN or Local Notifications for the purpose of sending unsolicited 
messages to end-users or for the purpose of phishing or spamming, including, but not limited to, 
engaging in any types of activities that violate anti-spamming laws and regulations, or that are 
otherwise improper, inappropriate or illegal. The APN and Local Notifications should be used for 
sending relevant messages to a user that provide a benefit (e.g., a response to an end-user 
request for information, provision of pertinent information relevant to the Application). 

2.2 You may not use the APN or Local Notifications for the purposes of advertising, product 
promotion, or direct marketing of any kind (e.g., up-selling, cross-selling, etc.), including, but not 
limited to, sending any messages to promote the use of Your Application or advertise the 
availability of new features or versions. Notwithstanding the foregoing, You may use the APN or 
Local Notifications for promotional purposes in connection with Your Pass so long as such use is 
directly related to the Pass, e.g., a store coupon may be sent to Your Pass in Wallet. 

2.3 You may not excessively use the overall network capacity or bandwidth of the APN, or 
unduly burden an iOS Product, Apple Watch, macOS or an end-user with excessive Push 
Notifications or Local Notifications, as may be determined by Apple in its reasonable discretion. 
In addition, You agree not to harm or interfere with Apple's networks or servers, or any third party 
servers or networks connected to the APN, or otherwise disrupt other developers' use of the 
APN. 

2.4 You may not use the APN or Local Notifications to send material that contains any 
obscene, pornographic, offensive or defamatory content or materials of any kind (text, graphics, 

Program Agreement 
Page 51 



images, photographs, sounds, etc.), or other content or materials that in Apple's reasonable 
judgment may be found objectionable by the end-user of Your Application, Pass or Site. 

2.5 You may not transmit, store or otherwise make available any material that contains 
viruses or any other computer code, files or programs that may harm, disrupt or limit the normal 
operation of the APN or an iOS Product, Apple Watch, or macOS, and You agree not to disable, 
spoof, hack or otherwise interfere with any security, digital signing, verification or authentication 
mechanisms that are incorporated in or used by the APN, or enable others to do so. 

3. Additional Terms for Website Push IDs 

3.1 Subject to the terms of this Agreement, You understand and agree that Safari Push 
Notifications that You send using Your Website Push ID must be sent under Your own name, 
trademark or brand (e.g., a user should know that the communication is coming from Your Site) 
and must include an icon, trademark, logo or other identifying mark for Your Site. You agree not 
to misrepresent or impersonate another Site or entity or otherwise mislead users about the 
originator of the Safari Push Notification. To the extent that You reference a third party's 
trademark or brand within Your Safari Push Notification, You represent and warrant that You 
have any necessary rights. 

3.2 By enabling the APN and sending Safari Push Notifications for Your Site as permitted in 
this Agreement, You hereby permit Apple to use (i) screenshots of Your Safari Push Notifications 
on macOS; and (ii) trademarks and logos associated with such Notifications, for promotional 
purposes in Apple's marketing materials, excluding those portions which You do not have the 
right to use for promotional purposes and which You identify in writing to Apple. You also permit 
Apple to use images and other materials that You may provide to Apple, at Apple's reasonable 
request, for promotional purposes in marketing materials. 

4. Delivery by the APN or via Local Notifications. You understand and agree that in 
order to provide the APN and make Your Push Notifications available on iOS Products, Apple 
Watch, or macOS, Apple may transmit Your Push Notifications across various public networks, in 
various media, and modify or change Your Push Notifications to comply with the technical and 
other requirements for connecting to networks or devices. You acknowledge and agree that the 
APN is not, and is not intended to be, a guaranteed or secure delivery service, and You shall not 
use or rely upon it as such. Further, as a condition to using the APN or delivering Local 
Notifications, You agree not to transmit sensitive personal or confidential information belonging to 
an individual (e.g., a social security number, financial account or transactional information, or any 
information where the individual may have a reasonable expectation of secure transmission) as 
part of any such Notification, and You agree to comply with any applicable notice or consent 
requirements with respect to any collection, transmission, maintenance, processing or use of an 
end-user's personal information. 

5. Your Acknowledgements. You acknowledge and agree that: 

5.1 Apple may at any time, and from time to time, with or without prior notice to You (a) 
modify the APN, including changing or removing any feature or functionality, or (b) modify, 
deprecate, reissue or republish the APN APls. You understand that any such modifications may 
require You to change or update Your Applications, Passes or Sites at Your own cost. Apple has 
no express or implied obligation to provide, or continue to provide, the APN and may suspend or 
discontinue all or any portion of the APN at any time. Apple shall not be liable for any losses, 
damages or costs of any kind incurred by You or any other party arising out of or related to any 
such service suspension or discontinuation or any such modification of the APN or APN APls. 

5.2 The APN is not available in all languages or in all countries or regions and Apple makes 
no representation that the APN is appropriate or available for use in any particular location. To 

Program Agreement 
Page 52 



the extent You choose to access and use the APN, You do so at Your own initiative and are 
responsible for compliance with any applicable laws, including but not limited to any local laws. 

5.3 Apple provides the APN to You for Your use with Your Application , Pass, or Site, and 
does not provide the APN directly to any end-user. You acknowledge and agree that any Push 
Notifications are sent by You , not Apple, to the end-user of Your Application, Pass or Site, and 
You are solely liable and responsible for any data or content transmitted therein and for any such 
use of the APN. Further, You acknowledge and agree that any Local Notifications are sent by 
You , not Apple, to the end-user of Your Application, and You are solely liable and responsible for 
any data or content transmitted therein. 

5.4 Apple makes no guarantees to You in relation to the availability or uptime of the APN and 
is not obligated to provide any maintenance, technical or other support for the APN. 

5.5 Apple reserves the right to remove Your access to the APN, limit Your use of the APN, or 
revoke Your Push Application ID at any time in its sole discretion. 

5.6 Apple may monitor and collect information (including but not limited to technical and 
diagnostic information) about Your usage of the APN to aid Apple in improving the APN and other 
Apple products or services and to verify Your compliance with this Agreement; provided however 
that Apple will not access or disclose the content of any Push Notification unless Apple has a 
good faith belief that such access or disclosure is reasonably necessary to: (a) comply with legal 
process or request; (b) enforce the terms of this Agreement, including investigation of any 
potential violation hereof; (c) detect, prevent or otherwise address security, fraud or technical 
issues; or (d) protect the rights, property or safety of Apple, its developers, customers or the 
public as required or permitted by law. Notwithstanding the foregoing , You acknowledge and 
agree that iOS, iPadOS, macOS, and watchOS may access Push Notifications locally on a user's 
device solely for the purposes of responding to user requests and personalizing user experience 
and suggestions on device. 

6. Additional Liability Disclaimer. APPLE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES 
OR LOSSES ARISING FROM ANY USE OF THE APN, INCLUDING ANY INTERRUPTIONS TO 
THE APN OR ANY USE OF NOTIFICATIONS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY 
POWER OUTAGES, SYSTEM FAILURES, NETWORK ATTACKS, SCHEDULED OR 
UNSCHEDULED MAINTENANCE, OR OTHER INTERRUPTIONS. 

Program Agreement 
Page 53 



Attachment 2 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for Use of the In-App Purchase API 

The following terms are in addition to the terms of the Agreement and apply to any use of the In
App Purchase API in Your Application: 

1. Use of the In-App Purchase API 

1.1 You may use the In-App Purchase API only to enable end-users to access or receive 
content, functionality, or services that You make available for use within Your Application (e.g., 
digital books, additional game levels, access to a turn-by-turn map service). You may not use the 
In-App Purchase API to offer goods or services to be used outside of Your Application . 

1.2 You must submit to Apple for review and approval all content, functionality, or services 
that You plan to provide through the use of the In-App Purchase API in accordance with these 
terms and the processes set forth in Section 6 (Application Submission and Selection) of the 
Agreement. For all submissions, You must provide the name, text description, price, unique 
identifier number, and other information that Apple reasonably requests (collectively, the 
"Submission Description"). Apple reserves the right to review the actual content, functionality 
or service that has been described in the Submission Descriptions at any time, including, but not 
limited to, in the submission process and after approval of the Submission Description by Apple. 
If You would like to provide additional content, functionality or services through the In-App 
Purchase API that are not described in Your Submission Description, then You must first submit a 
new or updated Submission Description for review and approval by Apple prior to making such 
items available through the use of the In-App Purchase APL Apple reserves the right to withdraw 
its approval of content, functionality, or services previously approved, and You agree to stop 
making any such content, functionality, or services available for use within Your Application. 

1.3 All content, functionality, and services offered through the In-App Purchase API are 
subject to the Program Requirements for Applications, and after such content, services or 
functionality are added to a Licensed Application, they will be deemed part of the Licensed 
Application and will be subject to all the same obligations and requirements. For clarity, 
Applications that provide keyboard extension functionality may not use the In-App Purchase API 
within the keyboard extension itself; however, they may continue to use the In-App Purchase API 
in separate areas of the Application. 

2. Additional Restrictions 

2.1 You may not use the In-App Purchase API to enable an end-user to set up a pre-paid 
account to be used for subsequent purchases of content, functionality, or services, or otherwise 
create balances or credits that end-users can redeem or use to make purchases at a later time. 

2.2 You may not enable end-users to purchase Currency of any kind through the In-App 
Purchase API, including but not limited to any Currency for exchange, gifting, redemption, 
transfer, trading or use in purchasing or obtaining anything within or outside of Your Application. 
"Currency" means any form of currency, points, credits, resources, content or other items or units 
recognized by a group of individuals or entities as representing a particular value and that can be 
transferred or circulated as a medium of exchange. 

2.3 Content and services may be offered through the In-App Purchase API on a subscription 
basis (e.g., subscriptions to newspapers and magazines). Other than specific approved rental 
content such as films, television programs, music, books, rentals of content, services or 
functionality through the In-App Purchase API are not allowed (e.g., use of particular content may 
not be restricted to a pre-determined, limited period of time). 

Program Agreement 
Page 54 



2.4 You may not use the In-App Purchase API to send any software updates to Your 
Application or otherwise add any additional executable code to Your Application. An In-App 
Purchase item must either already exist in Your Application waiting to be unlocked, be streamed 
to Your Application after the In-App Purchase API transaction has been completed, or be 
downloaded to Your Application solely as data after such transaction has been completed. 

2.5 You may not use the In-App Purchase API to deliver any items that contain content or 
materials of any kind (text, graphics, images, photographs, sounds, etc.) that in Apple's 
reasonable judgment may be found objectionable or inappropriate, for example, materials that 
may be considered obscene, pornographic, or defamatory. 

2.6 With the exception of items of content that an end-user consumes or uses up within Your 
Application (e.g., virtual supplies such as construction materials) (a "Consumable") , any other 
content, functionality, services or subscriptions delivered through the use of the In-App Purchase 
API (e.g ., a sword for a game) (a "Non-Consumable") must be made available to end-users in 
accordance with the same usage rules as Licensed Applications (e.g., any such content, services 
or functionality must be available to all of the devices associated with an end-user's account). 
You will be responsible for identifying Consumable items to Apple and for disclosing to end-users 
that Consumables will not be available for use on other devices. 

3. Your Responsibilities 

3.1 For each successfully completed transaction made using the In-App Purchase API, Apple 
will provide You with a transaction receipt. It is Your responsibility to verify the validity of such 
receipt prior to the delivery of any content, functionality, or services to an end-user and Apple will 
not be liable for Your failure to verify that any such transaction receipt came from Apple. 

3.2 Unless Apple provides You with user interface elements, You are responsible for 
developing the user interface Your Application will display to end-users for orders made through 
the In-App Purchase API. You agree not to misrepresent, falsely claim, mislead or engage in any 
unfair or deceptive acts or practices regarding the promotion and sale of items through Your use 
of the In-App Purchase API, including, but not limited to, in the Licensed Application Information 
and any metadata that You submit through App Store Connect. You agree to comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations, including those in any jurisdictions in which You make content, 
functionality, services or subscriptions available through the use of the In-App Purchase API , 
including but not limited to consumer laws and export regulations. 

3.3 Apple may provide hosting services for Non-Consumables that You would like to provide 
to Your end-users through the use of the In-App Purchase API. Even if Apple hosts such Non
Consumables on Your behalf, You are responsible for providing items ordered through the In-App 
Purchase API in a timely manner (i.e., promptly after Apple issues the transaction receipt, except 
in cases where You have disclosed to Your end-user that the item will be made available at a 
later time) and for complying with all applicable laws in connection therewith, including but not 
limited to, laws, rules and regulations related to cancellation or delivery of ordered items. You are 
responsible for maintaining Your own records for all such transactions. 

3.4 You will not issue any refunds to end-users of Your Application, and You agree that 
Apple may issue refunds to end-users in accordance with the terms of Schedule 2. 

3.5 You may provide Apple, its subsidiaries, and agents with end-user consumption 
information from Your Application in order to inform and improve the refund process and 
purchase dispute process. You shall provide notice to the user and/or obtain consent from the 
user in compliance with the Documentation and applicable laws. 

Program Agreement 
Page 55 



4. Apple Services 

4.1 From time to time, Apple may choose to offer additional services and functionality relating 
to In-App Purchase API transactions. Apple makes no guarantees that the In-App Purchase API 
or any Services will continue to be made available to You or that they will meet Your 
requirements, be uninterrupted, timely, secure or free from error, that any information that You 
obtain from the In-App Purchase API or any Services will be accurate or reliable or that any 
defects will be corrected. 

4.2 You understand that You will not be permitted to access or use the In-App Purchase API 
after expiration or termination of Your Agreement. 

5. Your Acknowledgements. You acknowledge and agree that: 
Apple may at any time, and from time to time, with or without prior notice to You (a) modify the In
App Purchase API, including changing or removing any feature or functionality, or (b) modify, 
deprecate, reissue or republish the In-App Purchase API. You understand that any such 
modifications may require You to change or update Your Applications at Your own cost in order to 
continue to use the In-App Purchase API. Apple has no express or implied obligation to provide, 
or continue to provide, the In-App Purchase API or any services related thereto and may suspend 
or discontinue all or any portion of thereof at any time. Apple shall not be liable for any losses, 
damages or costs of any kind incurred by You or any other party arising out of or related to any 
suspension, discontinuation or modification of the In-App Purchase API or any services related 
thereto. Apple makes no guarantees to You in relation to the availability or uptime of the In-App 
Purchase API or any other services that Apple may provide to You in connection therewith, and 
Apple is not obligated to provide any maintenance, technical or other support related thereto. 
Apple provides the In-App Purchase API to You for Your use with Your Application, and may 
provide services to You in connection therewith (e.g. , hosting services for Non-Consumable 
items). Apple is not responsible for providing or unlocking any content, functionality, services or 
subscriptions that an end-user orders through Your use of the In-App Purchase API. You 
acknowledge and agree that any such items are made available by You, not Apple, to the end
user of Your Application, and You are solely liable and responsible for such items ordered 
through the use of the In-App Purchase API and for any such use of the In-App Purchase API in 
Your Application or for any use of services in connection therewith. 

6. Use of Digital Certificates for In-App Purchase. When an end-user completes a 
transaction using the In-App Purchase API in Your Application, Apple will provide You with a 
transaction receipt signed with an Apple Certificate. It is Your responsibility to verify that such 
certificate and receipt were issued by Apple, as set forth in the Documentation. You are solely 
responsible for Your decision to rely on any such certificates and receipts. YOUR USE OF OR 
RELIANCE ON SUCH CERTIFICATES AND RECEIPTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE IN-APP 
PURCHASE API IS AT YOUR SOLE RISK. APPLE MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR 
REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR 
ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ACCURACY, RELIABILITY, SECURITY, OR NON
INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS WITH RESPECT TO SUCH APPLE 
CERTIFICATES AND RECEIPTS. You agree that You will only use such receipts and certificates 
in accordance with the Documentation, and that You will not interfere or tamper with the normal 
operation of such digital certificates or receipts, including but not limited to any falsification or 
other misuse. 

7. Additional Liability Disclaimer. APPLE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES 
OR LOSSES ARISING FROM THE USE OF THE IN-APP PURCHASE API AND ANY 
SERVICES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, (I) ANY LOSS OF PROFIT (WHETHER 
INCURRED DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY), ANY LOSS OF GOODWILL OR BUSINESS 
REPUTATION, ANY LOSS OF DATA SUFFERED, OR OTHER INTANGIBLE LOSS, (II) ANY 
CHANGES WHICH APPLE MAY MAKE TO THE IN-APP PURCHASE API OR ANY SERVICES, 
OR FOR ANY PERMANENT OR TEMPORARY CESSATION IN THE PROVISION OF THE IN-

Program Agreement 
Page 56 



APP PURCHASE API OR ANY SERVICES (OR ANY FEATURES WITHIN THE SERVICES) 
PROVIDED THEREWITH, OR (Ill) THE DELETION OF, CORRUPTION OF, OR FAILURE TO 
PROVIDE ANY DATA TRANSMITTED BY OR THROUGH YOUR USE OF THE IN-APP 
PURCHASE API OR SERVICES. It is Your responsibility to maintain appropriate alternate 
backup of all Your information and data, including but not limited to any Non-Consumables that 
You may provide to Apple for hosting services. 

Program Agreement 
Page 57 



Attachment 3 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for the Game Center 

The following terms are in addition to the terms of the Agreement and apply to any use of the 
Game Center service by You or Your Application. 

1. Use of the Game Center service 

1.1 You and Your Application may not connect to or use the Game Center service in any way 
not expressly authorized by Apple. You agree to only use the Game Center service in 
accordance with this Agreement (including this Attachment 3), the Game Center Documentation 
and in accordance with all applicable laws. You understand that neither You nor Your Application 
will be permitted to access or use the Game Center service after expiration or termination of Your 
Agreement. 

1.2 Apple may provide You with a unique identifier which is associated with an end-user's 
alias as part of the Game Center service (the "Player ID"). You agree to not display the Player ID 
to the end-user or to any third party, and You agree to only use the Player ID for differentiation of 
end-users in connection with Your use of the Game Center. You agree not to reverse look-up, 
trace, relate , associate, mine, harvest, or otherwise exploit the Player ID, aliases or other data or 
information provided by the Game Center service, except to the extent expressly permitted 
herein. For example, You will not attempt to determine the real identity of an end-user. 

1.3 You will only use information provided by the Game Center service as necessary for 
providing services and functionality for Your Applications. For example, You will not host or 
export any such information to a third party service. Further, You agree not to transfer or copy 
any user information or data (whether individually or in the aggregate) obtained through the 
Game Center service to a third party except as necessary for providing services and functionality 
for Your Applications, and then only with express user consent and only if not otherwise 
prohibited in this Agreement. 

1.4 You will not attempt to gain (or enable others to gain) unauthorized use or access to the 
Game Center service (or any part thereof) in any way, including but not limited to obtaining 
information from the Game Center service using any method not expressly permitted by Apple. 
For example , You may not use packet sniffers to intercept any communications protocols from 
systems or networks connected to the Game Center, scrape any data or user information from 
the Game Center, or use any third party software to collect information through the Game Center 
about players, game data, accounts, or service usage patterns. 

2. Additional Restrictions 

2.1 You agree not to harm or interfere with Apple's networks or servers, or any third party 
servers or networks connected to the Game Center service, or otherwise disrupt other 
developers' or end-users' use of the Game Center. You agree that, except for testing and 
development purposes, You will not create false accounts through the use of the Game Center 
service or otherwise use the Game Center service to misrepresent information about You or Your 
Application in a way that would interfere with an end-users' use of the Game Center service, e.g., 
creating inflated high scores through the use of cheat codes or falsifying the number of user 
accounts for Your Application. 

2.2 You will not institute, assist, or enable any disruptions of the Game Center, such as 
through a denial of service attack, through the use of an automated process or service such as a 
spider, script, or bot, or through exploiting any bug in the Game Center service or Apple Software. 
You agree not to probe, test or scan for vulnerabilities in the Game Center service. You further 

Program Agreement 
Page 58 



agree not to disable, spoof, hack, undermine or otherwise interfere with any data protection, 
security, verification or authentication mechanisms that are incorporated in or used by the Game 
Center service , or enable others to do so. 

2.3 You will not transmit, store or otherwise make available any material that contains viruses 
or any other computer code, files or programs that may harm, disrupt or limit the normal operation 
of the Game Center or an iOS Product. 

2.4 You agree not to use any portion of the Game Center service for sending any unsolicited, 
improper or inappropriate messages to end-users or for the purpose of poaching, phishing or 
spamming of Game Center users. You will not reroute (or attempt to reroute) users of the Game 
Center to another service using any information You obtain through the use of the Game Center 
service. 

2.5 You shall not charge any fees to end-users for access to the Game Center service or for 
any data or information provided therein. 

2.6 To the extent that Apple permits You to manage certain Game Center features and 
functionality for Your Application through App Store Connect (e.g., the ability to block fraudulent 
users or eliminate suspicious leaderboard scores from Your Application's leaderboard), You 
agree to use such methods only when You have a reasonable belief that such users or scores 
are the result of misleading, fraudulent, improper, unlawful or dishonest acts. 

3. Your Acknowledgements. You acknowledge and agree that: 

3.1 Apple may at any time, and from time to time, with or without prior notice to You (a) 
modify the Game Center service, including changing or removing any feature or functionality, or 
(b) modify, deprecate, reissue or republish the Game Center APls or related APls. You 
understand that any such modifications may require You to change or update Your Applications 
at Your own cost. Apple has no express or implied obligation to provide, or continue to provide, 
the Game Center service and may suspend or discontinue all or any portion of the Game Center 
service at any time. Apple shall not be liable for any losses, damages or costs of any kind 
incurred by You or any other party arising out of or related to any such service suspension or 
discontinuation or any such modification of the Game Center service or Game Center APls. 

3.2 Apple makes no guarantees to You in relation to the availability or uptime of the Game 
Center service and is not obligated to provide any maintenance, technical or other support for 
such service. Apple reserves the right to remove Your access to the Game Center service at any 
time in its sole discretion. Apple may monitor and collect information (including but not limited to 
technical and diagnostic information) about Your usage of the Game Center service to aid Apple 
in improving the Game Center and other Apple products or services and to verify Your 
compliance with this Agreement. 

4. Additional Liability Disclaimer. APPLE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES 
OR LOSSES ARISING FROM ANY INTERRUPTIONS TO THE GAME CENTER OR ANY 
SYSTEM FAILURES, NETWORK ATTACKS, SCHEDULED OR UNSCHEDULED 
MAINTENANCE, OR OTHER INTERRUPTIONS. 

Program Agreement 
Page 59 



Attachment 4 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for the use of iCloud 

The following terms are in addition to the terms of the Agreement and apply to Your use of the 
iCloud service for software development and testing in connection with Your Application, or Web 
Software. 

1. Use of iCloud 

1.1 Your Applications and/or Web Software may access the iCloud service only if You have 
been assigned an entitlement by Apple. You agree not to access the iCloud service, or any 
content, data or information contained therein, other than through the iCloud Storage APls, 
CloudKit APls or via the CloudKit console provided as part of the Program. You agree not to 
share Your entitlement with any third party or use it for any purposes not expressly permitted by 
Apple. You agree to use the iCloud service, the iCloud Storage APls, and the CloudKit APls only 
as expressly permitted by this Agreement and the iCloud Documentation, and in accordance with 
all applicable laws and regulations. Further, Your Web Software is permitted to access and use 
the iCloud service (e.g., to store the same type of data that is retrieved or updated in a Licensed 
Application) only so long as Your use of the iCloud service in such Web Software is comparable 
to Your use in the corresponding Licensed Application, as determined in Apple's sole discretion. 
In the event Apple Services permit You to use more than Your allotment of storage containers in 
iCloud in order to transfer data to another container for any reason, You agree to only use such 
additional container(s) for a reasonable limited time to perform such functions and not to increase 
storage and transactional allotments. 

1.2 You understand that You will not be permitted to access or use the iCloud service for 
software development or testing after expiration or termination of Your Agreement; however end
users who have Your Applications or Web Software installed and who have a valid end-user 
account with Apple to use iCloud may continue to access their user-generated documents, 
private containers and files that You have chosen to store in such end-user's account via the 
iCloud Storage APls or the CloudKit APls in accordance with the applicable iCloud terms and 
conditions and these terms. You agree not to interfere with an end-user's ability to access iCloud 
(or the end-user's own user-generated documents, private containers and files) or to otherwise 
disrupt their use of iCloud in any way and at any time. With respect to data You store in public 
containers through the Cloud Kit APls (whether generated by You or the end-user), Apple 
reserves the right to suspend access to or delete such data, in whole or in part, upon expiration or 
termination of Your Agreement, or as otherwise specified by Apple in the CloudKit console. 

1.3 Your Application is permitted to use the iCloud Storage APls only for the purpose of 
storage and retrieval of key value data (e.g., a list of stocks in a finance App, settings for an App) 
for Your Applications and Web Software and for purposes of enabling Your end-users to access 
user-generated documents and files through the iCloud service. Your Application or Web 
Software application is permitted to use the CloudKit APls for storing, retrieving, and querying of 
structured data that You choose to store in public or private containers in accordance with the 
iCloud Documentation. You agree not to knowingly store any content or materials via the iCloud 
Storage APls or CloudKit APls that would cause Your Application to violate any of the iCloud 
terms and conditions or the Program Requirements for Your Applications (e.g., Your Application 
may not store illegal or infringing materials). 

1.4 You may allow a user to access their user-generated documents and files from iCloud 
through the use of Your Applications as well as from Web Software. However, You may not 
share key value data from Your Application with other Applications or Web Software, unless You 
are sharing such data among different versions of the same title, or You have user consent. 

Program Agreement 
Page 60 



1.5 You are responsible for any content and materials that You store in iCloud through the 
use of the CloudKit APls and iCloud Storage APls and must take reasonable and appropriate 
steps to protect information You store through the iCloud service. With respect to third party 
claims related to content and materials stored by Your end-users in Your Applications through the 
use of the iCloud Storage APls or CloudKit APls (e.g ., user-generated documents, end-user 
posts in public containers), You agree to be responsible for properly handling and promptly 
processing any such claims, including but not limited to Your compliance with notices sent 
pursuant to the Digital Millennium Copyright Act (DMCA). 

1.6 Unless otherwise expressly permitted by Apple in writing, You will not use iCloud, the 
iCloud Storage AP ls, CloudKit APls, or any component or function thereof, to create, receive, 
maintain or transmit any sensitive, individually-identifiable health information, including "protected 
health information" (as such term is defined at 45 C.F.R § 160.103), or use iCloud in any manner 
that would make Apple (or any Apple Subsidiary) Your or any third party's "business associate" 
as such term is defined at 45 C.F.R. § 160.103. You agree to be solely responsible for complying 
with any reporting requirements under law or contract arising from Your breach of this Section. 

2. Additional Requirements 

2.1 You understand there are storage capacity, transmission, and transactional limits for the 
iCloud service, both for You as a developer and for Your end-users. If You reach or Your end
user reaches such limits , then You or Your end-user may be unable to use the iCloud service 
until You or Your end-user have removed enough data from the service to meet the capacity 
limits, increased storage capacity or otherwise modified Your usage of iCloud, and You or Your 
end-user may be unable to access or retrieve data from iCloud during this time. 

2.2 You may not charge any fees to users for access to or use of the iCloud service through 
Your Applications or Web Software, and You agree not to sell access to the iCloud service in any 
other way, including but not limited to reselling any part of the service. You will only use the 
iCloud service in Your Application or Web Software to provide storage for an end-user who has a 
valid end-user iCloud account with Apple and only for use in accordance with the terms of such 
user account, except that You may use the CloudKit APls to store of data in public containers for 
access by end-users regardless of whether such users have iCloud accounts. You will not induce 
any end-user to violate the terms of their applicable iCloud service agreement with Apple or to 
violate any Apple usage policies for data or information stored in the iCloud service. 

2.3 You may not excessively use the overall network capacity or bandwidth of the iCloud 
service or otherwise burden such service with unreasonable data loads or queries. You agree 
not to harm or interfere with Apple's networks or servers, or any third party servers or networks 
connected to the iCloud, or otherwise disrupt other developers' or users' use of the iCloud 
service. 

2.4 You will not disable or interfere with any warnings, system settings, notices, or 
notifications that are presented to an end-user of the iCloud service by Apple. 

3. Your Acknowledgements 

You acknowledge and agree that: 

3.1 Apple may at any time, with or without prior notice to You (a) modify the iCloud Storage 
APls or the CloudKit APls, including changing or removing any feature or functionality, or (b) 
modify, deprecate, reissue or republish such APls. You understand that any such modifications 
may require You to change or update Your Applications or Web Software at Your own cost. 
Apple has no express or implied obligation to provide, or continue to provide, the iCloud service 
and may suspend or discontinue all or any portion of the iCloud service at any time. Apple shall 

Program Agreement 
Page 61 



not be liable for any losses, damages or costs of any kind incurred by You or any other party 
arising out of or related to any such service suspension or discontinuation or any such 
modification of the iCloud service, iCloud Storage APls or the CloudKit APls. 

3.2 The iCloud service is not available in all languages or in all countries or regions and 
Apple makes no representation that the iCloud service is appropriate or available for use in any 
particular location. To the extent You choose to provide access to the iCloud service in Your 
Applications or Web Software through the iCloud Storage APls or CloudKit APls (e.g., to store 
data in a public or private container), You do so at Your own initiative and are responsible for 
compliance with any applicable laws or regulations. 

3.3 Apple makes no guarantees to You in relation to the availability or uptime of the iCloud 
service and is not obligated to provide any maintenance, technical or other support for the iCloud 
service. Apple is not responsible for any expenditures, investments, or commitments made by 
You in connection with the iCloud service, or for any use of or access to the iCloud service. 

3.4 Apple reserves the right to suspend or revoke Your access to the iCloud service or 
impose limits on Your use of the iCloud service at any time in Apple's sole discretion. In addition, 
Apple may impose or adjust the limit of transactions Your Applications or Web Software may 
send or receive through the iCloud service or the resources or capacity that they may use at any 
time in Apple's sole discretion. 

3.5 Apple may monitor and collect information (including but not limited to technical and 
diagnostic information) about usage of the iCloud service through the iCloud Storage APls, 
CloudKit AP ls, or Cloud Kit console, in order to aid Apple in improving the iCloud service and 
other Apple products or services; provided however that Apple will not access or disclose any 
end-user data stored in a private container through CloudKit, any Application data stored in a 
public container through CloudKit, or any user-generated documents, files or key value data 
stored using the iCloud Storage APls and iCloud service, unless Apple has a good faith belief that 
such access, use, preservation or disclosure is reasonably necessary to comply with a legal or 
regulatory process or request, or unless otherwise requested by an end-user with respect to data 
stored via the iCloud Storage APls in that end-user's iCloud account or in that end-user's private 
container via the CloudKit APls. 

3.6 Further, to the extent that You store any personal information relating to an individual or 
any information from which an individual can be identified (collectively, "Personal Data") in the 
iCloud service through the use of the iCloud Storage APls or CloudKit AP ls, You agree that Apple 
(and any applicable Apple Subsidiary for purposes of this Section 3.6) will act as Your agent for 
the processing, storage and handling of any such Personal Data. Apple agrees to ensure that any 
persons authorized to process such Personal Data have agreed to maintain confidentiality 
(whether through terms or under an appropriate statutory obligation). Apple shall have no right, 
title or interest in such Personal Data solely as a result of Your use of the iCloud service. You 
agree that You are solely liable and responsible for ensuring Your compliance with all applicable 
laws, including privacy and data protection laws, regarding the use or collection of data and 
information through the iCloud service. You are also responsible for all activity related to such 
Personal Data, including but not limited to, monitoring such data and activity, preventing and 
addressing inappropriate data and activity, and removing and terminating access to data. Further, 
You are responsible for safeguarding and limiting access to such Personal Data by Your 
personnel and for the actions of Your personnel who are permitted access to use the iCloud 
service on Your behalf. Personal Data provided by You and Your users to Apple through the 
iCloud service may be used by Apple only as necessary to provide and improve the iCloud 
service and to perform the following actions on Your behalf. Apple shall : 

(a) use and handle such Personal Data only in accordance with the instructions and permissions 
from You set forth herein, as well as applicable laws, regulations, accords, or treaties. In the EEA 

Program Agreement 
Page 62 



and Switzerland, Personal Data will be handled by Apple only in accordance with the instructions 
and permissions from You set forth herein unless otherwise required by European Union or 
Member State Law, in which case Apple will notify You of such other legal requirement (except in 
limited cases where Apple is prohibited by law from doing so); 
(b) provide You with reasonable means to manage any user access, deletion, or restriction 
requests as defined in applicable law. In the event of an investigation of You arising from Your 
good faith use of the iCloud service by a data protection regulator or similar authority regarding 
such Personal Data, Apple shall provide You with reasonable assistance and support; 
(c) notify You by any reasonable means Apple selects, without undue delay and taking account of 
applicable legal requirements applying to You which mandate notification within a specific 
timeframe, if Apple becomes aware that Your Personal Data has been altered, deleted or lost as 
a result of any unauthorized access to the Service. You are responsible for providing Apple with 
Your updated contact information for such notification purposes in accordance with the terms of 
this Agreement; 
(d) make available to You the information necessary to demonstrate compliance obligations set 
forth in Article 28 of Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 
27 April 2016 (GDPR) and to allow for and contribute to audits required under these provisions; 
provided however that You agree that Apple's ISO 27001 and 27018 certifications shall be 
considered sufficient for such required audit purposes; 
(e) assist You , by any reasonable means Apple selects, in ensuring compliance with its 
obligations pursuant to Articles 33 to 36 of the GDPR. If Apple receives a third party request for 
information You have stored in the iCloud service, then unless otherwise required by law or the 
terms of such request, Apple will notify You of its receipt of the request and notify the requester of 
the requirement to address such request to You. Unless otherwise required by law or the request, 
You will be responsible for responding to the request; 
(f) use industry-standard measures to safeguard Personal Data during the transfer, processing 
and storage of Personal Data. Encrypted Personal Data may be stored at Apple's geographic 
discretion; and 
(g) ensure that where Personal Data, arising in the context of this Agreement, is transferred from 
the EEA or Switzerland it is only to a third country that ensures an adequate level of protection or 
using the Model Contract Clauses/Swiss Transborder Data Flow Agreement which will be 
provided to You upon request if you believe that Personal Data is being transferred. 

4. Additional Liability Disclaimer. NEITHER APPLE NOR ITS SERVICE PROVIDERS 
SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES OR LOSSES ARISING FROM ANY USE, MISUSE, 
RELIANCE ON , INABILITY TO USE, INTERRUPTION, SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION OF 
iCLOUD, iCLOUD STORAGE APIS, OR CLOUDKIT APIS, OR FOR ANY UNAUTHORIZED 
ACCESS TO, ALTERATION OF, OR DELETION, DESTRUCTION, DAMAGE, LOSS OR 
FAILURE TO STORE ANY OF YOUR DATA OR ANY END-USER DATA OR ANY CLAIMS 
ARISING FROM ANY USE OF THE FOREGOING BY YOUR END-USERS, INCLUDING ANY 
CLAIMS REGARDING DATA PROCESSING OR INAPPROPRIATE OR UNAUTHORIZED DATA 
STORAGE OR HANDLING BY YOU IN VIOLATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

Program Agreement 
Page 63 



Attachment 5 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for Passes 

The following terms are in addition to the terms of the Agreement and apply to Your development 
and distribution of Passes: 

1. Pass Type ID Usage and Restrictions 

You may use the Pass Type ID only for purposes of digitally signing Your Pass for use with 
Wallet and/or for purposes of using the APN service with Your Pass. You may distribute Your 
Pass Type ID as incorporated into Your Pass in accordance with Section 2 below only so long as 
such distribution is under Your own trademark or brand. To the extent that You reference a third 
party's trademark or brand within Your Pass (e.g., a store coupon for a particular good), You 
represent and warrant that You have any necessary rights. You agree not to share, provide or 
transfer Your Pass Type ID to any third party (except for a Service Provider and only to the 
limited extent permitted herein), nor use Your Pass Type ID to sign a third party's pass. 

2. Pass Distribution; Marketing Permissions 

2.1 Subject to the terms of this Agreement, You may distribute Your Passes to end-users by 
the web, email, or an Application. You understand that Passes must be accepted by such users 
before they will be loaded into Wallet and that Passes can be removed or transferred by such 
users at any time. 

2.2 By distributing Your Passes in this manner, You represent and warrant to Apple that Your 
Passes comply with the Documentation and Program Requirements then in effect and the terms 
of this Attachment 5. Apple shall not be responsible for any costs, expenses, damages, losses 
(including without limitation lost business opportunities or lost profits) or other liabilities You may 
incur as a result of distributing Your Passes in this manner. 

2.3 You agree to state on the Pass Your name and address, and the contact information 
(telephone number; email address) to which any end-user questions, complaints, or claims with 
respect to Your Pass should be directed. You will be responsible for attaching or otherwise 
including, at Your discretion, any relevant end-user usage terms with Your Pass. Apple will not 
be responsible for any violations of Your end-user usage terms. You will be solely responsible for 
all user assistance, warranty and support of Your Pass. You may not charge any fees to end
users in order to use Wallet to access Your Pass. 

2.4 By distributing Your Passes as permitted in this Agreement, You hereby permit Apple to 
use (i) screenshots of Your Pass; (ii) trademarks and logos associated with Your Pass; and (iii) 
Pass Information, for promotional purposes in marketing materials and gift cards, excluding those 
portions which You do not have the right to use for promotional purposes and which You identify 
in writing to Apple. You also permit Apple to use images and other materials that You may 
provide to Apple, at Apple's reasonable request, for promotional purposes in marketing materials 
and gift cards. 

3. Additional Pass Requirements 

3.1 Apple may provide You with templates to use in creating Your Passes, and You agree to 
choose the relevant template for Your applicable use (e.g., You will not use the boarding pass 
template for a movie ticket). 

3.2 Passes may only operate and be displayed in Wallet, which is Apple's designated 
container area for the Pass, through Wallet on the lock screen of a compatible Apple-branded 
product in accordance with the Documentation. 

Program Agreement 
Page 64 



3.3. Notwithstanding anything else in Section 3.3.9 of the Agreement, with prior user consent, 
You and Your Pass may share user and/or device data with Your Application so long as such 
sharing is for the purpose of providing a service or function that is directly relevant to the use of 
the Pass and/or Application, or to serve advertising in accordance with Sections 3.3.12 of the 
Agreement. 

3.4 If You would like to use embedded Near Field Communication (NFC) technology with 
Your Pass, then You may request an Apple Certificate for the use of NFC with a Pass from the 
Developer web portal. Apple will review Your request and may provide You with a separate 
agreement for the use of such Apple Certificate. Apple reserves the right to not provide You with 
such Apple Certificate. 

4. Apple's Right to Review Your Pass; Revocation. You understand and agree that 
Apple reserves the right to review and approve or reject any Pass that You would like to distribute 
for use by Your end-users, or that is already in use by Your end-users, at any time during the 
Term of this Agreement. If requested by Apple, You agree to promptly provide such Pass to 
Apple. You agree not to attempt to hide, misrepresent, mislead, or obscure any features, content, 
services or functionality in Your Pass from Apple's review or otherwise hinder Apple from being 
able to fully review such Pass, and, You agree to cooperate with Apple and answer questions and 
provide information and materials reasonably requested by Apple regarding such Pass. If You 
make any changes to Your Pass after submission to Apple, You agree to notify Apple and, if 
requested by Apple, resubmit Your Pass prior to any distribution of the modified Pass to Your 
end-users. Apple reserves the right to revoke Your Pass Type ID and reject Your Pass for 
distribution to Your end-users for any reason and at any time in its sole discretion, even if Your 
Pass meets the Documentation and Program Requirements and terms of this Attachment 5; and, 
in that event, You agree that You may not distribute such Pass to Your end-users. 

5. Additional Liability Disclaimer. APPLE SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES 
OR LOSSES ARISING FROM ANY USE, DISTRIBUTION, MISUSE, RELIANCE ON, INABILITY 
TO USE, INTERRUPTION, SUSPENSION, OR TERMINATION OF WALLET, YOUR PASS 
TYPE ID, YOUR PASSES, OR ANY SERVICES PROVIDED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY LOSS OR FAILURE TO DISPLAY YOUR PASS IN 
WALLET OR ANY END-USER CLAIMS ARISING FROM ANY USE OF THE FOREGOING BY 
YOUR END-USERS. 

Program Agreement 
Page 65 



Attachment 6 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for the use of the Apple Maps Service 

The following terms are in addition to the terms of the Agreement and apply to any use of the 
Apple Maps Service in Your Application, website, or web application. 

1. Use of the Maps Service 

1.1 Your Application may access the Apple Maps Service only via the MapKit API, Apple 
Maps Server API or through MapKit JS, and Your website or web application may access the 
Apple Maps Service only via MapKit JS or Apple Maps Server API. You agree not to access the 
Apple Maps Service or the Map Data other than through the MapKit API , Apple Maps Server API 
or MapKit JS, as applicable, and You agree that Your use of the Apple Maps Service in Your 
Applications, websites, or web applications must comply with the Program Requirements. 

1.2 You will use the Apple Maps Service and Map Data only as necessary for providing 
services and functionality for Your Application , website, or web application. You agree to use the 
Apple Maps Service, MapKit API, Apple Maps Server API , and MapKit JS only as expressly 
permitted by this Agreement (including but not limited to this Attachment 6) and the MapKit, Apple 
Maps Server API, and MapKit JS Documentation, and in accordance with all applicable laws and 
regulations. MapKit JS may not be used in Your website and/or application running on non-Apple 
hardware for the following commercial purposes: fleet management (including dispatch), asset 
tracking , enterprise route optimization, or where the primary purpose of such website and/or 
application is to assess vehicle insurance risk. 

1.3 You acknowledge and agree that results You receive from the Apple Maps Service may 
vary from actual conditions due to variable factors that can affect the accuracy of the Map Data, 
such as weather, road and traffic conditions, and geopolitical events. 

2. Additional Restrictions 

2.1 Neither You nor Your Application, website or web application may remove, obscure or 
alter Apple's or its licensors' copyright notices, trademarks, logos, or any other proprietary rights 
or legal notices, documents or hyperlinks that may appear in or be provided through the Apple 
Maps Service. 

2.2 You will not use the Apple Maps Service in any manner that enables or permits bulk 
downloads or feeds of the Map Data, or any portion thereof, or that in any way attempts to 
extract, scrape or reutilize any portions of the Map Data. For example, neither You nor Your 
Application may use or make available the Map Data, or any portion thereof, as part of any 
secondary or derived database. 

2.3 Except to the extent expressly permitted herein, You agree not to copy, modify, translate, 
create a derivative work of, publish or publicly display the Map Data in any way. Further, You 
may not use or compare the data provided by the Apple Maps Service for the purpose of 
improving or creating another mapping service. You agree not to create or attempt to create a 
substitute or similar service through use of or access to the Apple Maps Service. 

2.4 Your Application, website, or web application may display the Map Data only as permitted 
herein, and when displaying it on a map, You agree that it will be displayed only on an Apple map 
provided through the Apple Maps Service. Further, You may not surface Map Data within Your 
Application, website, or web application without displaying the corresponding Apple map (e.g., if 
You surface an address result through the Apple Maps Service, You must display the 
corresponding map with the address result) . 

Program Agreement 
Page 66 



2.5 Unless otherwise expressly permitted in writing by Apple, Map Data may not be cached, 
pre-fetched, or stored by You or Your Application , website, or web application other than on a 
temporary and limited basis solely as necessary (a) for Your use of the Apple Maps Service as 
permitted herein or in the MapKit or MapKit JS Documentation, and/or (b) to improve the 
performance of the Apple Maps Service with Your Application, website, or web application, after 
which, in all cases, You must delete any such Map Data. 

2.6 You may not charge any fees to end-users solely for access to or use of the Apple Maps 
Service through Your Application, website, or web application, and You agree not to sell access 
to the Apple Maps Service in any other way. 

2.7 You acknowledge and agree that Apple may impose restrictions on Your usage of the 
Apple Maps Service (e.g., limiting the number of transactions Your Application can make through 
the MapKit API or Apple Maps Server API) or may revoke or remove Your access to the Apple 
Maps Service (or any part thereof) at any time in its sole discretion. Further, You acknowledge 
and agree that results You may receive from the Apple Maps Service may vary from actual 
conditions due to variable factors that can affect the accuracy of Map Data, such as road or 
weather conditions. 

3. Your Acknowledgements. You acknowledge and agree that: 

3.1 Apple may at any time, with or without prior notice to You (a) modify the Apple Maps 
Service and/or the MapKit API, Apple Maps Server API or MapKit JS, including changing or 
removing any feature or functionality, or (b) modify, deprecate, reissue or republish the MapKit 
API, Apple Maps Server API or MapKit JS. You understand that any such modifications may 
require You to change or update Your Applications, website, or web applications at Your own 
cost. Apple has no express or implied obligation to provide, or continue to provide, the Apple 
Maps Service and may suspend or discontinue all or any portion of the Apple Maps Service at 
any time. Apple shall not be liable for any losses, damages or costs of any kind incurred by You 
or any other party arising out of or related to any such service suspension or discontinuation or 
any such modification of the Apple Maps Service, MapKit API, Apple Maps Server API or MapKit 
JS. 

3.2 The Apple Maps Service may not be available in all countries, regions, or languages, and 
Apple makes no representation that the Apple Maps Service is appropriate or available for use in 
any particular location. To the extent You choose to provide access to the Apple Maps Service in 
Your Applications, website, or web applications or through the MapKit API, Apple Maps Server 
API or MapKit JS, You do so at Your own initiative and are responsible for compliance with any 
applicable laws. 

4. Apple's Right to Review Your MapKit and/or MapKit JS Implementation. You 
understand and agree that Apple reserves the right to review and approve or reject Your 
implementation of MapKit and/or MapKit JS in Your Application, website, or web applications, at 
any time during the Term of this Agreement. If requested by Apple, You agree to promptly 
provide information regarding Your implementation of MapKit and/or MapKit JS to Apple. You 
agree to cooperate with Apple and answer questions and provide information and materials 
reasonably requested by Apple regarding such implementation. Apple reserves the right to 
revoke Your access to MapKit and/or Your MapKit JS keys and similar credentials at any time in 
its sole discretion, even if Your use of MapKit and/or MapKit JS meets the Documentation and 
Program Requirements and terms of this Attachment. By way of example only, Apple may do so 
if Your MapKit and/or MapKit JS implementation places an excessive and undue burden on the 
Apple Maps Service, obscures or removes the Apple Maps logo or embedded links when 
displaying a map, or uses the Apple Maps Service with corresponding offensive or illegal map 
content. 

Program Agreement 
Page 67 



5. Additional Liability Disclaimer. NEITHER APPLE NOR ITS LICENSORS OR 
SERVICE PROVIDERS SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES OR LOSSES ARISING FROM 
ANY USE, MISUSE, RELIANCE ON, INABILITY TO USE, INTERRUPTION, SUSPENSION OR 
TERMINATION OF THE APPLE MAPS SERVICE, INCLUDING ANY INTERRUPTIONS DUE TO 
SYSTEM FAILURES, NETWORK ATTACKS, OR SCHEDULED OR UNSCHEDULED 
MAINTENANCE. 

Program Agreement 
Page 68 



Attachment 7 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for Safari Extensions 

The following terms are in addition to the terms of the Agreement and apply to Safari Extensions 
signed with an Apple Certificate: 

1.1 Safari Extension Requirements 
If You would like to distribute Your Safari Extension signed with an Apple Certificate, then You 
agree to abide by the following requirements for such Safari Extensions, as they may be modified 
by Apple from time to time: 

- Your Safari Extension must not contain any malware, malicious or harmful code, or other 
internal component (e.g. computer viruses, trojan horses, "backdoors"), which could damage, 
destroy, or adversely affect Apple hardware, software or services, or other third party software, 
firmware, hardware, data, systems, services, or networks; 

- Your Safari Extensions must not be designed or marketed for the purpose of harassing, 
abusing, stalking, spamming, misleading, defrauding, threatening or otherwise violating the legal 
rights (such as the rights of privacy and publicity) of others. Further, You may not create a Safari 
Extension that tracks the behavior of a user (e.g., their browsing sites) without their express 
consent; 

- Your Safari Extension must only operate in the designated container area for the Safari 
Extension, and must not disable, override or otherwise interfere with any Apple-implemented 
system alerts, warnings, display panels, consent panels and the like; 

- Your Safari Extension must have a single purpose and updates must not change the single 
purpose of Your Safari Extension. You agree to accurately represent the features and 
functionality of Your Safari Extension to the user and to act in accordance with such 
representations. For example, You must not redirect user searches to a different search provider 
than the one previously selected by the user in Safari without their express consent. In addition , 
Your Safari Extension may not redirect a link (or any affiliate link) on a website unless that 
behavior is disclosed to the user. You agree not to conceal the features or functionality of Your 
Safari Extension (e.g., containing obfuscated code); 

- Your Safari Extension must not be bundled with an app that has a different purpose than the 
Safari Extension. Your Safari Extension must not inject ads into a website and may not display 
pop up ads. You must not script or automate turning on Your Safari Extension or enable others 
to do so; and 

- Safari Extensions must not interfere with security, user interface, user experience, features or 
functionality of Safari, macOS, iOS, or other Apple-branded products. 

1.2 Compliance; Certificates. Your Safari Extensions must comply with the Documentation 
and all applicable laws and regulations, including those in any jurisdictions in which such Safari 
Extensions may be offered or made available. You understand that Apple may revoke the Apple 
Certificates used to sign Your Safari Extensions at any time, in its sole discretion. Further, You 
acknowledge and agree that Apple may block Your Safari Extension (such that it may be 
unavailable or inaccessible to Safari users) if it does not comply with the requirements set forth 
above in this Section 1.1 or otherwise adversely affects users of Safari or Apple-branded 
products. 

Program Agreement 
Page 69 



Attachment 8 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for use of the WeatherKit APls 

The following terms are in addition to the terms of the Agreement and apply to any use of Apple 
Weather Data and the WeatherKit APls in Your Application or Corresponding Product. For 
purposes of this Attachment, the definition of "Corresponding Products" does not require a 
Licensed Application. 

1. Use of Apple Weather Data and WeatherKit APls 

1.1 You agree that Your use of Apple Weather Data and WeatherKit APls must comply with 
the Program Requirements. 

1.2 You may not charge any fees to end-users for access to or use of the Apple Weather 
Data presented in its original form through Your Application or Corresponding Product; provided, 
however, You may charge fees to end-users for Value-Added Services or Products - i.e., data, 
products, and/or services, including but not limited to, Your Applications or Corresponding 
Products, that You develop that are derived from Apple Weather Data, and are transformed so 
that it is not possible for any end user or other third party to discover, access, reverse engineer, 
or otherwise ascertain or use Apple Weather Data in the form originally supplied by Apple 
(whether in whole or in part). You may not grant sublicensing rights to the WeatherKit APls or 
Apple Weather Data in their original form. You may use Apple Weather Data for internal purposes 
or to create, make or display Value-Added Services or Products to Your end-users. Your end 
user license terms must not permit end-users or any other third parties to reverse engineer the 
WeatherKit APls or Apple Weather Data for any purpose. 

1.3 Applications or Corresponding Products that use the WeatherKit APls may not be 
designed or marketed for emergency or life-saving purposes. 

1.4 Your Application or Corresponding Product may access the Apple Weather Data only 
through the WeatherKit APls. You agree that Your display of the Apple Weather Data must 
comply with all applicable attribution requirements and any other specifications provided in the 
Program Requirements. You may not modify, change, alter, or obscure Weather Alerts in any 
way. 

1.5 You may not use the WeatherKit APls in any manner that enables or permits bulk 
downloads or feeds of the Apple Weather Data, or any portion thereof, or that in any way 
attempts to extract or scrape any portions of the Apple Weather Data. For example, neither You, 
Your Applications, nor Your Corresponding Products may use or make available the Apple 
Weather Data, or any portion thereof, as part of any secondary or derived database. 

1.6 Unless otherwise expressly permitted in the Documentation, Apple Weather Data may 
not be cached, pre-fetched, or stored by You, Your Application, or Your Corresponding Product 
other than on a temporary and limited basis solely to improve the performance of the WeatherKit 
APls with Your Application or Corresponding Product. 

2. Your Acknowledgements 

You acknowledge and agree that: 

2.1 The WeatherKit APls may not be available in all countries or languages, and Apple 
makes no representation that the WeatherKit APls are appropriate or available for use in any 
particular location. To the extent You choose to provide access to the Apple Weather Data in 
Your Application or Corresponding Product through the WeatherKit APls, You do so at Your own 

Program Agreement 
Page 70 



initiative and are responsible for compliance with any applicable laws. Your use of the WeatherKit 
APls is at Your sole risk and You assume all liability arising from Your use of the WeatherKit APls 
in any part of the world, including the display of Apple Weather Data in disputed territories. 

2.2 For Applications or Corresponding Products that use the WeatherKit APls for real-time 
weather guidance, You must have an end-user license agreement that includes the following 
notice: YOUR USE OF THIS REAL TIME WEATHER GUIDANCE APPLICATION OR WEBSITE 
IS AT YOUR SOLE RISK. WEATHER DATA MAY NOT BE ACCURATE. Apple Weather Data 
may vary from actual conditions due to variable factors, such as signal issues and geopolitical 
events, that can affect the accuracy of Apple Weather Data. 

3. Compliance 

3.1 If requested by Apple, You agree to promptly provide information regarding Your 
implementation of the WeatherKit APls to Apple, as needed to determine Your compliance with 
these requirements. 

3.2 While in no way limiting Apple's other rights under this Agreement, Apple reserves the 
right to take action if in its sole discretion, Apple determines or has reason to believe You have 
violated a term of this Agreement. These actions may include limiting, suspending, or revoking 
Your access to Apple Weather Data and WeatherKit APls. 

4. Additional Liability Disclaimer. NEITHER APPLE NOR ITS LICENSORS OR 
SERVICE PROVIDERS SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES OR LOSSES ARISING FROM 
ANY USE, MISUSE, RELIANCE ON, INABILITY TO USE, INTERRUPTION, SUSPENSION OR 
TERMINATION OF THE WEATHERKIT APIS, INCLUDING ANY INTERRUPTIONS DUE TO 
SYSTEM FAILURES, NETWORK ATTACKS, OR SCHEDULED OR UNSCHEDULED 
MAINTENANCE. 

5. Indemnification. Without limiting Apple's other rights under this Agreement, You agree 
to indemnify and hold harmless an Apple Indemnified Party from any and all Losses incurred by 
an Apple Indemnified Party arising from or related to any claim that Your use of the WeatherKit 
APls does not comply with local mapping laws or other applicable laws. 

Program Agreement 
Page 71 



Attachment 9 
(to the Agreement) 

Additional Terms for Subscriptions Purchased Through the Apple Developer App 

Through the Apple Developer app, You may be able to pay for Program fees, and, as a Program 
member, purchase and use other subscriptions. For this Attachment 9 only, "Apple" means: 

Apple Inc. , located at One Apple Park Way, Cupertino, California, if You are located in 
the United States, including Puerto Rico; 
Apple Canada Inc., located at 120 Bremner Blvd ., Suite 1600, Toronto ON M5J OA8, 
Canada if You are located in Canada; 
Apple Services LATAM LLC, located at 1 Alhambra Plaza, Ste 700 Coral Gables, Florida, 
if You are located in Mexico, Central or South America, or any Caribbean country or 
territory (excluding Puerto Rico); 
iTunes K.K., located at Roppongi Hills, 6-10-1 Roppongi, Minato-ku, Tokyo 106-6140, 
Tokyo if You are located in Japan; 
Apple Ply Limited, located at Level 3, 20 Martin Place, Sydney NSW 2000, Australia, if 
You are located in Australia or New Zealand , including in any of their territories or 
affiliated jurisdictions; and 
Apple Distribution International Ltd. , located at Hollyhill Industrial Estate, Hollyhill, Cork, 
Republic of Ireland, if You are located anywhere else. 

Subscriptions automatically renew until cancelled in Your account holder's account settings. 
Charges occur no more than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the renewal date. To learn more 
about cancelling subscriptions, visit https://support.apple.com/HT202039. 

Apple will charge Your account holder's selected payment method for any subscription, including 
any taxes. If Your account holder has also added it to their Apple Wallet, Apple may charge their 
selected payment method in Apple Wallet using Apple Pay. Your account holder can associate 
multiple payment methods with their Apple ID, and You agree Apple may store and charge them. 
The primary payment method appears at the top of the account settings payments page. 

If the primary payment method cannot be charged for any reason, You authorize Apple to attempt 
to charge Your account holder's other eligible payment methods from top to bottom as they 
appear on the account settings payments page. If Apple cannot charge Your account holder, You 
remain responsible for any uncollected amounts, and Apple may attempt to charge again or 
request another payment method. This may change the date on which billing occurs. As 
permitted by law, Apple may automatically update payment information if it is provided by the 
payment networks or financial institutions. 

Program membership includes up to 500,000 WeatherKit API calls per month. If You purchase a 
subscription for WeatherKit API calls, for the duration of the subscription it will replace the 
WeatherKit API calls included with Program membership. 

Through December 31, 2023, Program members are also eligible to use up to twenty-five (25) 
Xcode Cloud compute hours per month. If You purchase a subscription for Xcode Cloud 
compute hours, for the duration of the subscription it will replace the Xcode Cloud compute hours 
per month that You are eligible to use though December 31, 2023. Apple reserves the right to 
onboard You to Xcode Cloud, or to provide You the opportunity to purchase a subscription to 
Xcode Cloud compute hours, as capacity permits. If You cancel and opt out of using Xcode 
Cloud immediately, Your account holder can contact Apple Support to request a refund. 

Subscription upgrades take effect immediately and a refund will be provided based on the time 
remaining in the month for the original subscription. Downgrades or cancellations of a 
subscription take effect at the next billing date. Apple reserves the right to calculate or deny 
requests for refunds based on usage of WeatherKit API calls or Xcode Cloud compute hours. 

Program Agreement 
Page 72 



Schedule 1 
1. Appointment of Agent 

1.1 You hereby appoint Apple and Apple Subsidiaries (collectively "Apple") as: (i) Your agent 
for the marketing and delivery of the Licensed Applications to end-users located in those regions 
listed on Exhibit A, Section 1 to this Schedule 1, subject to change; and (ii) Your commissionaire 
for the marketing and delivery of the Licensed Applications to end-users located in those regions 
listed on Exhibit A, Section 2 to this Schedule 1, subject to change, during the Delivery Period. 
The most current list of App Store regions among which You may select shall be set forth in the 
App Store Connect tool and the Custom App Distribution Site and may be updated by Apple from 
time to time. You hereby acknowledge that Apple will market and make the Licensed 
Applications available for download by end-users, through one or more App Stores or the Custom 
App Distribution Site, for You and on Your behalf. For purposes of this Schedule 1, the following 
terms apply: 

"Custom App" or "Custom Application" means a Licensed Application custom developed by You 
for use by specific organizations or third-party business customers, including proprietary Licensed 
Applications developed for Your organization's internal use. 

(a) "You" shall include App Store Connect users authorized by You to submit Licensed 
Applications and associated metadata on Your behalf; and 

(b) "end-user" includes individual purchasers as well as eligible users associated with their 
account via Family Sharing or Legacy Contacts. For institutional customers, "end-user" shall 
mean the individual authorized to use the Licensed Application, the institutional administrator 
responsible for management of installations on shared devices, as well as authorized institutional 
purchasers themselves, including educational institutions approved by Apple, which may acquire 
the Licensed Applications for use by their employees, agents, and affiliates. 

(c) For the purposes of this Schedule 1, the term "Licensed Application" shall include any content, 
functionality, extensions, stickers, or services offered in the software application. 

"Volume Content Service" means an Apple service that offers the ability to obtain Custom 
Applications and make purchases of Licensed Applications in bulk subject to the Volume Content 
Terms, conditions, and requirements. 

1.2 In furtherance of Apple's appointment under Section 1.1 of this Schedule 1, You hereby 
authorize and instruct Apple to: 

(a) market, solicit and obtain orders on Your behalf for Licensed Applications from end-users 
located in the regions identified by You in the App Store Connect tool; 

(b) provide hosting services to You subject to the terms of the Agreement, in order to allow for the 
storage of, and end-user access to, the Licensed Applications and to enable third party hosting of 
such Licensed Applications solely as otherwise licensed or authorized by Apple; 

(c) make copies of, format, and otherwise prepare Licensed Applications for acquisition and 
download by end-users, including adding the Security Solution and other optimizations identified 
in the Agreement; 

(d) allow or, in the case of cross-border assignments of certain purchases, arrange for end-users 
to access and re-access copies of the Licensed Applications, so that end-users may acquire from 
You and electronically download those Licensed Applications, Licensed Application Information, 
and associated metadata through one or more App Stores or the Custom App Distribution Site. In 

Program Agreement 
Page 73 



addition, You hereby authorize distribution of Your Licensed Applications under this Schedule 1 
for use by: (i) end-users with accounts associated with another end-user's account via Family 
Sharing; (ii) eligible Legacy Contacts of an end-user to access Your Licensed Application along 
with associated information and metadata stored in iCloud as described in 
https://support.apple.com/kb/HT212360; (iii) multiple end users under a single Apple ID when the 
Licensed Application is provided to such end-users through Apple Configurator in accordance 
with the Apple Configurator software license agreement; and (iv) a single institutional customer 
via Custom App Distribution for use by its end-users and/or for installation on devices with no 
associated Apple IDs that are owned or controlled by that institutional customer in accordance 
with the Volume Content Terms, conditions, and program requirements; 

(e) use (i) screenshots, previews, and/or up to 30 second excerpts of the Licensed Applications: 
(ii) trademarks and logos associated with the Licensed Applications; and (iii) Licensed Application 
Information, for promotional purposes in marketing materials and gift cards and in connection with 
vehicle displays, excluding those portions of the Licensed Applications, trademarks or logos, or 
Licensed Application Information which You do not have the right to use for promotional 
purposes, and which You identify in writing at the time that the Licensed Applications are 
delivered by You to Apple under Section 2.1 of this Schedule 1, and use images and other 
materials that You may provide to Apple, at Apple's reasonable request, for promotional purposes 
in marketing materials and gift cards and in connection with vehicle displays. In addition, and 
subject to the limitation set forth above, You agree that Apple may use screenshots, icons, and 
up to 30 second excerpts of Your Licensed Applications for use at Apple Developer events (e.g., 
WWDC, Tech Talks) and in developer documentation; 

(f) otherwise use Licensed Applications, Licensed Application Information and associated 
metadata as may be reasonably necessary in the marketing and delivery of the Licensed 
Applications in accordance with this Schedule 1. You agree that no royalty or other compensation 
is payable for the rights described above in Section 1.2 of this Schedule 1; and 

(g) facilitate distribution of pre-release versions of Your Licensed Applications ("Beta Testing") to 
end-users designated by You in accordance with the Agreement, availability, and other program 
requirements as updated from time to time in the App Store Connect tool. For the purposes of 
such Beta Testing, You hereby waive any right to collect any purchase price, proceeds or other 
remuneration for the distribution and download of such pre-release versions of Your Licensed 
Application. You further agree that You shall remain responsible for the payment of any royalties 
or other payments to third parties relating to the distribution and user of Your pre-release 
Licensed Applications, as well as compliance with any and all laws for territories in which such 
Beta Testing takes place. For the sake of clarity, no commission shall be owed to Apple with 
respect to such distribution. 

1.3 The parties acknowledge and agree that their relationship under this Schedule 1 is, and 
shall be, that of principal and agent, or principal and commissionaire, as the case may be, as 
described in Exhibit A, Section 1 and Exhibit A, Section 2 respectively, and that You, as principal, 
are, and shall be, solely responsible for any and all claims and liabilities involving or relating to, 
the Licensed Applications, as provided in this Schedule 1. The parties acknowledge and agree 
that Your appointment of Apple as Your agent or commissionaire, as the case may be, under this 
Schedule 1 is non-exclusive. You hereby represent and warrant that You own or control the 
necessary rights in order to appoint Apple and Apple Subsidiaries as Your worldwide agent 
and/or commissionaire for the delivery of Your Licensed Applications, and that the fulfillment of 
such appointment by Apple and Apple Subsidiaries shall not violate or infringe the rights of any 
third party. 

1.4 For purposes of this Schedule 1, the "Delivery Period" shall mean the period beginning 
on the Effective Date of the Agreement, and expiring on the last day of the Agreement or any 
renewal thereof; provided, however, that Apple's appointment as Your agent shall survive 
expiration of the Agreement for a reasonable phase-out period not to exceed thirty (30) days and 

Program Agreement 
Page 74 



further provided that, solely with respect to Your end-users, subsections 1.2(b), (c), and (d) of this 
Schedule 1 shall survive termination or expiration of the Agreement unless You indicate 
otherwise pursuant to sections 4.1 and 6.2 of this Schedule 1. 

1.5 All of the Licensed Applications delivered by You to Apple under Section 2.1 of this 
Schedule 1 shall be made available by Apple for download by end-users at no charge. Apple 
shall have no duty to collect any fees for the Licensed Applications for any end-user and shall 
have no payment obligation to You with respect to any of those Licensed Applications under this 
Schedule 1. In the event that You intend to charge end-users a fee for any Licensed Application 
or In-App Purchase, You must enter (or have previously entered) into a separate extension of this 
agreement (Schedule 2) with Apple with respect to that Licensed Application. In the event that 
You intend to charge end-users a fee for any Custom Apps, You must enter (or have previously 
entered) into a separate extension of this agreement (Schedule 3) with Apple with respect to that 
Custom App. 

2. Delivery of the Licensed Applications to Apple 

2.1 You will deliver to Apple, at Your sole expense, using the App Store Connect tool or other 
mechanism provided by Apple, the Licensed Applications, Licensed Application Information and 
associated metadata, in a format and manner prescribed by Apple, as required for the delivery of 
the Licensed Applications to end-users in accordance with this Schedule 1. Metadata You deliver 
to Apple under this Schedule 1 will include: (i) the title and version number of each of the 
Licensed Applications; (ii) the regions You designate, in which You wish Apple to allow end-users 
to download those Licensed Applications; (iii) the end-users You designate as authorized 
downloaders of the Custom App; (iv) any copyright or other intellectual property rights notices; (v) 
Your privacy policy; (vi) Your end-user license agreement ("EULA"), if any, in accordance with 
Section 3.2 of this Schedule 1; and (vii) any additional metadata set forth in the Documentation 
and/or the App Store Connect Tool as may be updated from time to time, including metadata 
designed to enhance search and discovery for content on Apple-branded hardware. 

2.2 All Licensed Applications will be delivered by You to Apple using software tools, a secure 
FTP site address and/or such other delivery methods as prescribed by Apple. 

2.3 You hereby certify that all of the Licensed Applications You deliver to Apple under this 
Schedule 1 are authorized for export from the United States to each of the regions designated by 
You under Section 2.1 hereof, in accordance with the requirements of all applicable laws, 
including but not limited to the United States Export Administration Regulations, 15 C.F.R. Parts 
730-774. You further represent and warrant that all versions of the Licensed Applications You 
deliver to Apple are not subject to the International Traffic in Arms Regulations 22 C.F.R. Parts 
120-130 and are not designed, made, modified or configured for any military end users or end 
uses as defined and scoped in 15 C.F.R § 744. Without limiting the generality of this Section 2.3, 
You certify that (i) none of the Licensed Applications contains, uses or supports any data 
encryption or cryptographic functions; or (ii) in the event that any Licensed Application contains, 
uses or supports any such data encryption or cryptographic functionality, You certify that You 
have complied with the United States Export Administration Regulations, and are in possession 
of, and will, upon request, provide Apple with PDF copies of export classification ruling (CCATS) 
issued by the United States Commerce Department, Bureau of Industry and Security ("BIS") or 
any self-classification reports submitted to the BIS, and appropriate authorizations from other 
regions that mandate import authorizations for that Licensed Application, as required. You 
acknowledge that Apple is relying upon Your certification in this Section 2.3 in allowing end-users 
to access and download the Licensed Applications under this Schedule 1. Except as provided in 
this Section 2.3, Apple will be responsible for compliance with the requirements of the Export 
Administration Regulations in allowing end-users to access and download the Licensed 
Applications under this Schedule 1. 

2.4 You shall be responsible for determining and implementing any age ratings or parental 

Program Agreement 
Page 75 



advisory warnings required by the applicable government regulations, ratings board(s), service(s), 
or other organizations (each a "Ratings Board") for any video, television, gaming or other content 
offered in Your Licensed Application for each locality in the Territory. Where applicable, you shall 
also be responsible for providing any content restriction tools or age verification functionality 
before enabling end-users to access mature or otherwise regulated content within Your Licensed 
Application. 

3. Ownership and End-User licensing and Delivery of the licensed Applications to 
End Users 

3.1 You acknowledge and agree that Apple, in the course of acting as agent and/or 
commissionaire for You, is hosting, or pursuant to Section 1.2(b) of this Schedule 1 may enable 
authorized third parties to host, the Licensed Application(s), and is allowing the download of those 
Licensed Application(s) by end-users, on Your behalf. However, You are responsible for hosting 
and delivering content or services sold or delivered by You using the In-App Purchase API, 
except for content that is included within the Licensed Application itself (i.e., the In-App Purchase 
simply unlocks the content) or content hosted by Apple pursuant to Section 3.3 of Attachment 2 of 
the Agreement. The parties acknowledge and agree that Apple shall not acquire any ownership 
interest in or to any of the Licensed Applications or Licensed Applications Information, and title, 
risk of loss, responsibility for, and control over the Licensed Applications shall, at all times, remain 
with You. Apple may not use any of the Licensed Applications or Licensed Application 
Information for any purpose, or in any manner, except as specifically authorized in the Agreement 
or this Schedule 1. 

3.2 You may deliver to Apple Your own EULA for any Licensed Application at the time that 
You deliver that Licensed Application to Apple, in accordance with Section 2.1 of this Schedule 1; 
provided, however, that Your EULA must include and may not be inconsistent with the minimum 
terms and conditions specified on Exhibit B to this Schedule 1 and must comply with all 
applicable laws in all regions where You wish Apple to allow end-users to download that Licensed 
Application. Apple shall enable each end-user to review Your EULA (if any) at the time that Apple 
delivers that Licensed Application to that end-user, and Apple shall notify each end-user that the 
end-user's use of that Licensed Application is subject to the terms and conditions of Your EULA 
(if any). In the event that You do not furnish Your own EULA for any Licensed Application to 
Apple, You acknowledge and agree that each end-user's use of that Licensed Application shall 
be subject to Apple's standard EULA (which is part of the App Store Terms of Service). 

3.3 You hereby acknowledge that the EULA for each of the Licensed Applications is solely 
between You and the end-user and conforms to applicable law, and Apple shall not be 
responsible for, and shall not have any liability whatsoever under, any EULA or any breach by 
You or any end-user of any of the terms and conditions of any EULA. 

3.4 A Licensed Application may read or play content (magazines, newspapers, books, audio, 
music, video) that is offered outside of the Licensed Application (such as, by way of example, 
through Your website) provided that You do not link to or market external offers for such content 
within the Licensed Application. You are responsible for authentication access to content 
acquired outside of the Licensed Application . 

3.5 To the extent You promote and offer in-app subscriptions, You must do so in compliance 
with all legal and regulatory requirements. 

3.6 If Your Licensed Application is periodical content-based (e.g., magazines and 
newspapers), Apple may provide You with the name, email address, and zip code associated 
with an end-user's account when they request an auto-renewing subscription via the In-App 
Purchase API, provided that such user consents to the provision of data to You, and further 
provided that You may only use such data to promote Your own products and do so in strict 
compliance with Your publicly posted Privacy Policy, a copy of which must be readily viewed and 

Program Agreement 
Page 76 



is consented to in Your Licensed Application. 

4. Content Restrictions and Software Rating 

4.1 You represent and warrant that: (a) You have the right to enter into this Agreement, to 
reproduce and distribute each of the Licensed Applications, and to authorize Apple to permit end
users to download and use each of the Licensed Applications through one or more App Stores or 
the Custom App Distribution Site; (b) none of the Licensed Applications, or Apple's or end-users' 
permitted uses of those Licensed Applications, violate or infringe any patent, copyright, 
trademark, trade secret or other intellectual property or contractual rights of any other person, 
firm, corporation or other entity and that You are not submitting the Licensed Applications to 
Apple on behalf of one or more third parties; (c) none of the Custom Apps, or Apple's or end
users' permitted uses of those Custom Apps, violate or infringe any patent, copyright, trademark, 
trade secret or other intellectual property or contractual rights of any other person, firm, 
corporation or other entity and that You are not submitting the Custom Apps to Apple on behalf of 
one or more third parties other than under license grant from one or more third parties subject to 
Apple's Volume Content Terms and/or Custom App Distribution; (d) each of the Licensed 
Applications is authorized for distribution, sale and use in, export to, and import into each of the 
regions designated by You under Section 2.1 of this Schedule 1, in accordance with the laws and 
regulations of those regions and all applicable export/import regulations; (e) none of the Licensed 
Applications contains any obscene, offensive or other materials that are prohibited or restricted 
under the laws or regulations of any of the regions You designate under Section 2.1 of this 
Schedule 1; (f) all information You provide using the App Store Connect tool , including any 
information relating to the Licensed Applications, is accurate and that, if any such information 
ceases to be accurate, You will promptly update it to be accurate using the App Store Connect 
tool; and (g) in the event a dispute arises over the content of Your Licensed Applications or use of 
Your intellectual property on the App Store or the Custom App Distribution Site, You agree to 
permit Apple to share Your contact information with the party filing such dispute and to follow 
Apple's app dispute process on a non-exclusive basis and without any party waiving its legal 
rights. 

4.2 You shall use the software rating tool set forth on App Store Connect to supply 
information regarding each of the Licensed Applications delivered by You for marketing and 
fulfillment by Apple through the App Store or the Custom App Distribution Site under this 
Schedule 1 in order to assign a rating to each such Licensed Application. For purposes of 
assigning a rating to each of the Licensed Applications, You shall use Your best efforts to provide 
correct and complete information about the content of that Licensed Application with the software 
rating tool. You acknowledge and agree that Apple is relying on: (i) Your good faith and diligence 
in accurately and completely providing the requested information for each Licensed Application; 
and (ii) Your representations and warranties in Section 4.1 hereof, in making that Licensed 
Application available for download by end-users in each of the regions You designate hereunder. 
Furthermore, You authorize Apple to correct the rating of any Licensed Application of Yours that 
has been assigned an incorrect rating ; and You agree to any such corrected rating. 

4.3 In the event that any region You designate hereunder requires the approval of, or rating 
of, any Licensed Application by any government or industry regulatory agency as a condition for 
the distribution and/or use of that Licensed Application, You acknowledge and agree that Apple 
may elect not to make that Licensed Application available for download by end-users in that 
region from any App Stores or the Custom App Distribution Site. 

5. Responsibility and Liability 

5.1 Apple shall have no responsibility for the installation and/or use of any of the Licensed 
Applications by any end-user. You shall be solely responsible for any and all product warranties, 
end-user assistance and product support with respect to each of the Licensed Applications. 

Program Agreement 
Page 77 



5.2 You shall be solely responsible for, and Apple shall have no responsibility or liability 
whatsoever with respect to, any and all claims, suits, liabilities, losses, damages, costs and 
expenses arising from, or attributable to, the Licensed Applications and/or the use of those 
Licensed Applications by any end-user, including, but not limited to: (i) claims of breach of 
warranty, whether specified in the EULA or established under applicable law; (ii) product liability 
claims; and (iii) claims that any of the Licensed Applications and/or the end-user's possession or 
use of those Licensed Applications infringes the copyright or other intellectual property rights of 
any third party. 

6. Termination 

6.1 This Schedule 1, and all of Apple's obligations hereunder, shall terminate upon the 
expiration or termination of the Agreement. 

6.2 In the event that You no longer have the legal right to distribute the Licensed 
Applications, or to authorize Apple to allow access to those Licensed Applications by end-users, 
in accordance with this Schedule 1, You shall promptly notify Apple and withdraw those Licensed 
Applications from the App Store or the Custom App Distribution Site using the tools provided on 
the App Store Connect site; provided, however, that such withdrawal by You under this Section 
6.2 shall not relieve You of any of Your obligations to Apple under this Schedule 1, or any liability 
to Apple and/or any end-user with respect to those Licensed Applications. 

6.3 Apple reserves the right to cease marketing, offering, and allowing download by end-
users of the Licensed Applications at any time, with or without cause, by providing notice of 
termination to You. Without limiting the generality of this Section 6.3, You acknowledge that 
Apple may cease allowing download by end-users of some or all of the Licensed Applications, or 
take other interim measures in Apple's sole discretion, if Apple reasonably believes that: (i) those 
Licensed Applications are not authorized for export to one or more of the regions designated by 
You under Section 2.1 hereof, in accordance with the Export Administration Regulations or other 
restrictions; (ii) those Licensed Applications and/or any end-user's possession and/or use of 
those Licensed Applications, infringe patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other 
intellectual property rights of any third party; (iii) the distribution and/or use of those Licensed 
Applications violates any applicable law in any region You designate under Section 2.1 of this 
Schedule 1; (iv) You have violated the terms of the Agreement, this Schedule 1, or other 
documentation including without limitation the App Store Review Guidelines; or (v) You or anyone 
representing You or Your company are subject to sanctions of any region in which Apple 
operates. An election by Apple to cease allowing download of any Licensed Applications, 
pursuant to this Section 6.3, shall not relieve You of Your obligations under this Schedule 1. 

6.4 You may withdraw any or all of the Licensed Applications from the App Store or the 
Custom App Distribution Site, at any time, and for any reason, by using the tools provided on the 
App Store Connect site, except that, with respect to Your end-users, You hereby authorize and 
instruct Apple to fulfill sections 1.2(b ), ( c), and ( d) of this Schedule 1, which shall survive 
termination or expiration of the Agreement unless You indicate otherwise pursuant to sections 4.1 
and 6.2 of this Schedule 1. 

7. Legal Consequences 

The relationship between You and Apple established by this Schedule 1 may have important 
legal consequences for You. You acknowledge and agree that it is Your responsibility to consult 
with Your legal advisors with respect to Your legal obligations hereunder. 

Program Agreement 
Page 78 · 



1. Apple as Agent 

EXHIBIT A 
(to Schedule 1) 

You appoint Apple Canada, Inc. ("Apple Canada") as Your agent for the marketing and end-user 
download of the Licensed Applications by end-users located in the following region : 

Canada 

You appoint Apple Pty Limited ("APL") as Your agent for the marketing and end-user download of 
the Licensed Applications by end-users located in the following regions: 

Australia 
New Zealand 

You appoint Apple Inc. as Your agent pursuant to California Civil Code§§ 2295 et seq. for the 
marketing and end-user download of the Licensed Applications by end-users located in the 
following regions: 

United States 

You appoint Apple Services LATAM LLC as Your agent pursuant to California Civil Code§§ 2295 
et seq. for the marketing and end-user download of the Licensed by end-users located in the 
following regions : 

Argentina* Cayman Islands Guatemala* St. Kitts & Nevis 

Anguilla Chile* Honduras* St. Lucia 

Antigua & Barbuda Colombia* Jamaica St. Vincent & The 
Grenadines 

Bahamas Costa Rica* Mexico* Suriname 

Barbados Dominica Montserrat Trinidad & Tobago 

Belize Dominican Nicaragua* Turks & Caicos 
Republic* 

Bermuda Ecuador* Panama* Uruguay 

Bolivia* El Salvador* Paraguay* Venezuela* 

Brazil* Grenada Peru* 

British Virgin Islands Guyana 

• Custom Applications are only available in these regions. 

You appoint iTunes KK as Your agent pursuant to Article 643 of the Japanese Civil Code for the 
marketing and end-user download of the Licensed Applications by end-users located in the 
following region: 

Japan 

2. Apple as Commissionaire 

You appoint Apple Distribution International Ltd. as Your commissionaire for the marketing and 
end-user download of the Licensed Applications by end-users located in the following regions, as 
updated from time to time via the App Store Connect site. For the purposes of this Agreement, 
"commissionaire" means an agent who purports to act on their own behalf and concludes 

Program Agreement 
Page 79 



agreements in his own name but acts on behalf of other persons, as generally recognized in 
many Civil Law legal systems 

Afghanistan Gabon Malawi Saudi Arabia* 
Albania Gambia Malaysia* Senegal 
Algeria Georgia Maldives Serbia 
Angola Germany* Mali Seychelles 
Armenia Ghana Malta, Republic of* Sierra Leone 
Austria Greece* Mauritania Singapore* 
Azerbaijan Guinea-Bissau Mauritius Slovakia* 
Bahrain* Hong Kong* Micronesia, Fed States of Slovenia* 
Belarus Hungary Moldova Solomon Islands 
Belgium* Iceland* Mongolia South Africa 
Benin India Montenegro Spain* 
Bhutan Indonesia Morocco Sri Lanka 
Bosnia and Iraq Mozambique Swaziland 
Herzegovina 
Botswana Ireland* Myanmar Sweden* 
Brunei Israel* Namibia Switzerland* 
Bulgaria* Italy* Nauru Taiwan* 
Burkina-Faso Jordan Nepal Tajikistan 
Cambodia Kazakhstan Netherlands* Tanzania 
Cameroon Kenya Niger Thailand* 
Cape Verde Korea* Nigeria Tonga 
Chad Kosovo Norway* Tunisia 
China* Kuwait Oman Turkey* 
Congo (Democratic Kyrgyzstan Pakistan Turkmenistan 
Republic of) 
Congo (Republic of) Laos Palau UAE* 
Cote d'Ivoire Latvia* Papua New Guinea Uganda 
Croatia Lebanon Philippines* Ukraine* 
Cyprus* Liberia Poland United Kingdom* 
Czech Republic Libya Portugal Uzbekistan 
Denmark* Lithuania* Qatar* Vanuatu 
Egypt* Luxembourg* Romania* Vietnam* 
Estonia* Macau Russia* Yemen 
Fiji Macedonia Rwanda Zambia 
Finland* Madagascar Sao Tome e Principe Zimbabwe 
France* 

*Custom Applications are only available in these regions. 

Program Agreement 
Page 80 



EXHIBIT B 
(to Schedule 1) 

Instructions for Minimum Terms of Developer's 
End-User License Agreement 

1. Acknowledgement: You and the end-user must acknowledge that the EULA is 
concluded between You and the end-user only, and not with Apple, and You , not Apple, are 
solely responsible for the Licensed Application and the content thereof. The EULA may not 
provide for usage rules for Licensed Applications that are in conflict with, the Apple Media 
Services Terms and Conditions or the Volume Content Terms as of the Effective Date (which You 
acknowledge You have had the opportunity to review). 

2. Scope of License: The license granted to the end-user for the Licensed Application 
must be limited to a non-transferable license to use the Licensed Application on any Apple
branded Products that the end-user owns or controls and as permitted by the Usage Rules set 
forth in the Apple Media Services Terms and Conditions, except that such Licensed Application 
may be accessed, acquired, and used by other accounts associated with the purchaser via 
Family Sharing, volume purchasing, or Legacy Contacts. 

3. Maintenance and Support: You must be solely responsible for providing any 
maintenance and support services with respect to the Licensed Application, as specified in the 
EULA, or as required under applicable law. You and the end-user must acknowledge that Apple 
has no obligation whatsoever to furnish any maintenance and support services with respect to the 
Licensed Application. 

4. Warranty: You must be solely responsible for any product warranties , whether express 
or implied by law, to the extent not effectively disclaimed. The EULA must provide that, in the 
event of any failure of the Licensed Application to conform to any applicable warranty, the end
user may notify Apple, and Apple will refund the purchase price for the Licensed Application to 
that end-user; and that, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, Apple will have no 
other warranty obligation whatsoever with respect to the Licensed Application, and any other 
claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs or expenses attributable to any failure to conform to any 
warranty will be Your sole responsibility. 

5. Product Claims: You and the end-user must acknowledge that You, not Apple, are 
responsible for addressing any claims of the end-user or any third party relating to the Licensed 
Application or the end-user's possession and/or use of that Licensed Application , including, but 
not limited to: (i) product liability claims; (ii) any claim that the Licensed Application fails to 
conform to any applicable legal or regulatory requirement; and (iii) claims arising under consumer 
protection or similar legislation, including in connection with Your Licensed or Custom 
Application's use of the HealthKit and HomeKit frameworks. The EULA may not limit Your liability 
to the end-user beyond what is permitted by applicable law. 

6. Intellectual Property Rights: You and the end-user must acknowledge that, in the 
event of any third party claim that the Licensed Application or the end-user's possession and use 
of that Licensed Application infringes that third party's intellectual property rights, You, not Apple, 
will be solely responsible for the investigation, defense, settlement and discharge of any such 
intellectual property infringement claim. 

7. Legal Compliance: The end-user must represent and warrant that (i) the end-user is not 
located in a region that is subject to a U.S. Government embargo, or that has been designated by 
the U.S. Government as a "terrorist supporting" region ; and (ii) the end-user is not listed on any 
U.S. Government list of prohibited or restricted parties. 

8. Developer Name and Address: You must state in the EULA Your name and address, 

Program Agreement Page 81 



and the contact information (telephone number; E-mail address) to which any end-user questions, 
complaints or claims with respect to the Licensed Application should be directed. 

9. Third Party Terms of Agreement: You must state in the EULA that the end-user must 
comply with applicable third party terms of agreement when using Your Application, e.g., if You 
have a VoIP application, then the end-user must not be in violation of their wireless data service 
agreement when using Your Application. 

10. Third Party Beneficiary: You and the end-user must acknowledge and agree that 
Apple, and Apple's subsidiaries, are third party beneficiaries of the EULA, and that. upon the end
user's acceptance of the terms and conditions of the EULA, Apple will have the right (and will be 
deemed to have accepted the right) to enforce the EULA against the end-user as a third party 
beneficiary thereof. 

Program Agreement Page 82 



EXHIBIT C 
(to Schedule 1) 

App Store Promo Codes Terms 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Agreement or this Schedule 1, You hereby agree that 
the following terms shall apply to all App Store Promo Codes ("Promo Codes") requested by You 
via the App Store Connect tool. For the purposes of this Exhibit C, "You" shall include additional 
members of Your App Store Connect team (e.g., individuals in the marketing and technical roles). 

Except as otherwise expressed in writing herein, nothing in this Exhibit C shall be construed to 
modify the Agreement or this Schedule 1 in any way, and all capitalized terms not defined below 
shall have the meanings set forth in the Program Agreement. 

1. DEFINITIONS: 

"Holder" means an individual located in a Territory to whom You provide one or more Promo 
Codes; 

"Promo Code" means a unique alphanumeric code generated and provided to You by Apple 
pursuant to this Exhibit C which allows a Holder who is an App Store customer to download or 
access for free from the App Store the Licensed Application for which You have requested such 
code via the App Store Connect tool, whether offered for free or for a fee on the App Store (the 
"Promo Content"); and 

"Effective Period" means the period between the Promo Code Activation Date and the Promo 
Code Expiration Date. 

2. AUTHORIZATION AND OBLIGATIONS: You hereby authorize and instruct Apple to 
provide You with Promo Codes upon request, pursuant to the terms of this Exhibit C, and You 
take full responsibility for ensuring that any team member that requests such codes shall abide by 
the terms of this Exhibit C. You shall be responsible for securing all necessary licenses and 
permissions relating to use of the Promo Codes and the Licensed Application, including any uses 
by You of the name( s) or other indicia of the Licensed Application, or name( s) or likenesses of the 
person(s) performing or otherwise featured in the Licensed Application, in any advertising, 
marketing, or other promotional materials, in any and all media. Apple reserves the right to 
request and receive copies of such licenses and permissions from You, at any time, during the 
Effective Period. 

3. NO PAYMENT: Except for Your obligations set forth in Section 10 of this Exhibit C, You 
are not obligated to pay Apple any commission for the Promo Codes. 

4. DELIVERY: Upon request by You via the App Store Connect tool, Apple shall provide the 
Promo Codes electronically to You via App Store Connect, email, or other method as may be 
indicated by Apple. 

5. PROMO CODE ACTIVATION DATE: Promo Codes will become active for use by 
Holders upon delivery to You. 

6. PROMO CODE EXPIRATION DATE: All unused Promo Codes, whether or not applied to 
an Apple ID, expire at midnight 11 :59 PT on the earlier of: (a) the date that is twenty-eight (28) 
days after the delivery of the Promo Codes; or (b) the termination of the Agreement. 

7. PERMITTED USE: You may distribute the Promo Codes until that date which is ten (10) 
calendar days prior to the Promo Code Expiration Date solely for the purpose of offering 
instances of the app for media review or promotional purposes. You may not distribute the 

Program Agreement Page 83 



Promo Codes to Holders in any Territory in which You are not permitted to sell or distribute Your 
Licensed Application. 

8. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS: Apple shall not be responsible for developing and 
producing any materials in relation to the Promo Codes other than the Promo Codes themselves. 

9. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND INDEMNIFICATION: You represent and 
warrant that: (i) You own or control all rights necessary to make the grant of rights, licenses, and 
permissions listed in Section 2, and that the exercise of such rights, licenses, and permissions 
shall not violate or infringe the rights of any third party, and (ii) any use of the Promo Codes shall 
be in accordance with the terms of this Exhibit C and shall not infringe any third party rights or 
violate any applicable laws, directives, rules, and regulations of any governmental authority in the 
Territory or anywhere else in the world. You agree to indemnify and hold Apple, its subsidiaries 
and affiliates (and their respective directors, officers, and employees) harmless from all losses, 
liabilities, damages, or expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs) resulting from 
any claims, demands, actions, or other proceedings arising from a breach of the representations 
and warranties set for h in this Section, or a breach of any other term of the Agreement and this 
Schedule 1. 

10. PAYMENT WAIVER: You hereby waive any right to collect any royalties, proceeds, or 
remuneration for the distribution and download of the Licensed Application via the Promo Codes, 
regardless of whether any remuneration would otherwise be payable under the Agreement, 
including Schedule 1 thereto, if applicable. The parties acknowledge that, as between Apple and 
You, the parties' respective responsibilities for the payment of any royalties or other similar 
payments to third parties with respect to distribution and download of the Licensed Application via 
the Promo Codes shall be as set forth in the Agreement. 

11. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: You further agree to the following terms: 

(a) You shall not sell the Promo Codes or accept any form of payment, trade-in-kind, or other 
compensation in connection with the distribution of the Promo Codes and You shall prohibit third 
parties from doing so. 

(b) Nothing in this Exhibit C shall cause the parties to become partners, joint venturers or co
owners, nor shall either party constitute an agent, employee, or representative of the other, or 
empower the other party to act for, bind, or otherwise create or assume any obligation on its 
behalf, in connection with any transaction under this Exhibit C; provided, however, that nothing in 
this Section 11 (b) shall affect, impair, or modify either of the Parties' respective rights and 
obligations, including the agency or commissionaire relationship between them under Schedules 
1, 2, and 3 of the Agreement. 

(c) You shall prominently disclose any content age restrictions or warnings legally required in the 
Territories and ensure that Promo Codes are distributed only to persons of an age appropriate 
and consistent with the App Store rating for the associated Licensed Application. 

(d) You shall conduct Yourself in an honest and ethical manner and shall not make any 
statement, orally or in writing, or do any act or engage in any activity that is obscene, unlawful, or 
encourages unlawful or dangerous conduct, or that may disparage, denigrate, or be detrimental 
to Apple or its business. 

(e) Apple shall not be responsible for providing any technical or customer support to You or 
Holders above what Apple provides to standard or ordinary App Store users. 

(f) You agree to the additional Promo Code Terms and Conditions attached hereto as Attachment 
1. 

Program Agreement Page 84 



(g) YOU SHALL INCLUDE THE REGION SPECIFIC HOLDER TERMS & CONDITIONS AS 
WELL AS THE EXPIRATION DATE OF THE PROMO CODE ON ANY INSTRUMENT USED TO 
DISTRIBUTE THE PROMO CODE TO HOLDERS (E.G., CERTIFICATE, CARD, EMAIL, ETC). 
YOU MAY ACCESS THIS INFORMATION LOCALIZED FOR EACH TERRITORY UPON 
REQUESTING THE PROMO CODES IN THE APP STORE CONNECT TOOL. 

(h) You shall be solely responsible for Your use of the Promo Codes, including any use by other 
members of Your App Store Connect team, and for any loss or liability to You or Apple therefrom. 

(i) In the event Your Licensed Application is removed from the App Store for any reason, You 
agree to cease distribution of the Promo Codes and that Apple may deactivate such Promo 
Codes. 

U) You agree that Apple shall have the right to deactivate the Promo Codes, even if already 
delivered to Holders, in the event You violate any of the terms of this Exhibit C, the Agreement, or 
Schedules 1, 2, or 3 thereto. 

(k) You may distribute the Promo Codes within the Territories, but agree that You shall not export 
any Promo Code for use outside the Territories nor represent that You have the right or ability to 
do so. Risk of loss and transfer of title for the Promo Codes pass to You upon delivery to You 
within App Store Connect, via email, or other method provided by Apple. 

12. APPLE TRADEMARKS: Your use of Apple trademarks in connection with the Promo 
Codes is limited only to "iTunes" and "App Store" (the "Marks") subject to the following and any 
additional guidelines Apple may issue from time to time: 

(a) You may use the Marks only during the Effective Period 

· (b) You shall submit any advertising, marketing, promotional or other materials, in any and all 
media now known or hereinafter invented, incorporating the Marks to Apple prior to use for written 
approval. Any such materials not expressly approved in writing by Apple shall be deemed 
disapproved by Apple. 

(c) You may only use the Marks in a referential manner and may not use the Marks as the most 
prominent visual element in any materials. Your company name, trademark(s), or service 
mark(s) should be significantly larger than any reverence to the Marks. 

(d) You may not directly or indirectly suggest Apple's sponsorship, affiliation, or endorsement of 
You, Your Licensed Applications, or any promotional activities for which You are requesting the 
Promo Codes. 

(e) You acknowledge that the Marks are the exclusive property of Apple and agree not to claim 
any right, title, or interest in or to the Marks or at any time challenge or attack Apple's rights in the 
Marks. Any goodwill resulting from Your use of the Marks shall inure solely to the benefit of 
Apple and shall not create any right, title, or interest for You in the Marks. 

13. GOVERNING LAW: Any litigation or other dispute resolution between You and Apple 
arising out of or relating to this Exhibit C or facts relating thereto shall be governed by Section 
14.10 of the Agreement. 

Program Agreement Page 85 



Attachment 1 
(to Exhibit C of Schedule 1) 

App Store Promo Codes Terms and Conditions 

1. All Promo Codes delivered pursuant to this Exhibit C, whether or not applied to an App 
Store account, expire as indicated in this Exhibit C. 

2. Promo Codes, and unused balances, are not redeemable for cash and cannot be 
returned for a cash refund, exchanged, or used to purchase any other merchandise, or provide 
allowances or iTunes or App Store Gifts by either You or Holder. This includes Promo Codes that 
have expired unused. 

3. Promo Codes may only be redeemed through the App Store in the Territory, open only to 
persons in the Territory with a valid Apple ID. Not all App Store products may be available in all 
Territories. Internet access (fees may apply), the latest version of Apple software, and other 
compatible software and hardware are required. 

4. Access to, redemption of Promo Codes on, or purchases from, and use of products 
purchased on, the App Store, are subject to acceptance of its Terms of Service presented at the 
time of redemption or purchase, and found at http://www.apple.com/legal/itunes/ww/. 

5. Promo Codes will be placed in the Holder's applicable Apple ID and are not transferable. 

6. If a Holder's order exceeds the amount available on the Promo Codes, Holder must 
establish an Apple ID and pay for the balance with a credit card. 

7. Except as stated otherwise, data collection and use are subject to Apple's Privacy Policy, 
which can be found at http://www.apple.com/legal/privacy. 

8. Apple is not responsible for lost or stolen Promo Codes. If Holders have any questions, 
they may visit Apple Support at https://support.apple.com/apps. 

9. Apple reserves the right to close Holder accounts and request alternative forms of 
payment if Promo Codes are fraudulently obtained or used on the App Store. 

10. APPLE AND ITS LICENSEES, AFFILIATES, AND LICENSORS MAKE NO 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO PROMO CODES OR THE APP 
STORE, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. IN THE EVENT A 
PROMO CODE IS NON-FUNCTIONAL, HOLDER'S OR COMPANY'S SOLE REMEDY, AND 
APPLE'S SOLE LIABILITY, SHALL BE THE REPLACEMENT OF SUCH PROMO CODE. THESE 
LIMITATIONS MAY NOT APPLY. CERTAIN LOCAL AND TERRITORY LAWS DO NOT ALLOW 
LIMITATIONS ON IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF 
CERTAIN DAMAGES. IF THESE LAWS APPLY, SOME OR ALL OF THE ABOVE 
DISCLAIMERS, EXCLUSIONS, OR LIMITATIONS MAY NOT APPLY, AND YOU OR HOLDER 
MAY ALSO HAVE ADDITIONAL RIGHTS. 

11 . Apple reserves the right to change any of the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Attachment 1 from time to time without notice. 

12. Any part of these terms and conditions may be void where prohibited or restricted by law. 

Program Agreement Page 86 



EXHIBIT D 
(to Schedule 1) 

Additional App Store Terms 

1. Discoverability on the App Store: The discoverability of Your Licensed Application in 
the App Store depends on several factors, and Apple is under no obligation to display, feature , or 
rank Your Licensed Application in any particular manner or order in the App Store. 

(a) The main parameters used for app ranking and discoverability are text relevance, such as 
using an accurate title, adding relevant keywords/metadata, and selecting descriptive categories 
in the Licensed Application: customer behavior relating to the number and quality of ratings and 
reviews and application downloads; date of launch in the App Store may also be considered for 
relevant searches: and whether You have violated any rules promulgated by Apple. These main 
parameters deliver the most relevant results to customer search queries. 

(b) When considering apps to feature in the App Store, our editors look for high-quality apps 
across all categories, with a particular focus on new apps and apps with significant updates. The 
main parameters that our editors consider are UI design, user experience, innovation and 
uniqueness, localizations, accessibility, App Store product page screenshots, app previews, and 
descriptions; and additionally, for games, gameplay, graphics and performance, audio, narrative 
and story depth, ability to replay, and gameplay controls. These main parameters showcase 
high-quality, well-designed, and innovative apps. 

(c) If You use an Apple service for paid promotion of Your app on the App Store, Your app may 
be presented in a promotional placement and designated as advertising content. 

To learn more about app discoverability, visit https://developer.apple.com/app
store/discoverability/. 

2. Access to App Store Data 

You can access data concerning your Licensed Application's financial performance and user 
engagement in App Store Connect by using App Analytics, Sales and Trends, and Payments and 
Financial Reports. Specifically, You can obtain all of Your Licensed Application's financial results 
for individual app sales and in-app purchases (including subscriptions) in Sales and Trends, or 
download the data from Financial Reports; and You can view App Analytics for non-personally 
identifiable data that allows You to understand how consumers engage with your Licensed 
Applications. More information can be found at https://developer.apple.com/app-store/measuring
app-performance/. App Analytics data is provided only with the consent of our customers. For 
more information, see https://developer.apple.com/app-store-connecUanalytics/. Apple does not 
provide You with access to personal or other data provided by or generated through use of the 
App Store by other developers; nor does Apple provide other developers with access to personal 
or other data provided by or generated through Your use of the App Store. Such data sharing 
would conflict with Apple's Privacy Policy, and with our customers' expectations about how Apple 
treats their data. You can seek to collect information from customers directly, so long as such 
information is collected in a lawful manner, and You follow the App Store Review Guidelines. 

Apple handles personal and non-personal information as outlined in Apple's Privacy Policy. 
Information about Apple's access to and practices concerning developer and customer data can 
be found in "App Store & Privacy," accessible at https://support.apple.com/en-us/HT210584. 
Apple may provide some non-personal information to strategic partners that work with Apple to 
provide our products and services, help Apple market to customers, and sell ads on Apple's 
behalf to display in the App Store and Apple News and Stocks. Such partners are obligated to 
protect that information and may be located wherever Apple operates. 

Program Agreement Page 87 



3. P2B Regulation Complaints and Mediation 

Developers established in, and which offer goods or services to customer located in, a region 
subject to a platform-to-business regulation ("P28 Regulation"), such as the Regulation of the 
European Parliament and of the Council on promoting fairness and transparency for business 
users of online intermediation services may submit complaints pursuant to such P2B Regulation 
related to the following issues at https://developer.apple.com/contacUp2b/: (a) Apple's alleged 
non-compliance with any obligations set forth in the P2B Regulation which affect You in the 
region in which you are established; (b) technological that affect You and relate directly to 
distribution of Your Licensed Application on the App Store in the region in which you are 
established; or (c) measures taken by or behavior of Apple that affect You and relate directly to 
distribution of Your Licensed Application on the App Store in the region in which you are 
established. Apple will consider and process such complaints and communicate the outcome to 
You. 

For Developers established in, and which offer goods or services to customer located in, the 
European Union, Apple identifies the following panel of mediators with which Apple is willing to 
engage to attempt to reach an agreement with developers established in, and which offer goods 
or services to customer located in, the European Union on the settlement, out of court, of any 
disputes between Apple and You arising in relation to the provision of the App Store services 
concerned, including complaints that could not be resolved by means of our complaint-handling 
system: 

Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution 
P2B Panel of Mediators 
70 Fleet Street 
London 
EC4Y 1EU 
United Kingdom 
https://www .cedr.com/p2bmediation/ 

LYL 117 
06/06/2022 

Program Agreement Page 88 



CONSTENT AGENDA 



UNION GAP CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
UNION GAP COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Call to Order 

Council Members Present 

Staff Present 

Audience Present 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Consent Agenda 

Items from the Audience 

Union Gap, Washington 
August 8, 2022, Regular Meeting 

MINUTES 

Mayor Hodkinson called the Regular Meeting of the Union Gap City 
Council to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Council Members Murr, Galloway, Hansen, Schilling, and Dailey were 
present. 

City Manager Fisher, City Attorney Brown, Police Chief Cobb, Fire Chief 
Markham, Public Works and Community Development Director Henne, Civil 
Engineer Dominguez, and Finance and Administration Director Clifton, were 
present. Council Member Wentz attended virtually. 

See attached list. 

Council Member Dailey led the pledge of allegiance. 

Motion by Council Member Hansen, second by Council Member Galloway to 
approve the consent agenda as follows. 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes dated July 11, 2022, with added transcription, 
as attached to the Agenda and maintained in electronic format. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

Regular Council Meeting Minutes dated July 25, 2022, as attached to the 
Agenda and maintained in electronic format. 

Claims Vouchers - EFT's, Voucher No. l 05023 through l 05093 for August 
08, 2022, in the amount of $271,200.10. 

Voting on the motion-Ayes - Murr, Wentz, Galloway, Hansen, Dailey and 
Hodkinson. Nays - Schilling. Motion passes. 

Julie Schilling took the podium representing the 50 l c3, standing in as the 
deputy chair, in the chair's absence. Schilling announced notification of a 
receipt of a congressionally directed spending request in the amount of one 
million dollars. The notification was received from US Senator Patty Murray 
and is a line-item that will be included in the OMNI bill for fiscal year 2023 . 
Schilling stated that the citizens voted on a 6,000 sq. ft. community center 
and library, pre-COVID, and that they owe it to them to make every penny 



CITY OF UNION GAP REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES -August 8, 2022 

General Items 

Public Works & Community 
Development 

Ordinance No. - 3024 -
Budget Amendment -
Purchase Public Works 
Department Vehicles 

Resolution No. - 22-33 - Set 
Public Hearing - UGMC 
Code Title 17 Zoning -
Manufactured Home Park 
Standards 

Resolution No. - 22-34 - Set 
Public Hearing - UGMC 
Code Title 2 Chapter 2.52 
State Environmental Policy 
Act 

Resolution No. - 22-35 - Set 
Public Hearing - UGMC 
Code Title 15 Mobile Homes 

count. They continue their efforts to raise additional funding, and thus far , 
The Friends of Union Gap Library and Community Center 50 lc3 , and the 
Union Gap Library and Community Center Committee have received from 
WA. State Dept. of Commerce, Senator Jim Honeyford, $2 million; US 
Senator Patty Murray $1 million; Union Gap Community fund-raising 
$103,225 , for a subtotal of $3 , I 03 ,225. They show a grand total of 
$3,959,973, which is a little bit different than what the City shows. Schilling 
distributed documentation to each Council Member. Teresa Charvet 
requested permission to clap, audience clapped. 

Motion by Council Member Murr, second by Council Member Galloway to 
adopt Ordinance No. - 3024 - amending the 2022 budget, utilizing a portion 
of the City' s State and Local Fiscal Recovery (SLRF) COVID revenue, to 
purchase new vehicles for the Public Works Department. Council Member 
Hansen asked how many vehicles would be purchased. Public Works and 
Community Development Director Henne replied that there would be 3 
vehicles in this purchase, and he has $4,000.00 in the equipment reserve fund 
to make up for any short falls. Motion carried unanimously. 

Motion by Council Member Wentz, second by Council Member Hansen to 
approve Resolution No. - 22-33 - setting a public hearing to consider 
amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 17 - Zoning - Manufactured 
Home Park Standards. Motion carried unanimously. 

Motion by Council Member Wentz, second by Council Member Hansen to 
approve Resolution No. - 22-34 - setting a public hearing to consider 
amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 2 Chapter 2.52 State 
Environmental Policy Act. Motion carried unanimously. 

Motion by Council Member Wentz, second by Council Member Hansen to 
approve Resolution No. - 22-35 - setting a public hearing to consider 
amending Union Gap Municipal Code Title 15 Mobile Homes. Motion 
carried unanimously. Council Member Schilling asked how the citizens 
would be notified about the public hearing, asked the audience members if 
they read about the meeting in the Herald. Some did, some did not. Schilling 
asked if there was some other way to advertise. City Manager Fisher replied 
the city website, to send out notice to every citizen is not cost effective, what 
is happening with the Yakima Herald is not of our doing, we are required by 
law to advertise with them, and asked what other suggestions Schilling had. 
Schilling replied maybe an email list. Fisher stated that her suggestion will 
be taken into consideration. 

- 2 -



CITY OF UNION GAP REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES -August 8, 2022 

Finance & Administration 

Ordinance No. - 3025 -
Personnel Policy Handbook 
Update- FMLA and PFML 

City Manager 

Resolution No. - 22-36 -
Professional Services 
Agreement - Kutak Rock 
LLP 

Items from the Audience 

City Manager Report 

Communications/Questions/ 
Comments 

Development of next Agenda 

Recess to 30 Minute 
Executive Session 

Reconvene & Adjournment 
of Meeting 

ATTEST: 

Karen Clifton, City Clerk 

Motion by Council Member Wentz, second by Council Member Murr to 
adopt Ordinance No. - 3025 - amending the City of Union Gap Personnel 
Policy Handbook. Motion carried unanimously. 

Motion by Council Member Wentz, second by Council Member Murr to 
approve Resolution No. - 22-36 - authorizing the City Manager to sign an 
agreement for professional legal services with Kutak Rock LLP for legal 
services to prepare and advise on a development agreement. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

None. 

City Manager Fisher passed to Police Chief Cobb, for information about 
National Night Out. Chief Cobb stated that they would be out at Louden Park 
the next day from 5:00pm to 7:00pm, with Union Gap and Grandview police 
departments the only two holding their events on that date. Cobb invited 
Council Members to attend. 

None. 

None. 

At 6:25 p.m. Mayor Hodkinson announced a recess to 30 minute executive 
session to discuss litigation per RCW 42.30.110 (i) , and that the Council 
would not be taking action. At 6:55 p.m. Mayor Hodkinson announced a 10 
minute extension to the executive session. 

At 7:05 p.m., Mayor Hodkinson reconvened and adjourned the August 8, 
2022 regular Council Meeting. 

Arlene Fisher, City Manager 

- 3 -



N.A.fVlE (Please Print) 

CITY OF UNiOJ\l GAP 

REGULAR UNION GAP COUNCIL f\/JEETll\JG 
SIGN ff\l S.HEET 

6:00 P.M. -August 8, 2022 

(Date) ADDRESS 

\\yakima_city\ugch\City Clerk\Council Packet Process\Preparing Council Packets\Sign In Sheet\SIGN IN SHEET.docx 



Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: Karen Clifton, Director of Finance and Administration 

Topic/Issue: Payroll Vouchers - July 2022 

SYNOPSIS: Payroll Vouchers for the month of July 2022 

RECOMMENDATION: Request Council to approve EFrs and Voucher Nos. 105094 through 105101, 
in the amount of $470,377.06. 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: N/ A 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N/A 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll Voucher Register 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP Time: 10:48:09 Date: 08/08/2022 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 Page: 1 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant Amount Memo 

4134 07/19/2022 Payroll 2 EFT TRAVIS FISCUS 213.87 June 2022 Correction 
4135 07/19/2022 Payroll 2 EFT INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 38.26 941 Deposit for Pay Cycle(s) 

07 /18/2022 - 07 /19/2022 
4140 07 /19/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE EMPLOYMENT 1.1 O Pay Cycle(s) 07 /18/2022 To 

SECURITY DEPT-PFML 07 /19/2022 - WPFM L 

4141 07/19/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 41 .53 Pay Cycle(s) 07/18/2022 To 
07 /19/2022 - PERS II - 5591 

4186 05/11/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE EMPLOYMENT 0.90 Pay Cycle(s) 05/11/2022 To 

SECURITY DEPT-PFML 05/11/2022 - WPFML 

4187 05/11/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES Duplicate 
4606 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT LYNEITE BISCONER 4,699.71 July 2022 Payroll 
4607 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT RYAN L BONSEN 5, 187.30 July 2022 Payroll 
4608 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JABAN R BROWNELL 7,735.54 July 2022 Payroll 
4609 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT ANTHONY T BRYANT 3,291.97 July 2022 Payroll 
4610 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT CRAIG G BUNTING 5,656.47 July 2022 Payroll 
4611 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JASON G CAVANAUGH 5,666.92 July 2022 Payroll 
4612 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT NEREDIHT ECHAVEZ 3, 162.97 July 2022 Payroll 
4613 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT KAREN CLIFTON 5,845.43 July 2022 Payroll 
4614 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT GREGORY COBB 6,747.64 July 2022 Payroll 
4615 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT CHRIS DAHL 4,564.63 July 2022 Payroll 
4616 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT SANDY L DAILEY 545.00 July 2022 Payroll 
4617 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT DAVID DOMINGUEZ 6,591 .78 July 2022 Payroll 
4618 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT DAMON A DUNSMORE 4,016.41 July 2022 Payroll 
4619 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT TRAVIS FISCUS 3,728.05 July 2022 Payroll 
4620 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT ARLENE F FISHER-MAURER 8,818.80 July 2022 Payroll 
4621 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JACK L GALLOWAY 545.00 July 2022 Payroll 
4622 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT DAVID 0 HANSEN 545.00 July 2022 Payroll 
4623 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT DENNIS HENNE 6,607.89 July 2022 Payroll 
4624 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT ROBERT M HENNESSY 10,091.65 July 2022 Payroll 
4625 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JOHN P HODKINSON JR 545.00 July 2022 Payroll 
4626 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT RUDY M JIMENEZ 5,039.19 July 2022 Payroll 
4627 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT ALBA L LEVESQUE 4,736.86 July 2022 Payroll 
4628 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JO LINDER 3,224.29 July 2022 Payroll 
4629 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT TERESA LOPEZ 4,539.44 July 2022 Payroll 
4630 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT LAURIE ANN MARTINEZ 1,671 .72 July 2022 Payroll 
4631 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT VALENTINA MARTINEZ 2,994.33 July 2022 Payroll 
4632 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT HOWARD L MASON 3,274.69 July 2022 Payroll 
4633 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT STACEY J MCKINLEY 3,597.83 July 2022 Payroll 
4634 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT KYLAR D MCPHERSON 3, 724.85 July 2022 Payroll 
4635 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT ROBERT MCRAE 3,886.27 July 2022 Payroll 
4636 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT CASEY M MORFIN 3,460.83 July 2022 Payroll 
4637 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JAMES E MURR 521 .25 July 2022 Payroll 
4638 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT MICHAEL R NORTH 4,962.81 July 2022 Payroll 
4639 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT SERGIO E OCHOA 3,968.57 July 2022 Payroll 
4640 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT REBECCA R PINA 3,033 .22 July 2022 Payroll 
4641 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT CARY D PIITACK 3,387.72 July 2022 Payroll 
4642 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT HECTOR A RIVERA 6,201 .15 July 2022 Payroll 
4643 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT PAULK SANDERS 5,066.28 July 2022 Payroll 
4644 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT CURTIS J SANTUCCI 5,200.25 July 2022 Payroll 
4645 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT KURT W SCHELHAMMER 3,976.23 July 2022 Payroll 
4646 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JULIE SCHILLING 548.00 July 2022 Payroll 
4647 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT COLEMAN D SHOGREN 3,927.67 July 2022 Payroll 
4648 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT RAYMUNDO V SUAREZ 4,659.46 July 2022 Payroll 
4649 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT AMANDA L TOWLE 4, 116.75 July 2022 Payroll 
4650 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT ERIC B TURLEY 4, 793.48 July 2022 Payroll 



WARRANT /CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP Time: 10:48:09 Date: 08/08/2022 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 Page: 2 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant Amount Memo 

4651 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JENNY V VALLE 3,344.15 July 2022 Payroll 

4652 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT JOSEPH VANICEK 4,591.46 July 2022 Payroll 

4653 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT CHAD VANOVER 5,601 .51 July 2022 Payroll 

4654 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT GLORIA A WALTMAN 3,461 .54 July 2022 Payroll 

4655 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT TERRYL D WAY 7,354.05 July 2022 Payroll 

4656 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT ROGER E WENTZ 524.25 July 2022 Payroll 

4657 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT AFLAC 199.86 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/ 2022 To 
08/ 10/ 2022 - AFLAC; Pay Cycle(s) 
08/10/2022 To 08/10/2022 -
AFLAC Pre Tax 

4658 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT AWC EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST 88,081 .06 LEOFF 1 RETIREE MEDICAL 
BEN EFITS-07 /2022; Pay Cycle(s) 
08/10/2022 To 08/10/2022 -
Medical 

4659 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 85,389.24 941 Deposit for Pay Cycle(s) 
08/10/2022 - 08/10/2022 

4660 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT 6, 152.04 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 

#302189 ROTH 08/10/2022 - ICMA ROTH -
Catch-up; Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 
To 08/10/2022 - ICMA 457 ROTH 

4661 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT 2,019. 7 4 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 

#108800 08/10/2022 - ICMA MNGT Trust 

4662 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT MISSION SQUARE RETIREMENT 12,467.07 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 

#302189 08/10/ 2022 - ICMA Retirement 
Trust 

4663 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE DEPT OF SOCIAL 300.00 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - WSDCS 

4664 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE DRS - DCP 50.00 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - DRS - DCP - 902871 

4665 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE EMPLOYMENT 1 ,481.25 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 

SECURITY DEPT-PFML 08/10/2022 - WPFML 

4666 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT 20,360.09 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - LEO FF II - 8040 

4667 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WA STATE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 25,457.13 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - PERS II - 5591 ; Pay 
Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - PERS Ill - 5591 

4668 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 EFT WESTERN CONFERENCE OF 3,964.50 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - Teamster's Pension 
#414793; Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 
To 08/10/2022 - Teamster's 
Pension #415517 

4669 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 105094 EMPLOYEE FUND 219.00 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - Employee Fund 

4670 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 105095 HRA VEBA Trust Contributions 5,760.00 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - VE8A - Sick Cash 
Out 

4671 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 105096 TEAMSTERS LOCAL 760 794.00 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - Teamsters Dues 

4672 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 105097 UNION GAP POLICE OFFICERS 1,500.00 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 

ASSN 08/10/2022 - UGPOA Dues 

4673 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 105098 USABLE LIFE 75.96 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/2022 - USAble Life 

4674 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 105099 WA STATE COUNCIL OF CNTY 662.20 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/ 10/ 2022 - AFCSME Dues 



WARRANT /CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Trans Date Type Acct # War # Claimant 

· 4675 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 105100 WA STATE COUNCIL OF 

4676 08/10/2022 Payroll 2 105101 WESTERN STATES POLICE 

001 Current Expense Fund 
101 Street Fund 
128 Transit System Fund 
401 Water Fund 
402 Garbage Fund 
403 Sewer Fund 

MEDICAL TRUST 

Time: 10:48:09 Date: 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

08/08/2022 
3 

187.50 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/10/ 2022 - WSCOPO Dues 

977.50 Pay Cycle(s) 08/10/2022 To 
08/ 10/2022 - WSPMT 

357,331 .91 
28,337.33 

5,655.01 
36, 116.72 

2,433.94 
40,502.15 

470,377.06 Payroll: 470,377.06 



Meeting Date: August 22, 2022 

City Council 
Communication 

From: Karen Clifton, Director of Finance and Administration 

Topic/Issue: Claim Vouchers - August 22, 2022 

SYNOPSIS: Claim Vouchers Dated August 22, 2022 

RECOMMENDATION: Request Council to approve EFTs and Voucher Nos. 105103 through 105163, 
in the amount of $299,762.88. 

LEGAL REVIEW: N/A 

FINANCIAL REVIEW: N/ A 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: N/A 

ADDITIONAL OPTIONS: N/ A 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Claim Voucher Register 
2. Detailed Claim Voucher Register 



WARRANT /CH ECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP Time: 14:53:41 Date: 08/17/2022 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 Page: 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant Amount Memo 

4566 08/03/2022 Claims 2 EFT CHASE PAYMENTECH 1,311.38 ONLINE CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS 
FEE - 07 /2022 

4688 08/05/2022 Claims 2 EFT US BANK - CHECKING 66.00 INV MA/NT FEE - 07/2022 

4820 08/22/2022 Claims 2 EFT CENTURY LINK - LD 118.88 LONG DISTANCE - 08/2022 

4821 08/22/2022 Claims 2 EFT OFFICE DEPOT-CITY HALL 594.79 RETURN OF MERCHANDISE -
PAPER CLIPS - INVOICE 
#253816314001 ; FAX INK CTG; 
CLASP ENVELOPES 9X12, BOX 
CUTTER, TAPE, 2 HOLE & CLASP 
ENVELOPES 6X9; PRINTER; HP 
COMBO INK CARTRIDGES & 6" 
PLASTIC RULER 

4822 08/22/2022 Claims 2 EFT OFFICE DEPOT- PD 126.87 COPY PAPER & FINGERTIP 
MOISTENER 

4823 08/22/2022 Claims 2 EFT SPECTRUM ENTERPRISE 120.45 CIVIC CENTER TV SVC - 08/2022 

4824 08/22/2022 Claims 2 EFT USBANKCARDMEMBERSVC 8,379.20 9"X12" ENVELOPES; FOOD FOR 
CISM DEBRIEF MEETING -
07/06/2022; BACKGROUND 
CHECK; TRAFFIC SAFETY 
CONFERENCE 08/21/2022 -
08/23/2022 - SAN ANTONIO, TX -
C. VANOVER; YVLEA MEETING -
07/12/2022 - G. COBB;; 

4707 08/09/2022 Claims 2 105103 509 JUMPERS, LLC 324.90 WATER SLIDE RENTAL FOR 
NATIONAL NIGHT OUT -
08/09/2022 

4825 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105104 AIRGAS USA, LLC 32.46 UG PW SHOP WELDER SUPPLIES -
MATERIAL #S14M3T35 - TIP 
CONTACT 0.35 LENGTH 

4826 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105105 ALL AMERICAN PROPANE 91 .98 FIRE DEPT PROPANE 250-GALLON 
TANK RENTALSN#182928 - TANK 
#1847894 

4827 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105106 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC 32.17 16 GB USB FLASH DRIVES & 
BUBBLE MAILER-SIZE#10 

4828 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105107 AM ERi FUEL 2,303.09 FUEL - 08/01/2022 - 08/15/2022 

4829 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105108 ATLAS STAFFING INC 4,746.53 SEASONAL PARKS - WEEK 
WORKED 07 /30/2022 - BURKS, 
CARLS & VISINT/N; SEASONAL 
PARKS - WEEK WORKED 
08/06/2022 - BURKS, CARLS & 
V/SINTIN 

4830 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105109 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. 34,343.98 2021 CORE+ TASER BUNDLE 

4831 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105110 MARIELA BARRERA GALINDO 300.00 CLEANING/DAMAGE DEPOSIT 
REFUND - ACTIVITIES BLDG 
RENTAL - 08/13/2022 

4832 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105111 BREAKOUT PRODUCTIONS 275.00 PIONEER POWER SHOW - 2022 
TV AD 

4833 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105112 BURROWS TRACTOR COMPANY 887.70 FORD TRACTOR #3004 - CLUTCH 
REPAIR PART/LABOR & TD1500 
BUSHOG REPAIR PARTS 

4834 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105113 ALEJANDRA & GABRIEL CARILLO 220.01 CLEANING/DAMAGE DEPOSIT 
REFUND - ACTIVITIES BLDG 
RENT AL - 07 /30/2022 

4835 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105114 CASCADE FIRE & SAFETY 18,449.45 EXTRACTOR, SEKO DISP, FREIGHT, 
INSTALL KIT & BASE 

4836 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105115 CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORP 510.74 FIRE DEPT- 107 W. AHTANUM 
ROAD - 07/2022; 44011/2 MAIN 
STREET & 4401 MAIN STREET #2 -
07/2022; CIVIC CAMPUS - 102 W. 
AHTANUM ROAD - 07/2022 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP Time: 14:53:41 Date: 08/17/2022 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 Page: 2 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant Amount Memo 

4837 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105116 CENTRAL WA AG MUSEUM 12,484.31 2022 OLD TOWN DAYS 
REIMBURSEMENT; AG MUSEUM 
UTILITIES - 07/2022 

4838 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105117 CENTRAL WASHINGTON FAIR 2,500.00 SFP SALES/MARKETING - OB/2022 

ASSOC. 
4839 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105118 Cl SHRED 194.65 PD SHRED SVC - 07/2022; CITY 

HALL SHRED SVC - 07 /2022 
4840 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105119 CINTAS CORP #605 72.20 CIVIC CENTER & PD MAT SVC -

OB/12/2022 
4841 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105120 CITY OF UNION GAP 79.99 ACTIVITIES BLDG RENTAL -

CLEAN-UP VIOLATION -
RESERVATION #4415 -
07 /30/2022 

4842 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105121 COMMERCIAL TIRE - PD 963.42 TIRE REPLACEMENT - VEH #121; 
NEW TIRES - VEH #12 

4843 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105122 CURTIS SLUE LINE 109.02 NAME PLATES - C. SHOGREN, K. 
MCPHERSON & C. SANTUCCI 

4844 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105123 D & G CLEANING,LLC 5,810.00 CIVIC CENTER & PD CLEANING 
SVC - 07 /2022; ACTIVITIES 
BUILDING/YOUTH BARN 
CLEANING SVC - 07/2022 

4845 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105124 GALLS, LLC 155.26 HANDCUFFS, ASP ROTATING 
SIDEBREAK SCABBARD & 
STINGER DS LED HL -
MCPHERSON; MERCHANDISE 
RETURN - OPEN TOP CUFF CASE -
K. MCPHERSON - INV #02151512; 
MERCHANDISE RETURN -
ACCUMOLD ELITE EQUIP BELT -

4846 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105125 SALVADOR GARCIA 150.00 CLEANING/DAMAGE DEPOSIT 
REFUND - YOUTH BARN RENTAL 
07/30/2022 

4847 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105126 GENE WEINMANN CONSULTING 101 .00 CDBG COORDINATOR & 
SUPPLIES & POSTAGE 

4848 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105127 GRAINGER 254.11 36" ALUMINUM TRASH 
GRABBERS; PET WASTE BAGS 

4849 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105128 GRANT J HUNT COMPANY 3,750.00 DESIGN & MARKETING - 08/2022 

4850 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105129 GWINC 566.70 GLOCK 17-RD MAGAZINE -
M/17/34 9MM (GEN-5) 

4851 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105130 HLA ENGINEERING & LAND 19,526.38 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER 

SURVEYING INC SERVICES - 07 /01/2022 -
07/31/2022 

4852 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105131 HYUNDAI OF YAKIMA 68.20 LUBE, OIL & FILTER - VEH #15; 
LUBE, OIL & FILTER - VEH #09 

4853 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105132 INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 145.00 2023 ICC MEMBERSHIP DUES - J. 
CAVANAUGH 

4854 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105133 KELLER SUPPLY CO 151 .17 REAR SPUD TOILET 

4855 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105134 TROY KELLER 69.23 OVERPAYMENT REFUND - UB 
ACCT #11432 - 3403 2ND STREET 

4856 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105135 KELLEY CONNECT 107.11 OKI 62441804 TONER 
CARTRIDGES - YELLOW, CYAN & 
BLACK; OKI 62441804 TONER 
CARTRIDGE - MAGENTA 

4857 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105136 LAW OFFICES OF MARGIT A 14,500.00 PROSECUTING ATTORNEY -

DORNAY 08/2022 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP Time: 14:53:41 Date: 08/17/2022 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 Page: 3 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant Amount Memo 

4858 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105137 MANSFIELD ALARM CO INC 500.54 FIRE DEPT AES RADIO 
MONITORING - 107 W. 
AHTANUM ROAD - 09/01/2022 -
11/30/2022; CIVIC CENTER 
ALARM MONITORING & FIRE 
ALARM - 102 W. AHTANUM RD -
09/01/2022 - 11/30/2022 

4859 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105138 HECTOR MARTINEZ 47.60 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND - UB 
ACCT #10814 - 32 W. 
WASHINGTON AVENUE #3 

4860 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105139 MEDSTAR CABULANCE, INC. 69,329.90 DIAL A RIDE/FIXED ROUTE -
07/2022 

4861 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105140 MINUTEMAN PRESS 1,167.97 UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT 
ENVELOPES & CREDIT 
CARD/DEBIT CARD PAYMENT 
SLIPS 

4862 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105141 OFFICE SOLUTIONS NORTHWEST 260.42 COPY PAPER & HP 962XL INK 
CARTRIDGE - BLACK; UTILITY 
BILLING STATEMENT PAPER; 
SHARPIE FINE POINT PENS -
BLUE, BLACK, GREEN & RED; 
LINEN BUSINESS COVER STOCK 

4863 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105142 PACIFIC POWER 28, 194.73 CIVIC CAMPUS - 08/2022; FIRE 
DEPT - 08/2022; LIFT STATIONS -
08/2022 & TRAFFIC LIGHTS -
07 /2022; WELLS/ AYP - 07 /2022, 
STREET LIGHTS/BOOSTER PUMPS 
- 07 /2022; AREA LIGHTS -

4864 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105143 PEOPLE FOR PEOPLE 1,870.00 SENIOR NUTRITION TEMPORARY 
SITE MANAGER - 07 /2022 

4865 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105144 PETTY CASH 19.45 MISC RECEIPTS - 08/2022 

4866 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105145 REPUBLIC PUBLISHING CO 67.20 NOTICE OF CIVIL SERVICE 
MEETING CANCELLATION -
08/01/2022 

4867 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105146 SEARS TENT AND AWNING 498.18 HOSE BED COVERS - ENGINE #96 

4868 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105147 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY 74.08 PACK SAVER LUBE, PUMP 
PROTECTOR & RAC X SPRAY TIP 
517 

4869 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105148 STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE 1, 125.20 2021 AUDIT- AUDIT NO. 58296 

4870 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105149 TINA M. STEINMETZ 105.00 07 /05/2022 COUNCIL MEETING 
TRANSCRIPT 

4871 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105150 TAP-RACK TACTICAL LLC 1,000.00 RED DOT INSTRUCTOR COURSE 
TRAINING - C SANTUCCI & R. 
BONSEN 

4872 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105151 THE JANITOR'S CLOSET 787.61 ACTIVITIES BLDG/BARN SUPPLIES 
- CAN LINERS - 40 X46 & 33X 39; 
CIVIC CENTER SUPPLIES - TOILET 
PAPER, M-FOLD TOWELS & HH 
TOWELS 

4873 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105152 U.S. CELLULAR 884.16 PD PHONE SVC - 08/2022 

4874 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105153 UNITED STATES POSTMASTER 890.60 UB POSTAGE - 08/2022 

4875 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105154 UPS 34.71 PD SHIPPING - 07 /06/2022 & 
08/03/2022 

4876 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105155 VALLEY SEPTIC SERVICE 32.40 CHEMICAL TOILET SERVICES --
BIRCHFIELD ROAD SHOOTING 
RANGE - MOXEE, WA 

4877 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105156 VIC'S AUTO & SUPPLY UNION 29.97 FUEL CAP; AGX FUSES & RING 

GAP - PW TERMINALS 

4878 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105157 WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SERV 1,086.25 KYOCERA TASKALFA 6054CI 
LEASE - 08/2022 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant 

4879 08/22/2022 Claims 2 105158 YAKIMA CO AUDITOR 

4880 08/22/2022 

4881 08/22/2022 

4882 08/22/2022 

4883 08/22/2022 

4884 08/22/2022 

Claims 2 105159 

Claims 2 105160 

Claims 2 105161 

Claims 2 105162 

Claims 2 105163 

001 Current Expense Fund 
101 Street Fund 

YAKIMA CO DEPT OF 
CORRECTIONS 

YAKIMA CO FINANCIAL SERVICES 

YAKIMA HUMANE SOCIETY 

YAKIMA VALLEY CONFERENCE 

YAKIMA WASTE SYSTEMS INC 

107 Convention Center Reserve Fund 
108 Tourism Promotion Area Fund 
113 Fire Truck Reserve Fund 
114 Seniors Activity Fund 
118 Municipal Capital Improvement Fund 
121 Street Development Reserve Fund 
123 Criminal Justice Fund 
128 Transit System Fund 
130 Community Policing Fund 
132 Community Events Fund 
170 Housing Rehabilitation Fund 
401 Water Fund 
402 Garbaqe Fund 
403 Sewer Fund 
405 Sewer Improvement Reserve 
414 Water Deposits 

* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 

Time: 14:53:41 Date: 08/17 /2022 
Page: 4 

Amount Memo 

39.00 UTILITY LIEN RECORDING FEE -
UB ACCT #4641 - 806 WHITMAN 
STREET - RAMIREZ 

48, 115.08 INMATE HOUSING & MEDICAL -
07/2022 

971 .99 LIQUOR BOARD PROFITS - 1ST 
QTR - 2ND QTR 2022 

3,000.00 ANIMAL CONTROL SVC - 07/ 2022 

3,916.38 LAND USE PLANNING & 
GIS/MAPPING SERVICES -

721 .13 WASTE SERVICE - 07 /2022 

118,691 .89 
6,580.49 
6,923.93 
2,775.00 

18,449.45 
4.00 

3,145.00 
15,563.38 
34,910.68 
69,478.00 

342.08 
1,050.00 

101 .00 
15,574.81 

2,081 .52 
3,226.05 

818.00 
47.60 

---- Claims: 
299,762.88 

299,762.88 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 Page: 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant 

4566 08/03/202; Claims 2 EFT CHASE PAYMENTECH 

001 - S24 20 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS-BUILDING 99.S1 
401 - S34 SO 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 370.79 
403 - S3S SO 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 370.78 
402 - S37 SO 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 370.79 
001 - SS8 60 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 99.S1 

4688 08/05/202< Claims 2 EFT US BANK - CHECKING 

4820 08/22/202< 

4821 08/22/202; 

001 - S14 23 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 

Claims 2 EFT CENTURY LINK - LD 

001 - S13 10 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES - EXEC 
001 - S14 23 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-FINAi\ 
001 - S14 30 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES - CLER 
001 - S1S 314700 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-LEGAL 
001 - S21 SO 47 00 - PD FACILITIES CIVIC CAMP UTIL 
001 - S2410 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITY-BUILDIJ\ 
401 - S34 SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-WATE 
403 - S3S SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-SEWEI 
402 - S37 SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITES - GARB 
101 - S42 30 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-STREE 
101 - S43 30 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-STREE 
128 - S4710 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-TRAN ~ 

001 - SS8 60 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-PLAN! 
001 - S76 80 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-PARK 

Claims 2 EFT OFFICE DEPOT-CITY HALL 

001 - S11 60 31 01 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S116031 01 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S13 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S13 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S13 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S13 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S24 20 31 00 - SUPPLIES-BUILDING 
001 - S24 20 31 00 - SUPPLIES-BUILDING 
001 - S24 20 31 00 - SUPPLIES-BUILDING 
001 - S24 20 31 00 - SUPPLIES-BUILDING 
401 - S34 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
401 - S34 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
401 - S34 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - S3S SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - S3S SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - S3S SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
101 - S42 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
101 - S42 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
101 - S42 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - SS8 60 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - SS8 60 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - SS8 60 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

66.00 

S.99 
8.36 
7.S2 
3.64 

76.11 
3.84 
3.48 
2.S2 
0.26 
0.48 
1.28 
1.07 
3.33 
1.00 

6.88 
1.94 
6.88 
1.94 
2.04 

112.04 
6.88 
1.94 
6.88 
1.94 

10.77 
21.16 
-2.6S 
6.88 
1.94 

S1 .01 
6.87 
1.94 

S1 .01 
6.87 
1.94 

S0.99 
6.87 
1.94 

S1 .01 
6.88 
1.94 

S1.01 
-2.6S 
6.87 
1.94 

Amount Memo 

1,311 .38 ONLINE CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS 
FEE - 07 /2022 

66.00 INV MAINT FEE · 07/2022 

118.88 LONG DISTANCE • 08/2022 

594.79 RETURN OF MERCHANDISE - PAPER 
CLIPS - INVOICE #253816314001 ; 
FAX INK CTG; CLASP ENVELOPES 

9X12, BOX CUTTER. TAPE, 2 HOLE & 
CLASP ENVELOPES 6X9; PRINTER; 
HP COMBO INK CARTRIDGES & 6" 
PLASTIC RULER 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

Trans Date 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Type Acct# War# Claimant 

001 - 558 60 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 576 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 576 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 576 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

51.01 
6.88 
1.99 

51.01 

4822 08/22/202; Claims 2 EFT OFFICE DEPOT-PD 

001 - 521 10 31 01 - PD CLERICAL SUPPLIES 126.87 

4823 08/22/202; Claims 2 EFT SPECTRUM ENTERPRISE 

001 - 513 10 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES - EXEC 6.07 
001 - 514 23 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-FINAi\ 8.47 
001 - 514 30 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES - CLER 7.62 
001 - 515 31 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-LEGAL 3.68 
001 - 521 50 47 00 - PD FACILITIES CIVIC CAMP UTIL 77.11 
001 - 52410 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITY-BUILDll\ 3.89 
401 - 534 50 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-WATE 3.53 
403 - 535 50 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-SEWEI 2.57 
402 - 537 50 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITES - GARB 0.27 
101 - 542 30 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-STREE 0.48 
101 - 543 30 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-STREE 1.30 
128 - 547 10 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-TRAN~ 1.08 
001 - 558 60 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-PLANt 3.37 
001 - 576 80 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-PARK 1.01 

4824 08/22/202; Claims 2 EFT US BANK CARDMEMBER SVC 

001 - 511 60 31 01 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 511 60 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 511 60 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 511 60 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 511 60 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 513 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 513 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 513 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 513 10 49 01 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 513 10 49 01 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 513 10 49 01 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 514 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 514 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 514 23 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 514 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 514 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 514 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 514 30 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 515 31 44 00 - ADVERTISING 
001 - 517 914300 -TRAVEL 
001 - 517 914900 - MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 521 10 21 00 - PD ADMIN UNIFORMS & EQUIF 
001 - 521 10 31 00 - PD ADMIN SUPPLIES 
001 - 521 10 31 00 - PD ADMIN SUPPLIES 
001 - 52110 32 00 - PD ADMIN FUEL 
001 - 521 10 32 00 - PD ADMIN FUEL 
001 - 521 10 43 00 - PD ADMIN TRAVEL 
001 - 521 10 43 00 - PD ADMIN TRAVEL 
001 - 521 10 49 00 - PD ADMIN MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 521 10 49 00 - PD ADMIN MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 521 10 49 00 - PD ADMIN MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - 521 213200 - INVESTIGATION FUEL 
001 - 521 21 43 00 - INVESTIGATION TRAVEL 

15.15 
8.91 

40.00 
25.00 
50.00 
14.33 
15.15 

1,742.83 
25.00 
50.00 
10.82 
34.68 
68.45 

5.50 
78.99 
68.46 
48.72 

5.50 
2,655.95 

41.97 
144.99 
562.63 

13.85 
75.79 
89.22 
67.39 
19.73 
12.14 
59.89 
10.00 
38.95 
82.36 
23.13 

Time: 14:55:58 Date: 
Page: 

08/17/2022 
2 

Amount Memo 

126.87 COPY PAPER & FINGERTIP 
MOISTENER 

120.45 CIVIC CENTER TV SVC - 08/2022 

8,379.20 9"X12" ENVELOPES; FOOD FOR 
CISM DEBRIEF MEETING -

07/06/2022; BACKGROUND CHECK; 

TRAFFIC SAFETY CONFERENCE 

08/21 /2022 - 08/23/2022 - SAN 
ANTONIO, TX • C. VANOVER; YVLEA 

MEETING - 07/12/2022 - G. COBB;; 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant 

001 - 521 22 21 00 - PATROL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMI 
001 - 521 22 31 00 - PATROL SUPPLIES 
001 - S21 22 49 00 - PATROL MISCELLANEOUS 
001 - S212249 00 - PATROL MISCELLANEOUS 
130 - S21 30 31 30 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S21 40 43 00 - PD TRAINING TRAVEL 
401 - S34 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
401 - S34 SO 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
401 - 534 SO 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
403 - S3S SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - S3S SO 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
403 - S3S SO 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
402 - S37 SO 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
101 - S42 30 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
101 - 542 30 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
128 - 547 10 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & MINOR EQUIP 
128 - S47 10 35 00 - SMALL TOOLS & MINOR EQUIP 
001 - 576 80 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 
001 - 576 80 3S 00 - SMALL TOOLS & EQUIPMENT 

4707 08/09/202< Claims 2 105103 509 JUMPERS, LLC 

130 - 521 30 4S 00 - RENTALS & LEASES 

4825 08/22/202< Claims 2 105104 AIRGAS USA, LLC 

401 - 534 50 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - 535 50 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
101 - 542 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - 576 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

107.76 
17.84 

695.00 
48.33 
17.18 

912.17 
5.23 

S1 .67 
8.29 
5.22 

51.67 
8.29 
5.23 

51 .67 
8.29 

51 .67 
8.29 

51.67 
8.29 

51 .66 
8.30 

324.90 

6.49 
6.49 
6.49 
6.49 
6.50 

4826 08/22/202< Claims 2 105105 ALL AMERICAN PROPANE 

001 - 522 50 47 00 - FD FACILITIES - UTILITIES 91.98 

4827 08/22/202< Claims 2 105106 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, 
INC 

001 - 521 10 31 01 - PD CLERICAL SUPPLIES 

4828 08/22/202< Claims 2 105107 AMERIFUEL 

001 - 521 10 32 00 - PD ADMIN FUEL 
001 - 521 21 32 00 - INVESTIGATION FUEL 
001 - 521 22 32 00 - PATROL FUEL 

4829 08/22/202< Claims 2 105108 ATLAS STAFFING INC 

001 - 576 80 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-ATLA 
001 - 576 80 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-ATLA 

32.17 

379.87 
129.SS 

1,793.67 

2,339.09 
2,407.44 

4830 08/22/202< Claims 2 105109 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC. 

123 - S21 22 21 23 - CJ UNIFORMS & EQUIP 34,343.98 

4831 08/22/202< Claims 2 105110 MARIELA BARRERA GALINDO 

001 - 582 10 00 03 - PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 300.00 

4832 08/22/202< Claims 2 105111 BREAKOUT PRODUCTIONS 

Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 
Page: 3 

Amount Memo 

324.90 WATER SLIDE RENTAL FOR 
NATIONAL NIGHT OUT -

32.46 UG PW SHOP WELDER SUPPLIES -
MATERIAL #S14M3T3S - TIP 

CONTACT 0.35 LENGTH 

91.98 FIRE DEPT PROPANE 250-GALLON 
TANK RENTAL SN#182928 - TANK 

#1847894 

3 2.17 16 GB USB FLASH DRIVES & BUBBLE 
MAILER-SIZE#10 

2,303.09 FUEL - 08/01/2022 - 08/15/2022 

4,746.53 SEASONAL PARKS· WEEK WORKED 
07/30/2022 - BURKS, CARLS & 
VISINTIN; SEASONAL PARKS • WEEK 

WORKED 08/06/2022 - BURKS, 
CARLS & VISINTIN 

34,343.98 2021 CORE+ TASER BUNDLE 

300.00 CLEANING/DAMAGE DEPOSIT 
REFUND - ACTIVITIES BLDG RENTAL 

- 08/13/2022 

275.00 PIONEER POWER SHOW - 2022 TV 
AD 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Trans Date Type Acct # War# Claimant 

108 - SS7 30 44 03 - ADVERTISING-AG MUSEUM 27S.OO 

4833 08/22/202; Claims 2 105112 BURROWSTRACTOR 

101 - S42 70 48 00 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 7.21 
001 - S76 80 48 00 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 880.49 

4834 08/22/202; Claims 2 105113 ALEJANDRA & GABRIEL 
CARILLO 

001 - S82 10 00 03 - PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 220.01 

4835 08/22/202; Claims 2 105114 CASCADE FIRE & SAFETY 

113 - S94 22 64 13 - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 18,449.4S 

4836 08/22/202; Claims 2 105115 CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORP 

001 - S13 10 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES - EXEC 
001 - S14 23 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-FINAi\ 
001 - S14 30 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES - CLER 
001 - S1 S 31 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-LEGAL 
001 - S21 SO 47 00 - PD FACILITIES CIVIC CAMP UTIL 
001 - S22 SO 47 00 - FD FACILITIES - UTILITIES 
001 - S24 10 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITY-BUILDl1' 
401 - S34 SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-WATE 
403 - S3S SO 47 00 - UTILITIES 
403 - S3S SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-SEWEI 
402 - S37 SO 47 00 - UTILITIES 
402 - S37 SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITES - GARB 
101 - S42 30 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-STREE 
101 - S43 30 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-STREE 
128 - S47 10 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-TRAN~ 
001 - SS8 60 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-PLANr 
001 - S76 80 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-PARK 

23.41 
32.6S 
29.36 
14.21 

297.28 
1S.82 
14.99 
13.60 
16.79 
9.89 

13.78 
1.03 
1.87 
4.99 
4.18 

13.00 
3.89 

4837 08/22/202< Claims 2 105116 CENTRAL WA AG MUSEUM 

107 - S71 00 42 00 - COMMUNICATION-AG MUSEUI 174.83 
107 - S71 00 47 00 - UTILITIES-AG MUSEUM 2,999.10 
001 - S712031 00 - COMM ENHANCEMENT-SUPPL! S,3SS.04 
132 - S71 20 41 32 - OTO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1,0S0.00 
001 - S71 20 44 00 - OTO - ADVERTISING 219.70 
001 - S71 20 4S 00 - OTO - OPERATING RENTALS & I 2,480.84 
001 - S71 20 47 00 - UTILITIES 204.80 

4838 08/22/202< Claims 2 105117 CENTRAL WASHINGTON FAIR 
ASSOC. 

108 - SS7 30 44 01 - ADVERTISING-STATE FAIR PARI< 2,S00.00 

4839 08/22/202< Claims 2 105118 Cl SHRED 

001 - S 11 60 41 01 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16.43 
001 - S13 10 41 01 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16.43 
001 - S14 23 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16.43 
001 - S14 30 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 16.43 
001 - S21 SO 41 00 - PD FACILITIES PROFESSIONALS 96.2S 
001 - S24 20 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-BUil[ 8.22 
401 - S34 SO 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3.29 
403 - S3S SO 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3.29 
402 - S37 SO 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3.29 

Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 
Page: 4 

Amount Memo 

887.70 FORD TRACTOR#3004 - CLUTCH 
REPAIR PART/LABOR & TD1500 
BUSHOG REPAIR PARTS 

220.01 CLEANING/DAMAGE DEPOSIT 
REFUND - ACTIVITIES BLDG RENTAL 

- 07 /30/2022 

18,449.45 EXTRACTOR, SEKO DISP, FREIGHT, 
INSTALL KIT & BASE 

510.74 FIRE DEPT - 107 W. AHTANUM 
ROAD - 07/2022; 4401 1/2 MAIN 
STREET & 4401 MAIN STREET #2 -

07 /2022; CIVIC CAMPUS - 102 W. 

AHTANUM ROAD· 07/2022 

12,484.31 2022 OLD TOWN DAYS 
REIMBURSEMENT; AG MUSEUM 
UTILITIES - 07 /2022 

2,500.00 SFP SALES/MARKETING - 08/2022 

194.65 PD SHRED SVC - 07 /2022; CITY HALL 
SHRED SVC - 07/2022 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Trans Date 

4840 08/22/202; 

4841 08/22/202; 

4842 08/22/202; 

Type Acct# War# Claimant 

101 - 542 30 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
001 - 558 60 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
001 - 576 80 41 00 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-ATLA 

Claims 2 105119 CINTAS CORP #605 

001 - 513 10 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - 514 23 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - 514 30 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - 515 31 48 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - 521 50 48 00 - PD FACILITIES REPAIRS & MAIN 
001 - 524 20 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
401 - 534 50 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
403 - 535 50 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
402 - 537 50 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
101 - 542 30 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
101 - 543 30 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
128 - 547 10 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - 558 60 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - 576 80 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE 

Claims 2 105120 CITY OF UNION GAP 

001 - 362 00 00 02 - PARK RENTAL FEES 
114 - 362 00 01 14 - 5% ACTIVITIES BLDG RNTL FOR 

Claims 2 105121 COMMERCIAL TIRE - PD 

001 - 521 22 48 00 - PATROL REPAIRS & MAINT 
001 - 5212248 00 - PATROL REPAIRS & MAINT 

4843 08/22/202; Claims 2 105122 CURTIS BLUE LINE 

001 - 521 22 21 00 - PATROL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMI 

4844 08/22/202; Claims 2 105123 D & G CLEANING,LLC 

001 - 513 10 41 02 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL 
001 - 514 23 41 03 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-FIN 
001 - 514 30 41 02 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL - Cl 
001 - 515 31 41 05 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-LE< 
001 - 521 50 41 01 - PD FACILITIES CIVIC CAMPUS H 
001 - 524 20 41 02 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-BUI 
401 - 534 50 41 03 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-WA 
403 - 535 50 41 04 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-SEV 
402 - 537 50 41 03 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-GAi 
101 - 542 30 41 03 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-STF 
101 - 543 30 41 02 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-SH 
128 - 547 10 41 03 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-TRI 
001 - 558 60 41 02 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-PL/! 
001 - 576 80 41 01 - PROF SVC- WHITE GLOVE CLEAi 
001 - 576 80 41 02 - CIVIC CAMPUS JANITORIAL-PA! 

4845 08/22/202; Claims 2 105124 GALLS, LLC 

001 - 521 22 21 00 - PATROL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMI 
001 - 521 22 21 00 - PATROL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMI 
001 - 5212221 00 - PATROL UNIFORMS & EQUIPMI 

3.29 
8.22 
3.08 

3.64 
5.08 
4.56 
2.21 

46.22 
2.33 
2.11 
1.54 
0.16 
0.29 
0.78 
0.65 
2.02 
0.61 

-75.99 
-4.00 

199.77 
763.65 

109.02 

228.60 
318.86 
286.73 
138.73 

2,903.32 
146.42 
132.79 
96.60 
10.10 
18.26 
48.76 
40.82 

127.01 
1,275.00 

38.00 

259.88 
-25.59 
-79.03 

Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 
Page: 5 

Amount Memo 

72.20 CIVIC CENTER & PD MAT SVC -
08/12/2022 

79.99 ACTIVITIES BLDG RENTAL -
CLEAN-UP VIOLATION -
RESERVATION #4415 - 07/30/2022 

963.42 TIRE REPLACEMENT- VEH #121; 
NEW TIRES - VEH #12 

109.02 NAME PLATES - C. SHOGREN, K. 
MCPHERSON & C. SANTUCCI 

5,810.00 CIVIC CENTER & PD CLEANING SVC -
07 /2022; ACTIVITIES 
BUILDING/YOUTH BARN CLEANING 
SVC - 07 /2022 

155.26 HANDCUFFS, ASP ROTATING 
SIDEBREAK SCABBARD & STINGER 
OS LED HL - MCPHERSON; 
MERCHANDISE RETURN - OPEN TOP 
CUFF CASE - K. MCPHERSON • INV 
#02151512; MERCHANDISE RETURN 
- ACCUMOLD ELITE EQUIP BELT -
MCP 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Trans Date Type Acct# War# Claimant 

4846 08/22/202< Claims 2 105125 SALVADOR GARCIA 

001 - S82 10 00 03 - PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 

4847 08/22/202< Claims 2 105126 GENE WEINMANN 
CONSULTING 

170 - SS9 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
170 - SS9 30 41 01 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - HOL 

4848 08/22/202< Claims 2 105127 GRAINGER 

1 S0.00 

11.00 
90.00 

402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 1 O.S9 
128 - S4710 31 00 - OFFICE & OPERATING SUPPLIES 10.S9 
001 - S76 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 10.59 
001 - S76 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 222.34 

4849 08/22/202< Claims 2 105128 GRANT J HUNT COMPANY 

107 - 557 30 41 01 - PROF SERVICES-GRANT J HUNT 3,7SO.OO 

4850 08/22/202< Claims 2 105129 GW INC 

123 - 521 22 21 23 - CJ UNIFORMS & EQUIP S66.70 

4851 08/22/202< Claims 2 105130 HLA ENGINEERING & LAND 
SURVEYING INC 

118 - 594 10 41 18 - LIBRARY/COMMUNITY CENTER 
405 - 594 3B 64 25 - AHTANUM/MAIN ST STORMW.t 
121 - S951041 S5 - LONGFIBRE RD RESURFACING-f 
121 - 595 30 64 OB - W. AHTANUM RD-GOODMAN l 

4852 08/22/202< Claims 2 105131 HYUNDAI OF YAKIMA 

001 - 521 22 48 00 - PATROL REPAIRS & MAINT 
001 - 521 22 48 00 - PATROL REPAIRS & MAINT 

4853 08/22/202< Claims 2 105132 INTERNATIONAL CODE 
COUNCIL 

001 - S24 20 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS-BUILDING 
001 - SSB 60 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 

4854 08/22/202< Claims 2 105133 KELLER SUPPLY CO 

401 - S34 50 48 00 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 
403 - S3S SO 48 00 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 
402 - S37 SO 48 00 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 
101 - S42 30 48 00 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 
001 - S76 80 48 00 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 

4855 08/22/202< Claims 2 1OS134 TROY KELLER 

401 - S89 10 04 01 - 210-10) WATER REFUNDS 

4856 08/22/202< Claims 2 105135 KELLEY CONNECT 

001 - S14 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

3,14S.OO 
818.00 

1,79S.OO 
13,768.38 

34.10 
34.10 

72.SO 
72.SO 

30.23 
30.23 
30.23 
30.23 
30.2S 

69.23 

42.90 
10.66 
42.90 
10.6S 

4857 08/22/202< Claims 2 105136 LAW OFFICES OF MARGITA 
DORNAY 

• .. 
001 - S1S 31 41 02 - LEGAL SERVICES - PROS. ATINY 14,SOO.OO 

Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 
Page: 6 

Amount Memo 

150.00 CLEANING/DAMAGE DEPOSIT 
REFUND - YOUTH BARN RENTAL 

07/30/2022 

101.00 CDBG COORDINATOR & SUPPLIES & 
POSTAGE 

254.11 36" ALUMINUM TRASH GRABBERS; 
PET WASTE BAGS 

3, 750.00 DESIGN & MARKETING - 08/2022 

566.70 GLOCK 17-RD MAGAZINE - M/17/34 
9MM (GEN-5) 

19,526.38 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER SERVICES 
- 07/01/2022 - 07/31/2022 

68.20 LUBE, Oil & FILTER· VEH #15; LUBE, 
OIL & FILTER -VEH #09 

145.00 2023 ICC MEMBERSHIP DUES - J. 
CAVANAUGH 

151.17 REAR SPUD TOILET 

69.23 OVERPAYMENT REFUND - UB ACCT 
#11432 - 3403 2ND STREET 

107 .11 OKI 62441804 TONER CARTRIDGES -
YELLOW, CYAN & BLACK; OKI 
62441804 TONER CARTRIDGE -

MAGENTA 

14,500.00 PROSECUTING ATTORNEY - 08/2022 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Trans Date Type Acct # War # Claimant 

4858 08/22/202; Claims 2 105137 MANSFIELD ALARM CO INC 

001 - S13 10 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - S1 4 23 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - S14 30 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - S1S 31 4800 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - S21 SO 48 00 - PD FACILITIES REPAIRS & MAIN 
001 - S22 SO 41 00 - FD FACILITIES - PROFESSIONAL 
001 - S24 20 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
401 - S34 SO 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
403 - S3S SO 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
402 - S37 SO 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
101 - S42 30 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
101 - S43 30 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
128 - S47 10 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - SS8 60 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE-
001 - S76 80 48 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS MAINTENANCE 

4859 08/22/202; Claims 2 105138 HECTOR MARTINEZ 

12.96 
18.08 
16.2S 
7.86 

164.S8 
243.46 

8.30 
7.S3 1 
S.49 
O.S7 
1.04 
2.76 
2.31 
7.20 
2.1 S 

Page: 7 

Amount Memo 

500.54 FIRE DEPT AES RADIO MONITORING 
- 107 W. AHTANUM ROAD -

09/01/2022 - 11/30/2022; CIVIC 

CENTER ALARM MONITORING & 
FIRE ALARM - 102 W. AHTANUM 

RD - 09/01/2022 - 11/30/2022 

47.60 WATER DEPOSIT REFUND - UB ACCT 
#10814 - 32 W. WASHINGTON 
AVENUE#3 

414 - S82 10 04 14 - DEPOSIT REFUND 47.60 Refund Utility Deposit 

4860 08/22/202; Claims 2 105139 MEDSTAR CABULANCE, INC. 69,329.90 DIALA RIDE/FIXED ROUTE- 07/2022 

128 - S47 10 49 00 - TRANSIT SERVICE PAYMENT 

4861 08/22/202; Claims 2 105140 MINUTEMAN PRESS 

401 - S34 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - S3S SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

4862 08/22/202; Claims 2 105141 OFFICE SOLUTIONS 

001 - S116031 01 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S13 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S1 4 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S1 4 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

NORTHWEST 

001 - S21 10 31 00 - PD ADMIN SUPPLIES 
001 - S24 20 31 00 - SUPPLIES-BUILDING 
401 - S34 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
401 - S34 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - S3S SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - S3S SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S58 60 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

4863 08/22/202; Claims 2 105142 PACIFIC POWER 

69,329.90 

389.32 
389.32 
389.33 

0.83 
1.70 

11 .37 
48.6S 
24.47 

6.36 
60.57 

0.1 S 
S.64 
1.66 

30.61 
1.S4 

30.61 
1.17 

30.62 
4.47 

1, 167.97 UTILITY BILLING STATEMENT 
ENVELOPES & CREDIT CARD/DEBIT 
CARD PAYMENT SLIPS 

260.42 COPY PAPER & HP 962Xl INK 
CARTRIDGE - BLACK; UTILITY 

BILLING STATEMENT PAPER; 

SHARPIE FINE POINT PENS - BLUE, 
BLACK, GREEN & RED; LINEN 

BUSINESS COVER STOCK PAPER 

28, 194. 73 CIVIC CAMPUS - 08/2022; FIRE DEPT 
- 08/2022; LIFT STATIONS - 08/2022 

& TRAFFIC LIGHTS - 07 /2022; 

WELLS/AYP - 07/2022, STREET 
LIGHTS/BOOSTER PUMPS - 07/2022; 

AREA LIGHTS - 07/2022 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

Trans Date 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Type Acct # War# Claimant 

001 - S13 10 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES - EXEC 
001 - S14 23 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-FINAi\ 
001 - S14 30 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES - CLER 
001 - S1 S 31 47 00 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-LEGAL 
001 - S21 SO 47 00 - PD FACILITIES CIVIC CAMP UTIL 
001 - S22 SO 47 00 - FD FACILITIES - UTILITIES 
001 - S24 10 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITY-BUILDlf\ 
401 - S34 SO 47 00 - UTILITIES 
401 - S34 SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-WATE 
403 - S3S SO 47 00 - UTILITIES 
403 - S3S SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-SEWEI 
402 - S37 SO 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITES - GARB 
101 - S42 30 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-STREE 
101 - S42 63 47 00 - UTILITIES 
101 - S42 64 47 00 - UTILITIES 
101 - S43 30 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-STREE 
128 - S47 10 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-TRAN~ 
001 - SS8 60 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-PLANt 
001 - S76 80 47 00 - UTILITIES 
001 - S76 80 47 00 - UTILITIES 
001 - S76 80 47 01 - CIVIC CAMPUS UTILITIES-PARK 

132.08 
184.24 
16S.67 
80.16 

1,677.S3 
641.S 1 
84.60 

13,96S.OS 
76.73 

1,740.1S 
SS.79 

S.84 
10.SS 

S,794.66 
417.40 

28.18 
23.S9 
73.39 

803.48 
2,212.17 

21 .96 

4864 08/22/202< Claims 2 105143 PEOPLE FOR PEOPLE 

001 - S71 21 41 00 - PROF SERVICES - PEOPLE FOR P 1,870.00 

4865 08/22/202< Claims 2 1OS144 PEITY CASH 

001 - S11 60 31 01 - SUPPLIES 19.4S 

4866 08/22/202< Claims 2 105145 REPUBLIC PUBLISHING CO 

001 - S21 10 44 00 - PD ADMIN ADVERTISING 67.20 

4867 08/22/202< Claims 2 105146 SEARS TENT AND AWNING 

001 - S22 20 48 00 - FD SUPPRESSION - REPAIRS & t 498.18 

4868 08/22/202< Claims 2 105147 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS 
COMPANY 

101 - S42 64 31 00 - SUPPLIES 74.08 

4869 08/22/202< Claims 2 105148 STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE 

001-S14234101-AUDITCOSTS 1,12S.20 

4870 08/22/202< Claims 2 105149 TINA M. STEINMETZ 

001 - S1 1 6041 01 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 10S.OO 

4871 08/22/202< Claims 2 105150 TAP-RACK TACTICAL LLC 

001 - S214049 00 - PD TRAINING MISCELLANEOUS 

4872 08/22/202< Claims 2 105151 THE JANITOR'S CLOSET 

001 - S13 10 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 23 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S14 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001-S1S313100-LEGALSUPPLIES 
001 - S21 SO 31 00 - PD FACILITIES SUPPLIES 
001 - S24 20 31 00 - SUPPLIES-BUILDING 
401 - S34 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
403 - S35 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
402 - S37 SO 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
101 - S42 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

1,000.00 

21.SS 
30.06 
27.03 
13.08 

273.69 
13.80 
12.S2 
9.11 
0.95 
1.72 

Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 
Page: 8 

Amount Memo 

1,870.00 SENIOR NUTRITION TEMPORARY 
SITE MANAGER - 07 /2022 

19.45 MISC RECEIPTS - 08/2022 

67 .20 NOTICE OF CIVIL SERVICE MEETING 
CANCELLATION - 08/01/2022 

498.18 HOSE BED COVERS - ENGINE #96 

74.08 PACK SAVER LUBE, PUMP 
PROTECTOR & RAC X SPRAY TIP 517 

1, 125.20 2021 AUDIT - AUDIT NO. S8296 

105.00 07/0S/2022 COUNCIL MEETING 
TRANSCRIPT 

1,000.00 RED DOT INSTRUCTOR COURSE 
TRAINING - C. SANTUCCI & R. 
BONSEN 

787.61 ACTIVITIES BLDG/BARN SUPPLIES· 
CAN LINERS • 40 X46 & 33X 39; 
CIVIC CENTER SUPPLIES - TOILET 
PAPER, M-FOLD TOWELS & HH 
TOWELS 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

Trans Date 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Type Acct # War# Claimant 

101 - S43 30 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
128 - S47 10 31 00 - OFFICE & OPERATING SUPPLIES 
001 - SS8 60 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S76 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S76 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 

4.60 
3.8S 

11 .97 
360.10 

3.S8 

4873 08/22/202; Claims 2 105152 U.S. CELLULAR 

001 - S21 10 42 00 - PD ADMIN COMMUNICATIONS 884.16 

4874 08/22/2021 Claims 2 105153 UNITED STATES POSTMASTER 

401 - S34 SO 42 00 - COMMUNICATION 
403 - S3S SO 42 00 - COMMUNICATION 
402 - S37 SO 42 00 - COMMUNICATION 

4875 08/22/202; Claims 2 105154 UPS 

296.87 
296.87 
296.86 

001 - S21 10 42 00 - PD ADMIN COMMUNICATIONS 34.71 

4876 08/22/202< Claims 2 105155 VALLEY SEPTIC SERVICE 

001 - S21 SO 4S 00 - PD FACILITIES OPERATION REN. 32.40 

4877 08/22/202; Claims 2 105156 VIC'S AUTO & SUPPLY UNION 
GAP- PW 

001 - S76 80 31 00 - SUPPLIES 
001 - S76 80 48 00 - REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 

10.27 
19.70 

4878 08/22/202< Claims 2 105157 WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN 
SERV 

001 - S11 60 45 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 
001 - S13 10 4S 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 
001 - S14 23 4S 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 
001 - S14 30 4S 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 
001 - 521 10 45 00 - PD ADMIN RENTALS & LEASES 
001 - S24 20 45 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 
401 - S34 SO 45 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 
403 - S3S SO 4S 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 
402 - S37 SO 45 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 
001 - 5S8 60 4S 00 - OPERATING RENTALS & LEASES 

4879 08/22/202< Claims 2 105158 YAKIMA CO AUDITOR 

16.99 
34.78 

233.11 
S01.54 

3.18 
115.56 
33.97 
31.49 
24.0S 
91.58 

402 - 537 SO 49 00 - MISCELLANEOUS 39.00 

4880 08/22/2021 Claims 2 105159 YAKIMA CO DEPT OF 
CORRECTIONS 

001 - S23 20 41 04 - DETENTION & CORRECTION CC 48,097.14 
001 - 523 20 41 07 - DETENTION & CORRECTION-Ml 17.94 

4881 08/22/2021 Claims 2 105160 YAKIMA CO FINANCIAL 
SERVICES 

001 - S62 00 49 00 - 2% ALCOHOL DISTRIBUTION 971 .99 

4882 08/22/202< Claims 2 105161 YAKIMA HUMANE SOCIETY 

001 - SS4 30 41 00 - PROF SERVICES-ANIMAL CONTI 3,000.00 

4883 08/22/2021 Claims 2 105162 YAKIMA VALLEY CONFERENCE 

001 - 5S8 60 41 01 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL PROFES 3,916.38 

4884 08/22/202< Claims 2 105163 YAKIMA WASTE SYSTEMS INC 

402 - S37 60 49 00 - CONTRACTED SERVICES 721 .13 

Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 
Page: 

Amount Memo 

884.16 PD PHONE SVC - 08/2022 

890.60 UB POSTAGE - 08/2022 

34.71 PD SHIPPING - 07/06/2022 & 
08/03/2022 

32.40 CHEMICAL TOILET SERVICES -· 
BIRCHFIELD ROAD SHOOTING 

RANGE - MOXEE, WA 

29.97 FUEL CAP; AGX FUSES & RING 
TERMINALS 

9 

1,086.25 KYOCERA TASKAlFA 60S4CI LEASE -
08/2022 

39.00 UTILITY LIEN RECORDING FEE - UB 
ACCT #4641 - 806 WHITMAN 
STREET - RAMIREZ 

48, 115.08 INMATE HOUSING & MEDICAL -
07/2022 

971 .99 LIQUOR BOARD PROFITS - lST QTR 
- 2ND QTR 2022 

3,000.00 ANIMAL CONTROL SVC - 07 /2022 

3,916.38 LAND USE PLANNING & 
GIS/MAPPING SERVICES - 07 /2022 

721.13 WASTE SERVICE - 07/2022 



WARRANT/CHECK REGISTER 
CITY OF UNION GAP 

Trans Date 

01/01/2022 To: 08/31/2022 

Type Acct # War # Claimant 

001 Current Expense Fund 
101 Street Fund 
107 Convention Center Reserve Fund 
108 Tourism Promotion Area Fund 
113 Fire Truck Reserve Fund 
114 Seniors Activity Fund 
118 Municipal Capital Improvement Fund 
121 Street Development Reserve Fund 
123 Criminal Justice Fund 
128 Transit System Fund 
130 Community Policinq Fund 
132 Community Events Fund 
170 Housinq Rehabilitation Fund 
401 Water Fund 
402 Garbaqe Fund 
403 Sewer Fund 
405 Sewer Improvement Reserve 
414 Water Deposits 

* Transaction Has Mixed Revenue And Expense Accounts 

Time: 14:55:58 Date: 08/17 /2022 

Amount Memo 

118,691 .89 
6,580.49 
6,923.93 
2,775.00 

18,449.45 
4.00 

3,145.00 
15,563.38 
34,910.68 
69,478.00 

342.08 
1,050.00 

101 .00 
15,574.81 

2,081 .52 
3,226.05 

818.00 
47.60 

----Claims: 

299,762.88 

Page: 10 

299,762.88 




